





Copyright © International Labour Organization 2021

First published 2021

Publications of the International Labour Office enjoy copyright under Protocol 2 of the Universal Copyright Convention. Nevertheless, short excerpts from them may be reproduced without authorization, on condition that the source is indicated. For rights of reproduction or translation, application should be made to ILO Publishing (Rights and Licensing), International Labour Office, CH-1211 Geneva 22, Switzerland, or by email: <u>rights@ilo.org</u>. The International Labour Office welcomes such applications.

Libraries, institutions and other users registered with a reproduction rights organization may make copies in accordance with the licences issued to them for this purpose. Visit <u>www.ifrro.org</u> to find the reproduction rights organization in your country.

ISBN: 9789220334195 (Print)

ISBN: 9789220334188 (Web PDF)

The designations employed in ILO publications, which are in conformity with United Nations practice, and the presentation of material therein do not imply the expression of any opinion whatsoever on the part of the International Labour Office concerning the legal status of any country, area or territory or of its authorities, or concerning the delimitation of its frontiers.

The responsibility for opinions expressed in signed articles, studies and other contributions rests solely with their authors, and publication does not constitute an endorsement by the International Labour Office of the opinions expressed in them.

Reference to names of firms and commercial products and processes does not imply their endorsement by the International Labour Office, and any failure to mention a particular firm, commercial product or process is not a sign of disapproval.

Information on ILO publications and digital products can be found at: www.ilo.org/publns.

Printed in Switzerland

Preface

The ILO Actuarial Health Model (ILO/HEALTH) is an online, computer-based projection and simulation tool developed by the Social Protection Department of the International Labour Office (ILO). The model aims to provide information on the expected financial impact of the introduction of and/or parametric changes to social protection schemes for medical care, sickness and maternity. The model's main aim is to support the costing and design of reforms in social protection systems.

This technical guide explains the methodology and process flow of ILO/HEALTH and serves as a reference manual for users. ILO/HEALTH is part of a series of quantitative tools developed by the Social Protection Department to support evidence-based policy reforms. The related technical guides and models can be made available to experts in ILO constituent countries as part of ongoing technical support and capacity-building activities in quantitative techniques in social security. Users of ILO/HEALTH are expected to be qualified quantitative experts who have substantial experience in the design and costing of health and social protection systems. The ILO/HEALTH model and technical manual can also be used as a teaching aid for specific training in social security quantitative techniques.

The ILO/HEALTH model and this manual are in line with international actuarial standards and practices, particularly the ILO <u>Social Security Minimum Standards Convention</u>, 1952 (No. 102), the ILO <u>Medical Care and Sickness Benefits Convention</u>, 1969 (No. 130), the ILO <u>Maternity</u> <u>Protection Convention</u>, 2000 (No.183), the ISSA-ILO <u>Guidelines on Actuarial Work for Social</u> <u>Security</u>, 2016, and the <u>International Standards of Actuarial Practice</u> (ISAP) recommended by the International Actuarial Association (IAA). The main components of the technical specifications of ILO/HEALTH were developed following guidelines of *Social Health Insurance: A Guidebook for Planning* (Norman and Weber 2009), a joint publication of the ILO, WHO and GTZ that provides detailed planning advice for the design of social health insurance systems. It also draws on the extensive knowledge produced by the ILO throughout several decades of policy advice and analytical work on social health protection, in particular its flagship publications such as <u>Modelling in Health Care Finance: A Compendium of Quantitative Techniques for Health Care Finance: A Compendium of Quantitative Methods in Social Protection Series (Cichon et al. 2004), and <u>Actuarial Practice in Social Security</u> (Plamondon et al. 2002).</u>

ILO quantitative tools are subject to constant development and improvement. New versions of this manual will be published at regular intervals to reflect major technical advances. Requests for further information and user feedback are welcome and can be communicated to us at <u>socpro@ilo.org</u>.

Geneva, April 2021

Shahra Razavi Director, Social Protection Department International Labour Office Fabio Duran-Valverde Head, Public Finance, Actuarial and Statistical Unit Social Protection Department, ILO

How to use this manual: Getting started

This manual was created primarily to guide actuaries and health economists working on quantitative aspects of social health protection systems in the use of the ILO Actuarial Health Model (ILO/HEALTH). However, the guide includes an introduction to the different policy applications of the tool, which is accessible to all users, and of particular interest to planners and policymakers involved in the management and development of health, sickness and maternity benefits. Users should feel free to jump between sections to find the parts relevant to them.

- Section 0 provides an **overview of the model** and its place in the process of actuarial valuation.
- Section 1 discusses the model's **usefulness in policymaking** and the ISSA-ILO *Guidelines on Actuarial Work* that support the **rationale behind it**.
- Section 2 explores the actuarial valuation process in depth.
- Section 3 presents the **basic assumptions** regarding the model's architectural framework, its **key functions**, administration and **outputs** (reports and indicators).
- Section 4 provides comprehensive **definitions of key concepts** used in the model and how they are applied.
- Section 5 offers tips on how to **explore the model** and start planning the model.
- Section 6 provides a **practice exercise** to become familiar with the model and its functions, and to learn tricks and techniques to manipulate information within the model.
- Section 7 offers insights into how to conduct a **consistency review** to ensure the accuracy and applicability of the model using projected results from this model.

If users are new to actuarial valuations and/or social health protection systems or would like a more comprehensive discussion of the concepts and definitions behind the model, we recommend reading through the entire manual, taking the time to understand all the definitions and concepts presented in Sections 2-4 before moving on to Sections 5-8.

Even if users have extensive experience with actuarial models or are fluent in the concepts of actuarial planning for social health protection systems, they are still advised to read through sections 2-5 to grasp the specifics of this model before using it. Users can then set up the model in section 6, work through some examples in section 7, and review the consistency of the results in section 8. (Tip: Users should take time with this – it may differ from other tools they are familiar with.)

Table of contents

Preface		i	
How to	use this manual: Getting started	ii	
Table of	f contents	iii	
Index of	f figures	v	
Introdu	ction	6	
Object	ive of the ILO/HEALTH model	6	
Scope	Scope of the ILO/HEALTH model		
Users o	of the ILO/HEALTH model	8	
1. The orie	e ILO intervention model for actuarial work: Building a strong technical base for a p ented process	olicy- 10	
2. The	e actuarial valuation process in healthcare schemes	16	
2.1.	Data collection, preparation and analysis	17	
2.2.	Institutional and scheme assessments	19	
2.3.	Model formulation and configuration	20	
2.4.	Data entry	22	
2.5.	Calibration of the baseline (status-quo) scenario: consistency review, sensitivity tests and reconciliation	on22	
2.6.	Analysis of the baseline scenario and discussion of reform options and policy scenarios	24	
2.7.	Discussion of preliminary results with pertinent social partners	25	
2.8.	Presentation, validation and formal submission of the final report	26	
2.9.	Communication and disclosure	28	
3. Ma	in features of ILO/HEALTH: A methodological overview	30	
3.1.	General overview		
3.2.	The building blocks of the modelling framework	31	
3.3.	Basic concepts used by ILO/HEALTH: An introduction		
3.4.	General flow of the calculation algorithm	36	
3.5.	Functional processes: Configuration / Models / Scenarios / Reporting		
4. Rat	tionale behind ILO/HEALTH	42	
4.1.	Population groups and coverage	42	
4.2.	Projection of cash flows by population group	44	
5. Wo	orking in ILO/HEALTH	54	
5.1.	Logging in to ILO/HEALTH	54	
5.2.	Models	55	

	5.3.	Scenarios	65
	5.4.	Navigation tree	74
	5.5.	Manipulation of matrices	78
	5.6.	Configuration of ILO/HEALTH	86
6.	ILO/	HEALTH Walkthrough	88
	6.1.	Logging in, creating a practice model and a practice base scenario	88
	6.2.	Opening the scenario and filling in a set of matrices	106
	6.3.	Filling in the financial inputs	142
	6.4.	Running the financial projection	177
	6.5.	Exploring the basic output matrices	179
	6.6.	ILO/HEALTH platform cheat sheet	199
7.	Cons	sistency review	200
	7.1.	Review of demographic results	200
	7.2.	Review of financial results	201
Ar	nex I:	List of Variables for ILO/HEALTH	203
Ar	nex 2:	Data request for conducting an actuarial valuation for a healthcare scheme	208
Re	ferenc	es	214

Index of figures

Figure 1 – Schematic overview of the policy process of extending social protection benefits 7
Figure 2 – The ILO intervention model for technical assistance in the actuarial field 12
Figure 3 – Internationally agreed-upon core principles in the ILO standards
Figure 4 – General workflow of actuarial valuations17
Figure 5 – ILO/HEALTH: Overview of the modelling framework (building blocks)
Figure 6 – Overview of the relationships between models, scenarios, schemes and population groups
Figure 7 – Overview of the calculation flow (a simplified flow)
Figure 8 – Overview of the main functional processes
Figure 9 – Overview of the main functional processes and population groups
Figure 10 – Projection of cash flows of a given health insurance scheme
Figure 11 – Projection of insured population of a given group 46
Figure 12 – Projection of contributing population47
Figure 13 – Income streams, contribution income
Figure 14 – All income streams
Figure 15 – Healthcare service expenditure 51
Figure 16 – Expenditure streams
Figure 17 – Financial benefits

Introduction

Objective of the ILO/HEALTH model

Building on decades of policy and analytical work to support countries in the extension of their social protection systems, the ILO has created a set of quantitative tools to support the long-term planning and sustainability of social health protection schemes and programmes. ILO/HEALTH was created to support the development of institutional capacities to produce a strong evidence-based process of policy reform. The tool should be used as part of a policy process aimed at ensuring that the human rights to access healthcare as well as income security during sickness and maternity become a reality for all. As the world works to achieve the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, there is an urgent need to ensure that the targets of the Sustainable Development Goals (SDG) will be met and sustained over time. To this end, ILO/HEALTH strives to support those efforts, especially with a view to achieving and sustaining over time SDG Target 1.3 on universal social protection and Target 3.8 on universal health coverage.

Scope of the ILO/HEALTH model

ILO/HEALTH can be used to estimate and project the future financial impact of the introduction of and/or parametric changes to social protection schemes and programmes covering the following life contingencies:

- Healthcare or medical care, including maternity care: schemes or programmes to provide effective access to healthcare services without hardship. International standards¹ envisage the provision of medical care and maternity care – both preventative and curative – by defining a basic set of goods and services that should be provided with a view to maintaining, restoring or improving health and the ability to work and attend to personal needs.
- Sickness and maternity: schemes or programmes to ensure income security during periods of sickness or maternity. ILO instruments prescribe minimum levels of periodic payments to compensate for the loss of earnings during sickness and maternity. To be adequate, income security in the case of maternity should be provided for the period of time necessary to guarantee the health of the mother and the child.

In line with ILO standards and principles, ILO/HEALTH is adapted to the variety of systems that exist to finance these schemes and programmes. The model is adapted to both tax-financed programmes and schemes funded by contributions, in accordance with the recognition by ILO standards that

¹ Social Security (Minimum Standards) Convention, 1952 (No.102), Medical Care and Sickness Benefits Convention, 1969 (No. 130) and Maternity Protection Convention, 2000 (No. 183).

several approaches exist to ensure effective access to healthcare as long as they respect key principles.²

- The model is adapted to the diversity of arrangements that can exist for the financing, purchasing and provision of healthcare. The recourse to social health insurance, a national health service or a combination of these schemes is possible in line with ILO Medical Care Recommendation No. 69, 1944.³
- The model can be used for both contributory and non-contributory short-term cash benefits to guarantee income security during sickness and/or maternity.

The ILO strategy for the extension of the human right to social security foresees two dimensions to be pursued by policy reforms: 1) the coverage of more people until universal coverage is achieved, and 2) the progressive provision of higher levels of benefits (i.e., a wider range of services provided, lower or no co-payments to be covered by the patient, higher cash benefits and / or benefits for longer periods of time). Both dimensions have financial impacts that need to be anticipated by the institutions managing and providing health and maternity protection benefits. Each national context is different and follows its own path towards the extension of coverage depending on national circumstances. Figure 1 provides a schematic overview to demonstrate where the actuarial valuation fits within the overall policy reform process.

Figure 1 – Schematic overview of the policy process of extending social protection benefits



The manual and the ILO Actuarial Health Model are anchored in the core principles of the ILO's social security standards adopted by representatives of the world's governments, employers and workers. These standards are a guarantee for balanced, stable and sustainable approaches to scheme design and are universally applicable to the wide variety of healthcare financing systems. These principles include the responsibility of governments to ensure the due provision of benefits and the proper administration of healthcare schemes as part of comprehensive national social protection systems. Governments do so by ensuring that the necessary actuarial studies and

² ILO. 2020. Towards Universal Health Coverage: Social Health Protection Principles. Social Protection Spotlight Brief. Available at: https://www.ilo.org/secsoc/information-resources/publications-and-tools/Brochures/WCMS_740724/lang--en/index.htm

^{3 &}quot;Medical care should be provided either through a social insurance medical care service with supplementary provision by way of social assistance to meet the requirements of needy persons not yet covered by social insurance, or through a public medical care service." (ILO Recommendation No. 69, para. 5).

calculations concerning financial equilibrium are made periodically and, in any event, prior to any change in either the scope of benefits (healthcare services and interventions, level of co-payment if any, level of cash benefit if applicable) or the level of contributions, taxes or both allocated to covering the contingency in question.

This manual and the ILO/HEALTH model can be applied in a wide range of situations. They include cases at the national or sectoral levels where policymakers may want to introduce a new healthcare, sickness or maternity scheme, or to reform existing schemes, whether they are financed by social insurance, taxes or a combination of both.

ILO/HEALTH is the result of conceptual, methodological and technical development over several decades of experience of the ILO worldwide. It is an actuarial model that combines components of economic, demographic and financial modelling specific to healthcare schemes. Because of its versatility, the model can be used to support quantitative work in both social health insurance schemes and national healthcare services.

The formulation of quantitative models for healthcare schemes comprises a complex and interrelated set of elements. These include the macroeconomic framework, labour market, the different population groups covered, the rules of financing and access to healthcare services, supply and demand for healthcare services, rules for the allocation of financial resources to healthcare service providers and their linkage to payment methods, and the institutional arrangements for linking the flow of economic resources to the demand for healthcare services.

Users of the ILO/HEALTH model

This manual is designed for use by actuaries and health economists working on quantitative aspects of social health protection systems. It is particularly focussed on guiding qualified actuaries in the use of the ILO/HEALTH model to carry out their analyses. However, the guide also includes an introduction to the different policy applications of the tool, which is accessible to all users, and of particular interest to planners and policymakers involved in the management and development of health, sickness and maternity benefits.

The manual aims to accompany users throughout the process of assessment and quantitative modelling of policies and policy scenarios for healthcare schemes and reforms, under the quantitative methodological framework provided by the ILO Actuarial Health Model (ILO/HEALTH). The manual attempts to integrate the conceptual aspects of healthcare systems and healthcare scheme design with the specific modelling process and methodology followed by ILO/HEALTH.

This manual is designed to guide the process of quantitative modelling in a simple, direct way. Each section combines conceptual design aspects with practical aspects of the modelling methodology and the actuarial model tool. Users of the manual will learn how to choose and implement components of the initial configuration and parameterization of ILO/HEALTH, such as the selection of the projection period, whether to work with a single healthcare scheme or to simultaneously define different healthcare and/or sickness and maternity schemes according to country-specific circumstances. As different schemes normally operate with different legal conditions and

institutional and financing arrangements, a multi-scheme model configuration is needed. Other examples include selecting the specific groups of contributors (where applicable) and their dependants (rural/urban, private/public sector employees, etc.) that will interact in a specific model formulation, as well as identifying and specifying the healthcare, sickness and maternity benefits to be included in the model.

Once a model has been specified and parameterized in ILO/HEALTH, this manual guides users through data entry, initial runs, reviewing and calibrating results for a baseline projection scenario, formulating projection scenarios linked to the policy scenarios to be simulated, conducting analyses and reporting results.

ILO/HEALTH provides a wide range of options for reporting and displaying results, allowing users to easily follow both intermediate and final quantitative outputs. This feature is beneficial during the calibration and consistency review process. ILO/HEALTH also provides basic output tables and graphing options for most of the intermediate calculations performed, as well as reports that include an extensive set of demographic and financial indicators, and output tables with the consolidated demographic and financial flows.

The intellectual property rights of all ILO actuarial models belong to the ILO's Social Protection Department (SOCPRO). The ILO is not responsible for projection results produced with the help of its software by users who are not ILO experts (staff or non-staff). Requests for further information or software updates should be sent to PFACTS at the email address given below.

This user manual was developed by Andrés Acuña-Ulate and Sergio Velasco, Social Security Actuaries of the Public Finance, Actuarial and Statistics Unit, PFACTS, and Fabio Durán-Valverde, Head of the Unit, with assistance from Nanya Sudhir and Zhiming Yu, Technical Officers of the Unit. It has received extensive contributions from Lou Tessier, Health Protection Specialist of the Social Protection Department of the ILO. It also received contributions from André Picard, Head of the Actuarial Services Unit of the Social Protection Department of the ILO, and from members of the International Social Security Association (ISSA) Technical Commission on Statistical, Actuarial and Financial Studies. The manual also benefited from reviews by the following ILO specialists of the Social Protection Department: Kroum Markov, Legal Officer; Maya Stern-Plaza, Legal Officer; Karuna Pal, Head of the Programming, Partnerships and Knowledge-Sharing Unit; and José Francisco Ortiz, ILO Social Protection Specialist. This manual was prepared under the technical supervision of Fabio Durán-Valverde.

Comments and contributions to improving the user manual are welcome and can be sent to socpropfacts@ilo.org.

1. The ILO intervention model for actuarial work: Building a strong technical base for a policy-oriented process

This section is for:

- Policymakers taking decisions based on actuarial work and reports
- Journalists or media and communications specialists who want to report accurately on actuarial valuation processes
- General users with an interest in actuarial matters and social protection

In this section, users will learn:

- The importance of actuarial modelling for sustainable policy design of healthcare schemes as well as sickness and maternity benefit programmes
- The ILO intervention model for technical assistance in the actuarial field
- General features of ILO/HEALTH
- ILO standards, core principles and minimum benchmarks for health and maternity protection schemes
- ISSA-ILO Guidelines on Actuarial Work for Social Security

The process of intervention for technical assistance in actuarial work

The effective administration of a healthcare scheme based on a sound long-term financial and actuarial perspective is crucial for ensuring its sustainability. The practice of conducting periodic actuarial valuations and assessing the expected impact of proposed reforms is central to operationalizing the State's responsibility under international social security standards. Actuarial valuations provide this long-term financial perspective for managers and planners of healthcare schemes. Actuarial reviews require the incorporation of long-term demographic and financial projections into the complex financial systems of healthcare schemes, which can only be done using models. ILO/HEALTH was developed to support actuarial and financial reviews or studies of statutory healthcare schemes. It helps to provide a quantitative basis for making policy decisions with respect to such schemes. The model also supports short-term cash benefit schemes to ensure income security during sickness or maternity. ILO/HEALTH enables:

- (i) projections of future benefit expenditure and contributions base through year-by-year calculations;
- (ii) determination of current and future financing needs, including contribution rates and tax transfers from the government;
- (iii) simulation of scheme reserves;
- (iv) assessment of the financial impact of changes in design parameters of schemes/programmes; and
- (v) identification of factors to be considered when creating the required fiscal space for financing healthcare schemes.

The development of more powerful IT tools has vastly improved the dynamism and robustness of quantitative models in healthcare schemes.

The ILO believes that actuarial work and its linkage to policy design should be framed within international social security standards and comparative best practices. The ILO Social Security (Minimum Standards) Convention, 1952 (No.102), which served as the blueprint for the development of social security worldwide, states that periodically conducting actuarial studies and calculations is the main way in which governments can assume their responsibility for the sustainable provision of benefits. In particular, Article 71.3 of Convention No. 102 states that: "The Member shall accept general responsibility for the due provision of the benefits provided in compliance with this Convention, and shall take all measures required for this purpose; it shall ensure, where appropriate, that the necessary actuarial studies and calculations concerning financial equilibrium are made periodically and, in any event, prior to any change in benefits, the rate of insurance contributions, or the taxes allocated to covering the contingencies in question."

The International Social Security Association (ISSA), and ILO jointly developed *Guidelines on Actuarial Work for Social Security* (hereafter referred to as the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*) to provide guidance on the application of good practices in the administration of social security systems. The main objectives of the guidelines are to:

- promote good practice in relation to actuarial work undertaken by and for social security institutions and to support efforts to improve accuracy, consistency and comparability of actuarial work;
- 2. provide guidance for the procedures carried out by actuaries in their work;
- 3. facilitate the work of institutions in their governance procedures relating to actuarial work;
- 4. improve the efficiency of actuarial procedures;
- 5. provide practical assistance to institutions to facilitate their compliance with actuarial standards; and
- 6. provide guidance to individuals or bodies responsible for policy issues and regulation on actuarial involvement.

The formulation of ILO/HEALTH and the methodological approach, as well as the work supported by the model and this manual, are framed within these international standards and good practices.

According to the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*, actuarial work should be adequately linked to national and institutional needs to undertake reforms and improve systems, both in the design of the schemes and managing institutions and in the building of institutional capacities.

Based on its experience of several decades, the ILO developed an intervention model for the actuarial field that covers three main processes: national or institutional assessment, capacity building and technical support (Figure 2).

Figure 2 – The ILO intervention model for technical assistance in the actuarial field

Institutional diagnosis	Capacity building	Technical support
 Foster a clear understanding of the system, its key strengths and weaknesses Identify potential organizational changes Formulate scenarios for reforms Assess existing data collection processes and data availability 	 Provide training on actuarial modelling for pensions for actuarial unit and other key staff members Support hypothesis formulation, data entry, scenario development, error checks, consistency analysis Provide guidance on interpreting results and drafting the actuarial report 	 Offer recommendations for creating the actuarial unit Customise ILO/HEALTH to the specific needs of the institution Provide assistance for preparing the first actuarial valuation using the new model Support the formulation of policy recommendations

This intervention model is important because actuarial work in social security requires reliable diagnoses to better understand social health protection schemes and to develop appropriate policy scenarios. ILO/HEALTH is both an instrument for evidence-based policy formulation and part of a comprehensive process of intervention for technical assistance. In accordance with the ILO's technical assistance framework in the field of social protection/ social security, the relevant institutions should assume responsibility for the actuarial tools and generate local capacity as autonomously as possible. The ILO intervention model, therefore, considers capacity building to be crucial for the implementation of the model and subsequent assistance to ensure ownership of the actuarial work by countries and the responsible institutions.

ILO core principles and minimum benchmarks for health-related benefits

For the ILO, it is essential that actuarial work on social security and the resulting outcomes, including policy recommendations, are in line with the principles enshrined in the international social security standards developed by its tripartite constituents.

Over its century of existence, the ILO has promoted the core principles and minimum benchmarks enshrined in its standards when providing support to ILO constituents in designing or reforming their national social security systems. Having been adopted by government, employer and worker representatives, these standards constitute an internationally set reference for both policy design and implementation of social security systems.

Notably, these standards establish the principles of collective financing and risk pooling as the expression of social solidarity underpinning national systems. ILO standards relevant to health-related benefits include the *Social Security Minimum Standards Convention*, 1952 (No. 102); the *Medical Care and Sickness Benefits Convention* (No. 130) and its accompanying *Recommendation* (No. 134), 1969; the *Maternity Protection Convention* (No. 183) and its accompanying *Recommendation* (No. 191), 2000; and the *Medical Care Recommendation*, 1944 (No. 69), as well as the *Social Protection Floors Recommendation*, 2012 (No. 202). Access to both healthcare services

and income security during sickness and maternity is reflected in ILO standards as an integral component of social protection systems. Access to healthcare has further been recognised as a guarantee that should be protected through national social protection floors (R202).

In the framework of the 2030 Agenda for Sustainable Development, universal health coverage (UHC) is defined as ensuring that all people can access the promotive, preventive, curative, rehabilitative and palliative essential health services they need without facing financial hardship.⁴ Social health protection, enshrined in ILO standards, provides a rights-based approach to achieving UHC. Mainstreaming UHC to ensure comprehensive coverage for all is the maximum expression of the right to health and social security.⁵

Social health protection has a dual objective: universal access to affordable healthcare of adequate quality, and income security in case of sickness.⁶ In addition, ILO standards, especially the Social Security Minimum Standards Convention, 1952 (No. 102); the Maternity Protection Convention (No. 183) and its accompanying Recommendation (No. 191), 2000; and the Social Protection Floors Recommendation, 2012 (No. 202), identify income security during pregnancy and following child birth as a core component of social protection systems. To be adequate, income security in case of maternity should be provided for as long as necessary to guarantee the health of the mother and the child.

Like the other ILO social security standards, these standards are applicable worldwide and consider the different modalities in the design and provision of benefits as well as the different levels of development of national social security systems. Consequently, they are based on the premise that while there is no one-size-fits-all approach to social protection in general, including the provision of healthcare and related benefits, a set of core principles and minimum parameters (or benchmarks) can be established internationally to serve as a framework for guiding government action, even in the absence of ratification.

⁴ United Nations, 2019. General Assembly Resolution 74/2, <u>Political Declaration of the High-Level Meeting on Universal Health Coverage:</u> <u>"Universal Health Coverage: Moving Together to Build a Healthier World"</u>, A/RES/74/2.

⁵ United Nations, 2019. Report of the United Nations High Commissioner for Human Rights, E/2019/52.

⁶ ILO. 2020. Towards Universal Health Coverage: Social Health Protection Principles. Social Protection Spotlight Brief. Available at: https://www.ilo.org/secsoc/information-resources/publications-and-tools/Brochures/WCMS 740724/lang--en/index.htm.

The core principles embodied in ILO standards can be grouped under the following categories:



Figure 3 – Internationally agreed-upon core principles in the ILO standards

The minimum parameters set in the standards include the scope and level of benefits and services offered, eligibility criteria and minimum coverage in terms of persons to be protected, the qualifying period needed for entitlement to benefits, as well as their duration.

In the case of healthcare, international standards provide guiding principles and parameters to achieve universal protection in a way that reflects risk-sharing, equity and solidarity – between income groups, men and women and generations – in a fiscally, economically and socially sustainable manner. Furthermore, healthcare should be provided both with preventative and curative aims and with a view to maintaining and restoring the health condition of the person protected. The standards also provide benchmarks to assess the adequacy of healthcare and related benefits, both in terms of access and scope. The guiding principles and parameters equally apply to sickness and maternity benefits, setting out the minimum for when and how to disburse these cash benefits when a person is unable to earn income as a result of ill health or pregnancy and childbirth.

Box. Useful resources for this chapter

ILO. 2020. Towards Universal Health Coverage: Social Health Protection Principles. Social Protection Spotlight Brief. Available at: https://www.ilo.org/secsoc/information-resources/publications-and-tools/Brochures/WCMS_740724/lang--en/index.htm

ILO. 2020. Sickness Benefits: An Introduction. Social Protection Spotlight Brief. Available at: https://www.ilo.org/secsoc/information-resources/publications-and-tools/Brochures/WCMS 744506/lang--en/index.htm

ILO. 2017. Building Social Protection Systems: International Standards and Human Rights Instruments. Available at: https://www.ilo.org/secsoc/information-resources/publications-and-tools/books-and-reports/WCMS 651219/lang--en/index.htm

Key ILO standards:

- Medical Care Recommendation, 1944 (No. 69)
- Social Security (Minimum Standards) Convention, 1952 (No. 102)
- Medical Care and Sickness Benefits Convention, 1969 (No. 130) and Recommendation, 1969, (No. 134)
- Maternity Protection Convention, 2000 (No. 183)
- Social Protection Floors Recommendation, 2012 (No. 202)

2. The actuarial valuation process in healthcare schemes

This section is for:

- Managers or others involved in the development of new actuarial units in social health protection institutions
- Users engaged in actuarial work in social health protection institutions who want to obtain a perspective of the scale of the whole process
- Newcomers to actuarial practice in social health protection and social security

In this section, users will learn:

- The stages of preparing an actuarial evaluation:
 - o Data collection, preparation and analysis
 - Institutional and scheme diagnostics
 - Model formation and configuration
 - o Data entry
 - o Baseline calibration and consistency review
 - Analysis of reform options and policy scenarios
 - Stakeholder discussions
 - o Actuarial report
 - o Communication and disclosure

It is extremely important that users prepare and review an actuarial valuation of a social security scheme in a systematic, meticulously organized way to ensure high quality results. Although the methodology and processes are standard, it is advisable to agree on their adequate definition to guide the actuarial valuation process developed by both social security institutions and external actuarial service providers.

Specifically, the process must comply with the international standards and guidelines of the International Association of Actuaries (IAA), and the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*, especially Guidelines 1-12 and 25-28.

This section describes the different stages of preparing the actuarial valuation and walks users through the steps to ensure that the actuarial valuation complies with international best practices, especially the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*. The section is not intended to replace the contents of the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*, nor does it attempt to cover all aspects of developing an actuarial valuation. Users who want more detailed information should consult Guidelines 1 to 12 of the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*.





As per the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*, each stage of the actuarial valuation should include a clearly documented peer review, specifying who is responsible for carrying it out, what the findings were and what measures were taken, if any.

2.1. Data collection, preparation and analysis

The proper organization and implementation of data collection, preparation and analysis is critical to ensuring reliable results throughout the process.

The data required for the operation of the actuarial model include the demographic and financial information of current active and inactive contributors, current and potential beneficiaries, the benefits to which they have access (cash benefits, healthcare packages, and health interventions), as well as the current rules under which the system operates and any expected future changes to them. The social security institution is responsible for ensuring that this information is updated, available and reliable.

Box. ISSA-ILO Guidelines on Actuarial Work for Social Security

Guideline 2. Data

In preparing a report, the social security institution ensures the availability of sufficient and reliable data necessary to perform actuarial work. The social security institution is responsible for the management of the data pertaining to the social security scheme participants and provisions, and compliance with data privacy legislation and national standards. The actuary provides an opinion on sufficiency and reliability of data, describes any modification made to data and the impacts of imperfect data on the social security scheme and its participants, and makes recommendations for improving the quality of data.

(...)

Principles:

- The social security institution should define responsibilities for data management within the organization including who is responsible for the management of the process and peer review processes.
- The data management process should ensure security of data (including detailing back-up procedures) and that any legal requirements regarding data privacy are respected.
- Data requirements should be documented and justified. These should take into account specific needs of the programmes that require actuarial work and the actuarial method and models adopted for the valuations. The documentation should: identify data elements; describe the use of data; provide sources of data.
- Social security institutions should have a well-documented and structured procedure on preparing data requests for external and internal data providers.
- Social security institutions should establish a well-documented and structured data validation process which will test internal data consistency as well as consistency with external sources (e.g. audited financial statements).
- Data collection should be undertaken using the seriatim approach. In a case where grouped data is used for the actuarial
 valuation, it is the responsibility of the actuary to determine the appropriate approach to group the data. The impact on the
 results of using grouped data as opposed to individual data should be assessed and communicated appropriately to
 relevant stakeholders.
- Lack of data, for example for a newly established social security scheme, presents a major challenge for social security professionals. In such situations, actuaries may need to rely on data from other sources and programmes. The actuary should coordinate with other agencies and stakeholders to ensure that the most appropriate data is used.

Entering data into the actuarial model requires information from different sources, not only from the social security institution, but also from other institutions, including household surveys, macroeconomic and social sector surveys, reports and databases. Coherence and consistency of information from the different sources must be ensured through a data review, analysis and cleaning process. Modern data science tools such as data integration and data visualization are instrumental to this process. The main sources of data required for the model include:

 Official statistical information. Consistency should be maintained between publications by the national institutions, including statistical yearbooks or other statistical or official database sources (economic, demographic, financial, etc.). Any discrepancies with the official information may later be questioned, also calling into question the results of the process.

- Previous actuarial valuations. The actuarial study should follow up on and analyse trends, conclusions and recommendations in previous studies. This also applies to events and decisions (actions) taken between the previous and most recent valuations. Any significant differences should be explained. According to Guideline 7 of the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*, "The valuation of a social security scheme includes the reconciliation of the value of the sustainability measures, financial indicators and other relevant results between the previous and current valuations. As part of the risk management of the social security scheme, the social security institution examines the main drivers of the changes in results between successive valuations." Sustainability measures, financial indicators and other relevant contribution rates, if the scheme is contributory; scheme reserves, if applicable; expenditures as a percentage of GDP and government expenditures, among others.
- **Financial statements.** Revenues, expenditures, reserve funds, interest revenues, etc. disclosed in the financial statements should be consistent with the actuarial valuation, especially in the early years of the projection.
- Plans and programmes for the extension of coverage. These plans and programmes should be consistent with the demographic and financial assumptions adopted during model formulation and should therefore be reflected in projection results. If the results of the actuarial valuation are inconsistent with any of these documents, the reasons for this should be clearly explained in the technical report.
- Actuary's opinion on the data. The actuary must issue their technical opinion regarding the sufficiency and reliability of the available data and clarify the adjustments made to the original data.

2.2. Institutional and scheme assessments

The formulation of actuarial work, in particular the design of policy scenarios, must be supported by a rigorous analysis of the institutional situation and the healthcare scheme parameters to be evaluated. This process includes analysis of the:

- social, demographic, macroeconomic and labour market environment, which affects sources of financing (productivity and wages, contributions, interest income from the reserve, inflation rates) and expenditure trends;
- (2) legal and regulatory framework against the principles and minimum benchmarks established by ILO standards on social security (including the comments made by ILO supervisory bodies in case of ratification of a relevant Convention);
- (3) governance in general, including the organization of political and administrative structures (see *ISSA Guidelines on Good Governance of Social Security Institutions*);
- (4) administration and operational processes, including the strategic procurement of healthcare services, to identify areas of potential improvement that affect efficiency and results in terms

of adequacy/quality of healthcare services and other benefits, coverage and access to services and benefits, as well as contribution collection and administrative costs;

- (5) the scheme's investment regime and functioning; and
- (6) other areas of interest based on the specific requirements of the analysis.

Experts with relevant experience and expertise in health and maternity protection may participate in institutional and scheme assessments. The information needs to be detailed enough to inform the actuary who will lead the actuarial work, including configuration of the model and the operationalization of the policy scenarios to be simulated.

2.3. Model formulation and configuration

The formulation and configuration of a specific model must comply with a set of technical, actuarial and policy analysis requirements. This process should be guided by practical criteria that consider the existing evidence of problems identified in studies and analyses conducted before this stage. It should avoid abstract exercises and prioritize applicability.

Some aspects to consider while formulating a scenario:

Level of disaggregation of inputs and outputs required. This definition of this level is related to the final objectives of the model formulation in terms of the policy scenarios to be modelled. The availability of information or input data is also a determining factor in the level of disaggregation of the model inputs (for example, healthcare service costs, usually calculated with the participation of health economists). As a rule, the model aims for a level of disaggregation that best allows it to answer the relevant policy questions with the available data.

Assumptions. The definition of demographic and financial assumptions is one of the most sensitive issues related to an actuarial study. The *International Standards of Actuarial Practice 2* (ISAP2) provides a simple, practical criterion for their definition. "If the actuary sets the assumptions, the actuary should use neutral assumptions in a financial analysis of a social security programme. Neutral assumptions are such that the actuary expects that the resulting projection of the scheme experience is not a material underestimate or overestimate." Additionally, all assumptions must meet certain conditions. For instance, short-term assumptions cannot deviate significantly from recent experience.

Sufficiency and role of the actuary and stakeholders. According to Guideline 3 of the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*, assumptions used for the valuation of a social security scheme are sufficient to value the scheme in accordance with its financing objectives and consistent with the overall socio-economic environment of the country. The development of assumptions combines the analysis of historical trends with a forward-looking approach. Social security institutions assign major responsibilities to an actuary in the assumption-setting process. An actuary provides an opinion on the extent to which the assumptions used for actuarial work are reasonable and appropriate both individually and on an aggregate basis. By their nature, social health protection programmes cover wide segments of the population. Thus,

economy-wide and nationwide economic and demographic assumptions are often needed for the purpose of performing actuarial valuations. The development of assumptions is often a joint exercise that involves inputs from many parties: experts from the responsible institution, relevant ministries (especially the Ministry of Health), various governmental organizations and independent bodies of experts. Moreover, some of the assumptions may be prescribed by legislation or provided by various governmental organizations.

Cross-validation. Whenever possible, and to avoid misunderstandings, responsible institutions and other national counterparts should participate in the definition and validation of these assumptions, emphasizing the criteria they must meet for the results to be valid.

Consistency with current data available. The assumptions adopted should be consistent with both the information observed in the base year of the projection and with recent trends. If there are significant deviations, they must be adequately explained. The actuary's technical criteria play a pivotal role when analysing the evolution of the results of the actuarial and financial projections. For instance, the actuary needs to determine the extent to which existing commitments and obligations, such as investments made in the short and medium term with already established rates of return, can and should affect short- and medium-term assumptions.

Mutually consistent assumptions. The assumptions must be mutually consistent throughout the projection. For example, the average growth rate of healthcare costs or fees must be aligned with the average growth rate of insurable earnings and the economy as a whole. Although there are situations in which these relationships seem to be affected by external factors, there should be consistency when considering sufficiently long periods.

Existing plans and programmes. Existing plans that provide for future changes or adjustments, such as: extension of coverage to excluded groups, expansion of existing infrastructure, adjustment of health or cash benefits or benefit calculation rules, and modification of the investment portfolio, among others, should also be considered when defining demographic and financial assumptions and should therefore be reflected in projection results.

Nominal versus real values. The actuary should determine whether the model is formulated in nominal terms or in real terms. Both options are valid, but whatever the decision, the actuary must clearly state it when documenting the model and ensure that all calculations and results of the actuarial report are clear and consistent.

Opinion of the actuary regarding the assumptions. The actuary should issue a technical opinion on whether the assumptions adopted are reasonable and appropriate, referring to the assumptions both individually and collectively.

Definition of scenarios. As the additional scenarios respond to solutions to identified problems or to policies to improve management, coverage, adequacy, or compliance with international social security standards, among others, their definition should be made taking into account the opinion

of the organizations of the stakeholders involved in the administration of the social security scheme, which are usually workers, employers and government. This topic is discussed in more detail later in this section.

2.4. Data entry

Entering data into the model (variables, parameters, assumptions, and others) is often a laborious and tedious activity. Users should only begin this phase when they are fully confident of the specific objectives to be achieved by the formulation of a specific model. Monitoring and double-checking this process is critical.

Preparing the model inputs is a meticulous process that in some institutions may demand a significant effort, particularly the first time the necessary data set is produced. Health institutions must make an effort to produce accurate inputs of critical data, such as the unit costs of health interventions, or reimbursements to health providers, among others.

Generally, users reviewing the model should be different from users entering data. Alternatively, if more than one user is assigned responsibility for entering data into the different blocks of a model (context, internal demographics, rules and regulations, etc.), the technical team involved in the actuarial work can supervise and cross-check this process.

The data entry process for ILO/HEALTH is explained in section 5.5.3 of this manual.

2.5. Calibration of the baseline (status-quo) scenario: consistency review, sensitivity tests and reconciliation

Model calibration is the process of adjusting a model's inputs and parameters and putting in place constraints on the margins of certainties to obtain results that meet certain criteria. By adjusting the model's parameters, the calibration process allows to correct significant deviations from the observable values of the projection variables. Consequently, the calibration process requires sufficiently observed and credible historical data.

To address calibration, the actuary needs to have a clear idea about the purpose of formulating a given model. The degree of complexity of the calibration process is directly related to the degree of complexity of the model. Accordingly, the calibration process requires the judgement of a professional actuary, which is usually developed through professional training and years of experience.

Usually, the model should be able to reproduce, to a certain degree of accuracy, results observed in a recent period. There are no specific rules on how to calibrate an actuarial model, and this is where the professional experience of the actuary becomes critical. But as a first step, the model, along with its parameters and assumptions, should reproduce with some accuracy the demographic and financial results observed for the first year of the projection, the fraction of the year with available results, or the observed results of several previous annual periods if the projection period begins in a period prior to the current year. An alternative method, not included in ILO/HEALTH, is to run a back projection, i.e., go back in time to reproduce the values observed in the years covered by the back-projection exercise.

2.5.1. Consistency review

The calibration process discussed in the previous section must be accompanied by a rigorous consistency review of the results for the whole projection period to identify explanations or unexpected deviations. This part of the process is critical to ensure the success of the actuarial valuation. Section 7 offers a detailed discussion of the consistency tests supported by the projection indicators generated by ILO/HEALTH.

The review process should address consistency of results in two areas. First, the trends in the main demographic results, such as the projection of scheme beneficiaries; coverage rate; age structure; active and inactive contributors (where applicable) according to the size of the labour force, which should be consistent with the assumptions by population group, sex and year of projection; and others. Second, the trends in the main financial results, such as the pay-as-you-go (PAYG) rate, expenditure growth rate, expenditure distribution and proportion of administrative expenditure, among others, in accordance with the set of hypotheses adopted.

2.5.2. Sensitivity tests

The objective of sensitivity tests is to study the impact of the various sources of uncertainty in a quantitative model. Unlike the consistency review, which aims to verify the internal consistency of the results and detect possible modelling problems, sensitivity tests determine how the different values of an independent variable affect dependent variables under a given set of assumptions. The analysis can include one or more input variables.

In the case of actuarial valuations for healthcare schemes, the following sensitivity tests are recommended to measure the impact on the main financial indicators (balance sheet, PAYG rate and others):

- changes in inflation rate
- changes in wage growth rate if the healthcare scheme is contributory
- changes in GDP growth rate
- any other variable considered important in a particular scenario.

The results of sensitivity tests should be analysed with extreme caution and preferably discussed with the technical team assisting in the actuarial valuation. If it is determined that there are variables that may have a significant impact on the level of certainty of the results, these tests and results should be mentioned in the actuarial report.

2.5.3. Reconciliation

When previous actuarial valuations are available, it is useful to reconcile results obtained in the current valuation with those of previous valuations, especially the most recent one. This exercise not only helps to identify risks not foreseen in previous valuations, but also contributes to the accuracy of the results.

Guideline 7 of the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines* contains some results that can be reconciled between these valuations.

2.6. Analysis of the baseline scenario and discussion of reform options and policy scenarios

The baseline scenario analysis is important for identifying unwanted situations that may arise in the future. To this end, it is essential to consider not only the results of the baseline scenario projections, but also the institutional and health system assessment (discussed in section 3.2). While the list of potential problems to be identified may be broad, it should not be limited to items directly related to income and expenses. The adequacy of benefits (sufficiency, timeliness, duration and revision of benefits) and coverage should also be analysed, as well as possible management problems associated with the collection of contributions, administration and investments.

This analysis should consider compliance with the principles of social security, especially with the ILO conventions ratified by the country, specifically Convention No. 102 concerning social security minimum standards.

Once the potential problems and situations to be corrected have been identified, solutions must be found. These solutions should be discussed with social partners and translated into policy scenarios to evaluate their impact. This scenario evaluation exercise will provide important information for decision-makers.

The analysis of reform options and policy scenarios is a key objective of quantitative modelling in actuarial science applied to social health protection. This stage is therefore critical and usually constitutes the point of greatest interest to users of actuarial reports, namely strategic decision-makers.

Policy scenarios respond to a need for solutions to existing problems or policies to improve management, coverage, adequacy or compliance with international standards, among others.

The development of policy scenarios has two stages: formulation and analysis. Formulation relates to deciding on which policy options will be used to make projections (scenarios) while the analysis stage seeks to explain results, deviations and their causes. Both stages interact to provide mutual feedback. This means that the results of the analysis of some policy scenarios may lead to the decision to explore, formulate and analyse new scenarios.

Scenario formulation and analysis should be done considering the opinion of both (a) the organizations involved in the administration of the health scheme (usually worker, employer and

government representatives for social health protection schemes, and representatives of beneficiaries or patients); and (b) the staff working on the actuarial valuation. Transparency at this stage is essential to achieve the expected results. This is especially true with respect to actuarial valuations, which are part of social dialogue processes to introduce social security reforms. It is important to involve social partners in this process to gain their inputs and confidence in decisions made.

The following is a list of typical examples of policy scenarios:

- variations (increase or decrease) in contribution rates, in contributions from a particular sector, or in government transfers;
- extension of a scheme's coverage, usually to include new populations, such as the noncovered population or specific groups such as workers in the informal economy, rural workers or migrant populations;
- modifications in the level of benefits, benefit costs or in the conditions for the adjustment
 of benefits: healthcare packages or specific healthcare interventions, healthcare utilization
 rates, growth rate of costs, per-capita costs, co-payment levels, minimum and maximum
 levels of a specific benefit and modification of criteria for fees paid to healthcare providers,
 among others;
- variations in the requirements to access programme benefits, such as waiting periods and minimum contribution periods, among others; and
- in the case of contributory schemes, variations in the amounts of salaries or income subject to social contributions: minimum contributable salary or salary contribution ceilings.

2.7. Discussion of preliminary results with pertinent social partners

The results of actuarial valuations are often key inputs for decision-making at the level of both the institution responsible for the scheme and at the level of the policy on overall social protection and health systems. To this end, the preliminary results of the work, including the successive rounds of scenarios evaluated, should be discussed with relevant social partners. This includes representatives of the protected persons and those involved in financing the scheme under evaluation.

An actuarial valuation is merely a tool; final policy decisions are in the hands of others. For this reason, there must be transparency in the understanding of the intermediate results of the actuarial exercise by those who will ultimately make the decisions. It is the actuary's responsibility to guarantee the transparency of the process, which includes maintaining an adequate level of communication with the social partners responsible for decision-making.

Throughout the process, the intermediate and final results of the actuarial study must be shared with those *not* using all the technical instruments required for this type of exercise. That is why it is

crucial to communicate information on results in simple, clear language, although without ignoring the technical perspective or objectivity.

2.8. Presentation, validation and formal submission of the final report

Actuarial reports are a fundamental part of the actuarial valuation work as they are the main means by which the results of the process are communicated to decision-makers and health insurance authorities, in the form of conclusions and recommendations. The actuarial report should be prepared in accordance with Guideline 9 of the *Actuarial ISSA-ILO Guidelines* (see box).

Box. ISSA-ILO Guidelines on Actuarial Work for Social Security

Guideline 9. Reporting

In preparing a report on the actuarial valuation of a social security scheme, an actuary considers legislative requirements and relevant professional standards and guidance, as well as the intended audience.

A report on the actuarial valuation of a social security programme could be considered as a final product of the actuarial valuation process. It is a tool that provides stakeholders with information necessary to make responsible decisions with respect to a social security scheme. As such, a social security institution as well as the actuary should make every effort to prepare a comprehensive, transparent and explicit report on the actuarial valuation. This guideline should be read in conjunction with Guidelines 11, 25, 26, 27 and 28.

Principles:

- The report on the actuarial valuation should contain sufficient information to permit the conduct of the independent expert review (see Guideline 11) and to allow stakeholders to make sound decisions based on the results set out. It should be written in such language as to be understandable and unambiguous for all stakeholders, including those without an actuarial background.
- The report on the actuarial valuation should contain an opinion describing the actuary's views on the appropriateness of data, assumptions and methodology as well as other material elements of the performed work. This opinion should be signed by an actuary who fully meets the professional requirements for making such an opinion as set down by the national actuarial organization and recognized by the International Actuarial Association.
- The social security institution should ensure that reports on the actuarial valuation as well as any supplemental information with respect to the actuarial valuation are available in all relevant languages.
- Additional communication may be required in order to address needs of a more technical nature as well as to facilitate the understanding of the report by stakeholders.

Actuarial reports for healthcare schemes are much more than descriptions of model results. The key message of an actuarial report is whether a scheme will be financially sound in the short, medium and long term. Although the ILO actuarial models provide a solid base on which to formulate perspectives regarding the financial soundness of schemes, models can only serve as a support and should not be expected to replace sound judgement and experience. This assessment of soundness, as well as the choice of methods and assumptions used for modelling, depend largely on the personal judgement of an informed and experienced technical staff.

The presentation of the results should show the calculations and projections for the baseline scenario (status quo), as well as for the other scenarios, and explain the rationale behind their

formulation. Actuarial studies of social health protection schemes should show the short- and medium-term results (at the most, a 15-year period); however, it is advisable to make longer-term projections occasionally. Reasons for this include the estimation of the healthcare demand structure in the long term to gradually adapt the system. Actuarial reports should be clear and accessible to facilitate their understanding and use by other professionals who are unfamiliar with actuarial issues.

Actuarial reports usually include the following:

- The reason for the actuarial valuation and a description of recent scheme developments.
- The social, demographic, economic and political context underlying the scheme.
- A description of the provisions of the healthcare scheme or schemes to be evaluated in terms of legislation, rules and regulations, the ILO social security conventions ratified by the country (especially Convention No. 102 of Minimum Standards) and the analysis of their compliance. This includes coverage, nature of the scheme (e.g., contributory or noncontributory), source of funding and benefit provisions (e.g., contingencies covered, formulae, amounts, restrictions and eligibility conditions).
- Methodology, data and assumptions. Overview of the actuarial valuation model (ILO/HEALTH). The methodology used, technical bases, the demographic, economic and financial hypotheses adopted, and the scenarios, including data annexes and methodological annexes, where necessary.
- Results and findings. Projected demographic values at selected future points in time. Financial projections showing cash flows and balance sheet values for the recent past and for the future.
- Analysis of results, including demographic and financial projections based on status quo conditions that yield a financial analysis of the scheme. Reconciliation with the previous actuarial report, along with explanations of significant changes in results. Discussion of the pattern of financial projections and its implications. Sensitivity of results to variations in one or more assumptions. Findings with respect to the short-and medium-term financial sustainability of the scheme with due regard for any funding rules.
- Financial analysis of reform options and scenarios.
- Discussion of the impact of reform options and scenarios and the formulation of final reform strategies.
- Conclusions and recommendations on the adequacy of the legal framework, compliance with international standards, administration, reform options and political scenarios, including:
 - \circ adequacy of current or proposed contribution rates;

- efficiency of benefit provisions;
- adequacy of benefits;
- o performance of the administration and level of administrative cost; and
- o investment policy and performance (safety, return, liquidity), if applicable.
- An appendix containing baseline data, detailed results and the methodological basis of the estimates.

The report's structure and content must comply with both the IAA's *International Standards of Actuarial Practice 2* (ISAP2) (section 3.1 and appendix) and *the ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines* (section D on Reporting, Communication and Disclosure and other related guidelines). The appendix to ISAP2 describes the possible contents of the actuarial report, considering the financial system and valuation method used.

In addition to the specific content of the actuarial reports, these standards address critical issues such as:

- The frequency with which actuarial studies should be carried out and the relationship that this frequency has with the nature of the healthcare scheme to be evaluated, including external actuarial valuations or peer-reviews.
- The circumstances under which the frequency of these studies should be increased.
- Since it is necessary to share the information on the actuarial valuation with the interested parties in the scheme (workers, employers, protected people, etc.), the institution managing the health scheme should adopt a policy for communicating actuarial reports.
- Actuarial information should be communicated at a technical level tailored to the target audience to ensure that it is easily understood and used.

Ideally, national regulations should officially establish that the responsible institution should prepare actuarial valuation reports using internal technical resources (an actuarial department or unit), or that a third party prepare them, if appropriate. These should comply with the IAA's international ISAP2 standards, and with the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*. Additionally, dialogue should be established with other institutions in the social protection system, especially with the healthcare system's regulatory and oversight institutions, if they exist. In some countries, there are public institutions or bodies responsible for defining the structure of the presentation of actuarial reports.

2.9. Communication and disclosure

Communication is an important component of actuarial work. The social health protection institution and actuaries must provide accurate, relevant and timely information to ensure sound reporting and communication processes.

The *ILO/ISSA Actuarial Guidelines* (Guidelines 25-28) address communication and disclosure aspects of actuarial reports, such as communication between board members, management and the

actuary, the reporting process, responsibilities of the social health protection institution with respect to reporting and communication, including the correct form of technical and non-technical communication depending on the audience. Ideally, there should be legislative deadlines with respect to the results of the actuarial valuation and their transparent communication to social partners. Social security institutions, with the support of the actuary, should meet these deadlines.

Social health protection institutions are responsible for reporting and communicating changes in the provisions of the scheme, which usually form part of actuarial analysis and reports. The actuarial situation of social security programmes should therefore be reported regularly, in a timely, comprehensive manner, particularly where the sustainability and adequacy of benefits may be compromised.

Due to the technical complexity of actuarial work, communication of the results of actuarial valuations should be tailored to the specific needs of each audience, such as congressional representatives, members of the institutions' boards of directors and senior technicians of the institutions, among others. The publication of the results of actuarial valuations may be accompanied by a communication (e.g., a press release or an executive summary) that summarizes in simple language the main conclusions, policy options and recommendations of the actuarial valuation.

3. Main features of ILO/HEALTH: A methodological overview

This section is for:

- Managers who want to use the outputs generated by ILO/HEALTH to substantiate policy recommendations with evidence to decision-makers
- Individuals conducting actuarial work in social health protection who want to learn
 more about the inputs and outputs of the model
- Actuarial experts who want to be informed of the data requirements of the model
- General users and newcomers to actuarial practice who want to learn the specifics of ILO/HEALTH

In this section, users will learn:

- The technical specifications of ILO/HEALTH
- The structure of ILO/HEALTH's modelling framework: phases, inputs, outputs
- Definitions of basic concepts used in the model
- The main functional processes in the model: users, models, scenarios and reporting

3.1. General overview

ILO/HEALTH is part of the ILO Quantitative Platform of Social Security (QPSS). This platform contains a set of calculation, simulation and analysis tools, both actuarial and non-actuarial.

The QPSS is equipped with a central administration tool (the CAT tool), which allows varying levels of control over operations related to the use of the different quantitative tools. These operations include registration of social security institutions, users, process control, data control and IT security in general. Individual and institutional users have private workspaces to ensure the confidentiality of the information managed in the different tools. The ILO is committed to guaranteeing the security and confidentiality of the data stored on the platform.

The QPSS is a service whose IT security and consistency comply with ILO standards. The QPSS is an MS Azure cloud-based service that provides users with an actuarial-as-a-service model (SaaS infrastructure model) within a multi-layered and responsive tool to be consumed in a secure web-based environment.

3.2. The building blocks of the modelling framework

ILO/HEALTH is constructed on a basic set of building blocks. Understanding these building blocks is crucial to modelling and obtaining the desired results (see Figure 5).



Figure 5 – ILO/HEALTH: Overview of the modelling framework (building blocks)

Work in the model is done in two phases:

The first phase is the **design phase**, where users establish parameters in the platform to set up their definitions of different models. Users need to first discuss and analyse the critical aspects of setting up a particular actuarial model. To this end, users should define the *schemes* they are going to model, the *population groups* belonging to each scheme and the *age limits* of each population group within the scheme. For each scheme, users need to create at least one group of active contributors (in the case of contributory schemes). Every scheme also automatically creates a set of *beneficiary groups*: contributors, pensioners (when this option applies) and protected dependent family members. Users set the *projection period* and the *method of calculation of results* in nominal or real terms. A critical stage in the design phase is the *configuration* of the healthcare packages and their linkage to population groups. Sections 5.6 and 6.1.3 provide more details on these decisions and how to operationalize them.

ILO/HEALTH creates an initial definition of the healthcare scheme(s) and, if applicable, the sickness and maternity cash benefit schemes that make up a national system. A national system may include one or more schemes functioning at the national or sectoral level. Thus, there can be national single-scheme models and multi-scheme models. Each scheme has its own rules and population groups.

The second phase is the **implementation phase** of the modelling process. Once a model's parameters are set, users can create baseline and policy scenarios and scenario matrices with relevant information for the projection exercise.

INPUTS: Inputs help to simulate the demographic and financial dynamics of the population groups. Inputs relate to: 1) context: mainly related to the national demographic, labour market and macroeconomic situation in which the schemes function; 2) the scheme's characteristics: eligibility conditions, services and benefits available (their costs and calculation formula), contribution rates, income and administrative expenditures; and 3) population group characteristics: initial contributions, structure and transition probabilities (including those of inactive contributors and all beneficiary groups) and key information on the healthcare and cash benefit demand.

- The **context** is a set of national-level variables and parameters. These include projections of the national population by sex, rates of participation in economic activity by sex, and a set of basic parameters for the macroeconomic framework, including GDP growth rate, inflation rate, salary growth rate and interest rate.
- Scheme inputs. On the beneficiary end, the scheme rules determine who has access to the scheme's benefits, how much they cost and how they are calculated. Scheme inputs are also characterized by a set of rules that determine who pays contributions (if applicable), the period during which they do so and the proportion of earnings paid as contributions. Regarding *health schemes and institutional rules*, ILO/HEALTH creates an initial definition of the healthcare schemes that are part of a national health system, which may include one or more schemes functioning at the national or sectoral level. Thus, there can be national single-scheme models and multi-scheme models.

Typically, a scheme can have different rules and specific populations covered in relation to other healthcare schemes. At the model level, specific healthcare schemes are associated with certain population groups, eligibility criteria for access to healthcare services, differentiated healthcare packages, one or more payment methods, a specific definition of costs or user fees (reimbursement fees to healthcare providers, considering co-payments and specific frequencies of use of healthcare services).

In terms of **population groups**, inputs are the initial composition of the different groups, their different transition probabilities (probabilities of moving between populations groups within the scheme or from other schemes), their dependency situation and relevant cash flows from the scheme's perspective (salaries or income, including pensioners' income when applicable), and their interaction with benefit providers in the form of utilization or demand curves.

ILO/HEALTH places emphasis on the following characteristics of population groups: i) their initial composition and expected transition over time; ii) their insurance status (the probability that the group will achieve the minimum contribution period to become insured) and the extension of the insurance status to their family dependants groups; and, iii) their demand for benefits –healthcare services as well as cash benefits when available.

OUTPUTS: ILO/HEALTH allows users to generate an extensive set of reports for different uses and needs in terms of analysis and policy design. Relationships between inputs allow the model to project outputs. There are two main groups of outputs: outputs at population group level (demographic and financial projections), and scheme- or country-level outputs.

Output matrices have several levels of detail, as will be discussed later. The first type of output corresponds to **demographic projections** at the population group level. Demographic projections interact with other inputs to estimate financial projections at the population group level. These contain average values of salaries, new benefits, total benefits and estimates of the main cash flows associated with each demographic group. In time, **financial projections** at each demographic group level are combined with other inputs to enable the model to prepare financial reports and demographic and financial indicators at the scheme and country levels.

All intermediate and final calculation outputs can be displayed, copied and transferred outside the model (csv or xls), including year-by-year and age/sex breakdowns. The final outputs include demographic and financial flows projected in absolute values, such as directly contributing populations, eligible populations, scheme revenues and expenses, and actuarial technical reserve levels, among others.

These indicators can be used both to support model calibration and consistency testing and to aid in results analysis and reporting. These outputs include a set of indicators useful for performing a step-by-step consistency test.

3.3. Basic concepts used by ILO/HEALTH: An introduction

Before working in ILO/HEALTH, users should have a firm grasp of some basic concepts, such as model, scenario, scheme and population group. The definitions of these concepts may vary from one country to another, therefore the definitions of each concept as per ILO/HEALTH are provided below.

Model. A model is a quantitative formulation specific to a country's social health protection system. It includes general definitions (i.e., model description, which users are authorized to use in the specific model application, projection period, and others) and specific definitions for each of the health care schemes and programmes included in the model (i.e., scheme rules, populations covered and others). Therefore, a model configuration can include general definitions and parameters common to many different schemes and programmes operating in the country, as well as the specific features of each scheme and programme comprising the model at the country level.

Scenario. A scenario is a specific formulation of a model under a certain set of parameters. Each scenario differs from all others in terms of parameters that define statutory rules, population biometrics, specific statutory rules and others. A single model may contain several scenarios to reflect a variety of conditions in which the model plays out. Users with editing rights can create scenarios. A user with editing rights can create scenarios to simulate the financial impact of parametric changes to the scheme or programme.

Baseline scenario (status quo scenario). It is a good practice to formulate a "baseline scenario", i.e., a scenario of the healthcare scheme(s) included in the specific model formulation, assuming current conditions with no changes or reforms in parameters and the most plausible developments in demographic and financial terms. A baseline scenario is essentially a scenario reflecting the status quo, with no changes to legislation (statutory rules), coverage, level of benefits, salaries or other variables. Once the baseline scenario has been formulated and calibrated, any alternative scenarios serve to compare the results of certain simulations, typically policy scenarios, with those reflected in the baseline scenario.

Population group. Each healthcare scheme may cover one or more population groups. ILO/HEALTH can create scenarios related to the extension of a scheme or programme to one or more uncovered population groups. One aim of ILO/HEALTH is to analyse the impact of policies on specific populations, such as civil servants, private sector employees, the self-employed and others covered by the same scheme or programme. The decision to define more than one population group in a specific model is limited by the availability of specific data to feed the model for each of these population groups separately. Therefore, before defining the population groups, users must determine whether the management information system supporting the scheme's administrative operations can generate separate datasets for each population group.

Healthcare packages. In ILO/HEALTH, healthcare packages are the sets of healthcare interventions to which protected persons under one or more healthcare schemes are entitled. Each scheme and its respective population are linked to specific healthcare packages. Several healthcare schemes in the same country (same model) may have one or more healthcare packages in common, while others may not. Within ILO/HEALTH, each healthcare service package has a unique associated payment method. Hence, in the case that a given protected population group is entitled to a range of healthcare interventions that have different provider payment methods (for example inpatient care paid on a case-based basis and primary care paid on a capitation basis), one healthcare package per payment method must be created. Users can then link both with the population group. Users can define each healthcare service package, with its respective list of specific healthcare intervention and copayment levels, if any.
Figure 6 – Overview of the relationships between models, scenarios, schemes and population groups



As shown in Figure 6, the definition of the different schemes, their associated populations and conditions for entitlement to certain benefits, are critical elements when designing a new actuarial model for country application using ILO/HEALTH. Ideally, this work should be carried out by a multidisciplinary team, with an emphasis on the final objectives of the policy analysis. Design features and parameters of each scheme must be known and described accurately for the actuary to carry out the analytical work. The same is true for the formulation of scenarios to simulate parametric changes.

Although users can redefine a model practically in its entirety, the work of formulating a new actuarial model can be quite laborious and time-consuming. Before starting to work with ILO/HEALTH, users should carefully discuss and design the parameters and configuration of the model. The simplest way to do this is to begin with a step-by-step approach, starting with a model that includes only one healthcare scheme. When this model is calibrated in its baseline scenario, users can then decide to move on to the next stage of adding new schemes and scenarios. A stepwise approach to modelling population groups is also recommended, starting with a model of a single healthcare scheme and a single population group (e.g., the "general healthcare scheme" of the country) until the baseline scenario is calibrated. Users can then continue adding elements, including more populations (if required and if specific data are available for each population) and more schemes.

3.4. General flow of the calculation algorithm

Although ILO/HEALTH may be mathematically complex internally, the general logic of the calculation algorithms is relatively straightforward. Figure 7 presents an overview of the steps involved in preparing annual projections.





In general terms, the logic of the projection flow can be described as part of three blocks: demographic block (inputs), financial block (inputs) and projections (outputs). ILO/HEALTH can manage projections for both contributory and non-contributory schemes. Since the architecture and related financial flows are more complex for contributory schemes, the tool and guide are adapted to this complexity across the three blocks. Users managing non-contributory schemes should not be intimidated by ILO/HEALTH terminology.

In the case of modelling for non-contributory schemes, the demographic and financial blocks are simplified, as by applying general coverage rates of the national population, one moves directly to calculating protected groups and health services demanded.

3.4.1. Block 1: Demographic block

The demographic block is composed of the estimation of the general populations and schemespecific populations:

- National population. To ensure the overall consistency of the population projections, a safe starting point is to input a national population projection distributed by sex into the model. This projection can be obtained from official national sources. In the absence of official national projections, the UN World Population Prospect database is a reliable source of these projections.
- 2. Employed labour force. The hypothetical and projected labour force participation rates and unemployment rates are applied to the population to project the employed labour force. Most national statistics offices prepare these types of projections, which can be used as inputs for the model. Hypotheses on the future behaviour of these parameters should consider the main factors affecting their evolution: change in female labour force participation rates; urbanization trends; size of the agricultural, services and manufacturing sectors; coverage of the education system; coverage of health insurance systems; and current and expected trends in levels of labour informality, among others. This information is not paramount if the health scheme is not based on social contributions. Even if the scheme is non-contributory or is based on contributions that are not related to wages, this information can be entered into the model as it brings an interesting perspective to the final analysis of the simulated scenarios.
- 3. Scheme's contributing members. Based on the employed (occupied) labour force, the coverage rates of each scheme are applied to obtain a projection of the schemes active contributors. Usually, this refers to the active member paying contributions. In the case of non-contributory schemes, it refers to the family member enrolled in the scheme who is the entry point for coverage of the entire family group. The information should be provided disaggregated by sex for each health scheme, separately. Hypotheses on future trends in coverage rates are constructed based on expert judgement, ideally in consultation with specialists from multiple disciplines. International experience is always a useful reference when formulating these hypotheses. Hypotheses on labour force and contributory or non-contributory coverage play a central role in the formulation of the model because they serve as reference variables for controlling the remainder of the demographic projections calculated endogenously by ILO/HEALTH.
- 4. Scheme's non-contributing insured members. A feature of most healthcare schemes is that while contribution does not guarantee protection (given, for example, the existence of a waiting period), the contributor's own contributions are not the only means to achieve healthcare protection. By forming the protected population based on the whole set of individuals with rights to access healthcare services, the model also considers the residual periods from past contributions and the extension of protection to non-contributing family members. In the case of a fully non-contributory scheme, where affiliation is based on registration of a head of household (whose information is entered in the "scheme's contributing member"), the "scheme's non-contributing insured members" comprise the remainder of the protected household members.

3.4.2. Block 2: Financial block

The financial block requires the calculations performed in the demographic block. Using certain assumptions, this block estimates:

- 5. Contribution revenues. Contribution revenues, if applicable, are derived from information on salaries and the demographic projection of contributors (i.e., average amount of contributions of demographic groups). Salaries are weighted by age and sex. Salaries are estimated based on the interaction of previous surviving contributing groups and new entries. The salary structure is a weighted average of theoretical salary structures and observations from the most recent available records. Government transfers, where they exist, can be incorporated into each healthcare scheme. ILO/HEALTH also allows for associating an "other income" item to each scheme.
- 6. **Healthcare scheme expenditure.** Expenditures are derived from information on the population with the right to healthcare services and depends on the payment method of these services: the frequency and costs of their use, the per capita cost of their financing, or the budget allocated to their payment.
- 7. **Cash benefits.** These are estimated in the same way as health benefits. Their cost is usually lower than that of healthcare services. These estimates use information on frequency of use and calculation formulas established in legislation.

3.4.3. Block 3: Projections

By combining the steps above, this block enables users to:

- 8. **Project administrative expenditures.** These are assumed to be a set percentage of benefit expenditures and use the assumptions regarding other revenue and expenditures applied directly to the cash flow, enabling ILO/HEALTH to estimate the full set of cash flow projections of the model.
- 9. Calculate actuarial/financial results and indicators. ILO/HEALTH is capable of generating and displaying a wide range of output variables and indicators, including demographic, financial and actuarial. This includes projections of the populations covered (directly insured and dependent family members) by population group, sex and age; health care expenditures by sex and age; revenues from members contributions by sex and age; financial flows of income and expenditure; financial results of operations; and actuarial, coverage and revenue and expenditure indicators.

3.5. Functional processes: Configuration / Models / Scenarios / Reporting

An operational approach to using ILO/HEALTH refers to the major functional processes supported by the tool (Figure 8).

Figure 8 – Overview of the main functional processes

Users	Models	Scenarios	Reporting
Creation of users and passwords	Creation and activation of models and documentation	Creation, editing, copying, deleting, exporting scenarios	Demographic projection flows and indicators
Definition of rights: Admin, Editor, Viewer	Creation of schemes and population groups	Inputting of data and hypothesis	Financial projection flows and indicators
User documentation	General parameters (lifespan, upper-lower age limits, etc.)	Running of demographic projection	Aggregate reports
	Historical data requirements	Running of financial projection	Graphs

3.5.1. Administration of users

To use a specific model, it must first be created on the IT platform. This work requires prior administrative authorization from the ILO, as well as the intervention of the technical staff managing the ILO Quantitative Platform on Social Security. The result is the creation of a workspace, generally assigned to a group of users of a model in a social security institution or country.

Three types of users can be defined, depending on the rights of use assigned to them:

- Administrators have rights assigned in a specific ILO/HEALTH application to configure and modify all elements of the model, including the creation of new models and scenarios, and the backup of data outside the online platform.
- Editors have the right to edit all model data, including parameters, variables and other specific configurations at the scheme level, as well as to run the model and view and extract all results. Users with editing rights usually work on the actuarial platform daily.
- **Viewers** have limited rights to view all the information associated with the "workspace" where a specific application of the model exists. They are unable to modify contents.

The basic idea of distinguishing between three different types of users is to guarantee a secure working environment, in terms of confidentiality, protection of information (including the models and data developed and entered by users), and quality control of the process and results.

When a model is run, ILO/HEALTH automatically generates an extensive set of reports. The model runs are made in two blocks: The demographic block and financial block. Output users are also classified by the types listed above.

Output reports for financial and actuarial projections

This category of outputs includes a variety of reports that provide details on the intermediate and final calculations performed by the calculation tool. Users can move through the different output matrices to display the outputs of the calculation. To protect the integrity of output data, output reports cannot be edited within the tool; however, they can be exported to a csv or xlsx format for editing in MS Excel or other spreadsheet programmes. With each run of a new model scenario, the output matrices are reset and automatically replaced by new outputs.

Annex I provides a detailed list of the input and output variables and reports. Some of these are discussed in sections 5.4 and 6.5. In general, they contain the following:

- **Demographic projections**, by sex, age, population group and healthcare scheme. Including details for active and inactive contributors and beneficiary populations.
- **Detailed financial projections**. These include projected flows of salary mass, income and expenditures, and projected healthcare service expenditures (by type of expenditure). Where applicable, these projections are disaggregated by sex, age, population group and scheme.
- Financial and demographic indicators. The reports on indicators allow users to review the resulting values to assess if a specific model formulation is performing well according to expected logical results for the specific scheme under evaluation. It also allows them to provide a more detailed overview of the future development of different coverage schemes, among other parameters. Some calibration and consistency tests require the set of indicators generated by ILO/HEALTH.

ILO/HEALTH calculates a set of demographic and financial indicators:

Demographic Indicators	Financial Indicators
 Labour force coverage rate, total and by sex: active contributors / labour force Population coverage rate, total and by sex: active contributors / working-age population Average age of total active contributors, by sex Average age of total insured population (including family dependants), by sex Average age of new contributors, by sex Average age of new contributors, by sex Age distribution of the population, in percentages and by age groups: total population, insured active contributors + family dependants, age groups 0-4, 5-14, 15-49, 50-64, 65+), sex, and year of projection 	 Average insurable salary, total and by sex Annual growth rate of the average insurable wage, total and by sex Administrative expenditure at time t as a percentage of expenditure on healthcare benefits Expenditure on healthcare and cash benefits as a percentage of GDP Total expenditures (including administrative expenditures), as a percentage of GDP Reserve ratio Total healthcare expenditures, by population group and sex

Demographic Indicators	Financial Indicators
	 Percent of total healthcare expenditures of each healthcare package, by population group Total expenditures as a percentage of GDP (includes healthcare, cash, administration) Total expenditures as a percentage of government general expenditure (includes healthcare, cash, administration)
See section 6.5.4 for worksheets related to each of these demographic indicators.	See section 6.5.3 for worksheets related to each of these financial indicators.

Main demographic aggregates table

This table displays a set of year-by-year aggregated variables by sex and total, comprising the following: projection year, total population, employed labour force, active contributors, protected population referred to as the "insured population" (beneficiaries), residual insured population from past contributions and family dependants. It also includes the coverage rate of contributors as a percentage of the labour force and coverage rate of the total insured population as a percentage of the total population. Section 6.5 provides more details and instructions on these indicators.

Main financial aggregates table

This table contains a set of year-by-year aggregated variables classified by sex, as follows: projection year, salary mass, revenues (social contributions, government transfers, interest revenue and others), expenditure on benefits (total, healthcare benefits, cash benefits, administrative expenditures and others). A similar table contains values as a percentage of GDP. Section 6.5.1 provides more details and instructions on these indicators.

Expenditure table for healthcare benefits

This table provides a summary of healthcare expenditures classified by population group and healthcare package, as well as a consolidated sum of these indicators for all population groups.

4. Rationale behind ILO/HEALTH

This section is for:

- Actuarial practitioners that will use ILO/HEALTH, including those entering data, consulting results and reports
- Any user wanting to learn about the different components of and rationale behind the calculations in the model

In this section, users will learn about:

- Definitions of coverage, population groups and financial flows
- Processes simulated in the actuarial platform
- Factors that affect demographic and financial flows
- How population groups and cash flows interact to yield demographic and financial projections

4.1. Population groups and coverage

A population group in ILO/HEALTH consists of individuals who share similar:

- exposure to demographic and labour market characteristics for mortality, disability and retirement
- income behaviour
- family dependency structure, and
- access to and demand for healthcare services.

A population group in a contributory scheme contains the following insured groups:⁷

- **Insured active contributors.** People currently paying contributions that have already attained the right to claim healthcare and financial benefits from the scheme.
- **Insured inactive contributors.** People who no longer pay contributions but are still able to claim healthcare benefits generated by their past contributions. They will lose this protection if they do not begin contributing in the future.
- **Insured retirees.** People who stop working but who can claim healthcare benefits even if they do not keep paying contributions, as long as they are receiving pension benefits. This is because in many countries, pensioners in social security schemes are automatically covered by the health insurance system.

⁷ The generic term "insured" is used as a synonym for protected person. As such , it does not mean that the scheme is necessarily based on a contributory insurance model.

• Insured family members (covered dependants). Family members of the abovementioned groups with rights to access healthcare benefits through the contributions of the principal insured contributor.⁸

Additionally, ILO/HEALTH contains the groups:

- **Uninsured active contributors.** People currently paying contributions that have not yet attained the right to claim healthcare and financial benefits from the scheme.
- **Uninsured family members.** Family members of uninsured active contributors who are not yet able to access health benefits through the contributions of the principal insured.

Timeline: From uninsured to insured active contributor status

All active members start by contributing. During the waiting period for the insurance, they are uninsured active contributors and remain so until they have completed the contributory waiting period. Once they complete the waiting period, they become insured active contributors. Their status is unchanged unless they stop contributing for a longer period than the residual insurance period (the time an insured member can keep this status without contributing). In such a case, the next time they reactivate contributions, they return to the beginning of the timeline. If they become pensioners, their insurance and contribution status remain unchanged for life. If, according to the rules of the scheme, some family members are covered by insurance for the duration that the contributing member is covered by insurance, the family's insurance coverage starts and ends with the contributor's coverage.

Note: Modelling for non-contributory schemes. In the case of a non-contributory scheme, the steps described above are simplified given that users only have to enter the coverage rates of the total population equivalent to the proportion of the population that is covered by the respective scheme, without worrying about modelling the variables and parameters associated with the contributions of insured contributors. In this case, 'insured person' includes all persons protected by the scheme.

⁸ The principal insured are insured contributors from active, inactive and disability pensioners and retirees. They are the main members who are contributing or have contributed to the health insurance policy for themselves and/or other dependants (i.e., family members).



Figure 9 – Overview of the main functional processes and population groups

4.2. Projection of cash flows by population group

ILO/HEALTH has a three-step strategy for projecting cash flows of a given scheme:

- 1. Projection of the insured population of each population group by sex and age, understood as the total protected population for a given scheme.
- 2. Projection of the revenue from each population group, including government contributions for non-contributory schemes.
- 3. Projection of the expenditure for each population group.



Figure 10 – Projection of cash flows of a given health insurance scheme

4.2.1. Projection of insured population of a given population group

ILO/HEALTH projects the insured population as follows:

- Projection of the active contributing population;
- Projection of the population protected by healthcare benefits;
- Subtraction of the uninsured active population;
- Estimation of the insured inactive population; and
- Estimation of the insured family members.

Figure 11 – Projection of insured population of a given group



4.2.1.1. Projection of contributing population

The active contributing population and retired population are key for the whole process since the other groups are calculated based on the results from at least one of those two groups.

Both groups are estimated together in a model of cohorts that shares similarities with pension models, with some simplifications to facilitate data collection.

An initial cohort of the contributing population (the number of people of the group of the same sex and age) is exposed to exit probabilities: death, retirement, disability and other exits (probabilities defined by sex and age). The total surviving population of the cohort is compared to the expected contributively covered population, and the difference between the two corresponds to the number of entries. These entries are distributed by age according to a given distribution. Finally, survivors are added to the entries to become a new initial cohort.





4.2.1.2. Projection of pensioners

In many countries, pensioners from social security systems have access to healthcare protection. Pensioners are estimated by adding the people who transition from the active contributors' group through disability and retirement to the retirement and disability survivors from previous periods. This becomes the population of retirement and disability pensioners. The deaths of active contributors and pensioners are used to estimate new widows and orphans that will join the surviving widow(er)s and orphans from previous periods.

4.2.1.3. Active and inactive contributors

Once the active contributing population is projected for each year, users enter the expected percentage of the active population covered by insurance provisions (probability of being an insured active contributor) for each age and sex. In other words, insured active contributors have the right to claim benefits in case of need, although services are not necessarily used.⁹ This probability is complemented by the probability of contributing without a right to benefits (probability of being an uninsured active contributor).

⁹ Normally, the probability of being covered in the case of active contributors during the year corresponds to the probability that their contributions meet the requirements for accessing services according to the rules of the scheme. This probability can be estimated based on observations, assumptions or a combination of both. Probability changes by age and sex, as does contributing behaviour.

ILO/HEALTH makes a similar adjustment to estimate the proportion of the insured inactive population as compared to the insured active contributors (this is a comparison, given that insured inactive population is not part of the insured active population).¹⁰

Finally, ILO/HEALTH calculates the insured contributors from active, inactive, disability and retiree groups (i.e., the main insured groups) using a family structure matrix to estimate the number and age of their family dependents with rights to healthcare services.

4.2.2. Income streams

ILO/HEALTH considers the following five sources of income (not all of them always apply):

- 1. Contribution income (employers and/or workers).
- 2. Government transfers.
- 3. Interest from the investment of the reserve.
- 4. Co-payments. In some cases, while healthcare service providers receive co-payments, these are not necessarily a source of scheme income. In some healthcare schemes, co-payments are referred to as "cost recovery charges", particularly when the healthcare facilities are owned by the scheme administrator.
- 5. Other revenues.

There are two income streams typically related to population groups: the contribution income associated with active contributors (regardless of their insurance situation) and the co-payments some insured population groups pay to access healthcare services. Some healthcare schemes have their own facilities to deliver healthcare care and charge utilization fees to recover a proportion of the costs.

The contributions typical of a contributory scheme are related to a source of income. Often, they are also proportional to this income. The first step in the process of estimating contributions is to estimate contributable income. The contributable income is the weighted average between two series: the adjusted past contributable income and the theoretical income (salary curve) weighted according to the presence of surviving contributors and entries in an age group.

Apart from contributions, ILO/HEALTH allows for the inclusion of revenues from direct government transfers to co-finance expenditures. It models each population group by defining a sequence of absolute amounts over time. Users should estimate these amounts outside the model and then enter them.

¹⁰ The insured inactive population is a portion of the inactive population, more specifically of the recently inactivate population of a population group, which is not calculated in the model given that the definition of this population varies by country, which complicates the model more complex without significantly contributing to the precision of the calculations.



Figure 13 – Income streams, contribution income

Co-payments are normally calculated after calculating expenditures. There are two co-payment methods, each of which require a different calculation method. First, a fixed co-payment amount (absolute value) per healthcare intervention means that each time a given healthcare intervention is provided, the scheme bills users a certain pre-established amount. Once that amount is established, it is assumed to be independent of the intervention cost.¹¹ In this case, the co-payment income (or expenditure) equals the number of interventions multiplied by the established amount. Second, a proportional co-payment means that the co-payment is a given proportion of the cost of each healthcare intervention, so the co-payment income (or expenditure) corresponds to the total cost of the health intervention multiplied by the proportion billed as a co-payment.

Note on co-payments in ILO/HEALTH: In many cases, co-payments are not part of the insurer's revenues; however, for the purpose of making them transparent in the model, they are included as part of the revenues. If ILO/HEALTH users are not interested in incorporating co-payments into a specific model or scheme, they should simply consider the fees for the affected healthcare interventions minus co-payments.

Besides these income streams related to population groups, the Other Income component corresponds to a budget allocation or fixed income unrelated to the active contributions or the healthcare services provided. It is entered into the model as a sequence of absolute amounts over time.

¹¹ This is an assumption, while we know very well that the cost of the healthcare intervention is a factor in the determination of the amount.



Figure 14 – All income streams

4.2.3. Projection of expenditures

There are four expenditure categories in ILO/HEALTH, each with different expenditure subcategories: Healthcare service expenditure, financial benefits expenditure, administrative expenditure and other expenditure.

Healthcare service expenditure is usually the most important as ILO/HEALTH is a tool specifically for health scheme modelling. Healthcare service expenditures have three payment methods, some with different modelling options that are applied to all the healthcare interventions of a package: (a) budgetary allocation is when a certain package is assigned a given expenditure amount (defined outside of the model), regardless of demand for healthcare or actually limiting the demand that can be satisfied (i.e., healthcare facilities receive a set budget that does not depend on the population served or the volume of services provided); (b) capitation, when expenditure on a healthcare package is a given amount per protected individual regardless of how often individuals in any group use the services (i.e., healthcare providers receive a set amount per person they are meant to serve; what they receive depends on the volume of the population that can access services on their premises); and (c) healthcare intervention payment corresponds to the payment of a fee (or the allocation of some resources) linked to healthcare interventions. Through this third option, ILO/HEALTH can handle two types of payment methods: fee-for-service (a payment for each time an individual receives a healthcare intervention in the package) or case-based payment (e.g., diagnosis-related group (DRG) or similar classification used to classify healthcare interventions comprising casemix-based funding).

Budgetary allocation has three different costing alternatives for modelling: (i) initial value and growth rate; (ii) percentage of GDP; and (iii) percentage of total government expenditure. In the first option, users input the initial value and the expected growth rate of this initial value over the projection period, so the value of the allocation is calculated based on the previous allocation. For

the option based on percentage of GDP, users input the percentage of GDP allocated for the service over time and the model estimates using the projected GDP. Percentage of government expenditure is similar except that users input government expenditure instead of percentage of GDP.

Capitation can only be modelled by entering the capitation fee (which can change depending on the age of the insured). This is applied for each insured group to obtain the total cost.

Finally, there are two types of healthcare intervention payments: (i) a general one, and (ii) hospitalization (or inpatient). Under the general modality, users input the expected utilization rate for the healthcare services and the expected costs of those services, either as "fee-for-service" payments or "case-based" funding, including DRG or a similar casemix-based funding. Three factors affect the calculation of the hospitalization modality: frequency of inpatient utilization, corresponding to the probability of becoming an inpatient case (being admitted to the hospital), expected number of inpatient care days once hospitalized, and the cost per hospital day. Both modalities are adjusted by a performance factor consisting of potential fines or premiums given to healthcare providers for poor or outstanding performance, respectively.



Figure 15 – Healthcare service expenditure

Performance-based payments factor. This factor is included in ILO/HEALTH to handle expenditures associated with payments to healthcare providers based on their performance. Payment methods often include specific incentives and metrics to promote quality and other healthcare system performance objectives. Performance-based payments are calculated in the model as a proportion of annual healthcare expenditures (those linked to the healthcare packages). Therefore, users can modify performance-based

payments in each healthcare package. A performance expenditure is also a healthcare expenditure, for which reason the model includes it in the healthcare package expenditure.



Figure 16 – Expenditure streams

4.2.4. Financial benefits

The model considers three pre-determined financial benefits: (a) sickness benefit; b) maternity benefit; and (c) funeral allowance. Additionally, the tool has a generic financial benefit that can be modelled for any financial benefit not included in the predetermined list.

Sickness and maternity leave benefits are calculated as a replacement rate factor over the insured salaries. Additionally, maximum and minimum values for the amounts received per period of sickness or leave are included.

The funeral benefit is a fixed amount provided for each deceased individual in a population group covered by the benefit.

Finally, the generic financial benefit is calculated in the model as the sum of a replacement rate over the salary (with minimum and maximum values) and a fixed amount. All parts may have a value of zero if desired.

In addition to benefit payments, ILO/HEALTH models administrative costs as a given proportion of the benefit expenditure. Finally, users input other expenditure amount into the model.

Figure 17 – Financial benefits



The different cash flows from population groups are added to create a scheme's consolidated cash flow.

5. Working in ILO/HEALTH

This section is for:

Any user that will use ILO/HEALTH, including those entering data, consulting results and reports

In this section, users will learn:

- How ILO/HEALTH looks and works
- How to enter ILO/HEALTH as a first-time user
- How to set up a model
- How to create and manipulate scenarios within a model
- How to manipulate matrices within a scenario

5.1. Logging in to ILO/HEALTH

Most users will be familiar with the login protocol of ILO/HEALTH. The combination of email and personal password is common in most online platforms. Options to recover or change the password are available.

Login	tional ILO/HEALTH quarcharbox Platform in Social Security		
Email: Password:	exampleBldomain.com Password Logn Forgot password? Change password?	International Labour Organization	

ILO/HEALTH requires users to have access to their email for certain communications, hence it is recommended that users provide an email address they can access when the model is being used.

Box. Types of users

ILO/HEALTH makes provisions for three kinds of users: Reader, Editor and Global Administrator.

A Reader can see the parameters of models, read and export the input and output matrices of all available scenarios.

An **Editor** can do everything the Reader can, as well as create new models and scenarios. The Editor can edit the matrices in any scenario and run scenario calculations. Most of this manual focuses on Editors. Useful parts for Readers are also highlighted. Notwithstanding, Readers should try to gain an understanding of the functions since they may become Editors for other projects.

A **Global Administrator** can do everything the Editor can. The Global Administrator also has administrative functions. They can add, modify and eliminate users, including other Global Administrators. The functionalities that are exclusively for Global Administrators are listed in another document.

5.1.1. First-time users

Once an administrator registers a new user, the user will receive an email containing the link to ILO/HEALTH and a provisional password. The first time users visit this page, they should enter their email address and select the "Change password" option. Users should **not enter the password emailed to them**.

On the Change Password screen, users should enter the email address used to register in the email field, the password the Global Administrator sent to them as "current password", and the new password chosen (the stronger the password, the better). Then, after retyping the new password to confirm it, users should save changes.

n			
Email:	example@domain.com	Es and	
	Earget password? Change password?	TION	Labour
Intern Labo	national ur nization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform an Social Security		organization
nge pas	national ur nization ULO/HEALTH Quartitative Platform in Social Security Sword	exempleiddunain.com	organization
)) Intern Labo Organ Inge pas	national ur nization IILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform an Social Security SWORD Email: Actual passwort:	ésamplébőmán con	organization
nge pas	ILO/HEALTH operation Quantitative Platform as Social Security SWORD	example@dlumin.com	organization

Once the password is changed, users can enter the ILO/HEALTH website with the chosen password as long as the administrator allows it.

In ILO/HEALTH, the provisional password will be valid only for the first session, meaning that users will not be able to log in a second time unless the administrator resets the password.

5.2. Models

In ILO/HEALTH, a model is at a higher level than a scenario. Any change to a model does not affect any other model in ILO/HEALTH. Within a model, users can create scenarios, which while independent from one another, are all limited by the rules of the model. Using the same model with different scenarios facilitates their comparison¹² and their capacity for sharing information.

¹² This does not mean that scenarios from different models are not comparable, only that it is easier to compare scenarios from the same model.

ILO/HEALTH stores and processes information at the scenario level: this means that a model cannot run on its own but rather through a scenario.

Model rules define key aspects of the scenarios: their size and calculation path (projection years).

Size of a scenario refers to the number and size of its matrices. This includes the number of dimensions in some matrices.

In the model definition, the following attributes determine the size of the scenarios:¹³

- number of schemes
- number of population groups
- initial and final projection year for the calculations
- maximum lifespan allowed in the calculations
- access to healthcare packages of members of different population groups, and
- number of years of historical data to report.

The calculation path corresponds to a set of equations or other information according to some attributes. In the model definition, users determine the calculation path by choosing whether the model reports nominal or real figures, and whether it does so by using real or nominal parameters.¹⁴

5.2.1. Exploring a model

In a context where previous quantitative exercises were performed, newcomers to ILO/HEALTH should explore the model definition of a previous exercise before editing scenarios or creating a new model.



After choosing Models in the main menu, three sections appear: the Models menu consisting of four tabs, a list of all available models (models added by any user) in the system and the Model window that shows the details of the highlighted model.

¹³ The list is ordered according to the potential impact each item may have on the size of the model.

¹⁴ In a multi-scheme model, users can easily include schemes both with and without an inflation-adjusted reference salary.

Main menu	Models So	enario Configi	iration						User	mame 📘 Us	er Name 👌
tion selection menu	\$ New 13-0	127 B Delete	b Velikie							11-	
	Code	Name	Lest Updated	Y Validated Y	General Global per	imeters 🕴 Input parameter	· Patkages	Access Control			
	08081970	Name	28/07/2020	•	Code	05081970	Name	Name	Schemes:		
	2	4 Ter Model 01	27/07/2020	1	Institution:	TEC	Country:	Costa Rica		Schemes	
	1	Test	14/10/2019		Description:	Pructice model				Main	
	Prueba (Copy)	Prueba (Copy)	24/09/2019	•							-
	Prueba	Prueba	13/05/2019	•							
	Model list				Dimen matrix;	Practice model			Population	proups per scheme:	
					Created by:	User Naree		28/07/2620 14:39:53		Custard	+
					Modified by:	User Name		28/07/2020 14:41:30			
					Validated:	E Active:	-				

The list has a set of columns: Code, Name, Last Updated (date format) and Validated (checkbox). Users can easily sort the list by any column and filter the list by any of the fields (the only filter available is to check if the field contains a set of characters).

Code	Y Name	Last Updated	Validated 🕇
08081970	Name	28/07/2020	•
2	q	27/07/2020	
M01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020	•

By selecting a model from the list, users can access the description of the selected model in the Model window to view two pages accessible by tabs: General and Input Parameters.

The General tab contains information on the basic attributes of a specific model:

Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	Schemes:		
Institution:	TEC	Country:	Costa Rica		Schemes	+ -
Description:	Practice model				Main	
Dimen matrix:	Practice model			A Population g	roups per scheme:	
Created by:	User Name		28/07/2020 14:39:53		Custard	+ -
Modified by:	User Name		28/07/2020 14:41:30			
Validated:	Active:					

- the code used for creation;¹⁵
- the name used to create the model;
- the institution being modelled;
- the country (automatically entered into the system) given that ILO/HEALTH is created to work in only one country;
- model description, including the rationale behind the model creation, the specifics that make the model unique and necessary and all other information considered important for potential future users;
- creator of the model (date and time of creation);
- last modification of the model (by whom and when);
- the names of the schemes included in the model (see section 6 for more information);
- the names of the population groups covered by the selected scheme model (see section 5.6.1 for more information);
- validation status (checkbox); and
- active status (checkbox).

¹⁵ The nomenclature for the definition of model and scenario codes is a decision for the final users. It is a good practice to keep a consistent code nomenclature that allows users to navigate through multiple models and scenarios.

Scheme names should be different, as should the names for different population groups belonging to the same scheme. Population groups belonging to different schemes can have the same name.¹⁶

The decision on the number of schemes and their population groups has a direct impact on the size of the scenarios. Scenarios created under a model will have a full set of matrices (input and output) for each scheme listed in the General tab. Many of these matrices will have a population group dimension (i.e., they will have a population group selection menu) and most will have a sex dimension. It is always important to weigh the increased precision achieved by expanding the model against the data management complications inherent in increasing model size.

Section 6.1.3 offers an example of how to fill in these parameters when setting up a model.

Users can validate a model when the full set of parameters in entered by selecting Validate in the Models menu.

Inter Labo	rnational ILC our Quar)/HEALTH ntitative Platform in	Social Security / Te	Inte Lab	rnational ILC our Quai anization Quai	D/HEALTH ntitative Platform in	Social Security / Te
Models Scer	nario Configur	ation		Models Sce	nario Configui	ration	
🔓 New 🚺 🖬 Cop	y 🛅 Delete 🔀	Validate		New the Cop	y 🗍 Delete 🛛 🖒	Validate	
Code 🍸	Name	Last Updated 🌱	Validated 🔻	Code 🌱	Name 🍸	Last Updated 🏾 🍟	Validated 🔫
08081970	Name	22/07/2020	•	08081970	Name	22/07/2020	•
M01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020	•	M01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020	•
1	Test	14/10/2019	•	1	Test	14/10/2019	•

A model is active when scenarios of the model exist. If no scenarios exist under a model, the model is inactive.

The Global parameters tab has more detailed information on the parameters defining each scheme listed in the General tab. Here users can define:

- Initial and final projection year;
- Number of years of historic information to collect; and
- Real or nominal reporting:
 - Indirect or direct calculation of the reporting method (i.e., direct reporting receives all data in real terms and reports in real terms as well). Indirect reporting receives inputs in nominal values and estimates outputs in real terms.

¹⁶ The system will not assume that these groups correspond to the same population. If they are the same population, the demographic matrices will need to be filled in each time.

neral	Global parameters	Input parameters	Packages	Access Control
Enter th	he global paramete	r values:		
Initial	projection year:	2020)—	•
Final	projection year:	2029]	•
Histor	rical data:	10]-•	
Salary	y projection type:	Nomina	al - Direct	

The Input parameters tab has more detailed information about the parameters defining each scheme in the General tab. The customizable parameters for each scheme are:

- Lifespan: Maximum age attainable in the calculations;
- Lower limit for contributing age: earliest age people can legally contribute; and
- Upper limit for contributing age: maximum age people are assumed to contribute.¹⁷

ieneral	Global parameters	Input parameters	Packages	Access Control				
Choose	e a scheme:	Enter	the parame	eter values:				
Main		Lifes	pan:		100	6	 	•
		Lowe	er contributir	g age:	15	•	 	_
		Uppe	er contributir	g age:	69		•	

Section 6.1.3 offers an example of how to fill in these parameters when setting up a scenario.

The Packages tab is crucial for understanding a model. Here, access to different packages is set up for each population group, meaning that the model reports that people of given ages in the scheme will have access to the healthcare interventions included in the package and that these interventions will be paid according to the package payment method. The configuration stage of the model offers a selection of packages to choose from.

The last parameter of the list guides the calculation flow in the system to calculate whether the reference salary used to calculate benefits has been adjusted for inflation.

The other parameters directly affect the size of the matrices in the scenarios, for example:

• The length of the projection period increases the number of intermediate results and the number of input parameters.

¹⁷ Normally, people can contribute up to any age. Defining the upper age limit for contributions depends on data availability for statistical inference. Older ages have less evidence in terms of salary, exit and even retirement behaviour while inferences from smaller samples have less credibility.

• **The lifespan** directly affects the size of the life tables to be entered as the dimensions of output matrices regarding pension beneficiaries. The size of the contributory age gap similarly affects the matrices related to contributing populations.

Coherence between the parameters and matrix size can be easily checked by exploring a scenario from an existing model.

tard	Packages available.		
		Capital	
		Podo	
		Umbilical	
		Infrastructure	
		BT	
	Group initial ages		
	Group initial age.		
	Group final age:	100	

5.2.1.1. Scheme

A scheme is a specific component of the social health protection system whose members share the same set of rules for obtaining healthcare and healthcare-related cash benefits. Accordingly, the definition of a scheme goes is in accordance with the rules and laws related to that scheme.

5.2.1.2. *Population group*

A population group is a set of people that have statistically different and identifiable attributes that differentiate them from the rest of the population in at least one characteristic that affects their potential access to healthcare benefits under the rules of the scheme.¹⁸

Statistically-different attributes that may be used to set up a population group include:

- death or disability probabilities;
- exit behaviour;
- entry distribution by age;
- retirement behaviour;

¹⁸ The rules are not different; rather it is the interaction with the rules that differs.

- coverage potential;
- family structures;
- salary structure by age;
- expected growth of salaries; and
- demand for specific healthcare interventions.

5.2.2. Setting up a model

Users can set up a new model in ILO/HEALTH, especially if there are no existing models or if no existing ones can be adapted to user needs.



Users can access a blank form by selecting New in the Models menu. After filling in the boxes for Code, Name and Institution, providing a description, and adding at least one scheme and at least one population group for each scheme added, users can save the new model.

Code:	Code	Name:	Name	Schemes:		
Institution:	TEC	Country:	Costa Rica		Schemes	
Description:	Description					
				Population g	proups per scheme:	
Dimen matrix:	Dimen matrix					
Created by:	Created by		Created date		_	
Modified by:	Modified by		Modified date			
Validated:	Active					

TIP: The proper documentation of a model and its scenarios extremely important because it informs different users of a particular model about the specific features of that model and its scenarios. Users should include a detailed but concise description of the model in the Description field. Future first-time users of the model and those responsible for producing actuarial reports will appreciate this effort.

When users select Save, the model will be added to the list of models. Users can then enter quantitative parameters in the General and Input parameters tabs. They should then save the desired changes. Finally, users can allocate the packages to population groups using the Packages tab. Users can modify the model as long as the specific model has not been validated.

See section 6.1.3 offers an example of how to fill in these parameters when setting up a model.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform in Social Security / Ter					MO	Labo Orga	national] ur] nization 0	ILC Quan)/HEALTH Ititative Platform in	n Social Security / Te	
Models	Scena	ario Confi	guration			Models	Scena	ario Confi	igur	ation	
New]	t] Copy	Delete	ාර් Validate			New 1	t7 Copy	Delete	ъ	Validate	
Code	T	Name	T Last Upo	dated 🕎	Validated 🔻	Code	Ŧ	Name	T	Last Updated 🛛 🕇	Validated 🍸
08081970		Name	22/07/3	2020	0	08081970		Name		22/07/2020	•
M01		Tec Model 01	25/02/3	2020	•	M01		Tec Model 01		25/02/2020	•
1		Test	14/10/2	2019	•	1		Test		14/10/2019	•
Validate Do you re	model pr ally want t	ocess to validate the sele	cted model?		×	Validate mo	idel proces isfuly valida	ss ted!			
					Confirm Cancel						ок

To validate the model, save the changes and select Validate in the Models menu.

The validation process takes a few seconds as it verifies the basic coherence of the model's dimensions. This includes checking to avoid a final projection year that is earlier than the initial projection year, or a final age for activity or contributing age that is higher than the possible lifespan.

Once the model is validated, users can create scenarios with the model, thus activating the model. The validated model cannot be changed. If users discover that the model does not meet their needs, they can make a copy of the model, make the required changes to the copy and delete the previous one. The initial formulation of a model requires adequate planning. The model setup is pivotal to the success of any projection exercise. Failing to choose the right schemes, population groups, time and age dimensions and calculation methods can potentially increase the workload for users and their teams.¹⁹ It can even lead to improper designs that will ultimately fail to achieve the desired objective of the model formulation. Therefore, users should discuss the matter with their teams (and explore the empty matrices) before filling in matrices. They should also discuss the model with users of the results outside the actuarial team.

TIP: Users should take their time setting up the model. They should thoroughly discuss the conditions under which a particular model will be defined in ILO/HEALTH with their teams and analyse how the conditions will affect future policy scenario modelling work, as well as practical applications. They should focus on the availability of specific data; for example, if different population groups are being modelled, each group requires separate data: contributory livelihoods and past credit, biometrics and income parameters, among others. The legal framework and international ILO standards on social security adopted by the country should also be considered.

5.2.3. Copying a model

Users can make a copy of any validated/non-validated, active/inactive model by selecting Copy in the Models menu.

Int La	ernational ILC bour _{Quar})/HEALTH htitative Platform in	n Social Security		national LLC pur anization Quar	D/HEALTH	Social Security /
Models Sc	enario Configur	ation Validate		Models Scen	ario Configur / ඕ Delete ්ර	ation Validate	
Code	Y Name Y	Last Updated 😽	Validated 🔻	Code	Name 🕎	Last Updated 🛛 🌱	Validated 🔻
08081970	Name	28/07/2020	•	08081970	Name	28/07/2020	•
2	q	27/07/2020		2	q	27/07/2020	θ
Copy model proces	5		×	Copy model process			â
Do you really want to	copy the selected model?			Model successfuly copie	di		
		Cont	Arm Cancel				ок

A copy is a non-validated model with the same parameters of the original model (except for the word *Copy* added to the Code and Name), which can be modified prior to validation. This is especially useful for modifying some parameters of elaborate models that would otherwise take

¹⁹ The parameters shown by default in the Input parameters tab of the Model window are only placeholders and should not be viewed as recommendations of any kind.

many hours to set up from scratch. One routine copy procedure would be the modification of the projection period for an existing model when it is time for a new application.

5.2.4. Deleting a model

The Delete function in the Models menu allows users to delete a model from the list. This reduces the list of models available, helping to reduce redundancy and noise.

TIP: To ensure transparency and comply with good actuarial practice (see the *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*), users should consider retaining in the web application an inactive version of the models that have been used to support technical studies or actuarial valuations conducted and that support official technical reports. An external data backup, properly administered, is also advisable. See section 5.3.5 Exporting a full scenario.

Deleting a model ensures that no new scenarios of the model are possible. ILO/HEALTH only allows the deletion of models that are in "inactive" status. If users need to delete an active model, they first need to delete all scenarios of the model in question (to make the model inactive) before deleting it. This is a safety feature to avoid losing the attributes of models that support useful scenarios. Also, users may require additional scenarios from past models.

	Inter Labo Orga	national our] inization c	LC Quan	HEALTH	in Social Secu	urity / Te	st Institution	- Switzerla	nd
Models	Scen	ario Confi	gura	ation					
New 📔	tl Copy	💼 Delete	ıС	Validate					
Code	- T	Name	Y	Last Updated	Validated	Y	General	Global par	ameters
08081970	(Copy)	Name (Copy)		01/08/2020	•		Code	ə:	08
08081970		Name		28/07/2020	•				
08081970		Name		28/07/2020	•		Instit		

5.3. Scenarios

A scenario is one instance of a model. The scenario contains a set of matrices, which interact among themselves according to the constraints of the model and the procedures set up in ILO/HEALTH. The matrices in the scenario store the inputs and assumptions for the calculations, as well as the outputs of the calculations if the scenario were run.

Users can explore, create, copy, run, delete, export and manipulate their matrices. Section 5.5.3 discusses matrix manipulation.

After selecting Scenarios in the main menu, three sections appear: the Scenario menu consisting of seven tabs, the list of Scenarios and the Scenario window.



Main menu	Models Sce	nario Configu	ration						Use	name 🔒 User	Name G Logo	
function selection menu	New 13 Cop	7/ 🗊 Delete 🛋	b Validate									
	Code 🔻	Name	Last Updated	T Validated T	General Global para	meters Input parameters	Packages	Access Control				
	08081970	Name	28/07/2020	•	Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	Schemes:			
	2	q	27/07/2020		institution:	TEC	Country:	Costa Rica		Schames	+ -	
	M01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020			Transverververver	200304			aboution of	_	
	Prueba (Copy)	Prueba (Copy)	24/09/2019		Description:	Practice model				Main		
	Prueba	Prueba	13/05/2019	•								
	Model list				Dimen matrix:	Practice model	Practice model		Population groups per scheme:			
					Created by:	User Name		28/07/2020 14:39:53		Custard	+ -	
					Modified by:	User Name		28/07/2020 14:41:38				
					Validated:	CI Active:	2					

The list of scenarios has four fields: Code, Name, Last Updated and Calculated (checkbox) as its counterpart for models. The list can be filtered and sorted. By default, all scenarios are grouped by their model, and the Sort command sorts the scenarios within each model by field.²⁰

The Scenario window shows details of the highlighted scenario on the list: the model used, the code, name and description, who created it and when, the last person that modified it, and if and when the scenario was calculated. The code, name and description may be modified by an editor at any time after selecting the respective box to make and save changes.²¹

Section 6.1.4 offers an example of how to fill in these parameters when setting up a scenario.

²⁰ The default clusters are sorted according to modification date of the scenarios. The most recently modified scenarios are listed first.
²¹ A good institutional practice is to develop a consistent naming system to assign the code and name of the scenarios to enable all editors on the actuarial team to understand the date of creation and other details of each scenario they are editing and running.

5.3.1. Opening an existing scenario

Selecting a Scenario from the list and using the Open function in the Scenario menu shows the details of the selected scenario.



The scenario detail has two parts: the navigation tree of matrices, where folders of matrices allow users to navigate scenario information, and the Matrix window with the Matrix menu and matrix contents. Section 6.2 explains how to open a scenario and explore its matrices.

5.3.2. Creating a new scenario

Users should select New in the Scenario menu to open a blank form.



Users can then choose the model for which their new scenarios will be an instance. They may choose from among the full list of validated models (shown by name).

Users must then add the Code, Name and Description.

After users select Save for the first time, ILO/HEALTH proceeds to create a new scenario. This process occurs in the ILO/HEALTH server and can take some time. Users will receive a notification within ILO/HEALTH informing them that the process has begun. They will also receive an email when the scenario has been created. They can perform other tasks within or outside of ILO/HEALTH while the scenario is being created.

A new scenario created through this process is a blank scenario without any information in the input and output matrices.

nouol.	Name		
Code:	08081970	Name:	Name
escription:	Practice scenario		
Created by:	Created by		Created date
Nodified by:	Modified by		Modified date

5.3.3. Copying a scenario

Often, the information from an existing scenario can serve as the base for the creation of another scenario of the same model. This is especially true when performing stress tests, sensitivity tests and best- and worst-case scenarios that accompany base scenarios in reports.

While ILO/HEALTH provides easy ways to quickly complete the matrices within a scenario, the easiest procedure is often to copy an existing scenario and later modify the matrices that need changing.

To do this, users should select Copy from the Scenario menu. As this will again create a full set of matrices in the server, ILO/HEALTH will notify users by email when the process begins and ends. The time needed depends in the size of the scenarios (number of projections years, number of schemes, number of population groups, etc.).

Internatio Labour Organizat	nal ILO/HEALTH	hin Social Security / Test Institution	- Switzerland	International Labour Organization	ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform in Socia	al Security / Test Institu	tion - Switzerland
Models Scenario	Configuration			Models Scenario Con	figuration		
New @ Open	1 Copy 🛙 Delete 🛛 🛛 Rur	1 🛃 Export all scenario 🛛 🕲 Com	pletion brief	New & Open 13 Copy	· ∰ Delete ⊙ Run ≛ Er	aport all scenario	Completion brief
Costa	Name	Loss Hadated	Calculated	Code	Y Name	🛒 Last Lipdated	T Calculated
Code	T	T Line opowed	Carconster	Model: 2019.10.14 - Test			
 Model: 2020.07.28 - N 	lame			.1	Test	26/02/2020	•
08081970	Name	31/07/2020	•	4 Model: 2020.07.28 - Name			
4 Model: 2019.10.14 - T	est			08081970 Copy_12/47b5	Name Copy_12f47b5	01/08/2020	
1	Test	26/02/2020	•	08081970	Name	31/07/2020	٠

Copy scenario process	×
Do you really want to copy the selected scenario?	
	Confirm Cancel
Copy scenario process	1
cenario conv posted! When finished an email will be sen	d to vou.

Once the process is completed, the new scenario will be included in the lists with the word (Copy) added to the code and name of the original scenario. Users can change code and name as desired and save those changes.

The scenario created through this process will contain the same matrix information as the original one. At this point, users can edit and define the new scenario as needed.

5.3.4. Running a scenario

ILO/HEALTH run scenarios through its server. The calculations are done in a remote location. During a scenario calculation, the scenario currently running is locked from further changes, but users can work on different scenarios. Sections 6.2.4 and 6.4 provide examples of this process.



A scenario can be run by selecting Run in the Scenario menu. ILO/HEALTH will show the Run Scenarios message box, where users can choose among three options:

- Running the Demographic Projections
- Running the Financial Projections
- Running both Demographic and Financial Projections

A demographic projection calculates active contributors, pensions (retirement, disability, widow(er)s and orphans), beneficiaries by age, sex and projection year. Crucially, it also estimates the total number of potential users of healthcare and healthcare-related cash benefits per year. See section 6.5.2 for more details.

A financial projection calculates salaries and pensions by age, sex and year, the cash flows related to providing healthcare services, the payment of cash benefits and recovery of co-payments, the full set of financial indicators and financial reports are listed in section 6.5.3. The process will

generate an error message if users attempt to run the financial projection before the demographic projection.

International Labour Granization ULO/HEALTH	turity / Test Inst	tudon - Switzerk	and			test
Models Scenario Configuration						🎩 User Name 🕒 Logout
🖢 New 🧈 Open 🛛 L'à Copy 📋 Deleter 💿 Run 🖉 Leport	al scienado 🛛 🖸	Completion are	-			
Code 🕎 Name	Last Updated	Talcula	id 🔻	General Colculation	Log	
 Model: 2020.07.28 - Name 				Model:	Tec Model Q1	1
CB051970 Name	31/07/2020	Run/Calcu	late scenario		× ASOR1070 Name	Name
 Model: 2019.10.14 - Test 		and a second second second				
1 Test	26/02/2020	Scheme:	All	•	Practice scenario	
		Туре:	Financials	× •		
			Demographics			
			Financials		User Name	28/07/2020 15:00:08
			Reports		User Name	31/07/2020 OB:25:01
						Saze Cancel

The running process can take some time, especially for complex scenarios. ILO/HEALTH will send users an email when the process has ended and inform them whether it was successful. In a few cases, the email will report an error caused by missing information or a mistake in the inputs.

5.3.5. Exporting a full scenario

By selecting Export all scenario in the Scenario menu, users instruct ILO/HEALTH to create a copy of all matrices that belong to the scenario in an Excel-friendly format (csv).

The process will occur in the remote location (server). The email informing users that the process has been completed contains a link to download a zip file with all the matrices.

The zip file exists in the server for a limited time (about 24 hours). This maintains the server memory for performing all required tasks. The link works for everyone, so users can share it with their teams.


5.3.6. Deleting a scenario

Users with editing rights can select a scenario and then Delete in the Scenario menu. As for other requests, ILO/HEALTH will require a confirmation from users about the action.²² Once the action is confirmed, the scenario will disappear from the server and all data will be lost.

	International Labour Organization	ILO/HE Quantitative	EALTH Platform i	n Social Security / Test I	institution - Switzerlan	d
Models	Scenario Co	nfiguration				
🔓 New	Ø Open 【Ⅰ Copy	💼 Delete	🛈 Run	A Export all scenario	Completion brief	
	Delete scenario Do you really want	process to delete the se	lected scenar	io? Confirm	× Cancel	
	Delete scenario p	rocess			×	
	Scenario successful	y deleted!			ОК	

Scenarios not being used for analysis should be deleted to avoid redundancy and maintain a clean workspace. However, as deleted scenarios cannot be recovered, **it is crucial that users discuss permanent decisions such as deletion** with the team.

TIP: Make local backups of scenarios that are considered important for historical and administrative purposes, for example, those that support official actuarial reporting calculations. Carefully documenting each model and its scenarios is crucial.

5.3.7. Completion brief

Users can select a scenario and select the Completion brief in the Scenario menu. This opens a window with a list of the full set of input matrices in the scenario. The list has five columns relating to matrices: Code, Name, Number of users who have currently checked out the matrix, whether the matrix is currently checked out by users, and completion percentage .²³ Filter and sort options are

²² A Confirm/Cancel message box will ask: Do you really want to delete the selected scenario?

²³ The percentage of matrix tabs that have at least been opened, checked out and checked in (with or without changes). This does not refer to the percentage of proper completion, as this is a decision for users.

available. The list is useful for determining which matrices require additional attention to complete the work.



The Completion brief can also be opened from within an open matrix by selecting the blue icon with three lines above the navigation tree (circled in red below). The navigation tree is the menu on the left with all the files related to inputs and outputs.



	Code 🛛 🖤	Name	Checkout Qty	Checkout by Me 🛛 💎	Completeness 🌱
(1997)	fact	Initial cohort of active contributors (s.g.x)	0	0	100
NATE:	9	Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	0	0	100
Sector.	ret	Disability and retirement probabilities (s,g,x,t)	a	0	100
	er	Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	0	- 0	100
	ne	Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t)	0	0	100
as / s	NATPOP	National Population (s,t)	Ø	0	100
	Partr	Participation rate (s.t)	0	0	100
	unemrate	Unemployment rate (s,t)	0	0	100
	rep	Average Replacement Rate (g,t)	0	0	100
	COV	Coverage rate as a proportion of the employed labor force (s.g.t)	0	0	100
	Iract	Insurance rate of active contributors (s,g,x,t)	0	0	100
	irres	Insured residual active contributors as a % of insured active contributors (s,	0	0	100
	linspensir	Initial insured pensioners of invalidity and retirement (s.g.x)	0	0	100
	Binspenswo	Initial insured survivor's pensioners (widows/ers and orphans) (s.g.x)	0	0	100
	qir	Probability of death of an insured pensioner of invalidity or retirement (s,x,t)	0	0	100
	famact	Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc.s.g.xc.x)	0	0	100
	fampens	Expected number of survivors from death of a pensioners (sr,s,g,xr,x)	0	0	100
	included	Takes the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the population k of group q	0	0	100

HGT	Revenue fro	m novernment transfers (r)			0		0		10 0
HRS ContExp	Balanco sho	et oo contributions and expe	oditure: muenue less eve	unditure	0		0		
HTRS RevExp	Total balance	e sheet: total revenue minus	total expenditure (t)		0		0		
HRES	Reserve Fund (t)				0	- 62	0		
GT	Government Transferences (g,t)				0		0		
ORey	Other Revenue (t)				0	- 10	0		
OExp	Other Expenditure (external projection of absolute monetary values) (t).				0	- 10	0		
i rate	Interes Rate	of the Reserve Fund (t)		10.000	0	- 62	0		
fregint	Expected number of interventions per year (s.o.i.i.s.t)				0	- 0	8.33		
mb aegba	Assumed annual growth rate of expenditure through budgetary allocation (0		16.67	1	
nes expcap	Per capita payment for capitation (s,g,j,x,t)				0	0	16.67		
trill freqadfixedb	Annual frequency (average by active contributor) of claims of an additional				0	- 62	50		
alat lact	Initial cohort of active contributors (s.g.x)				0	0	100		104.00
da la q	Death proba	abilities (s.g.x.t)			0		100		
the ret	Disability an	d retirement probabilities (s.	.g.x.t)		0	- 0	100		200
er er	Exit probabi	lities (s,g,x,t)			0	0	100		2.00
s or na	Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t) 0	۵ 😐	100	200					
IN NATPOP	National Pop	pulation (s,t)			0	-0	100		200
Partr	Participation	n rate (s,t)			0	- 0			2.00
unemrate	Unemploym	ient rate (s,t)			Ø	- 0	100	2.00	
051									2.00
wer.									2.00
and the second se									2.00
Land I								Close	2.00
									2.00
vical information series	14	20.00 11	7.00	2.00	3.09	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00
th parkages (From Configuration)	15	20.00 12	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00
E Desilections	16	20.00 13	2.00	00.0	2.00	2 00	2.00	2.00	2.00
a f a ndeubana	17	20.00 14	2.00	2.00	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00
	18	20.00 15	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00
	19	20.00 18	2.00	2.02	200	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00

Code 🔭	Name			7	Checkout Qty	Checkout by Me	Completeness	· •	e (* 1	ogou
freqint	Expected nu	mber of interventions per ye	ar (s.g.j.i.x.t)		0		8.33	Show iten	ns with val	ue th
aegba	Assumed an	Assumed annual growth rate of expenditure through budgetary allocation (0	16.67	100000000		
expcap	Per capita pa	ayment for capitation (s,g,j,x,	d)	0	0	16.67	Is greate	ir than		
freqadfixedb	Annual frequ	uency (average by active con	ributor) of claims of an	0	- 10	50	0.00			
lact	Initial cohort	Initial cohort of active contributors (s.g.x)				- 0	100			
q	Death proba	Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)					100	CLEAR	E F	ALTER
ret	Disability an	Disability and retirement probabilities (s,g,x,t)				- 0	100	-	_	_
er	Exit probabi	Exit probabilities (s.g.x,t)				- 60	100			
ne	Age distribut	Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t)				- 6	100			
NATPOP	National Population (s,t)				0	0	100			1
Partr	Participation	Participation rate (s,t)				- 0	100		194.00	
unemrate	Unemploym	ent rate (s,t)			0	- 0	100			205
rep	Average Rep	placement Rate (g,t)			0	6	100		2.00	
cov	Coverage ra	te as a proportion of the emp	loyed labor force (s,g,t)		0	- 10	100		2.00	
iract	Insurance ra	te of active contributors (s,g,	x,t)		0	0	100		2.00	
irres	Insured resid	dual active contributors as a	% of insured active contr	ibutors (s,	0	- 10	100		2.00	
linspensir	Initial insure	d pensioners of invalidity an	d retirement (s,g,x)		0	- 6	100		2.00	
linspenswo	Initial insure	d survivor's pensioners (wid	ows/ers and orphans) (s	,q,x)	0	- 6	100		2.00	
e									2.00	
									2.00	
								and the second second	2.00	
								Close	2.00	
								لتقطي	2.00	
a series and series of the series of the	14	20,00 11	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00 2.	00	2.00	
allower Transformer	15	20.00 12	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2	00	2.00	
eckages (Atom Configuration)	16	20.00 13	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2.	00	2.00	
rojections	17	20.00 14	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2.	30	2.00	
	18	20.00 18	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2.	00	2.00	
	10	20100 18	5.00	2.00	2.00		5.00 5		200	

Code 🕎	Name				Checkout On 📍	Checkput by Me	Completeness	- 1	ie C•	Logeu
		1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1			Contrast day					
requiriedo	Annua rrequ	ency (average by active con	cributor) or claims or an ac	actional	0	1	36.67	Show ite	ms with v	value t
aegoa	Per capita pu	nual growth rate of experion	dre through budgetary an	ocauon (0		16.67	Is less t	han	
fragint	Fer capita pr	when of interventions per ve	ar (colive)		0		8 33	0.00.0000		
nerfr	expected number or interventions per year (s,g,j,(x,t)) Proportion on annual expectitions the performance cost (a t i)				0		0	100.00		
costint	Unit cost ner	Proportion on annual expenditure representing the performance cost (g,t,j)					0	C154		
dimen	Parameter fi	Ann cost per intervention (g.j.t.x.t) Parameter for adritional dimension of analysis (s.g. i.i.y.t)					0	CLEAD	к.	FILTE
hosodays	Average day	werage days per hospital stay (s.g.i.i.x.t)				-	0			
copavfix	Fix amount o	As amount of co-payment per intervention (s.o.Li.x.t)				0	0	_		
copayrate	Co-payment	Co-payment as a percentage of the cost of intervention (s.g.i.x.t)				-	0			
HTP	Total popula	Total population, by sex (s.t)				-	0		104.00	
HWEP	Working age	population (s.t)			0		0			- 26
HLF	Labour force	(employed population), by	sex (s,t)		0	0	0		2.00	
HAC	Active contri	butors, by sex (s,t)			0	0	0		2.00	
HINS	Insured pop	ulation (s,t)			0	0	0		2.00	
HMS	Minimum sa	lary (t)			0	0	0		2.00	
HCS	Average con	tribotury salary (s,t)			0	0	0		2.00	
HBEN_EXP_HEALTH	Expenditure	on health benefits (s,t)			0		0		2.00	
									-2.00	
									2.00	
									2.00	
								Close	2.00	
									2.00	
information series	(14)	20.00 11	2,00	2.00			2.00 2.0		2,00	
chanes (From Configuration)	15	15 20.00 12 2.00 2.00				2.00	2.00 2.0	10	2.00	
olections	16	20.00 13	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2.4	10	2.00	
STRAMMUR	196	20.00 14	2.00	2.00	.2.00	2.00	2.00 2.0	0	2.00	
	18	20.00 18	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2.0	10	2.00	
	19	20.00 16		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00 2.1			

5.4. Navigation tree

After opening a scenario, the navigation tree appears, accompanied by the Matrix window. The navigation tree is divided into two main sections, Inputs and Outputs. The Inputs section is designed in to easily locate matrices and helps guide the process of filling in the model. The Outputs section attempts to facilitates the inspection and analysis of results in an intuitive way.

5.4.1. Inputs

Under Inputs, the sections of the navigation tree are:

Demographic, economic and labour force, which is associated with the national context with which the schemes will interact. The transition from this context to more scheme-specific populations is in the **Coverage** folder. All contributor projections and transitional dynamics are in the **Contributors** folder.

In the financial sphere, the **Salaries** folder contains the matrices needed to project the main salary aggregate. These become contribution flows via the matrices in **Contribution rates**.

The folders that follow are mostly related to access to healthcare services and their expenditures: **Population entitled to healthcare services** links the contributors and the initial set of noncontributing insured members to project access to healthcare services over time. **Health utilization frequencies and coverage** shows the demand for services when those services are paid by unit. The costs of these services appear in **Costs or fees for health services**. The folder **Healthcare expenditure** refers to services that are paid by budget allocation. **Cash benefit expenditure** includes the comprehensive set of matrices that reproduce the formulas for cash benefits. Other cash flows not included in the Cash benefits and Healthcare services expenditure can be input in matrices belonging to the **Government transfers and other revenue** and **Other expenditures** folders. The folder **Reserve fund and interest rate** contains the data on contingency reserves and their return.

Finally, the Historical information series helps with consistency reviews.

5.4.2. Basic output matrices

This section describes the key information available in the main output matrices and potential uses for this information. Generally, the section moves from the more general to the more specific matrices, and from those that will be used in nearly every actuarial exercise to those that will only occasionally be accessed for detailed calculations. Users can explore the matrices in detail. Ideally, they should begin by studying the simpler matrices (those that have only one column with a time dimension) that can be plotted as a line or bar chart. Users can then move to matrices with age (in rows) and time (in columns) that can be plotted as areas or line charts to make year-over-year comparisons.

5.4.2.1. Financial report matrices

Users normally first look at the Revenue and Expenditure Table [RPT_TRE] in the **Tables/Aggregated Financial Results** folder. This table is where users can identify the main financial projections of the scheme crucial to scheme sustainability. The filepath for this is: Outputs/Projections > Tables/Aggregated Financial Results > RPT_TRE.

The table contains three columns: Income, Expenditure and Results.

In the **Income** section, the first column is Salary mass, showing the level of potential insurable resources. The second column shows Contributions (calculated over the Salary mass), followed by Government transfers, Interest income, Co-payment and Other income. The final column of the section is Total income, the sum of all income items.

The **Expenditure** section has a Benefits subsection that shows the Value of healthcare and cash benefits and their subtotal. Besides benefits, the section has Administrative expenditures, Other expenditures and a Total of all expenditures (sum of the total of benefit, administrative and other expenditures).

The net results are in the **Financial Results Table** [RPT_TFR] in the same section of the navigation tree. The first column, Result, corresponds to the difference between Income and Expenditure, followed by PAYG rate that shows the ratio between Expenditures and Salary mass. This is followed by Reserve, which shows the expected value of the fund's reserve, while Reserve coefficient shows the frequency with which the reserve covers annual expenditures.

5.4.2.2. Demographic report matrices

The **Main Demographic Aggregates Table** [RPT_MDAT] shows the sizes of the key demographic aggregates. It is found in Outputs/Projections > Tables/Aggregated Financial Results > RPT_MDAT.

The columns have two main sections: First, the Contributors-related section, with information on the Total population, Labour force and the Total active contributors. Second, the Insured-related section, with information on the number of insured in groups: Current active, Residual, Pensioners and Family dependants, followed by Total insured. Finally, the report has two columns of indicators: Coverage of contributors with respect to the Labour force and Coverage of insured over the Total population.

5.4.2.3. Financial Indicators

The Financial Indicators folder corresponds to a data series employed to highlight certain aspects of a projection. They are the results of comparisons between projection results and are therefore replicable. ILO/HEALTH automatically calculates them as they are frequently requested in actuarial valuations.

5.4.2.3.1. Expenditure ratios

These indicators are comparisons of certain expenditure items or total expenditures with other aggregates. They assess the magnitude of these expenditures with respect to the economy in the case of [EXPHEALTH_GDPper], Expenditure on health benefits as a percentage of GDP and [T_EXP_GDPper], Total expenditure as a percentage of GDP. They may also assess the relative efficiency of expenditures as in the case of [admin], administrative expenditures as a percentage of total expenditures.

5.4.2.4. Demographic indicators

In addition to financial indicators, ILO/HEALTH provides a set of demographic indicators. These can be found in Outputs/Projections > Indicators > **Demographic Indicators** and are of two types:

5.4.2.4.1. Coverage rates

Ratios between demographic aggregates help users analyse how the schemes affect their target population. There are two kinds of coverage: Active coverage, which compares active contributors over time with the Labour force [AC_LFcr] for the total, or [AC_LFcrs] by sex; and Beneficiary coverage, which compares the number of insured to the national population [IP_NPcr] and [IP_NPcrs]. The higher the coverage, the more progress in making the scheme universal. These can be found in Outputs > Demographic Indicators.

5.4.2.4.1.1. Average age

These indicators ([ACaas] [Acaa], [TIaas], [TIaa], [NCaaas], [NCaa]) show the average age of contributors or beneficiaries by sex over the years. They can be found in Outputs/Projections >

Demographic Indicators. This is useful to assess the characteristics of typical insured or contributors and their changes over time (for example: ageing of the contributors, etc).

5.4.2.5. Contributors and insured members

The main aggregate groups for contributors are accessible in varying levels of detail for users interested in understanding group dynamics.

5.4.2.5.1. Yearly aggregates by sex and group

This is the simplest level of detail possible: A time series by sex that shows the total number of individuals of a group without age details. This level of detail is available for Total number of active contributors of a group [Tact] in the folder Outputs/Projections > **Contributors/insured members**, Total insured from active [RPT_MDAT_E] and Total insured pensioners [RPT_MDAT_G] in a group with detail by sex in the folder Outputs/Projections > **Insured Population and Coverage / Summaries**.

5.4.2.5.2. Year and age crosstabs

These tables show the years in the columns and the age in the rows. This level of detail allows users to see demographic transitions (the "diagonal" ageing of cohorts). These tables are available for the following groups: Active contributors [act], Active insured, Residual insured, Pensioner insured and Family insured ([Insact], [ResIns], [Inspensir], [Inspenswo] and [FamIns]). Other groups shown with this detail are residual groups of contingencies, for example: Active contributors that survived death, disability and other exits [Survact], and the Deaths from the insured groups, [Tdeath].

5.4.2.6. Salary matrices

Similarly, the salary matrices relate income to age for active contributors. There are three salary matrices: [Tsal] contains the Theoretical salary and [sal] contains Projected salary. Both are shown by age and sex for each group over a given year, with years shown in columns and age in rows. Additionally, there is a matrix for the average Salary of the group [salt]. These are found in Outputs/Projections > Salary Averages / Salary Mass.

5.4.2.7. Expenditures

5.4.2.7.1. Healthcare expenditures

Users can assess the total expenditure per package in the matrix [EXP] in Outputs/Projections > Health Expenditure. Details on the number of interventions for services paid by the intervention are found in the matrix [UTIL], and age details are available in [UTILx]. Both these matrices are found in the section Outputs/Projections > **Healthcare Interventions**.

5.4.2.7.2. Cash benefit expenditures

The matrices [FEXPsickallow], [FEXPmatallow], [FEXPfun], [FEXPadfixedb], [FEXPadsaldb] show the total expenditure per year and sex on sickness allowances, paternal leave allowances, funeral

benefits, fixed ad hoc benefits, and ad hoc benefits calculated as a proportion of the salary. [BEN_EXP_CASHs] shows the total cash benefits and [BEN_EXP_CASH] shows totals for each sex. All matrices are found in the section Outputs/Projections > **Expenditure on Cash Benefits**.

5.5. Manipulation of matrices

The largest and most interesting part of the work in ILO/HEALTH occurs at the matrix level. Matrices are always part of a scenario and their number and size depend on the model set up by users. ILO/HEALTH offers many options to develop the matrices. ILO/HEALTH prioritizes remote access, teamwork and peer reviewing in modern actuarial practice in social security, in accordance with *ISSA-ILO Actuarial Guidelines*.

Users should become thoroughly familiar with the options within scenarios to properly manipulate matrices. Section 6 explains this process.

An open scenario shows its name, a selection menu to pick the scheme, the navigation tree and the Matrix window. Through the navigation tree, users can choose the matrix they need. The selected matrix is shown in the Matrix window.



The tree consists of logically arranged folders and matrices.²⁴ Users can navigate through the model in the same way they would with any file explorer.

²⁴ For calculation purposes, ILO/HEALTH never refers to the matrices in terms of their location in the tree. This means that a rearrangement of matrices is possible without affecting the calculation function of the application. The ILO welcomes suggestions for improving the navigation tree.

The naming of the matrices consists of two parts: the matrix code shown in brackets, which is assigned by ILO/HEALTH and is immutable, and the matrix name describing the expected contents of the matrix, its use in the modelling process and its dimensions. The matrix name can be changed over time to improve the description and improve user experiences. Frequent users should familiarize themselves with the code as much as possible.²⁵

Inside the matrix window, users can see: the Matrix menu with a set of tabs that change according to the matrix, one or two list boxes for tab selection, and the selected tab shown in Excel-like columns and rows.

Users can select a matrix by clicking on its name in the navigation tree on the left. Selecting the red arrows next to the folder names (e.g., Inputs or Outputs/Projections) will open the folder(s); users can then select the matrix's name to open it.

International Labour Organization	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform in					
Models Scenario Configuration	Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	Name					
Scheme: Main	Scheme: Main					
enter search criteria here>	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>					
 Inputs Outputs / Projections 	 Inputs Demographic, economic and labour for [NATPOP] National Population (s,t) [Partr] Participation rate (s,t) [Input Gross Domestic Produc [Iggdp] Input Gross Domestic Produc [Iggdp] Input Gross Domestic Produc [IgDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc [Inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pro Coverage Contributors Salaries/average and growth rates Contribution rates and average contrib 					

²⁵ The code will be extremely useful when working with exported files.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l n in Social	l Security / Tes	t Institution - Swi	itzerland
Models Scenario Configuration				
lame III	INAT	POPI Natio	onal Populat	tion (s.t)
cheme: Main	i No	o Sum(col)	** No Sum(row)	O Check Out Exp. CSV STo XLSX
Inputs Demographic, economic and labour fo	Sex: 1	Male		
[NATPOP] National Population (s,t)	A1:B2	•	fx 50000	
[Partr] Participation rate (s,t)		A	8	C
[unemrate] Unemployment rate (s,t)	1	Project	tion time	547.486.05 Value
[ggdp] Input Gross Domestic Produc	3	50,000.00	2020	50,000.00
[ggex] Input Government Expenditu	4	51,000.00	2021	51,000.00
[IGDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc	5	52,020.00	2022	52,020.00
[Inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pr	6	53,060.40	2023	53,060.40
Coverage	7	54,121.61	2024	54,121.61
Contributors	8	55,204.04	2025	55,204.04
Salaries/average and growth rates	9	56,308.12	2026	56,308.12
Contribution rates and average contrib	10	57,434.28	2027	57,434.28
Population entitled to health services p	11	58,582.97	2028	58,582.97
🕨 📒 Health Expenditure	12	59,754.63	2029	59,754.63
🕨 🚞 Cash benefit expenditure				
 Other expenditure 				
Costs or fees for health services				
Health utilization frequencies and cove				

5.5.1. Aesthetic commands: Hide and show sums of rows and columns

By default, ILO/HEALTH lists the totals of the values in the row (in the case of the first column) and the totals of the values of the column (in the case of the first row). Users can hide the total in on the matrix they are working on by right-clicking on the desired row or column and then selecting Hide or Unhide from the menu or alternatively, by clicking on the option No Sum (col) or No Sum (row). However, these totals are often useful for double-checking data entered over multiple years or categories to ensure proper inputs were used.

Selecting No sum rows/columns in the Matrix window (or right-clicking and then choosing Hide/Unhide) hides/shows the first row/column of the matrix. The command is merely aesthetic and does not affect the calculations. The rows/columns will reappear the next time the matrix opens and will reappear in the next selected matrix.

Mo	dels Scenario Configuration				
Nam	· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	[NAT	POP] Natio	nal Populat	ion (s,t)
Scher	me: Main	1.1	Sum/coll	• Nor Formformed in	O Church Chat
	enter search criteria here>	4 140	admited)	interservit/Ow)	O CHIRCOLL
	Innuts	Sex: 1	Male		
	Demographic, economic and labour fo				
	[NATPOP] National Population (s.t)	A2:CZ		fx Project	ion time
	[Partr] Participation rate (s,t)		A	В	С
	[unemrate] Unemployment rate (s.t)	1	Burley	and there is	547,486.0
	Inneh Innut Gross Domestic Produc		Project	ion time	Value
	[ggep] Input Government Expenditu	Cut		2020	50,000.0
	IGDPI Initial Gross Domestic Produc	Cop	y	2021	51,000.0
	field Inflation rate expressed as a nr		3.0	2022	52,020.0
12	fini finiación rate expresseu as a pr	Past	e	2023	53,060.4
	Coverage	Dele	ete	2024	54,121.0
	Contributors	1122278		2025	55,204.0
	5alaries/average and growth rates	Hide		2026	56,308.1
*	Contribution rates and average contrib	10	57,434 28	2027	57,434.2
*	Population entitled to health services p	11	58,582.97	2020	58,582.9
٠	illi Health Expenditure	12	59,754.63	2029	59,754.6
٠	Cash benefit expenditure				
	Cther expenditure				
	Costs or fees for health services				
	Health utilization frequencies and cove				

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	in Social	Security / Tes	: Institu	ition - Swit	zerland	
Models Scenario Configuration						
Name	INAT	POP1 Natio	nal P	Populati	on (s.t)	
Scheme: Main	1 No	Sum(col)	* No Su	im(row)	⊙ Check Out €. Exp. C	SV 💽 To XLSX
enter search criteria heres iminore imino	Sex:)	Vale		•		
[NATPOP] National Population (s,t)	A3:C3		fx	=SUM(C	3:0)	
[Partr] Participation rate (s,t)		A		B	C	
[unemrate] Unemployment rate (s,t)	1	Project	on time	0	547,485.05	
[ggdp] Input Gross Domestic Produc	3	50,000.00	2020		50,000.00	
[ggex] Input Government Expenditu	4	51,000.00	2021		51,000.00	
[IGDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc	5	52,020.00	2022		52,620.00	
[inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pr	0	53,060,40	2023		63,060,40	
Coverage		04,721.01	2024		04,121,01	
Contributors	9	55,204.04	2023		55,204.04	
Salaries/average and growth rates	10	57 434 28	2027		ET A34 28	
Contribution rates and average contrib	11	68.582.07	2028		58 582 97	
Population entitled to health services n	12	59.754.63	2029		59,754,63	
Health Expenditure						
Gran banafit avagaditura						
Other expenditure						
Costs as fact for bealth senders						
Costs or rees for health services						
Health utilization frequencies and cove						

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	i in Social Security /	Test Institution - Sw	ritzerland
Models Scenario Configuration			
Vame	[NATPOP] Na	ational Popula	tion (s,t)
scheme: Main	1 No Sundani	THE NO Street must	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	. No surricult	and south out	
- Incuste	Sex: Male		
Demonstraphic economic and Jahnur fe			
[NATPOP] National Population (s t)	A1:C12	fx Project	tion time
[Partr] Participation rate (s.t)	A	в	c
[unemrate] Unemployment rate (s.t)	1		58,000.00
[andn] Input Gross Domestic Brodur	Cut	21	51,000.00
[oger] Input Government Expenditu	Comu	22	52.020.00
[IGDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc	copy	23	53,060,40
[inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pr	Paste	24	54,121,61
Compressed as a prime	Delata	25	55,204,04
Contributorr	Delete	26	56,308.12
Enjation (suprange and execution sates)	Hide	27	57,434.28
Gentribution rates and suprage contrib	Unhide	28	50,502.97
Contribution rates and average contrib	offither.	29	04,704,001
 Population entitled to health services p Health Support liture 			
Final Real Providence			
Cash penent expenditure			
Conter expenditure			
 Costs or rees for nealth services 			
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 			

There is no way to hide the rows/columns permanently. Users are advised to work without focusing on them and to hide them if they are distracting for tasks requiring lengthy periods viewing the same matrix. Hiding them every time a matrix opens will take a considerable amount of time.

5.5.2. Exporting commands: Exp.CSV and To XLSX

While ILO/HEALTH offers an adequate environment for storing information and running projections on healthcare schemes, some tasks may be easier to perform in a traditional worksheet programme (such as MS Excel or Google Sheets). Fortunately, ILO/HEALTH offers export options to facilitate the integration of ILO/HEALTH with some of the more popular spreadsheet programmes.

	Internation Labour Organizatio	n ILO/HEALTI Quantitative Platfor	f In Social Security / Text Institution - Switzerland		*test
Models	Scenario	Configuration		User Name	C+ Logout
Name		1	[ne] Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t)		
Scheme: Ma	ain		: Na Similardi - M Na Similarud		
-venter s	search criteria	here>	A LEADER AND A LEADER		

Working on ILO/HEALTH in MS Excel is easier when users' Excel format aligns with that of ILO/HEALTH. There are two ways to resolve problems that may arise when working with csv files:

- Changing MS Windows system preferences in terms of number formatting settings, date and time, region, additional date, time and regional settings, region (change date, time or number format) and additional settings. Users should change the decimal symbol for ".", while changing the digit grouping symbol to any other except "."
- 2. Changing only MS Excel preferences: Users should select the File tab, and then Options. In the Excel options dialog box, in Advanced, they should enter the Use system separators checkbox. In the appropriate fields, users should enter symbols for the decimal separator (".") and for the thousands separator (",").

The two possible formats for exporting the data are csv and xlsx. The former is a flat format similar to txt. The format transforms each row of a table into a line of text. The end of a column is marked by a comma (hence comma separated values, csv). The csv files only record text values but not how those values were calculated (values only, not formulas).

5.5.3. The Check Out command

The real manipulation of matrices requires the proper use of the Check Out/Check In commands. These are the key to all teamwork and remote access capabilities of ILO/HEALTH.

Selecting the Check Out command gives users the exclusive right to edit a matrix up to the moment they do the Check In. While one editor/user holds the editing rights to a specific matrix, all other users with editing rights can only read the latest version of the matrix in the scenario. To protect the integrity of the information, no one can edit any matrix without checking it out.

Establishing protocols for who can check out and edit the matrices is crucial for avoiding conflicts and managing resources while working as a team. The Check Out tab opens a set of additional options for working with the matrices.

Internatio Labour Organizat	inal ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland	*test
Models Scenario	Configuration	L User Name C+ Logout
Name	[q] Death probabilities (s.g.x.t)	
Scheme: Main	🔹 No Sum(col) 🤲 No Sum(row) 🙆 Check Out 🗟 Exp. CDV 🅅 To XLSX.	

5.5.3.1. Direct writing

Users who do not first check out the available matrix will be unable to manipulate it.

When users check out, they will be able to edit existing information or add new information as easily as in any other spreadsheet programme: type the number, use '.' as the default decimal separator and then select enter.

5.5.3.2. Using cell references

Users can alternatively use an Excel-like reference of one entry for the value of another entry. As in Excel, users should start writing their formula with '=' (not '+'), followed by the typical mathematical operators: '+', '-', '*', '/' and '^' for sum, subtraction, multiplication, division and powers, respectively, parenthesis and a collection of functions.²⁶ Users can directly write the entry reference in the formula or use the mouse (or keyboard) to select the entry.



ILO/HEALTH will always save the entries as numbers. Even if users obtained these numbers by entering calculations or using formulas, the software records or copies them from other sources as numbers. The Functions option helps save users time by allowing them to copy and spread

²⁶ Unlike in Excel, '+' is not allowed for formula reference.

calculations through ranges. However, when users exit the matrix, all formulas in the matrix will be replaced by their results, expressed as numbers without a record of the calculation method.

Users should also pay attention to the format of each cell – remembering to enter numbers without any spaces or commas, and where applicable, to check percentages after entering them to confirm that they are correct. (Problems can often be resolved by dividing or multiplying by 100.)

5.5.3.3. Using Ctrl+C to copy

Users can change the value of a set of entries by copying the entries from another region of the matrix, another matrix or another programme. They can copy them in the matrix by pressing Ctrl+C (or Command+C on a Mac OS). An alert will appear if the size of the copied area does not match the size of the destination area. This method should not be confused with the copy function, which is explained in section 5.5.3.7 – Copy mechanisms.

5.5.3.4. Clean

By selecting the Clean tab, users can erase all information entered into the matrix. This function helps users avoid confusion between new and old data. In the event the wrong selection is made, users should select Undo Check Out.



5.5.3.5. Undo Check Out

This tab allows users to go back to the matrix in the pre-check out version, meaning that none of the changes (writing, formulas and cleaning) made from the check out have any effect and the matrix remains unchanged. The option is available until the user selects Save.



5.5.3.6. Save

All changes made by selecting Save are saved in the matrix. This function helps to save progress on work in a matrix before continuing to other sections of the matrix. Should ILO/HEALTH unexpectedly close, any checked-out matrices will be stored in the last saved version available. Once users select Save, the saved version is stored and the option to return to the pre-check out version disappears.

Ø	Internation Labour Organizatio	nal Quantitative Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland		*test
Models	Scenario	Configuration 💄 U	ser Name	E Logout
Name		[NATPOP] National Population (s,t) (Locked by User Name)		
Scheme: M	an search criteria	a harres	XLSX	

5.5.3.7. Copy mechanisms

ILO/HEALTH has a copy function that differs slightly from those in familiar programmes. This option allows users to copy:

- the values of a given row to a set number of rows that follow (below the given row);
- the values of a given column to a set number of columns that follow (to the right of the given row);
- the values of a given row to all rows that follow; and
- the values of a given column to all the columns that follow.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Plat	TH orm in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland	
Models Scenario Configuration		1 User Name
me	[INATPOP] National Population (s,t) (Locked by User Name)	
ieme: Main	📕 Save 🕒 Clean 🔉 Copy 🗄 No Sum(cot) 🚥 No Sum(row) @ Check In Ø Undo Check Out 🕺 Imp. CSV 🕏 Exp. CSV	R TO XLSK
<enter criteria="" here»<="" search="" td=""><td>Sex: Male</td><td></td></enter>	Sex: Male	
	Conv	
	copy	
	What do you want to copy?	
	Copy current cell row	
	O Copy current cell column	
	Number of copies: 0	

All those options are possible by selecting an entry, selecting Copy and choosing the combination of options in the menu box shown here.

5.5.3.8. Imp CSV

A primary goal of ILO/HEALTH is to be able to exchange information with other spreadsheet platforms with ease. The Imp CSV function allows users to import full data sets stored in a csv format into a matrix in the ILO/HEALTH platform as long as they have the same dimensions. This allows users to utilize information from other spreadsheet platforms to easily fulfil ILO/HEALTH requirements.

Ø	Internation Labour Organization	aal ILO/HEALTH on Quuntitative Platform In Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland		*test
Models	Scenario	Configuration L User	lame G	Logout
Name		[ne] Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t) (Locked by User Name)		
Scheme: M	tain search criteria	H Save Se Clean St Capy I No Sum(rol) *** No Sum(rol) O Check In O Undo Check Out St Imp.CV & Exp.CSV & To XLSK	l.	

5.5.3.9. Check In command

Upon finishing editing a matrix, the user must use the Check In command to save all changes made in the matrix and to allow other users to make changes.²⁷ Users should always check in their matrix after they have finished working on it to save changes, input it into the system, and increase the completion rate.

Ø	Internation Labour Organizati	al ILO/HEALTH n Guanstative Platform In Social Security / Text Institution - Switzerland		*test
Models	Scenario	Configuration 1	User Name	Logout
Name		[4] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t) (Locked by User Name)		
Scheme: M	sin	🔻 💾 Save 🕒 Clean 🌡 Copy 🗄 Vo Sum(col) 🖙 No Sum(rov) 🥝 OxeCeIn 🖉 Undo Check Out 🕼 Imy, CSV 🔹 Exp. CSV 🕏	To XLSX	

5.6. Configuration of ILO/HEALTH

ILO/HEALTH adapts to the need for flexibility and customization that all actuarial work in the healthcare sector requires. This goal is achieved through the Configuration menu, which allows users to name their own population groups, healthcare interventions and packages.

Ø	Internation Labour Organizatio	n ILO/HE	ALTH Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - So	Nitzerland		*test
Models	Scenario	Configuration				💄 User Name 🕞 Logout
Choose a	Configuratio	on Option				
				2		
			1111			
			Population Groups	Health Interventions	Packages	

5.6.1. Population groups

In terms of configuration, the population group identifies the group of people who share a certain set of characteristics and are part of the scheme. In the configuration menu, users can opt to eliminate inactive population groups (those not used in existing models) or add groups by selecting

²⁷ The Check In command is equivalent to Save and then Check In. If users do not want to save changes, the only alternative is Undo check in. If users previously saved changes, the Undo check in is not available. Exiting the matrix without saving will enable users to return to the last saved version of the matrix.

New and entering a unique name. Users can also modify and save changes to an existing group's name. Additionally, when user request to add a population group to a scheme in a new model, they are shown the list of existing groups and add new ones.

5.6.2. Healthcare Interventions

Like population groups, each healthcare intervention requires a unique name. In the same menu, users can modify names or delete inactive healthcare interventions or select New and enter a nonduplicate name. Additionally, when users request to add a healthcare intervention to a new package, they are shown the list of existing interventions and can add new ones.

5.6.3. Packages

The package is the most complex and interesting part of the configuration. The concept of a package in the model is not necessarily the same as the policy or administrative definition used in some countries. A package consists of a set of healthcare interventions to be offered to population groups and that all share a payment method.

For example, if a population group receives healthcare, health intervention A is paid by "payment per intervention" while health intervention B is paid by capitation, for which reason they cannot be modelled in the same package. Neither can they be in the same package if both are covered by a budget allocation but are offered to different population groups.

It is possible to include the same healthcare intervention in two different packages; it is even possible that the same interventions are provided to the same group via two packages. The modelling team is responsible for avoiding double accounting.

Besides the options to delete and change names, users can add new packages by selecting New. Users must add a name, select the payment method and finally add (using the plus sign next to the box of healthcare interventions) the healthcare interventions from the available list.

Users cannot modify the list of packages outside of the Configuration menu.

6. ILO/HEALTH Walkthrough

This section is for:

All practitioners who will interact frequently with the platform, especially those leading actuarial teams

In this section, users will learn:

- · How to log in to ILO Health, create a practice model and baseline scenario
- Tricks and tips to manipulate matrices in the practice scenario in the model and in MS Excel (See ILO/HEALTH Platform Cheat Sheet of commands)
- How to fill in demographic and financial matrices and the rationale behind them
- How to complete and run the model
- How to explore output matrices with key demographic and financial indicators

This section will use some of the functions explained in section 5 to give prospective users some hands-on experience with ILO/HEALTH and introduce them to tricks that will it make easier to fill in the required matrices. Steps are indicated with the following arrow: " \rightarrow ".

6.1. Logging in, creating a practice model and a practice base scenario

As mentioned, the main idea of this section is to practice and interact with ILO/HEALTH; the results are secondary.

6.1.1. Log in

→ Users should check the email account used for registration to obtain their login credentials for ILO/HEALTH. See the ILO/HEALTH webpage: <u>https://qpss.ilo.org:9081/</u>. When first-time users visit this page, they should enter their email address, **but should not enter the assigned password.** Instead, they should select the "Change password" option, create a secret password,²⁸ and log in.



²⁸ Users should remember that it is their responsibility to respect colleagues' working spaces. Sharing login credentials means taking responsibility for any irreversible changes that the user with whom credentials have been shared may make.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform in Social Security	
Change password	
Email:	example@domain.com
Actual password:	Actual password
New password:	New password
Repeat new password:	Repeat new password
	Save Cancel

6.1.2. Create the structure for a practice model

6.1.2.1. Create the population group

In ILO/HEALTH, users should select Configuration, where three options will appear: Population Groups, Health Interventions and Packages. They should select Population Groups to access a list of the population groups already registered in the page. For example, to add a group, users should:

- → Select "New"
- → In the space for Name, users should write the name of their favourite dessert
- → Press "Save"



reality.	Custard	
Active:	2	
Created by:	Created by	Created date
Modified by:	Modified by	Modified date
ert configura	ation process	
ert configura	ation process	

6.1.2.2. Create healthcare interventions

Going back to the Configuration menu, user should now select Health Interventions to access a list of all health interventions registered in the model. To add an intervention, users should:

International Labour Organization ULO/HE/ Quantitative	ALTH Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Sv	wtzerland		*test
Models Scenario Configuration				L User Name C+ Logout
Choose a Configuration Option				
	Population Groups	HEALTH	Packages	
➔ Select "New"	,			

- → In the space for Name, write: "Head"
- ➔ Press "Save"

New Dokto	18			Health Interventions
kcal care - outpatient				incurrent and incurrent a
ical care - outpatient	is Active	Details		
	•	Name -	Cinese :	
pital care -inpatient	•	Name.	Paarte .	
jical	•	Active:	24	
abilitation	•	Created by:	Created by	Created date
d health	•	Modified by:	Modified by	Monified date
nal beach	•	1		
oitalizacion	1			Save Cantol
rgencia				
nation	•			
sulta especialidad	•			
ciality consultation	•			
rgency consultation	•			
Name:	Head			
Active:				
Created by:	Created by		Created dat	e
Modified by:	Modified by		Modified da	ite
			S	Cancel
Insert co	onfiguration process			X
Configura	ation successfuly inserted!			

- → Press "New"
- → In the space for Name, write "Foot"
- ➔ Press "Save"
- → Select "New"
- → In space for Name, write: "Toes"
- ➔ Press "Save"
- → Select the "Foot" healthcare intervention again
- ➔ Correct the name by writing "Feet"
- ➔ Press "Save"

→ Using the steps above, users should create the following interventions: Fingers, Eyes, Ears, Nose, Knees and Hands

	figuration				💄 User Name 🕞 L
🖹 New 🏥 Delete					Health Interventions
Name		🕎 Is Active 🌱	Details		
iospital care -inpatient			Name:	Feet	
rehabilitation			Active:		
llied health			Constant Inve	(Tel Tablication	20/07/2020 12:22.22
Aental health		•	Created by:	User Name	22/07/2020 13:33:37
onsulta		•	Modified by:	User Name	22/07/2020 13:33:37
lospitalizacion		•			
mergencia		•			Save Cancel
ormacion		•			
onsulta especialidad		•			
pecialty consultation		•			
mergency consultation		•			
nfrastructure		•			
nfrastructure acilities		:			
nfrastructure acilities rogrammes CE		:			
nfrastructure acilities rogrammes CE lead					
nfrastructure acilities Mogrammes MCE Head					
nfrastructure acilities rogrammes CE ead oot oot		•			
nfrastructure acilities rogrammes CE E eed eeot oes	Details	•			
nfrastructure acilities vogrammes CE E ead oot oot	Details Name:	• • • • Hands			
infrastructure accilities Programmes PCE Head Foot Tooes	Details Name: Active:	Hands			
nfrastructure aculities hrogrammes CCE dead dead foot Coes	Details Name: Active: Created by:	Hands User Name		22/07/2020 13:42:49	
ifrastructure actilities cgrammes cE ead bot	Details Name: Active: Created by: Modified by:	● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ● ●		22/07/2020 13:42:49 22/07/2020 13:42:49	

6.1.2.3. Create the healthcare packages

Finally, going back to the Configuration menu, users should now select Packages to access a list of all Packages already registered in the model. To add a package, users should:



- ➔ Press "New"
- → In the space for Name, write: "Capital"
- → From the dropdown menu, they should choose the Payment method: (MP5) By health intervention in the general case
- → Next to the box of Health Interventions, select the plus sign
- ➔ In the Dissociated menu, search for Ears and press the arrow facing right to link the Intervention to the Package.
- → Do the same with Eyes, Head and Nose
- → Finally, next to "Create new health intervention?" Write "Teeth" in the box and press the plus sign to add an intervention that was inadvertently omitted in the previous step. This is a shortcut to create a new intervention.
- → Select "Apply"
- ➔ Press "Save"

International Labour ILO/HEALTH Organization Quantitative Platform in Social S	ecurity / Test Institution - Switzerland			*t
odels Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕒 Log
New 🗄 Delete				Packages
me	Y Is Active	Details		
neral_budget	•	Name:	Name	
eral	•			
tado	•	Payment method:	(MP1) Budgetary Allocation In	itial Experiditure and Assumed Ex
rammes	•	Health interventions:		
stment	•			
MI	•			
	•			
¢	•			
r2	•			
		Created by:	Created by	Created date
		Modified by:	Modified by	Modified date
		Active:	-	

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform in Social Security / Te	st Institution - Switzerland			*test
Models Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕞 Logout
New Delete				Packages
Name	is Active 😽	Details		
General_budget	•	Name:	Capital	
General Capitado		Payment method:	(MP1) Budgetary Allocation In	nitial Expenditure and Assumed Expe 🗴 📧
Programmes	•	Health interventions:	(MP1) Budgetary Allocation In Expenditure Crowth	itial Expenditure and Assumed
Investment	•		(MP2) Budgetary Allocation E	kpenditure as a percentage of GDP
GovAll	•		(MP3) Budgetary Allocation Ex	penditure as a percentage of GEX
Ext	•		(MP4) Capitation	
Basic			(MP5) By health intervention	the general case
Basic2	•		(MP6) By health intervention i	hospitalization
		Created by:	Created by	Created date
		Modified by:	Modified by	Modified date
		Active:	2	

thternational Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	t in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland		*test
Models Scenario Configuration			🎩 User Name 🕞 Logout
E New D Delete	Health Interventions	×	Packages
Name	Dissociated	Associated	
General budget General Coptodo Programmes Investment GovAll Ext Basic Basic2	Medical care - outpatient Hospital care -inpatient Surgical Rehabilitation Allied health Mental health Consulta Hospitalizacion Emergencia Formacion Consulta especialidad		ion the general case *
	Create new health intervention?	Close Appy	Modified date

alth Interventions	ř.			3
Dissociated			Associated	
Programm	nes			
Head				
Feet		0		
Toes		U		
Fingers				
Ears				
Nose				
Knees				
Hands				
Create new health inter	vention?	-		
			Close	Apply
aaleb Tataa wati	- 4.			
earch interventions				
Dissociated			Associated	
emergen	cy consultation		Ears	
Infrastruc	ture			
Facilities				
Programm	nes			
PCE		1.2		
Feet		12		
Toes				
Fingers				
Knees				
Nose				
Create new health inter	vention?			
anana ang benya benya kanang kanan				
			Close	Apply
				560
ealth Intervention	5			
Dissociated			Associated	
Specialty	consultation		Ears	
emergen	cy consultation		Eyes	
Infrastru	cture		Head	
Facilities			Nose	

Close Apply

Programmes PCE Feet Toes Fingers Knees Hands ate new health intervention?

Cre

Dissociated		Associated	
* Consistu consultation		Ears	
emergency consultation		Eves	
Infrastructure		Head	
Eacilities		Nose	
Programmes			
PCF			
Feet			
Toes			
Fingers			
Knees			
Hands			
Strate new bealth intervention?			
areate new nearth intervention?	leeth	0	
Insert configuration process			-8
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted!			×
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted!			ок
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted!			.× OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions			OK.
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated		Associated	ок
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation		Associated	СК
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation		Associated Ears Eyes	СК
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure		Associated Ears Eyes Head	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	CK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	CK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Uissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Feet		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Uissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Toes		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Speciality consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Toes Fingers		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Uissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Toes Fingers Knees		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Uissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Toes Fingers Knees Hands		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Toes Fingers Knees Hands		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	OK
Insert configuration process Configuration successfuly inserted! Ith Interventions Dissociated Dissociated Specialty consultation emergency consultation Infrastructure Facilities Programmes PCE Feet Toes Fingers Knees Hands atte new health intervention?		Associated Ears Eyes Head Nose Teeth	

New B Active Seneral budget B Active Capitado B Orogrammes B SovAll B Soxic B Sasic B	Package Capital (MP5) By health intervention the general case
arrie E Active T E Act	Capital (MPS) By health intervention the general case
eneral_budget Image: Particular sector sec	Capital (MP5) By health intervention the general case
heral Image: Second s	(MP5) By health intervention the general case
itado Payment method grammes • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	(MP5) By health intervention the general case
grammes • Health intervention stment • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	ons:
estment • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	
vAll vali ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic ic	Ears
sic • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • • •	Eyes
sic2	Head
sic2	Teeth
Created by:	Created by Created date
Modified by:	Modified by Modified date
Active:	
	Save

→ Repeat, following the table below (add interventions if needed):

Name	Payment Method	Interventions
Tactile	(MP6) By health intervention hospitalization	Fingers and Hands
Podo	(MP1) Budgetary Allocation Initial Expenditure and Assumed Expenditure Growth	Knees, Feet and Toes
Umbilical	(MP4) Capitation	Bellybutton
Infrastructure	(MP3) Budgetary Allocation Expenditure as a percentage of GEX	Main_building
BT	(MP2) Budgetary Allocation Expenditure as a percentage of GDP	Hospital

er Ended En	dels Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕒 Log
b Adive ral_budget ral_ado` ado` rammes: ument. ado co co <th>New 💼 Delete</th> <th></th> <th></th> <th></th> <th>Packages</th>	New 💼 Delete				Packages
ral budget • ral • ado • ado • rammes • stment • al • 2 • al • • • <td>e</td> <td>🕎 Is Active 🌱</td> <td>Details</td> <td></td> <td></td>	e	🕎 Is Active 🌱	Details		
ral Payment method: ado Payment method: trunent Payment method: ai Payment method: 2 Payment method: ai Created by: Created by: 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Modified by: 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Active: Created by:	eral_budget	•	Name:	Tactile	
ado Payment method: (MP6) By health intervention hospitalization Created by: Fingers Hands Created by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Active: Created by: Created b	eral	•		Col. 1	
rammes • struent • al • 2 • al • • •	Itado	•	Payment method:	(MP6) By health intervention h	ospitalization
All Image: Signal state of the state	grammes	•	Health interventions:		
Hands Hands Hands Hands Hands Hands Hands Hands Created by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Modified by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Active: Created by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Active: Created by: Created by: Cre	stment	•		Fingers	
• • <td>All</td> <td>•</td> <td></td> <td>Hands</td> <td></td>	All	•		Hands	
Image: Constraint of the second of the se		•			
2 Created by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Modified by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05 Active: C	c	•			
al Created by: User Name 22/07/2020 13.56:05 Modified by: User Name 22/07/2020 13.56:05 Active: C	ic2	•			
Image: State of the state o	ital	•	Craster by:	Liner Name	22/07/2020 12:56-05
Modified by: User Name 22/07/2020 13:56:05	10	•	ordado by:	Cost Name	2470/14020 13:30:03
Activo:	0	•	Modified by:	User Name	22/07/2020 13:56:05
			Active:		
			0	10.M	

Models Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕒 Li
New 🛱 Delete				Packages
lame	Y Is Active	Details		
ieneral_budget	•	Name:	Podo	
meral	•			
apitado	•	Payment method:	(MP1) Budgetary Allocation Init	tial Expenditure and Assumed Ex
rogrammes	٠	Health interventions:		
vestment	•		(increase)	
ovAll	•		Feet	
at l			Toes	
asic	•			
asic2	•			
apital	•	and the second second		
actile	•	Created by:	User Name	22/07/2020 13:59:19
odo		Modified by:	User Name	22/07/2020 13:59:19
		Active:		

Organization Quantitative Platform in Social Sec	urity / Test Institution - Switzerland			**
dels Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕒 Log
New 🛱 Delete				Packages
10	TIS Active	Details		
eral_budget	•	Name:	Umbilical	
ieral	•			
itado	•	Payment method:	(MP4) Capitation	<u> </u>
grammes	•	Health interventions:		
estment	•		Balldurtan	
IIA	•		belybuttori	
ic	•			
ic2.	•			
ital	•	12110-000		
tile -	•	Created by:	Created by	Created date
lo	•	Modified by:	Modified by	Modified date
		Active:		

Quantitative Platform	In Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland			
Models Scenario Configuration	62-			💄 User Name 🕒 Logout
New B Delete	Health Interventions		×	Packages
Nome	Dissociated	Associated		
General_budget	PCE			
General	Head			
Capitado	Feet			X
Programmes	Toes			
Investment	Fingers		-	
GovAll	Eyes			
Ext	Ears			
Basic	Nose			
Basic2	Hands			
Capital	Teeth			
Tactile				
Podo	Create new health intervention?	Bellybutton		Modified date
	-		<u> </u>	
		Close Apply	_	
				Save Cancel

Models Scenario Configuration		💄 User Name 🕒 Logou
New E Delete	Health Interventions	× Packages
Nome	Dissociated Associated	
General budget	PCE	
General	Head	
Capitado	Feet	in Expenditure as a percentage of GEX
Programmes	Toes	
Investment	Fingers	
GovAll	Eyes	
Ext	Ears	
Basic	Nose	
Basic2	Hands	
Capital	Teeth	Created date
Tactlie		Tanana and
Podo	Create new health intervention? Main_building	
Umblicat		
		Close Apply

International Labour Organization Guantitative Platform in Social Security / Test Ins	titution - Switzerland			*test
Models Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕞 Logout
New Delete				Packages
Name	T Is Active	Details		
General_budget	•	Name:	Infrastructure	
General	•			
Capitado	•	Payment method:	(MP3) Budgetary Allocation Exp	penditure as a percentage of GEX
Programmes	•	Health interventions:		
Investment	•		Main building	
GovAll	•		Hang banang	
Ext	•			
Basic	•			
Basic2	•			
Capital	•	1000		1.62
Tactile	•	Created by:	Created by	Created date
Podo	•	Modified by:	Modified by	Modified date
Umbilical	•	Active:		



Organization Quantitative Platform in Socia	I Security / Test Institution - Switzerland			Les C
Models Scenario Configuration				💄 User Name 🕒 Logout
SNew Delete				Packages
Name	Ts Active	Details		
General_budget	•	Name:	вт	
General	•			
Capitado	•	Payment method:	(MP2) Budgetary Allocation Ex	spenditure as a percentage of GDP
Programmes	•	Health interventions:		
Investment	•		(Lines)(a)	
GovAll	•		Hospital	
Ext	•			
Basic	•			
Basic2	•			
Capital	•	100.000		
Tactile	•	Created by:	Created by	Created date
Podo	•	Modified by:	Modified by	Modified date
Umbilical	•	Active:		
Infrastructure	•	1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	1888	2

6.1.3. Create a practice model

In ILO/HEALTH, users can explore existing models and scenarios. For this trial run, they should avoid modifying existing work done. To begin:

- → Select Models in the main menu, then in the Models menu that appears, select New.
- → Create a new model in the Model window as follows: input user's birthdate in the Code and name in the Name. In the description, enter 'Practice model'.
- → Add one scheme named Main with a population group selected from the list of available ones (created in the previous step).
- ➔ To enter a population group, type Main in the box labelled Schemes, then press the plus sign. Once Main appears in the box below, select it and press the plus sign under population groups per scheme to enable selection of population groups.
- → Save changes, select OK when the model is successfully inserted (see green validation box for reference) and go to the Global Parameters tab.



Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	Schemes:		
Institution:	TEC	Country:	Costa Rica		Schemes	+ -
Description:	Practice model				Main	
Dimen matrix:	Practice model			Population g	roups per scheme:	
Created by:	Created by		Created date			+ -
Modified by:	Modified by		Modified date			
Validated:	Active:					

Sime of	anication 1 Qu	antitative Platform	in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland		
Models Sce	nario Configu	uration			🌲 User Name 🕞 Logout
New 13 Co	py 🗊 Delete 🛛 🕏	5 Vatidata	Population Groups		×
Code	Mama	F Lier Updater - 19	Dissociated	Associated	
M01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020	Private wage earners		imes.
<u>.</u>	Test	14/10/2019	Public sector workers		
Prueba (Copy)	Prueba (Copy)	24/09/2019	Self-employed workers		
Prueba	Prueba	13/05/2019	General		Main
			Custard	- 2	
				<	
					Jation groups per scheme:
					+ -
			Create new population group?		
				Close Apply	
					Save

	1					
Institution:	TEC	Country:	Costa Rica		Schemes	+
Description:	Practice model				Main	
Dimen matrix:	Practice model			Population	roups per scheme:	
Created by:	Created by		Created date		Custard	+
Modified by:	Modified by		Modified date			
Validated:	Active:					

→ In the Global Parameters tab, create a 10-year projection period (last year of projection is nine years after the first projection year) and keep the default at 10 years of historical data. Select the Nominal-Direct option for the Salary projection type, and press Save to save the parameters.

ral Global parameters In	ut parameters Packa	ges Access Control		
r the global parameter va	lues:			
nitial projection year:	2020	•		
inal projection year:	2029	•		
Historical data:	10	•	-	
Salary projection type:	Nominal - Dire	ect		

→ Users should then go to the Input Parameters tab and in the only scheme available, choose a lifespan of 100, with active ages from 15 to 69 and save the parameters.

hoose a scheme:	Enter the parameter values:				
Main	Lifespan:	100			•
	Lower contributing age:	15	•		
	Upper contributing age:	69		•	



They should then go to the Packages tab and select the only Population group available. Select the plus sign and add the packages created during the previous steps one by one. For each package, they should input the group's minimum and maximum ages at 0 and 100, respectively, and then select Save.

ustard	Packages available:		
		Capital Tactile Podo Umbilical Infrastructure BT	
	Group initial age:	0	
			Save Cantel

➔ To validate the model, select the model name in the menu (if it is not already selected) and select the Validate tab in the Models menu (above the models). Then, choose Validate and press OK in the green pop-up box that confirms that the model has been successfully validated.

Models Sce	enario Configu	iration							💄 User	Name 🕒 Logoi
New 13 Co	ipy 🔲 Delete 😽	5 Validade								
Code	Name	Last Updated	Yalidated Y	General Global para	meters Input paramete	rs Packages	Access Control			
08081970	Name	22/07/2020	(e	Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	Schemes:		
W01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020	•	Institution	THE	Countra	Casto Rico		Schamar	66
1	Test	14/10/2019	•	in structure.	inc.	country.	Custa Nica		C.sectorites.	
rueba (Copy)	Prueba (Copy)	24/09/2019	•	Description:	Practice model				Main	
rueba	Prueba	13/05/2019								
								2		
				Dimen matrix:	Practice model			Population g	roups per scheme:	
				-	Carrier and		an ten ten a constant		Custard	•
				Created by:	User Name		22/07/2020 14:36:24			
				Modified by:	User Name		22/07/2020 14:43:38			
				Validated:	Active:					
				<u>.</u>						
									Sav	Cancel
					× va	lidate mod	lel process			
income all serve	ant to validate	the selected	model?			del accesso	E. J			

Aodels Sce	enario Configu	uration							💄 Use	er Name 🕒 Log
New 13 Co	xpy 🏦 Delete 🕠	5 Validate								
ode 👘	Name	Last Updated	Y Validated Y	General Global para	meters Input paramet	ers Packages	Access Control			
081970	Name	22/07/2020	•	Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	Schemes:		
01	Tec Model 01	25/02/2020	•	Institution:	TEC	Country	Costa Bica		Schemes	+ -
1 10 1	Test	14/10/2019	•		198					
ueba (Copy)	Prueba (Copy)	24/09/2019	•	Description:	Practice model				Main	
			d.a					d.		
				Dimen matrix:	Practice model			Population (roups per scheme:	
				Created by:	User Name		22/07/2020 14:36:24		Custard	+ -
				Modified by:	User Name		22/07/2020 14:45:36	1		
				Validated:	Active:					

6.1.4. Create a practice scenario

- ➔ To create a practice scenario, select Scenario in the main menu, and New in the Scenario menu. In the dropdown Models menu, choose the model with their name, fill in the code with the user's birthdate, use their name for Name and use 'Practice scenario' as the description. Then select Save and OK.
- → Users should then log in to the email used for registration and wait for a message that the model was successfully created. This will take a few minutes as ILO/HEALTH is assigning space for all the matrices required for the model.

els Scenario	Configuration						L User Name	G+ Los
w & Open 13	Copy 🗊 Delete 🔘 Run	Export all scenario	ompletion brief					
ode	Y Name	T Last Updated	Talculated	General Calculation Log				
idel: 2020.07.28 - N	ame			Model:	Tec Model 01			
8081970 odel: 2019.10.14 - Te	Name	31/07/2020	•	Code:	06081970	Name:	Name	
	Test	26/02/2020	•	Description:	Practice scenario			
				Created by:	User Name		28/07/2020 15:00	:08
				Modified by:	User Name		31/07/2020 16:22	:59

Modell	Name			
Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	
Description:	Practice scenario			
Created by:	Created by		Created date	
Modified by:	Modified by		Modified date	
Calculated:				
sert scenario) process		Save	Cancel
enario creatior	n posted! When finishe	ed an email will be	send to you.	

Scenario Creation | ILO/HEALTH [] D Inbox ×

ilopension@gmail.com
to me 💌
11:11
HI, User Name
Scenario creation process completed!
Status: Success.
Message: -N/A

6.2. Opening the scenario and filling in a set of matrices

For this practice run, the idea is to fill in as few matrices as possible to still be able to run the model. The objectives is to learn:

- tricks for filling in matrices;
- how to assess progress;
- how to run a scenario;
- how to navigate output matrices; and
- how to copy the scenario to create an alternative one.

For this exercise, all matrices in a new model will contain zeros. This facilitates the exercise. Although it is not a common practice, it is the way users will model a new scheme. Users may choose
to skip all the matrices, but the recommended practice is to check out and check in the matrices to ensure that the Completion brief shows an increase in the completion rate.

Also, where applicable, users should remember to perform each step for both sexes. A convenient way to check progress is to see if the Completion brief reads 100 per cent completed for all matrices. When a matrix reads 0 per cent completed in the Completion brief it means that the matrix has not been Checked Out or Checked In. When a matrix reads 50 per cent completed, the matrix needs to be filled out for both sexes.

See the example for [lact] below.

6.2.1. Filling in the contributor information

The demographic data for the previous year is key information for a running scheme because it reports the number of each type of beneficiary by sex and age, demonstrating the exposure of those populations to the risk of continuing to require benefits. The number of active and inactive contributors, by age, sex and accumulated contributions, shows the exposure to contingencies as a contribution payment or benefit demand. Basically, the section on demographic data for the base year introduces to the model all the information in section 4.1.

Located under Inputs > Contributors, the Contributors folder contains information on contributors' characteristics and transition probabilities. It also has two sub-folders with matrices that project, (a) the total covered population, and (b) the population entitled to healthcare services.

The Contributors folder has five matrices: Initial cohort of active contributors [lact], Probabilities of death [q], Disability and retirement probabilities [ret], Exit probabilities [er], and Age distribution of new entrants [ne].

6.2.1.1. Initial cohort of active contributors

For this exercise, [lact] can be kept at 0, but users need to complete the following exercise to increase the completion rate of the scenario. To do this, users should:

- → Check out and check in the matrix for males, then check the Completion brief to verify what happens when a matrix is filled out for one sex only. (Tip: If lact does not appear at the top, sort by "Completeness" by clicking on the red filter icon next to it to bring completed matrices to the top of the list.)
- → Users should fill out the matrix for females and check the Completion brief again.

Models Scenario Configuration					L User Name G Logout
ime III	[lact] Initia	al cohort of activ	e contributors	(s.q.x)	
heme: Main					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 No Sum	col) No Sum(row)	Check Out	R EXP. CSV R TO XLSX	
💼 Demographic Inputs	Sex: Male		Group:	Custard	
 Econtributor Information 		and the state of the second			
[Iact] Initial cohort of active contribu	A1:82	• fx 0			
[q] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	1	В	С		
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	1	Ace	1	.00	
[er] Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	2	rige	Value		
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant	3	.00 15	1	.00	
Total covered population projection	4	.00 16		.00	
Population entitled to health service	5	.00 17		.00	
Financial Inputs	0	.00 18		.00	
Demographic Outputs	,	.00 19	-	.00	
Einancial Outputs	0	.00 20		.80	
Administration Expansion	10	.00 21		.00	
ist of demonstrative expenses	11	00 22		00	
= List of demographic indicators per scheme of	12	00 74		- 80	
in List of Infancial indicators per scheme an	13	.00 25		00	
Report matrixes	14	.00 26		.00	
	15	.00 27		.00	
	16	.00 28	-	.00	
	17	.00 29		.00	
	18	.00 30		.00	
	19	.00 31		.00	
	20	.00 32		.00	
	21	.00 33		.00	
	22	.00 34		.00	
	23	00 35		001	

A1:B2		fx = 0	
	A	в	С
1			.00
2	A	je.	Value
3	.00	15	.00
4	.00	16	.00
5	.00	17	.00
6	.00	18	.00
7	.00	19	.00
8	.00	20	.00
9	.00	21	.00
10	.00	22	.00
11	.00	23	.00
12	.00	24	.00
13	.00	25	00:
14	.00	26	.00
15	.00	27	.00
16	.00	28	.00
17	.00	29	.00
18	.00	30	.00
19	.00	31	.00
20	.00	32	.00
21	.00	33	.00
22	.00	34	.00
23	00	35	00

Code 🍼	Name	Checkout Qty 🔻	Checkout by Me 🌱	Completeness 👕
Iact	Initial cohort of active contributors (s,g,x)	0	2.3	50
q	Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	0	9	0
ret	Disability and retirement probabilities (s,g,x,t)	0	0	0
er	Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	0	4	0
ne	Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t)	0	-	0
NATPOP	National Population (s,t)	0	10.	0
Partr	Participation rate (s,t)	0	.0	0
unemrate	Unemployment rate (s,t)	0	- U	0
rep	Average Replacement Rate (g,t)	0	0	0
cov	Coverage rate as a proportion of the employed labor force (s,g,t)	0	0	0
iract	Insurance rate of active contributors (s,g,x,t)	0	-0	0
irres	Insured residual active contributors as a % of insured active contributors {s,	0		0
Iinspensir	Initial insured pensioners of invalidity and retirement (s,g,x)	0	9	0
Iinspenswo	Initial insured survivor's pensioners (widows/ers and orphans) (s,g,x)	0	(Q)	0
qir	Probability of death of an insured pensioner of invalidity or retirement (s,x,t)	0	. 0.	0
famact	Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)	0	0	0
fampens	Expected number of survivors from death of a pensioners (sr,s,g,xr,x)	0	.0	0
included	Takes the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the population k of group g	0	4	0

			1.	100
di, t	 Death erobabilities (s.e.v.t)	0		0
4 ret	Disability and retirement probabilities (r. a. y.t.)	0		0
et	Cuit exclusivities (a.e. y.t)	0	10	0
24	Exit probabilities of new extrants (c.n.v.t)	0		0
IATROD	Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t)	0		0
NALEUP.	Radional Population (s,t)	0		0
rartr	Participation rate (s,t)	0		0
unemrate	Oriempioyment rate (s,t)	0		0
rep	Average replacement rate (g,t)	0		0
COV	Coverage rate as a proportion of the employed labor force (s.g.t)	0		0
iract	Insurance rate of active contributors (s,g,x,t)	0		0
irres	Insured residual active contributors as a % of insured active contributors (s,	0		0
linspensir	initial insured pensioners of invalidity and retirement (s,g,x)	0		0
linspenswo	Initial insured survivor's pensioners (widows/ers and orphans) (s,g,x)	0		0
qir	Probability of death of an insured pensioner of invalidity or retirement (s,x,t)	0		0
famact	Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)	0		0
fampens	Expected number of survivors from death of a pensioners (sr,s,g,xr,x)	0		0
included	 Takes the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the population k of group q	0		0

6.2.1.2. Probabilities of death (Mortality)

The main and most common transition probabilities for any healthcare scheme correspond to mortality. The mortality tables in all scenarios have two dimensions: time and age. ILO/HEALTH will alert users if the tables have any negative values or death probabilities greater than 100 per cent. It is expected that the probability of death at the maximum age is 100 per cent. Where mortality does not reach 100 per cent, there is no effect as all survivors up to this age will exceed the maximum age limits of the model, thus technically applying a 100 per cent death probability.²⁹

 $^{\rm 29}$ For the example, the mortality of active contributors is calculated as follows:

- $q(x) = 0.098 \left[1 \frac{ln(1+(0.8+t*0.001)x)}{ln(80+0.1t)} \right] + e^{(12+0.06t) \left(\frac{x}{100}-1\right)} \text{ for male}$
- $q(x) = 0.089 \left[1 \frac{ln(1+(0.7+0.001t)x)}{ln(70+0.1t)} \right] + e^{\left(\frac{x}{100} 1\right)(14+0.05t)}$ for female

For most matrices in this section, users will learn a simple trick to export and import matrices so they can work on them in external programmes. This consists of selecting the matrix, exporting it as a csv file, modifying it in an external programme and then importing the csv file.

- → Select the matrix [q] and export the csv using "Exp. CSV". Once the csv has downloaded, open it and save it as "mort_male.csv" in a folder that reserved for files of the model.
- → Open the file and go to cell C2. In the formulas menu (or right click menu), select "Define name", and name the cell as Base_y. In cell C3, write the following formula:

=0.098*(1-LN(1+(0.8+(C\$2-Base_y)*0.001)*\$B3)/LN(80+(C\$2-Base_y)*0.1)) +EXP((12+(C\$2-Base_y)*0.06)*(\$B3/100-1))

- → Copy the formula into all cells of the worksheet that read 0 and save the work as a csv file. Although the programme may alert users of a potential loss of information, the csv format should still be used in this case.
- → Copy the formula in all cells of the worksheet that read 0. Save the workbook. Close Excel.
- ➔ To import these files back into ILO/HEALTH, go to matrix [q] and check that it says "Male" in the dropdown menu above. Then, check out, import csv, find the saved folder and select the file "mort_male.csv". When the green dialog box confirming that the matrix tab was imported appears, check to see that the file worked on was correctly transferred to ILO/HEALTH. Check in.

Quantitative Platform	n in Social S	ecurity / Tes	t Institution - Sw	itzerland										~
Models Scenario Configuration												1 User I	Name 🖸 🕞	Logour
ame 🔳	[q] Dea	ath proba	bilities (s,g,	x,t) (Locked	by Use	r Name)								
heme: Main *	-				-	-	-	-						
center search criteria herea	H Save	: 📯 Clear	т 📲 Сору	I No Sum(col)	···· No S	um(row)	Check In	Ø Undo	Check Out	Si Imp. CSV	🔒 Exp. CSV	to XLSX		
Sense Senser Criteria India-	Sex: 14	ale l		Group	Cistand									
Inputs	A No			o.oup.	custard									
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 	C3443		6 04											
Coverage	C3,M3		JA 0%	0		D	F		F	G	н		1	21
Contributors	1		D.		1986	00%	-	0256	0.056	0	00%	00%		
[act) minar conorc or active contribut	2	Age vs Pro	jection time	2019	~/*	0	0		0	0	0		0	0
[q] Death probabilities (s,g,X,t)	3	.00%	0		10%	.00%		00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
[rec] disabilities (a g ut)	4	.00%	1		10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	0	00%	.00%	.00%	
er) exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	5		2	.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	1	00%	.00%	.00%	
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant	6	.00%	3	.(0%	.00%		00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	7	.00%	4		10%	.00%		00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
Contribution rates and average contrib	8	.00%	5		0%	.00%		.00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
Population entitled to health services p	9	.00%	6	.0	10%	.00%		00%	.00%		00%	,00%	.00%	
📒 Health Expenditure	10	.00%	7		0%	.00%		00%	.00%	1	00%	.00%	.00%	
Cash benefit expenditure	11	.00%	8		W016	.00%	4	.00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
Other expenditure	12	.00%	9		0%	.00%		.00%	.00%	() ()	00%	.00%	.00%	
Costs or fees for health services	13	_00%	10		10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	1	00%	.00%	.00%	
Health utilization frequencies and cove	14	.00%	11	4	10%	.00%		00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
Goverment transferences and other re	10	.00%	12		0%	.00%	1	00%	.00%	1	00%	,00%	.00%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	10	.00%	13		0%	.00%		.00%	.00%	5	00%	.00%	.00%	
Historical information series	17	.00%	14		0%	.00%		00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
Health packages (From Configuration)	10		10		NUTRE INCOME	200%		00%	.00%	-	004	.00%	3100.	
Cuteute (Declastices	20	.00%	10	1	107e	.00%	1	00%	.00%	-	00%	.00%	.00%	
Outputs / Projections	21	.00%	17	1	10%	200%		00%	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	
	22	00%	10		10%	00%		00%	.00%		00.92	00%	00%	
	23	0075			10.00	.00%		000	.00%		000	0001	.00%	

→ Check the Completion brief.

	Aut	toSave C	ion:	* 8 6	8 5 - 1	ب گ						a mort_mal	e -										Q 🔽
Ноп	ne Insert	t Dra	w	Page Layo	ut For	mulas	Data	Review	View	♀ Tell me							-		-		년 Sha	ire 🖸	Comments
G	1 × X	Calibri	(Bod)	a ~	12 ~	A' A'	Ξ	= 🗐	187 v	왕 Wrap Text	w.	General			-	-	-	· .	8-1	Σ.	Â۵.	0-	4
Pas	te 🦪	B 1	Ш	• 🖽 •	Ø -	<u>A</u> -	Ŧ	= =	22 22	🔠 Merge &	Senter v	\$ * %	9 500	-81	Conditional Formatting	I Format as Table	Cell Styles	insert De	lete Format	0.	Sort & Filter	Find & Select	Ideas
C2	¢)	C Y	fx :	2019																			
	Α	в	c	0		E	E.	6	н	1	1	ĸ	- L)	м	N	0		q	R	5.	т	U	V
1 Ag	e vs Projection	n time	_	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	100	D								
2			-	Cut			ЖX	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	202	9								
1	0	1		Copy			ЖC	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
5	ő	2		Paste			¥€V	0	0	0	0	0	0	-	ġ.								
6	0	3		Paste Sp	pecial			0	0	0	0	0	0		ġ.								
7	0	- 4						0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
8	0	5		Smart L	ookup	(S	· THE	0	0	a	0	0	0		0								
2	0	6		Thesaur	rus	- 8	7、第8	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
10	0			Transa -				0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
12	0	0	-	insert				0		0	0	0	0	-	n l								
13	0	50		Delete	:X			0	0	0	0	0	0	-	n								
14	0	11		Clear Co	ontents			0	0	0	0	0	0	- 1	0								
15	0	12		Tillion				0	0	0	0	0	0	- 1	0								
16	0	13		Filter				0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0								
17	0	14		Sort			•	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
18	0	15		New Co	mment			0	0	0	0	0	0		D								
19	0	16		New No	dinitient.			0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0								
20	0	\$7		HEW NO	48.			0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
21	0	18	-	Format	Ceils)任1	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
72	0	19		Pick Ero	m Dron-r	down Lis	at in the second	0		0	0	0	0		0								
34	0	21		Define A	Jama		ALCO .	6	0	0	0	0	0	- 1	'n								
25	0	22		Huporlin	ak.		5612	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
26	0	23		utyperm	1Kerr		9614	0	0	0	0	0	0	1	0								
27	0	24		Import I	mage			0	Ó	0	0	0	0		0								
28	0	25		. M		- W-		0	.0	0	0	0	0		0								
29	0	26		D	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		D								
30	0	27		D	0	0	0	0	0	d	0	0	0		0								
31	0	28		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
34	0	29		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0								
		30				0	U	0	0	U	0		0										
ei Ré	adv	maie	+																	四 -	_	_	+ 100%



Hom	e Inser	t Dra	w Page	Layout F	ormulas	Data	Review	View	7 Tell me					
ß	~ <u>X</u>	Calibr	i (Body)	¥ 12	• A- A-	Ξ 3		®∕ •	80. Wrap Tex	t v	General		*	
Past	- L <u>B</u> -	B 1	<u>v</u> • 1	H • 🔗	• <u>A</u> •	₩ 1	1	83	📴 Merge &	Center v	\$ * %	• ***	- <u>0</u> 8	Condition
C3	\$	<. V.	fx =0.098	*(1-LN(1+(0	8+(C\$2-Base	_y)*0.001)*\$B3}/LN	(80+(C\$2-B	ase_y)*0.1)) -	+EXP{(12+(C\$2-Base_y)	*0.06)*(\$B3	/100-1))	î.
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	H	1	Ĵ.	К	1	м	N
Age	vs Projectio	n time	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
1			2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	202	19
	0	0	0.09800614	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0.
<u>.</u>	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
9	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	6	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0
<u>i</u>	0	7	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0
1	ő	ŝ	0	0	0	0	ő	0	0	õ	0	0		0
	0	9	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
3	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
1	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Û		0
	0	12	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
5	0	13	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
7	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
E .	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
F	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
2	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
5	0	18	Ø	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
Ŋ	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
<u> </u>	0	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
- 1	0	22	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
-	0	24	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	25	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0
	0	28	0	0	0	0	ő	ő	0	0	0	0		0
2	ő	29	0	0	ő	0	ő	0	0	ő	0	0		0
3	0	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0		0

0 6	• • •		1 223 ^	86.4	ب ⊺ي ∽ د									
Hom	e Inser	t Dra	w Page	Layout	Formulas	Data	Review	View	🖓 Tell me	ł				
P	I Day	Calib	i (Body)	× 12	~ A^	A⁻ Ξ		n v	👸 Wrap T	ext ~	General		×	
Past	e 3	В	l <u>N</u> ∗	⊞ • •	Ø - ▲ -	Ŧ	= =	12 12	Merge	& Center ~	\$ * 9	6 9 1	0 00 00	Conditio Formetti
СЗ.	÷	6 . V.	fx =0.09	98*(1-LN(1+	(0.8+(C\$2-B	ase_y)*0.00	01)*\$B3)/LM	v(80+(C\$2-8	ase_y)*0.1)) +EXP((12+	(C\$2-Base_)	/)*0.06)*(\$8	33/100-1))	
	A	в	C	D	E	- F	G	н	1	1	. K	L	м	N
Age	e vs Projectio	n time	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0)
			2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	1
	0	0	0.09800514	0.09800579	0.09800545	0.09800513	0.09800483	0.09800455	0.09800429	0.09800404	0.0980038	0.09800358	0.09800337	
	0	1	0.08486162	0.08485255	0.08484351	0.0848345	0.08482551	0.08481655	0.08480762	0.08479871	0.08478983	0.08478097	0.08477213	1 C.
	0	2	0.07663868	0.07662713	0.07661562	0.07660414	0.0765927	0.0765813	0.07656992	0.07655858	0.07654726	0.07653598	0.07652472	1
	0	3	0.07064019	0.07062778	0.0706154	0.07060307	0.07059078	0.07057852	0.0705663	0.07055412	0.07054197	0.07052985	0.07051777	
	0	4	0.06591558	0.06590289	0.06589025	0.06587765	0.06586509	0.06585257	0.0658401	0.06582766	0.06581527	0.0658029	0.06579058	š
	0	5	0.0620176	0.05200489	0.06199223	0.06197962	0.06196706	0.06195454	0.06194207	0.06192964	0.06191724	0.06190489	0.06189258	s
	0	6	0.05869975	0.05868714	0.05867459	0.05866209	0.05864965	0.05863725	0.05862489	0.05861259	0.05860032	0.0585881	0.05857592	
5	0	/	0.05581165	0.05579921	0.05578682	0.05577449	0.05576222	0.05574999	0.05573782	0.05572569	0.05571361	0.05570158	0.05568959	
	0	8	0.05325479	0.05324252	0.05323032	0.05321818	0.0532061	0.05319408	0.05318211	0.05317019	0.05315832	0.05314649	0.05313472	
	0	9	0.05096107	0.05094899	0.05093698	0.05092504	0.05091316	0.05090134	0.05088957	0.05087785	0.05085521	0.0508546	0.05084304	
	0	10	0.04888149	0.04886959	0.04685777	0.04884602	0.04883433	0.04682271	0.04681115	0.048/9904	0.048/882	0.04877681	0.04876547	- P
-	0	11	0.04697962	0.04696788	0.04693623	0.04694466	0.04693313	0.04692171	0.04891034	0.04083304	0.04688779	0.0468766	0.04686547	-
1	0	12	0.04360271	0.04350726	0.04358080	0.04356961	0.04315170	0.0431703	0.0431395	0.04353530	0.04313711	0.04312011	0.04349281	1
2	0	14	0.043000371	0.04333220	0.04336069	0.04330501	0.043035941	0.04303473	0.043033020	0.04302323	0.04200233	0.04199166	0.04198105	
	0	15	0.04067443	0.04066315	0.04065198	0.04205007	0.04062993	0.04061904	0.04060825	0.04059754	0.04200233	0.04057637	0.0405659	
	0	16	0.03934361	0.03933237	0.03932125	0.03931024	0.03929933	0.03928852	0.03927782	0.0392672	0.03925668	0.03924623	0.03923587	
	0	17	0.03808867	0.03907744	0.03806634	0.03805536	0.0380445	0.03803374	0.03802309	0.03801255	0.03800209	0.03799173	0.03798146	
8	0	18	0.03690166	0.03689041	0.0368793	0.03685832	0.03685747	0.03684673	0.03683611	0.0368256	0.03681519	0.03680489	0.03679468	Č.
1	0	19	0.03577585	0.03576455	0.03575339	0.03574237	0.0357315	0.03572075	0.03571012	0.03569962	0.03568923	0.03567894	0.03566877	
	0	20	0.03470552	0.03469411	0.03468287	0.03457178	0.03466084	0.03465005	0.03463938	0.03462885	0.03461844	0.03460816	0.03459798	
	0	21	0.03368574	0.03367419	0.03366282	0.03365162	0.03364058	0.0336297	0.03361896	0.03360837	0.03359791	0.03358758	0.03357737	1
	0	22	0.03271228	0.03270054	0.032689	0.03267764	0.03266646	0.03265545	0.0326446	0.0326339	0.03262335	0.03261295	0.03260267	
5	0	23	0.03178147	0.0317695	0.03175773	0.03174617	0.0317348	0.03172361	0.0317126	0.03170176	0.03169108	0.03168056	0.03167018	8
	0	24	0.03089012	0.03087785	0.03086581	0.03085399	0.03084238	0.03083097	0.03081976	0.03080873	0.03079787	0.03078719	0.03077666	5
	0	25	0.03003546	0.03002284	0.03001046	0.02999833	0.02998642	0.02997473	0.02996326	0.02995199	0.02994091	0.02993001	0.0299193	L)
	0	26	0.02921506	0.02920201	0.02918923	0.02917672	0.02916446	0.02915244	0.02914065	0.02912908	0.02911772	0.02910657	0.02909561	1
2	0	27	0.0284268	0.02841325	0.02840001	0.02838705	0.02837436	0.02836194	0.02834978	0.02833785	0.02832616	0.02831468	0.02830343	18
1	0	28	0.02766884	0.02765472	0.02764093	0.02762745	0.02761427	0.02760137	0.02758876	0.02757641	0.02756431	0.02755246	0.02754084	1
2	0	29	0.02693959	0.0269248	0.02691038	0.02689629	0.02688254	0.0268691	0.02685596	0.02684311	0.02683054	0.02681824	0.0268062	2
81	0	30	0.02623767	0.02622212	0.02620697	0.02619218	0.02617776	0.02616369	0.02614994	0.02613652	0.0261234	0.02611057	0.02609803	110 E

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfo	'H rm In Socia	al Security /	Test Instituti	on - Swita	erland									*test
Models Scenario Configuration												1 1	lser Name 🖸	Logout
Name	[a] [eath pro	babilities	(s.q.x.t	()									
Scheme: Main					-	-		-						
contor reasets criteria hores	1.1	lo Sum(col)	No Sum	s(row)	Check Out	🖹 Exp.	CSV 🗜 To >	alsx.						
Server Search childria herez	Sav				Group									
1 💼 Inputs	JEA.	wale.		- 10 I	Group.	custaru								
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 	10.00			0er										
Coverage	A1:B2	// 2/	Jx	J%5.				/1245			222	52		
Contributors		A		в	C	DOBC:	U	E	incore :	F	G	H		1
[lact] Initial cohort of active contribu	1 2	Age va	Projection til	me	2010	10%	2020	2024	.0075	2022	2023	9094	2026	3026
[q] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	3		losc n		2013	10%	00%	2021	00%	00%	2023	00%	00%	LULU
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	4		12% 1		5	10%	00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	00%	-
[er] Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	5	.0	10% 2		1	00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	i i
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant	6	.0	0% 3			00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	7	.0	02% 4		4	10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Econtribution rates and average contrib 	8	.0	0% 5		4	10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Population entitled to health services p	9	.0	00% 8			10%	.00%		.08%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	4
🕨 🚞 Health Expenditure	10	.0	0% 7		1	10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
🕨 🕮 Cash benefit expenditure	11	.0	10% 8			00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Other expenditure 	12	.0	10% 1			00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Ecosts or fees for health services 	13	.0	10% 10			10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	4
▶ 💼 Health utilization frequencies and cove	14	.0	10% 11			00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	3000.	
Goverment transferences and other re	10	.0	10% 12		1	10%	200%		00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	3
 Reserve Fund and interest rate 	17	.0	10% 13			1026	00%		00%	00%	:00%		.00%	
Historical information series	18	-1	10% 48			10%	00%		00%	00%	.00%	00%	2004	
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19		0% 18		1	10%	00%		00%	00%	00%	00%	00%	
Outputs / Projections	20		0% 17			10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
and the second s	21	.0	02% 18		1	00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
	22	.0	0% 19		1	10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
	23	0	10% 20		1	10%	00%		00%	00%	00%	10%	00%	

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	 n In Socia	il Security / Test Institu	ution - S	witzerland										*test
Models Scenario Configuration												L Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Name IB Scheme: Main	[q] D	eath probabilitie	is (s,g	(,x,t) (Locked	by User N	ame)	Check In	2 Under	hards Out	Witten (SV	A Inc. Cl	v 1 1 7 1		
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-		- copy					- Constant						
BInputs Demographic, economic and labour fo Coverage	Sex:	Male fx	•	Group:	Custard		*							
- Contributors		A	в	С	D		E		F	G		4	E	J
[Iact] Initial cohort of active contribu	1	Annua Projection		.0	0%	.00%	i	00%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
[g] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	2	viđe va i rojecion	ume.	2019	202	0	2021	2	022	2023	20	124	2025	2026
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	3	.00% 0		.0	0%	.00%	1	00%	.00%	.0	3%	.00%	.00%	-
[er] Exit probabilities (s.g.x.t)	4	.90% 1		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	3
Inel Age distribution of new entrant	5	.00% 2		.0	0%	.00%	1	00%	.00%	.0	7%	.00%	.00%	
Salaries/average and prowth rates	6	.00% 3		.0	0%	.00%	,	00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	3
Contribution rates and average contrib	4 -	.00% 4		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	9%	.00%	.00%	-
Dopulation antitled to health services p	0	.00% 5		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	
Population ended to nearbriservices p	3	.00% 6		.0	0%	00%		00%	.00%	.0	1%	.00%	.00%	4
Health Expenditure	10	.00% 7		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	J76 Nar	.00%	.00%	
Cash benefit expenditure	12	.00% 8			02	000	-	00%	.00%		776 Var	.00%	.00%	-
 Other expenditure 	13	00% 10		0	036	00%		00%	00%		146	00%	00%	
Costs or fees for health services	14	00% 11		.0	0%	00%	-	00%	00%	0	196	00%	00%	-
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	15	.00% 12			0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	
 Goverment transferences and other re 	16	.00% 13		.0	0%	.00%	-	00%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	17	.00% 14		0.	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	2%6	.00%	.00%	
Historical information series	18	.00% 15		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	9%	.00%	.00%	1
Health packages (From Configuration)	19	.00% 16		.0	0%	.00%)	00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	1
 Outputs / Projections 	20	.00% 17		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	
	21	.00% 18		.0	0%	.00%	3	00%	.00%	.0	2%	.00%	.00%	
	22	.00% 19		.0	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
	23	0.0% 20		0	0%	00%		0056	00%	.0	19m	00%	00%	and the second se

International TI O (1154)	Favorites	Today		Date Modified	- Size	Kind	-		
1101 Labour ILO/HEAL	E Setapp	- mort_female	1.CSV	Today, 11:52 AM	14 KB	CSV Document.			*test
Organization Quantitative Plat	Recents	e mort_main.c	sv	Tortay, 11:50 AM	14 KB	CSV Document			
	& Amultantions	Yesterday					200-200-	-	
Models Scenario Configuration		 Waktrough 	throug	Vesterslay, 6:03 PM	15.8 60	Micros Loocx)	👤 U:	ser Name 🛛 🔁 🕞	Logout
Ime	Documents	Walkthrough	througal Platform,5 (2).doce	Yestenday, 2029, PM	15.8 MI	Morris(.doini)			
home	Desktop	Previous 7 Days							
ierne. Main	O Downloads	S Working in I	LCI Actuarial Health TooLdocx	7/28/30, 2:66 PM	1.5 MB	Micros. Locol	Exp. CSV	XLSX	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	10 / OIT	🖬 lista para w	ekthroug doca	7/27/20, 5:36 PW	10 KB	Micros. Loocol	The state of the s		
and the second se	N	 Actualiat res 	sort-ediline and more doce	7/22/20, 6:59 AM	21 KB	Micros(.ducx)			
Inputs	Cloud	Previous 30 Days							
 Demographic, economic and labour fo. 	Cioud Drive	D LOVEALTH	Druft 1.16062020 MST	7/21/20.2.58 844	31.7 Mil	Merm Lond			
Coverage Coverage	Taox	 User manual 	LO HE., duction PART A, door	7/20/20, 4:53 PM		Micros. (.dock)			
 Contributors 	C Dive	P Rationale He	unith Manual 10062020	7/20/20 1140 FM	30.50	Micros_Lidora)	н	1.	3
[Iact] Initial cohort of active contribu.	e blue	ELO NEALTH	Craft 1_10002025_MS	2/18/20, 1/20 PM	215.2 MB	Micros(.00%	.00%	
[q] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	Yellow	D LOHEALTH	Graft 1,01062020,Mi	2/16/20 11:80 AM	31.7 AB	Micros. Loosa)	2024	2025	2026
[ret] Disability and retirement proba.	Green	Flow of Cos	t CalculaNHF Taritania.doca	7/13/20 11/63 AM	140 KB	Micros. Loom()	.00%	.00%÷	
[er] Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	Grav	P Rationals He	setth Menual AA NS 10062020	7/10/20, 4:13 P9#	33 /68	Micros (doox)	00%	.00%	
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant.		12					.00%	.00%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	Options				Ca	ncel Open	.00%	.00%	
Contribution rates and average contrib.	. 8	00% 5	00%	00% 00	16	00% 00%	6 00%	00%	
Population entitled to health services p.,	. 9	00% 0	00%	00% .00	*	00% 00%	6 .00%	00%	
Health Expenditure	10	.00% 7	.00%	.00% .00	5	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	-
Cash benefit expenditure	11	00% 8	.00%	.00% .00	56	.00% .009	.00%	.00%	
Other expenditure	12	.00% 9	.00%	.00% .00	6	.00% .009	6 .00%	.00%	
Costs or foos for boots condear	13	00% 10	.00%	.00% .00	56	.00% .009	6 .00%	.00%	
Costs of fees for feath services	14	.00% 11	.00%	.00% .00	56	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	
 Health ublization frequencies and cove 	15	.00% 12	.00%	.00% .00	%	.00% .009	6	.00%	
 Goverment transferences and other re 	16	.00% 13	.00%	.00% .00	56	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	17	.0096 14	.00%	.00% .00	%	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	
 Historical information series 	18	.00% 15	.00%	.00% .00	%	.00% .009	.00%	.00%	
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19	00% 16	.00%	.00% .00	55	.00% .009	6 .00%	.00%	
Outputs / Projections	20	.00% 17	.00%	.00% .00	56	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	
	21	.00% 18	.00%	.00% .00	%	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	
	22	.00% 19	.00%	.00% .00	56	.00% .00%	6 .00%	.00%	
	23	00% 20	00%	00% 00	16	00% 009	4 00%	00%	

mporting matrix tab proces

The matrix tab was sucessfully imported

Models Scenario Configuration									💄 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
lame	[a] D	eath probabilit	ies (s.a.x	f) (Locked by U	ser Name)						
cheme: Main	H	or 🔾 Gran	A Copy	1. No Sumfenit	ia Sum(row)	Check In Ø II	ndo Check Dut	a Imp. CSV	in City 🖪 Too	0.54	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-										
inputs	Sex	Male		Group: Custa	đ						
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 											
Coverage	A1:82	• fx	9.80061	44%							
Contributors		A	B	C	D	E	F.	G	н	1.	3
[Iact] Initial cohort of active contribu	1	Annua Perlanti	and the second	1097.94%	1093.75%	1089.61%	1085.51%	1081.44%	1077.42%	1073.43%	101
[g] Death probabilities (s.g.x.t)	2	Alle as Liciace	ALL MILLS	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	202
 [ret] Disability and retirement proba [er] Exit probabilities (s.g.x.t) 	3	107.81% 0		9.80%	9.80%	9.60%	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	
	4	93.30% 1		8.49%	8.49%	8.48%	8.48%	8.48%	8.48%	8.48%	
Inal Ana distribution of new entrant	6	84.24% 2		7.66%	7.66%	7.66%	7.66%	7.66%	7.66%	7,66%	
Salader/unrage and growth rates	6	77.64% 3		7.06%	7.06%	7.08%	7.06%	7.08%	7.06%	7.06%	
Salaries/average and growin rates	7	72.44% 4		6.59%	6.59%	6.59%	6.59%	6.59%	6.69%	6.58%	
Contribution rates and average contrib	8	68.15% 5		6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.20%	6.19%	
Population entitled to health services p	9	64.50% 6		5.87%	5.87%	5.87%	5.87%	5.86%	5.86%	5.86%	
Health Expenditure	10	61.33% 7		5.58%	5.58%	5.58%	5.58%	5.58%	5.57%	5,57%	
Cash benefit expenditure	11	58.51% 8		5.33%	5.32%	5.32%	5.32%	5.32%	5.32%	5.32%	
Other expenditure	12	55.99% 9		5.10%	5.09%	5.09%	5,09%	5.08%	5.09%	5.09%	
Costs or fees for health services	14	53.71% 10		4,89%	4,89%	4.6976	4.66%	4.65%	4.66%	4.88%	
Health utilization frequencies and cove	15	57.01% 13		4,70%	4.70%	4.70%	4.00%	4.09%	4.69%	4,00%	
Goverment transferences and other re	16	47.00% 13		4.36%	4 3850	4 36%	4.36%	4.38%	4.36%	4 36%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	17	45 24% 14		4 21%	4 25%	4 21%	4.30%	4.20%	4 30%	4 20%	
Historical information series	18	44,68% 15		4.07%	4.07%	4.07%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	
Health packages (From Configuration)	19	63,2255, 18		3.93%	3.93%	3.93%	3,93%	3.93%	3.93%	3,93%	
Outputs / Projections	20	41.84% 17		3.81%	3.81%	3.81%	3.81%	3.80%	3.80%	3.80%	
- Charles Char	21	40.53% 18		3.69%	3.69%	3.69%	3.69%	3.69%	3.68%	3.68%	
	22	39.29% 19		3.58%	3.58%	3.58%	3.57%	3.57%	3.57%	3.57%	
	23	38.12% 20		3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.46%	

OK

➔ Users should repeat the process for females, click Save As, and save the worksheet as "mort_female.csv". Modify the formula in the cell C3 to become:

```
=0.089*(1-LN(1+(0.7+(C$2-Base_y)*0.001)*$B3)/LN(70+(C$2-Base_y)*0.1))
+EXP((14+(C$2-Base_y)*0.05)*($B3/100-1))
```

- → Copy it into all cells of the worksheet that read 0. Save the workbook. Close Excel.
- → To import these back into ILO/HEALTH, go to matrix [q] and check that it says "Female" in the dropdown menu above. Then, check out, import csv, find the saved folder and select the file "mort_female.csv". When the green dialog box confirming that the matrix tab was imported appears, check to see that the file worked on was correctly transferred to ILO/HEALTH. Check in.
- → Check the Completion brief.

	ame Inc	ert Or	Dame	L mout	Formulae	Data	Davian	Mienn	O Tall me					
	ome insi	ert Dr	aw Page	r Laybut	Formulas	Liata	REVIEW	VIEW	A ten me					
	<u>h</u> .	Calib	ri (Body)	~ 12	~ A^	A' =	高量目	187 v	説 Wrap T	ext ~	General		1.4	H
7	Paste III -	В		E •	5 - <u>A</u> -		# #	13 II	🔝 Merge	& Center ~	5 - 9		8 - 28	Conditie Formati
c3	÷.	$\times \checkmark$	fx =0.08	89*(1-LN(1+	(0.7+(C\$2-B	ase_y)*0.00	01)*\$B3)/LM	(70+(C\$2-B	ase_y)*0.1)) +EXP((14+	C\$2-Base_y)*0.05)*(\$B	3/100-1))	
	A	В	c	P	F	F	6	H	- E	3	ĸ	1	M	
	Age vs Project	tion time	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
			2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	
8	0	0	0.08900083	0.08900079	0.08900075	0.08900072	0.08900068	0.08900065	0.08900052	0.08900059	0.08900056	0.08900053	0.0890005	
	0	1	0.07788504	0.07787641	0.0778678	0.07785919	0.07785059	0.077842	0.07783342	0.07782485	0.07781629	0.07780774	0.0777992	
	0	2	0.07066126	0.07064993	0.0706386	0.0706273	0.07061601	0.07060474	0.07059348	0.07058223	0.07057101	0.07055979	0.07054859	
	0	3	0.06529998	0.06528763	0.06527529	0.06526298	0.06525068	0.0652384	0.06522614	0.0652139	0.06520167	0.06518947	0.06517728	
	0	4	0.05103505	0.06102235	0.05100967	0.06099701	0.06098436	0.05097174	0.06095914	0.06094656	0.060934	0.06092146	0.05090894	
	0		0.05749337	0.05748062	0.05746789	0.05745519	0.05744251	0.05742985	0.05741721	0.05740459	0.057392	0.05737943	0.05736688	
	0	0	0.05446485	0.05445221	0.0544396	0.05442701	0.05441444	0.0544019	0.05438938	0.05437688	0.0543644	0.05435195	0.05433952	
	0		0.05181946	0.05180702	0.051/946	0.05178221	0.05176984	0.051/5/49	0.05174517	0.05173287	0.05172059	0.05170854	0.05169611	
	0	0	0.04947109	0.04945889	0.049446/1	0.047234	0.04942243	0.04941032	0.04939824	0.04938618	0.04937414	0.04930213	0.04935014	
	0	10	0.04733370	0.04543032	0.04541867	0.047324	0.04539544	0.04730023	0.04537232	0.04727007	0.0472049	0.04723313	0.04532636	
	0	11	0.0436853	0.0436739	0.04366252	0.04365116	0.04353983	0.04362853	0.04361725	0.043606	0.04359477	0.04358356	0.04357238	
3	0	17	0.04206475	0.0420536	0.04204249	0.0420314	0.04202034	0.0420093	0.04199829	0.04198731	0.04197635	0.04196541	0.0419545	
1	0	13	0.04056077	0.04054988	0.04053903	0.0405282	0.0405174	0.04050663	0.04049588	0.04048516	0.04047446	0.04046379	0.04045314	
1	0	14	0.03915776	0.03914713	0.03913652	0.03912594	0.0391154	0.03910487	0.03909438	0.03908391	0.03907347	0.03906305	0.03905266	
5	a	15	0.03784306	0.03783266	0.0378223	0.03781196	0.03780165	0.03779138	0.03778112	0.0377709	0.0377607	0.03775053	0.03774039	
1	0	16	0.03660625	0.03659608	0.03658594	0.03657584	0.03656576	0.03655572	0.0365457	0.03653571	0.03652574	0.03651581	0.0365059	
1	0	17	0.03543867	0.03542872	0.0354188	0.03540891	0.03539906	0.03538923	0.03537943	0.03536967	0.03535993	0.03535021	0.03534053	
ij	0	18	0.03433304	0.0343233	0.03431358	0.0343039	0.03429425	0.03428463	0.03427504	0.03426549	0.03425596	0.03424646	0.03423699	
6	0	19	0.03328319	0.03327363	0.03326411	0.03325462	0.03324516	0.03323574	0.03322635	0.03321699	0.03320766	0.03319836	0.03318909	
1	0	20	0.03228383	0.03227445	0.0322651	0.03225579	0.03224651	0.03223727	0.03222806	0.03221889	0.03220975	0.03220063	0.03219155	
ij	0	21	0.03133041	0.03132119	0.031312	0.03130285	0.03129374	0.03128467	0.03127563	0.03126662	0.03125765	0.03124872	0.03123981	
5]	0	22	0.03041898	0.0304099	0.03040086	0.03039186	0.0303829	0.03037398	0.03036509	0.03035625	0.03034744	0.03033866	0.03032992	
5	0	23	0.02954611	0.02953715	0.02952824	0.02951937	0.02951055	0.02950176	0.02949302	0.02948431	0.02947564	0.02946701	0.02945842	
	0	24	0.02870878	0.02869993	0.02869113	0.02868237	0.02857366	0.028665	0.02865637	0.02864779	0.02863925	0.02863075	0.02862229	
ĘĮ,	O	25	0.02790434	0.02789558	0.02788687	0.02787821	0.0278696	0.02786103	0.02785251	0.02784404	0.02783561	0.02782722	0.02781887	
1	0	26	0.02713046	0.02712176	0.02711312	0.02710453	0.027096	0.02708751	0.02707908	0.02707069	0.02706235	0.02705406	0.02704581	
1	0	27	0.02538506	0.02637641	0.02636781	0.02635928	0.0263508	0.02634237	0.026334	0.02632568	0.02631741	0.0263092	0.02630102	
	0	28	0.02566632	0.02565768	0.0256491	0.02564059	0.02563215	0.02562376	0.02561543	0.02560715	0.02559894	0.02559077	0.02558266	
	0	29	0.0249726	0.02496395	0.02495537	0.02494686	0.02493841	0.02493003	0.02492172	0.02491347	0.02490527	0.02489714	0.02488906	
1	0	30	0.02430246	0.02429377	0.02428515	0.02427661	0.02426814	0.02425975	0.02425142	0.02424316	0.02423497	0.02422684	0.02421877	

Construction Labour Quantitative Platform	l n in Soci	al Security / Test Institution -	Switzerland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration								💄 Us	er Name 🕞	Logout
ame	fa) C	Death probabilities (s.	.a.x.t)							
heme: Main		No Sumfrol)	win 🔘 check Out	EVD CSV B TO 2	0.50					
senter search criteria here>	-	and the second se		and a second second						
Inputs	Sex:	Female	Group: Cust	ard	*					
Coverage	A1:82	• fx 8.90	000832%							
Contributors	Sing	A B	c	D	E	F	G	н	E	3
Ilact Initial cohort of active contribu.	1	grading strain gas	953.76%	967.18%	958.67%	955.06%	953.53%	957.02%	948.52%	94
[] [n] Death probabilities (s.o.x.t)	2	Age vs Projection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	3	97.90% 0	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	
[[ar] Evit probabilities (r. e.v. t)	4	85.63% 1	7.79%	7.79%	7.79%	7.79%	7.79%	7.78%	7.78%	
[er] Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	5	77.67% 2	7.07%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	
Inel Age discribution of new entranc	6	71.76% 3	6.53%	6.53%	6.53%	6.53%	6.53%	6.52%	6.52%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	7	87.07% 4	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	
Contribution rates and average contrib	8	63.17% 5	5.75%	5.75%	5.75%	5.75%	5.74%	5.74%	5.74%	
Population entitled to health services p	9	59.84% 6	5.45%	5,45%	5.44%	5.44%	5.44%	5.44%	5.44%	
Health Expenditure	10	56.93% 7	5.38%	5.18%	5.18%	5.18%	5,18%	5.18%	5.17%	
Cash benefit expenditure	11	54.35% 8	4.95%	4.95%	4.94%	4.94%	4.94%	4,94%	4.94%	
Cther expenditure	12	52.03% 9	4,74%	4.73%	4.73%	4.73%	4,73%	4,73%	4.73%	
Costs or fees for health services	13	49.92% 10	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	
Health utilization frequencies and cove	14	47.99% 11	4.37%	4.37%	4.37%	4,37%	4,36%	4.36%	4.36%	
Goverment transferences and other re	15	46.21% 12	4.21%	4.21%	4.20%	4.20%	4.20%	4,20%	4.20%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	10	44.56% 13	4.06%	4.05%	4.05%	4.05%	4,05%	4.05%	4.05%	
Historical information series	1/	41.02% 14	3.92%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	
Health packages (From Configuration)	10	41.5/% 10	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	
Outputs (Designations	20	40.27% 16	3,66%	3.00%	3.66%	3.86%	3.66%	3.66%	3.65%	
outputs / Projections	21	30.83% 17	3.54%	3.55%	3.59%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	
	22	37.71% 18	3,43%	3,43%	3.4379	3.43%	3,4376	3,43%	3,9379	
	23	30,00% 10	3.53% 9.558	3.33%	3.33%	0.00%	5 000	3.52 %	3.000	

6.2.1.3. Retirement probabilities

Retirement probabilities are as follows: for age 55, it is 1 per cent. This percentage doubles for every age up to 60. From 61 to 64, it remains constant at the same level as at 60. From 65 to 68, it is again constant at double that of 64. At age 69, it is a 100 per cent.

→ Fill in the matrices for retirement probabilities [ret] for both sexes in the same way as above.

International Labour Organization Ulto/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	 n in Soc	ial Security / Te	st Institu	ition - S	witzerland										*test
Models Scenario Configuration													1 0	ser Name 🛛 🕞	Logout
Name	fret	l Disability a	ind ret	lireme	ent probabiliti	es (s.c	xt) (Lock	ed by Use	r Name)	2					
Scheme: Main				10000000		1- (-18	,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,					_			
	н	Save 💁 Clea	n 📲	Copy	No Sum(col)	No	o Sum(row)	Check In	🖉 Undo Che	ick Cut	🏄 Imp. CSV	🖹 Exp. C	ам 📑 То	XLSX	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	- 10	10	1			10 A				- ^ ^					
in Inputs	Sex:	Male			Group:	Custard	8	1.0							
Demographic, economic and labour fo															
🕨 🖮 Coverage	C43		fx	1%											
 Contributors 		A		в	с		D	E	1		G	1	н	1	J
[Iact] Initial cohort of active contribu	1	Age as Pr	viention	time	7,0	X2%:	.00%		056	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.0056	
[g] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	2	Age to 11	ojeceusi	Gentle.	2019		2020	2021	20	22	2023	21	124	2025	2026
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	37	.009	49			0%	.00%		0%	00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	j
[er] Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	38	.009	5 50			10%	.00%		0%	00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant	39	.009	6 61		1	10%	.00%	.(0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	40	.009	5 52			10%	.00%		0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Contribution rates and average contrib	41	.009	53			X0%-	.00%		0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Population entitled to health services p	42	.009	5 54			10%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Health Expenditure	43	1.009	6 66		1%		.00%	.(0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	104
Cash benefit expenditure	44	.009	5 56),	10%	.00%		0%	.00%	,0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Other excenditure	45	.00%	6 57			10%	.00%	.(0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	9
Costs or fees for health services	46	.009	5 58		۱.	10%	.00%		0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
Health utilization frequencies and cove	47	.009	59			10%	.00%		0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	1
Generment transferences and other re	40	.00%	5 60			10%	.00%		U7e	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	- 6
Becapia Sund and interact rate	50	.009	6.82		1	Vik	00%		096	00%	.0	0 M	00%	00%	
Interest rate Interest rate	51	.005	6 83		10	0%	.00%	1	0%	00%	0	D'N-	.00%	00%	
Health packages (From Configuration)	52	.003	64			10%	.00%		0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	00%	
Outputs / Prelastians	53	.009	6 65			0%	.00%	.(0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	
outputs / Projections	54	.009	66			20%	.00%		0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%)
	65	.069	67		l.	10%	.00%	.(0%	.00%	.0	0%	.00%	.00%	5
	56	.009	68			0%	.00%		0%	.00%	0	0%	.00%	.00%	

[ret] Disability and retirement probabilities (s,g,x,t) (Locked by User Name)

H s	ave 💁 Clear	🗴 🧃 Сору	No Sum(col)	No Sum(row)	O Check In O U	ido Check Out	🔏 Imp. CSV 🔹	Exp. CSV 🛛 🛃 To :	KLSX	
Sex:	Male	*	Group: Custa	ird	*					
:44		fx =2*C4	3							
	A	в	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
		formation attended	3.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	_00%	
	Age vs Pro	Jection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
3	.00%	40	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
-	.00%	49	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	50	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
2	,00%	51	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	52	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	53	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
8	.00%	54	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	1.00%	55	1.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	2.00%	56	=2* <u>C43</u>	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	57	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	58	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	59	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	60	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
9	.00%	81	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
1	.00%	62	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	63	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	64	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	65	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	.00%	66	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
5	.00%	67	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
B.	.00%	68	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	

[ret]	Disability ar	nd retirement	probabilities (s,	.g,x,t)						
E N	io Sum(col) 🛛 ++	• No Sum(row)	⊙ Check Out 📔 🔒 E	ixp. CSV 🛃 To)	alsx					
Sex:	Male		Group: Custa	ird						
A1:82		fx Age vs P	rojection time							
	A	в	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Ann un Den	antina tina	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.
2	Age vs Froj	ection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
38	00%	40 E0	00%	005	.00.8	00%	00%	00%	00%	1
30	.00%	50		.00%	.00%	00%	0071	0015	00%	
40	.0054	52	0.05	005	.0076	.00%	0.0076	00%	.00%	
41	00%	-53	00%	00%	00%	00%	0.026	0.016	00%	
42	00%	54	00%	00%	00%	00%	00%	0.056	00%	-
43	11 (105)	48	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	a
44	22.00%	55	2.00%	2.005	2.00%	2,00%	3.00%	2.00%	2.00%	
45	44 (20%)	50	4.00%	4.00%	4 00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4
46	88.00%	58	8.00%	8 00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8
47	176.00%	59	16.00%	16 00%	16.00%	16.00%	16 00%	16.00%	16.00%	16
48	352.00%	60	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32
49	352.00%	61	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32
50	352.00%	62	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32
51	352.00%	63	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32
52	352.00%	64	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32
53	704.00%	65	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.
54	704.00%	66	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.
55	704.00%	67	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.
56	704.00%	68	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64
57	1100.0084	50	100.00%	100.0054	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0016	100.00%	100

[ret] Disability and retirement probabilities (s,g,x,t)

1.1	No Sum(col) *** No Sum(row)	🖲 Check Out 🖹 E	xp. CSV 🗜 To	XLSX					
Sex:	Female	Group: Custa	rd	*					
A1:B2	▼ fx Age vs	Projection time							
1	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Ann un Beninntinn time	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547.00%	547
2	Age vs Projection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
38	.00% 50	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
39	.00% 51	.00%	.00%	.00%	,00%	,00%	.00%	.00%	
10	.00% 52	,00%	,00%	.00%	.00%	,00%	.00%	.00%	
и	.00% 53	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.0D%	.00%	.00%	
12	.00% 54	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
13	11.00% 55	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	1.00%	
14	22.00% 56	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%	2.00%	1
15	44.00% 57	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	4.00%	1
16	88.00% 58	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	,
7	176.00% 58	16.00%	16.00%	16.00%	16.00%	16.0D%	16.00%	16.00%	:1
18	352.00% 60	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	33
19	352.00% 61	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	33
50	352.00% 62	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	3
i1	352.00% 63	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	33
12	352.00% 64	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	32.00%	33
13	704.00% 65	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64
54	704.00% 66	64.00%	64:00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64
55	704.00% 67	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64,00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64
56	704.00% 68	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64.00%	64
57	1100.00% 69	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100

6.2.1.4. Exit rate

The exit rate [er] is a constant 30 per cent for all sexes and ages over the entire projection.

→ Fill in the matrices for an exit rate [er] of 30 per cent for both sexes.

Labour Organization ULO/HEALT	H m in Socia	l Security / Tes	t Institution - Sw	Itzerland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration									💄 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Name I	ferl E	Exit probab	ilities (s.a.x.	t)							
icheme: Main			verality	· · · · · ·							
	. E. N	lo Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)	🔘 Check Out 🛛 🛍 E	xp. CSV 📑 To	XLSX					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-										
inputs .	Sex:	Male		Group: Custa	rd						
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 											
Coverage	A1:82		fx 30%								
 Contributors 		A	в	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
Iact Initial cohort of active contribu	1		A COMPANY AND A	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650
[0] Death probabilities (s.g.x.t)	2	Age vs Pro	ojection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	3	240.00%	15	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
[er] Exit probabilities (s.g. x.t)	4	330.00%	16	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
Inel Are distribution of new entrant	5	330.00%	17	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
Esigner (merane and arouth rates	6	330.00%	18	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30,00%	30.00%	30
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	330.00%	19	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
Contribution rates and average contrib	8	330.00%	20	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
 Population endued to realth services p 	9	330.00%	21	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	-30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
 Health Expenditure 	10	330.00%	22	30.00%	3D.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
Cash benefit expenditure	12	220.00%	23	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	20.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
 Other expenditure 	13	220.00%	25	30.00%	30.00 %	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
Costs or fees for health services	14	230.00%	26	30.00%	30.00%	30,00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
Health utilization frequencies and cove	15	330.005	27	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
 Goverment transferences and other re 	16	330.00%	28	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
 Reserve Fund and interest rate 	17	330.00%	29	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
 Historical information series 	18	330.00%	30	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30,00%	30.00%	30.
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19	330.00%	31	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30,
Cutputs / Projections	20	330.00%	32	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
	21	330.00%	33	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.
	22	330.00%	34	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
	23	330.00%	35	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30

iex: Fi	emale		.*	Group: Custa	ard	*					
1:82		fx	30%								
1	A		В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	٦
	Age vs Pr	olectio	n time	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	1650.00%	165
2	1987-00010		2020.022	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
3	330.009	6 15		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30
L.	330.009	\$ 16		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	34
5	330,009	6 17		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
0	330,009	6 18		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
t.	330.009	6 19		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
B	330.009	6 20		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	- 3
¥.	330.009	6 21		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
0	330.009	6.22		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
1	330.009	6 Z3		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
2	330.009	6 24		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
3	330.009	6 25		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
4	330.009	6 26		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
5	330,009	6 27		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
6	330.009	6 28		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
7	330.009	6 29		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
8	330.009	6 30		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
9	330.009	6 31		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
0	330.009	6 32		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3
1	330.009	6 33		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30:00%	30.00%	3
2	330.009	6 34		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3/
3	330 009	35		30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	30.00%	3

6.2.1.5. New entrants

The final matrix to fill in this section is the age distribution of new entrants [ne]. The distribution will be the same for male and female: in the shape of a beta distribution with parameters alpha = 4 and beta = 20.

➔ To do this, export the matrix to a csv file and then save it to a folder with a name such as "entrydist.csv". Then open the file and paste the formula below in all cells that have 0:

=BETA.DIST(\$B3,4,20,TRUE,14,69)-BETA.DIST(\$B3-1,4,20,TRUE,14,69) in the cell C3.

→ Import the series as a csv file for the matrix [ne] for male and female.

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	- n in Social	Security / Test Ins	titution - Swit	zerland							*tes
Models Scenario Configuration									L Us	er Name 🖸 🕞	Logout
Name	[ne]/	ae distributio	n of new e	entrants (s.g.x.t)						
icheme: Main						_					
	1 N	o Sum(col) ···· N	o Sum(row)	Check Out	Exp. CSV 🛃 To.	XLSX					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>			_	1.1.1							
inputs	Sex:	Male		Group: Cust	ard						
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 											
Coverage	A1:82	• fs	: 0%								
 Contributors 		A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1.2	- J -
Ilact Initial cohort of active contribu	1		100005	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
[0] Death probabilities (s.o. x.t)	2	Age vs Project	ion time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
[ret] Disability and retirement proba	3	.00% 15		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
[er] Evit probabilities (c.o.v.t)	4	.00% 16		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
[er] Exit probabilities (3,9,7,1)	5	.00% 17		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant	6	.00% 18		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	7	.00% 19		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Contribution rates and average contrib	8	.00% 20		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Population entitled to health services p	9	.00% 21		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Health Expenditure 	10	.00% 22		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
🕨 🗮 Cash benefit expenditure	11	.00% 23		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Ender expenditure 	12	.00% 24		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Costs or fees for health services	13	.00% 25		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Health utilization frequencies and cove	14	.00% 26		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Goverment transferences and other re	15	.00% 27		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Besone Fund and interest rate	16	.00% 28		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Historical information series	17	.00% 29		.60%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Instorical information series	18	.00% 30		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19	.00% 31		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Outputs / Projections	20	.00% 32		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	21	.00% 33		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	23	.00% 34		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
		(87% 35		CH2%	TEPS	0.2%	187%	00%	00%	107%	

	- 24					123.00.	1445338	1000 C	0			
Home	Inser	t Drav	v Page L	ayout i	Formulas	Data	Review	View	♀ Tell me			
Ph	• X	Calibri	(Body)	¥ 11	✓ A ⁺ A ⁺	Ξ :		19/ v	송) Wrap Tex	t ¥	General	
Paste	3	B I	<u>u</u> • [8- 4	~ <u>A</u> ~	≡ :	≣ ≡	E E	🔛 Merge & I	Center 🗸	\$ * %	. %
C3	\$	с v з	fx =BETA.	DIST(\$B3,4,	20,TRUE,14,6	59)-BETA.	DIST(\$B3-1	1,4,20,TRUE	(,14,69)			
	Α	ġ.	c	D	E	F	G	Ĥ.	N 17	T	ĸ	15
1 Age	vs Projectio	n time	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	Ø	0	0
2			2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029
	0	15	0.0007337	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
-	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
6	0	18	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0
8	0	20	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
2	0	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
0	0	22	0	0	Ó	٥	0	0	0	0	0	0
1	0	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
2	0	24	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
3	0	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0
-	0	26	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0
6	0	28	0	0	0	0	.0	0	0	0	0	0
7	ő	29	0	0	0	0	ő	0	0	0	0	0
8	0	30	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
9	0	31	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
0	0	32	0	0	a	0	0	0	D	0	0	0
t	0	33	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
2	0	34	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
3	0	35	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	٥
1	0	36	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	37	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
7	0	30	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0
8	0	40	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
9	0	41	0	0	0	0	ő	0	0	0	0	0
2	0	42	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0
1	0	43	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0
2	0	44	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0
	0	AC	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0

•	• • ·	toSave (10.00 🏫	86.	ა∽ of ÷						entrydi	st	
Ho	me Inse	t Dra	w Page	Layout	Formulas	Data	Review	View	♀ Tell me	6			
r		Calib	ri (Body)	× 11	~ A'	A. Ξ	=	87 v	1 Wrap T	ext v	General		
p	este 🦪	В	t ⊻ -	H • 13	X - A -	E.	≣ ≡	13 33	Merge	& Center ~	\$ ~ %	6 9 %	1
3	\$	x v	fx =BET	A.DIST(\$83,	4,20,TRUE,	14,69)-BETA	DIST(\$83-:	1,4,20,TRUE	,14,69)				
	A	Ξ.	с	D	ΞĒ.	¥	G	н	а.		ĸ	16	
1	Age vs Projectio	an time	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
			2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027	2028	2029	
	0	15	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	0.0007337	
	0	16	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	0.00816095	
	0	17	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	0.02521336	
	0	18	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	0.04755639	
	0	19	0.06946991	0.06946991	0.06946991	0.06946991	0.06946991	0.06946991	0.05946991	0.06946991	0.06946991	0.06946991	
	0	20	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	0.08670292	
	0	21	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	0.09713989	
	0	22	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	0.10049662	
	0	23	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	0.09770452	
	0	24	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	0.09030527	
	0	25	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	0.07998504	
	0	26	0.06827515	0.06827515	0.0682/515	0.06827515	0.0682/515	0.05827515	0.05827515	0.06827515	0.06827515	0.06827515	
	0	10	0.05639791	0.05639791	0.00039791	0.05639791	0.05639791	0.05639791	0.05639791	0.05639791	0.05639791	0.05639791	
	0	20	0.04521965	0.04521905	0.04521905	0.03517305	0.04521965	0.04521983	0.04521905	0.04521965	0.04521965	0.04521965	
	0	20	0.03527203	0.03527205	0.03527205	0.03527205	0.03527205	0.03527205	0.03527203	0.03527205	0.03527205	0.03527205	
a-	0	30	0.02080378	0.02080978	0.02080378	0.02000370	0.02000376	0.02080976	0.0109800	0.02080378	0.02080378	0.02000378	
		33	0.01439539	0.01439539	0.01330539	0.01439539	0.01439539	0.01439539	0.01439539	0.01439539	0.01439539	0.01439539	
	0	33	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	0.01018333	
	0	34	0.0070398	0.0070398	0.0070398	0.0020398	0.0020398	0.0070398	0.0070398	0.0070398	0.0070398	0.0070398	
	0	35	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	0.00475627	
	0	36	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	0.00314016	
	0	37	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	0.00202526	
1	0	38	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	0.0012754	
	0	39	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	0.00078372	
	0	40	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	0.00046953	
	0	41	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	0.00027398	
	0	42	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	0.00015553	
1	0	43	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	8.57638-05	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	8.5763E-05	
1	0	44	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4,5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	4.5867E-05	
3	0	45	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	2.37468-05	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	2.3746E-05	
	and the second	College States	-										

[ne] Ag	je	distri	buti	on	of	new	ent	rant	s (:	5,g,	x,t)(Loc	ked	by	User	Name)
-----	------	----	--------	------	----	----	-----	-----	------	------	------	-----	----	-----	-----	----	------	------	---

H Save	: 🕒 Clean	📲 Copy	No Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)		Undo Check Out	S Imp. CSV	Exp. CSV 🛃 To	KLSX	
Sex: Mi	ale		Group:	Custard						
A1:82		fx 0%								
	A	В	c	D	Е	F	G	н	0103	J
1	August David	alter Hann	.00	.0096	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	2
2	Age vs Proje	coon time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	.00% 1	15	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
4	.00% 1	16	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
5	.00% 1	17	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	-
6	.00% 1	18	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
7	.00% 1	19	.00	% ,00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
8	.00% 1	20	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
9	.00% 3	21	.00	%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
10	.00% 2	22	.00	%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	9
11	.00% 3	23	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
12	.00% 1	24	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
13	.00% 1	25	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
14	.00% 1	26	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	3
15	.00% 1	27	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	-
16	.00% 3	28	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
17	.00%	29	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
18	.00% 3	30	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	- 2
19	.00% 1	31	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
20	.00% 3	32	.00	%00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	i.
21	.00% 3	33	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
22	.00% 3	34	.00	% .00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
23	00% 3	35	.00	P% 00%	00%	00%	.00%	60%	.00%	

International TI O/LIFAL	Favorites	Today		Date Modified	Size	Kind			
Labour ILO/HEAL	Setapo	entrydist.c	5V	Today, 1:37-PM	6 KB	CSV Document			*test
Organization Quantitative Plat		 Walkthrout 	gh Throug Listform, 7 (2) (17, docs	Today, 12:41 PM	7.2 MB	Micros_Ldocs)			
	Recents	D- Walkthrou	gh throug Jai Platform (1) docx	Today, 12:31 PM	7.2.548	Micros_Ldocki			
Models Scenario Configuration	Applications	mort_fema	le.csv	Today, 11:52 AM	14 KB	CSV Document	1 U	ser Name 🖸	Logout
No. of Concession, Name	Th Documents	mort_male	CSV	Today, 11:50 AM	14 KB	CSV Document			
Name	Deckton	Yesterday							
Scheme: Main	(intersector)	P Walkthrou	in themes, sal Platform 5 (2) sloce	Vesterday 3:29 PM	15.8 MB	Micros (dites)			
Concernation and Concernation	C Downloads	Previous 7 Davis					S Exp. CSV 💱 To	XLSX	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	ILO / OIT	Previous / Days				AND ADDRESS OF			
 Inputs 		- Worning u	LO Actuanal Health Tool dock	7/28/20, 2:56 PM		Micros_(docx)			
Demographic economic and labour fo.	Cloud	e nata para.	calistituting docs	7/27/20, 5-35 PM	10 KB	Micros (docs)			
E Coverage	C iCloud Drive	- Accounts (come recome and more soca	(122) 20, 0-09 AM	27.83	Mic705_1,00Cd			
Contributor	Locations	Previous 30 Days					н		1.11
	(D) Mahamata	P ILO HEALT	H Draft 1,18040020;NS1	7/21/20, 2:58 PM	31/7 MB	Micros. (discs)	0.000	0094	
[lact] Initial conort of active contribu	C NECWORK	User man	INFICO HE, duction PART A, doca	7/20/20, 4:63 PM	232-NB	Microt(.docs)	2025	2026	2027
[q] Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)	Tags	P Rationale	Health Manuel_33062020	7/20/20, 1146 754	36 KB	Micros(.docx)	0.000	000	L'UR!
[ret] Disability and retirement proba.	Blue	D ILO HEALI	H Dram 1_16062020_NS	7/16/20, 1120 PM		Micros(.dobs)	00%	00%	
[er] Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)	Valleur	P ILO HEALT		7/16/20, 11:40 AM		Micros. (.docs)	00%	00%	
[ne] Age distribution of new entrant.	- TONOM						00%	00%	
Salaries/average and growth rates	Options				Can	cel Open	00%	00%	
🔸 📒 Contribution rates and average contrib.	8	.00% 20	.00%	00% .005		00% .00%	.00%	.00%	
Population entitled to health services p.	9	00% 21	.00%	00% .005		00% 00%	.00%	.00%	
Health Expenditure	10	.00% 22	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	-
Cash benefit expenditure	11	.00% 23	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	1
Cithar avpanditura	12	.00% 24	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	i.
Costs or fees for health sandcas	13	.00% 25	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	l l
Costs or rees for health services	14	.00% 26	.00%	.00% .00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	1
 Health utilization frequencies and cove. 		.00% 27	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	-
 Goverment transferences and other re. 		.00% 28	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	-
Reserve Fund and interest rate	17	.00% 29	.00%	.00% .005		.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Historical information series 	18	.00% 30	.00%	.00% .00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	1
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19	.00% 31	.00%	.00% .005		00% .00%	.00%	.00%	1
 Outputs / Projections 	20	.00% 32	.00%	.00% .009		.00%	.00%	.00%	6
	21	.00% 33	.00%	.00% .00%		00% .00%	.00%	,00%	
	22	.00% 34	.00%	.00% .00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	2
	23	00% 35	.00%	00% 00%		00% 00%	.00%	200%	

Importing matrix tab proces

2

The matrix tab was sucessfully imported

ОК

1 140	sum(col)	- No Sumpro		SKEL GAY DE TO	ALSA					
ex: N	fale	*	Group: Custa	ard						
1:82		<i>fx</i> 0.07	733701%							
1	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	1
	Age vs Pro	action time	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	10
	0.00	\$10.0000000	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
	.73%	15	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	.97%	
	8.16%	16	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	
	25.21%	17	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	
	47.56%	18	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	
	60.47%	19	6.95%	6.95%	6.95%	6.95%	6.95%	6.95%	8.95%	
	86.70%	20	8.67%	8.67%	8,67%	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	
	97.14%	21	9.71%	9.71%	9.71%	9.71%	9.71%	9.71%	9.71%	
)	100.50%	22	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	1
	97.70%	23	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	
	90.31%	24	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	
	79.99%	25	8.00%	8.00%	B.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	
	68.28%	26	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	
6 L	56.40%	27	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5.84%	5.64%	5.64%	
S	45.22%	28	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	
	35.27%	29	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	
	26.81%	30	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	
	19.88%	31	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	
2	14.40%	32	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	
	10.18%	33	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	
1	7.04%	34	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	
5	4 76%	35	48%	48%	48%	48%	48%	48%	48%	

i No	Sum(col)	••• No Sum(rov	w) 🛛 🛞 Check Out 🗍 🕏	Exp. CSV 🖪 To 🕽	il.SX					
Sex: F	emale		Group: Cus	tard	•					
A1:82		fx 0.07	733701%							
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1		a concernence	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100
2	Age vs Ph	ojection time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	.73%	6 15	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	.07%	
4	8.16%	6 16	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	.82%	
5	25.219	6 17	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2.52%	2
6	47.56%	6 18	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4.76%	4
7	69.473	6 19	6.96%	6.95%	6.95%	6.95%	6.96%	6.95%	6.95%	-6
8	86.70%	6 20	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	8.67%	8
9	97.14%	6 21	9.71%	9,71%	9.71%	9.71%	9.71%	9,71%	9.71%	9
10	100.50%	6 22	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10.05%	10
11	97.70%	6 23	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9.77%	9
12	90.319	6 24	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9.03%	9
13	79.99%	6 25	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8.00%	8
14	68.28%	6 26	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6.83%	6
15	56.403	6 27	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5.64%	5
16	45.22%	6 28	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4
17	35.27%	6 29	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3.53%	3
18	26.81%	6 30	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2.68%	2
19	19.885	6 31	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1.99%	1
20	14.403	6 32	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.44%	1.4496	1
21	10.189	6 33	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1.02%	1
22	7.04%	6 34	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	.70%	
23	4 765	6 35	48%	48%	48%	48%	48%	48%	48%	

6.2.2. Filling in the total covered population projection

All the matrices in this section can be found in the navigation tree: Inputs > Demographic, Economic and Labour force. These matrices form the key inputs (stocks) for the demographic transitions of the model (flows). ³⁰

The tootal covered population is calculated as follows:

- Inputting a projection per year of the total national population by sex for the whole projection period
- **Extracting the projected labour force from the total national population projection** by multiplying it by the participation rate for each sex and year.

TIP: Users should remember to use the participation rate calculated over the total population, which differs from the one calculated over the working age population. Users should identify which one is reported in the national statistics, calculate the one needed and review consistency.

³⁰ The link between macro projection of coverage and the single age projection of demographic groups.

• Extracting the total covered active population³¹ of a group from the labour force by multiplying it by the coverage rate by group, sex and year and discounting the unemployed portion of the labour force.³²

TIP: Coverage as active covered is calculated by group, so users should ensure that in a situation where there are multiple groups, the sum of the coverage of all groups is consistent with total coverage. Additionally, each scheme has its coverage assumptions, so users should take extra care when working in multi-scheme models.

For this exercise, the idea is to create a scenario with increasing covered population as follows:

- A population that grows 2 per cent per year over the projection period and for the first projection year is a million people in total, equally composed of male and female.
- A participation rate that is constant at 70 per cent for males but increases 5 percentage points each year for females, beginning at 40 per cent to a maximum of 70 per cent.
- The unemployment rate is 5 per cent for males and 3 per cent for females.
- The coverage rate is a little more complicated: it is the same for male and female, but is equal to 1/6th the natural logarithm of the number of projection years plus one.
- → Users should first attempt to fill in the corresponding matrices using the above information and then compare them to results from the method for filling them in described below.
- → To add a population growth rate of 2 per cent per year: Check out the matrix named National Population [NATPOP] by navigating to Input->Context: Demographic, Economic and Labour Market->Demographic->NATPOP. Users will see a box at the top indicating that this is for males in the national population. In the top cell of the matrix [C3], write in 50000. This is the starting population. In the next cell, write in the formula =1.02*[C3]. (i.e., write "=1.02*" and then select cell C3). Select the plus sign at the bottom corner of the cell and drag it to the end of the column. This enables users to input that the population grows at a rate of 2 per cent annually.
- → Check out of this matrix and repeat for the female matrix.

³¹ A positive change in the Total Covered Active Population over time means that the number of entries will equal the change and the exits from covered population in the previous period. If the change is zero, the number of entries will be reposition the exits greater or equal to zero. If the change is negative, there is a theoretical risk of negative entries. ILO/HEALTH will keep entries at zero and artificially increase the number of covered populations. If users need to adjust the total covered population to the macro projection, some changes in exit probabilities are required.

³² Unemployment rates are usually expressed as a percentage of unemployed people in the labour force, thus coinciding with the definition used in this model.

	Mo	odels Scena	ario Configurati	on											
	Nam	ne		10	[NA	[POP]	Natio	nal Pop	ulation (s,t) (Locked I	by U	ser N	Name)	
	Sche	eme: Main												0	
		<enter (<="" search="" th=""><th>riteria here></th><th></th><th></th><th>save</th><th>🚖 Clean</th><th>a cop</th><th>py : N</th><th>o sum(co</th><th>3) *** NR</th><th>a Sumi</th><th>(row)</th><th>Check In</th><th></th></enter>	riteria here>			save	🚖 Clean	a cop	py : N	o sum(co	3) *** NR	a Sumi	(row)	Check In	
		Inputs			Sex:	Male									
		E Demograp	hic, economic and la	bour fo											
		[NATPO] National Populatio	on (s,t)	C3		•	fx 50	000						
		Partr] P	articipation rate (s,t)		1.1	A		в		С					
		🗐 (unemra	te] Unemployment r	ate (s,t)	1		Projecti	on time		50	000.00				
		📕 (ggdp) I	nput Gross Domestic	Produc	2					Valu	e				
		🔳 [ggex] Ir	nput Government Exp	penditu	3	50	,000.00	2020	500	od.					
		IGDP] I	nitial Gross Domestic	Produc	4		.00	2021			.00				
		📕 [inf] Infl	ation rate expressed	as a pr	6		.00	2022			.00				
	1.00	🚞 Coverage			7		.00	2023			00				
	100	Contributo	rs		8		.00	2025			.00				
	1. H.	Salaries/av	erage and growth ra	ites	9		.00	2026			.00				
		💼 Contributio	on rates and average	contrib	10		.00	2027			.00				
	1.00	Population	entitled to health se	rvices p	11		.00	2028			.00				
	1.00	📄 Health Exp	enditure		12		.00	2029			.00				
		- cash bene	n experience	Sex: Mal	1		.*			Sex:	Male			+	
/ale														50000	
/ale		fy =1.02*	CR.	******		1.00	-1.07			A1:82		2.6	Jx	50000	
/ale	* A	fx =1.02*	c	C4:C12	* A	Jx	=1.02 B	•(3	c	1	A			8	C
/ale	A A	fx =1.02* B	C3 C 101,000.00	C4:C12	A	Jx	=1.02 B	•C3	C	1	A		_	в	C 547.4
//ale	A Proje	fx =1.02* B	C3 C 101,000.00 Value	C4:C12	A Proje	Jx ction tim	=1.02 B	•(3	C 547,486.0 Value	1 2	A Pi	ojecti	ion tim	e	C 547,4 Value
//aile	A Proje	fx =1.02* B ction time	C 101,000.00 Value 50,000.00	C4:C12 1 2 3	A Proje	Jx iction tim	=1.02 B		C 547,486.0 Value 50,000.00	5 1 2 3	A Pr 50.0	ojecti	ion tim 2020	e	C 547,41 Value 50,01
//ale	A Proje 50,000.0 51,000.0	fx =1.02* B ction time 00 2020 00 2021	C 101,000.00 Value 50,000.00 =1.02*5	C4:C12 1 2 3 4	A Proje 50,000. 51,000.	Jx inction tim 10 2020 20 2021	=1.02 B	•G	C 547,486.0 Value 50,000.0 51,000.0	5 1 2 3 4	A Pi 50,0 51,0	ojecti 00.00 00.00	ion tim 2020 2021	e	C 547,41 Value 50,01 51,01
//ale	• A Proje- 50,000.0 51,000.0	fx =1.02* B ction time 00 2020 202 2021 00 2022	C 101,000.00 Value 50,000.00 =1.02*C3 .00	C4:C12 1 2 3 4 5	A Proje 50,000 51,000 52,020	Jx action tim 00 2020 20 2021 20 2022	=1.02 B		C 547,486.0 Value 50,000.00 51,000.00 52,020.00	5 1 2 3 4 5	A Pi 50.0 51.0 52.0	rojecti 00.00 00.00 20.00	ion tim 2020 2021 2022	e	C 547,4/ Value 50,00 51,00 52,00
fale	A Proje 50,000,0 51,000,0 ,0	fx =1.02* B ction time 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 00 2022 00 2023	C 701,000.00 Value 50,000.00 =1.02*(3) .00	C4:C12 1 2 3 4 5 6	A Proje 50,000 51,000 52,020 53,060	Jx action tim 00 2020 00 2021 10 2022 40 2023	=1.02 B		C 547,486.0 Value 50,000.0 51,000.0 52,020.0 53,060.4	5 1 2 3 3 4 5 5 6	A Pi 50,0 51,0 52,0 53,0	rojecti 00.00 00.00 20.00 60.40	ion tim 2020 2021 2022 2023	e	C 547,41 Value 50,00 51,00 52,00 53,00
fale	A Proje 50,000.0 51,000.0 .0 .0	fx =1.024 B ction time 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 00 2023 00 2024 00 2024	C 101,000.00 Value 50,000.00 •1.02*C3 .00 .00 .00	C4:C12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7	A Proje 50,000 51,000 52,020 53,060 54,121	Jx ection tim 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 40 2023 51 2024	=1.02 B		C 547,486.0 Value 50,000.00 51,000.00 52,020.00 53,060.40 54,121.6	5 1 2 3 3 4 5 6 7	A Pr 50,0 51,0 52,0 53,0 54,1	rojecti 00.00 00.00 20.00 60.40 21.61	ion tim 2020 2021 2022 2023 2024	e	C 547,4 Value 50,0 51,0 52,0 53,0 54,1
fale	* A Proje: 50,000.0 51,000.0 .0 .0 .0	fx =1.024 B B ction time 0 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2023 00 2025 00 2025	C 107,000.00 Value 1.02*23 .00 .00 .00 .00	C4:C12	A Proje 50,000. 51,000. 52,020. 53,060. 54,121. 55,204.	Jx action tim 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 40 2023 51 2024 04 2025	=1.02 B		C 547,486.0 Value 50,000.0 51,000.0 53,060.4 54,121.6 55,204.0	5 1 2 3 4 5 5 6 7 8	A Pi 50,0 51,0 52,0 53,0 54,1 55,2	rojecti 00.00 00.00 20.00 60.40 21.61 04.04	ion tim 2020 2021 2022 2023 2023 2024 2025	e	C 547,4/ Value 50,00 51,00 52,00 53,00 54,12 55,20
/ale	* A Proje- 50,000.0 51,000.0 .0 .0 .0	fx =1.024 B 8 ction time 90 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 00 2023 00 2024 00 2025 00 2026 00 2026	C 701,000.00 Value =1.02*© .000 .00 .00 .00 .00	C4:C12	A Proje 50,000. 51,000. 52,020. 53,060. 54,127. 55,204. 56,204.	Jx action tim 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 40 2023 51 2024 04 2025 12 2026	=1.02 B		C 547,486.00 Value 50,000.00 51,000.00 52,020.00 53,060.40 54,121.6 55,204.04 55,204.04	5 1 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 9	A Pi 50,0 51,0 52,0 53,0 54,1 55,2 56,3	rojecti 00.00 20.00 60.40 21.61 04.04 08.12	2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026	e	C 547,41 Value 50,00 51,00 52,00 53,00 54,10 55,20 55,20 56,30
/aie	* A Proje 50,000,0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	fx =1.024 B B ction time 0 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2022 00 2024 00 2025 00 2026 00 2028	C 707,000.00 Value 1.02*C 0.00	C4:C12 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	A Proje 50,000 51,000 52,020 53,060 54,121 85,204 56,308 57,434	Jx action tim 00 2020 00 2021 00 2022 40 2023 61 2024 12 2026 12 2026 12 2026 12 2026	=1.02 B		C 547,486.00 Value 50,000.00 51,000.00 52,020.00 53,060.40 54,121.6 55,204.04 56,306.10 57,434.20	5 1 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 7 8 8 9 5 10	A Pi 50,0 51,0 52,0 53,0 54,1 55,2 56,3 57,4	rojecti 00.00 20.00 60.40 21.61 04.04 08.12 34.28	2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027	e	C 547,41 Value 50,00 51,00 52,03 53,00 54,13 55,20 56,30 57,43

To add the respective labour force participation rates for males (70 per cent) and females (40 per cent + 5 percentage points annually):

→ Go to the matrix for participation rate [Partr]. In Partr, make sure that the option "male" is selected in the dropdown menu. Check out the matrix and fill in all cells with the value 70 per cent. Check in. Now, in the matrix for female: Enter 40 per cent in the first cell; in the second write the formula: =MIN(C3+.05,.7) and copy it over the rest of the matrix before checking it in.³³

 $^{^{33}}$ This function can be explained in two parts. First, consider "C3 + 0.05". This simply means "add 5 percentage points to the selected cell", in this case, to the previous year. If the female labour force participation rate starts at 40 per cent and increases by 5 percentage points a year, the first row, C3, would be 40 per cent and the next row would be (40 + 5) per cent or 0.4+0.05.

Next, consider MIN, a function used to select the lowest value in a range of values. Use it to set 70 as the maximum. In this case, the two numbers are 70 (the maximum) and the value that reflects the increase in the female labour force participation rate. i.e., C4, C5, and so on. Any number in this range is fine as long as it is below 70, because the MIN function will select this number. However, as soon as female labour force participation starts to exceed 70, the function starts to select 70 as the minimum number, effectively setting it as the maximum.

International Labour Organization LLO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	in Social Securit	y / Test Institution - S	witzerland				
Name	[Partr] Parti	cipation rate (s	,t) (Locked by User Nam	ne) Sex: F	emale		
Scheme: Main enter search criteria here> 	H save 9	Clean 🔓 Copy	I No Sum(col) *** No Sum(ro	A1:B2	•	fx Project	tion time
4 💼 Inputs	Sex: Female	•			A	В	С
Demographic, economic and labour fo [NATPOP] National Population (s,t)	C4	▼ fx =MIN	(C3+0.05, 0.7)	1 2	Project	ion time	595.00% Value
[Partr] Participation rate (s,t)	1	8	85.00%	3	40.00%	2020	40.00%
and and a set of the s	2 F	rojection time	Value	4	45.00%	2021	45.00%
[ggex] Input Government Expenditu	3 4	0.00% 2020	40.00%	5	50.00%	2022	50.00%
[IGDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc	4 4	5.00% 2021	=MIN(C3+0.05, 0.7)	6	55.00%	2023	55.00%
[inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pr	5	.00% 2022	.00%	7	E0.00%	2023	80.00%
🕨 🚞 Coverage	7	00% 2024	.00%	,	00.00%	2024	60.00%
Contributors	8	.00% 2025	.00%	0	65.00%	2025	65.00%
Salaries/average and growth rates	9	.00% 2026	.00%	.9	70.00%	2026	70.00%
Contribution rates and average contrib	10	.00% 2027	.00%	10	70.00%	2027	70.00%
 Population entitled to health services p 	11	.00% 2028	.00%	11	70.00%	2028	70.00%
Health Expenditure Cash benefit expenditure	12	.00% 2029	.00%	12	70.00%	2029	70.00%

→ The matrix for unemployment rate is [unemrate]. Enter 5 per cent for males and 3 per cent for females.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l n in Social	Security / Test	Institution - Sv	vitzerland				
Models Scenario Configuration								
Name	[uner	nrate] Uner	nployment	rate (s,t)				
Scheme: Main *	1.44	Turnford)	No Fundanul					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 10	Sum(cor)	No Sum(row)	Check Ouc Es E				
- Inputs	Sex: 1	Лаle						
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 					Sex:	Female	*	
[NATPOP] National Population (s,t)	A1:B2		fx 5%					
[Partr] Participation rate (s,t)		A	В	C	A1:B2		fx 3%	
[unemrate] Unemployment rate (s,t)	1	Projecti	on time	50.00%		A	В	C
[ggdp] Input Gross Domestic Produc	2	2310		Value	1	Project	tion time	30.00%
[ggex] Input Government Expenditu	3	5.00%	2020	5.00%	2		2010/01/08	Value
[IGDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc	4	5.00%	2021	.5.00%	3	3.00%	2020	3.00%
[inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pr	0	5.00%	2022	5.00%	4	3.00%	2021	3.00%
E Coverage	6	5.00%	2023	5.00%	5	3.00%	2022	3.00%
E Contributors		5.00%	2024	5.00%	6	3.00%	2023	3.00%
F Contributors	8	5.00%	2025	5.00%	7	3.00%	2024	3.00%
Salaries/average and growth rates	9	5.00%	2026	5.00%	8	3.00%	2025	3.00%
Contribution rates and average contrib	10	5.00%	2027	5.00%	9	3.00%	2026	3.00%
Population entitled to health services p	11	5.00%	2028	5.00%	10	3.00%	2027	3.00%
🔸 💼 Health Expenditure	12	5.00%	2029	5.00%	11	3.00%	2028	3.00%
Cash benefit expenditure					12	3.00%	2029	3.00%

→ Finally, the coverage rate is the matrix [cov]. This is found in: Inputs > Coverage. Users will normally enter their own formula for coverage, but for this exercise, they should fill in the cells with the formula =LN(ROW()-1)/6 for both male and female.³⁴

³⁴ ROW() returns the value of the current row, so in row 2 it will return a 2. Subtracting 1 reduces the value of every row by one in the formula. Finally, users should apply the Napierian logarithm and divide by 6

	rganization	Quar	ititative Platform	in So	tial Security /	Test	Institution - S	witzer	land	
odels Sc	enario C	onfigur	ation							
ne			=	[[00]	v] Coverad	ae r	ate as a c	ropo	ortion of the e	mploved labor for
eme: Main				_						
CONTRACTOR OF STREET	an annara sa			н	Save 🕒 C	lean	S Copy	1	No Sum(col) ***	No Sum(row)
<enter sedi<="" td=""><td>ch chiena ne</td><td>ie></td><td></td><td>Sav</td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td></td><td>Group: c</td><td></td></enter>	ch chiena ne	ie>		Sav					Group: c	
Inputs				JCA.	Male				Group. Cus	ard
Demog	raphic, econo	mic and	l labour fo	-			fr -1 N/S		1.11/6	
Covera	ge			G			JX =LIV(F		F1/10	
[cov]	Coverage rat	te as a p	roportion	-1	A		в		C at any	
Contrib	utors			2	Pro	jectio	on time		Value	
Salaries	s/average and	a growtr	rates	3	11.6	536	2020		LN(ROW()-1)/6	
E Contrio	tion antitled t	nd avera	ige contrib	4	.0	10%	2021		.00%	
Hapith	Concentiture	o nearu	services p	5	.0	1036	2022		.00%	
Carb by	experiature	ita unes		6	.0	10%	2023	- 11	.00%	
Other e	enent experio	iture		7		N096	2024		.00%	
Costs n	r fees for hea	ith serv	res	8	.0	N2%	2025		.00%	
Health	utilization fre	quencie	s and cove	10		1096	2020		00%	
Govern	nent transfere	ences an	d other re	11	.0	10%	2028		.00%	
Reserve	e Fund and in	terest ra	ite	12		10%	2029		.00%	
ie Historic	cal informatio packages (Fro	n series om Conf	iguration)							
Se	X: Male			0	iroup: Cus	Se	C Female			Group: Cust
A1	:B2	• J	x 11.552453	0093	32%	At	82	*	fx 11.55%	
	A		в		с		A		В	C
1	P	rojection	time	- 33	291.71% /alue	1 2	P	rojeci	tion time	291.69% Value
2		55% 20	20		11.55%	3	1	1,55%	2020	11.55%
2	1	19/0/20 20				4	4	8.31%	2021	18.31%
2 3 4	11	1.31% 20	21		18.31%	1.00		w.w. 1 / 4		
2 3 4 5	11 18 25	3.31% 20 3.10% 20	21 22		18.31% 23.10%	5	2	3.10%	2022	23.10%
2 3 4 5 6	11 18 23 20	3.31% 20 3.10% 20 3.82% 20	21 22 23		18.31% 23.10% 26.82%	5	2	3.10% 6.82%	2022 2023	23.10% 26.82%
2 3 4 5 6 7	11 11 21 20 20	3.31% 20 3.10% 20 3.82% 20 3.86% 20	21 22 23 24		18.31% 23.10% 26.82% 29.86%	5 6 7	2	3.10% 6.82% 9.86%	2022 2023 2024	23.10% 26.82% 29.86%
2 3 4 5 6 7 8	11 11 21 20 21 21 31	3.17% 20 3.17% 20 3.82% 20 3.86% 20 2.43% 20	21 22 23 24 25		18.31% 23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43%	5 6 7 8	22	3.10% 6.82% 9.86% 2.43%	2022 2023 2024 2025	23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43%
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9	11 18 20 20 20 21 31 34 34	1.31% 20 3.10% 20 3.82% 20 3.86% 20 2.43% 20 4.65% 20	21 22 23 24 25 26		18.31% 23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43% 34.66%	5 6 7 8 9	22	3.10% 6.82% 9.86% 2.43% 4.66%	2022 2023 2024 2025 2026	23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43% 34.66%
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10	11 18 23 24 24 24 34 34 34 34 34	1.31% 20 1.31% 20 1.82% 20 1.86% 20 1.86% 20 1.86% 20 1.66% 20 1.66% 20 1.66% 20	21 22 23 24 25 26 27		18.31% 23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43% 34.66% 36.62%	5 6 7 8 9 10	2 2 2 3 3 3 3	3.10% 6.82% 9.86% 2.43% 4.66% 6.62%	2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027	23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43% 34.66% 36.62%
2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11	11 18 22 24 25 31 34 34 34 34 34	1.31% 20 1.10% 20 1.82% 20 1.86% 20	21 22 23 24 25 26 27 28		18.31% 23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43% 34.66% 36.62% 36.38%	5 6 7 8 9 10	2 2 2 3 3 3 3 3	3.10% 6.82% 9.86% 2.43% 4.66% 6.62% 8.38%	2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028	23.10% 26.82% 29.86% 32.43% 34.66% 36.62% 38.38%

TIP: Users may choose to calculate the values in a different program (MS Excel, for instance) and paste them in the matrices if they prefer. To do this, in the Scenario menu, use the "Export all scenario" tab to export all the files as Excel files, and then modify and import each relevant file individually within an open scenario.

6.2.3. Filling in the projection matrices for the population entitled to healthcare services

All the matrices in this section matrices can be found in the navigation tree: Inputs > Population entitled to health services projection. These matrices comprise: Insurance rate of active contributors [iract], insured residual active contributors as a percentage of insured active contributors [irres], initial insured pensioners [linspensir] and survivor pensioners [linspenwo]. They also include probabilities of death of insured pensioners [qir] and survivor pensioners [qwo], expected number of survivors from death of pensioner [famact] or survivor pensioners [fampens], and whether the population is included in the scheme.

These matrices are filled in as follows:

→ Insurance rate of active contributors [iract] is a constant 95 per cent for all ages and sexes. An easy way to do this in is to write 95 per cent in the first cell, C3, of one matrix and then use the Copy command to copy it in all rows and columns. Next, users should highlight all the active cells – those containing 95 per cent– and press Ctrl + C. Check in this matrix, check out the matrix for the other sex, paste in the values, and check it in.

Ser.	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m In Soc	tal Security / Test Inst	itution - S	witzerland							*test
M	odels Scenario Configuration									1 Us	ser Name 🖸	Logout
Nan Schi	ne eme: Main v	(ira	ct] Insurance rat	e of ac	tive contributors	(s,g,x,t) (Loo	Cked by Use	er Name) ② Undo Check Out	Jail Imp. CSV int.	Exp. CSV 🛃 To	XLSX	
	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>				1.0							
•	Inputs Demographic, economic and labour	Sex	Male		Group: Cu	istard						
	Coverage	G	- 14	93%			*	÷			1020	
	Contributors	1	<u>^</u>	P	00 000	0			-		0.0007	- 1
	Salaries/average and growth rates	2	Age vs Projectio	on time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
	Contribution rates and average cont	3	95.00% 15		95,00%	00%	00	00%	00%	00%	00%	
1	Population entitled to health service	4	.00% 18		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	00%	.00%	00%	
	[iract] Insurance rate of active con	5	.00% 17		.00%	00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	[Irres] Insured residual active cont	6	.00% 18		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	[linspensir] Initial insured pension	7	00% 19		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	[Iinspenswo] Initial insured surviv	8	00% 20		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	10
	[qir] Probability of death of an ins	9	.00% 21		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	,00%	.00%	.00%	-
	[famact] Expected number of survi	10	.00% 22		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	[fampens] Expected number of su	11	.00% 23		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12	.00% 24		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	[gwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	.00% 25		.00%	.00%	.00	96 .00%	,00%	,00%	.00%	
	Health Expenditure	14	00% 26		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	,00%	,00%	.00%	
	Cash benefit evpenditure	15	.00% 27		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1
- 25	Cash benence expenditure	16	.00% 28		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	3
	Gode of fee fee health readers	17	.00% 29		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	Costs or fees for health services	18	.00% 30		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	,00%	.00%	.00%	
	Health utilization frequencies and co	19	.00% 31		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	4
*	Goverment transferences and other	20	.00% 32		.00%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
	Reserve Fund and interest rate	21	.00% 33		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	-
	information series	22	.00% 34		.00%	.00%	.00	.00%	,00%	,00%	.00%	
		23	0.0% 38		00%	00%		AC 8090	0094	00%	00%	



Copy process x
Copy process has successfully finished
OK

											~
odels Scenario Configuration									💄 Us	er Name 🕞	Logou
ne 📰	firac	1 Insurance	rate of activ	e contributors (s.	a.x.t)						
eme: Main		in Sumicall	** No Sumfront	B Owton B.D		2152					
sense wards ontena here-			Ho solid bid								
Inputs	Sex:	Male		Group: Dustars	d						
Demographic, economic and labour	12222	-	6								
Coverage	ATTER	-	11 95%					0			
Contributors	100	~			Contra anno	E .		0		and dates	-1
Salaries/average and growth rates	2	Age vs Pro	jection time	3220.0079	3220.00%	3223.0074	36223.00/31	5225.007+	3523.0079	3035	- 20
Contribution rates and average cont	3	1045 000	44	OK PATRIC	05.055	05.075	66 00%	05.005	10.000	05.005	
Population entitled to health service	4	1045 0096	16	05.00%	95,00%	95.00%	96.00%	56.00%	65.00%	95.00%	
[iract] Insurance rate of active con	5	1045 00%	17	85.00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	85.00%	
[irres] Insured residual active cont	6	7045.00%	18	85.00%	85.00%	85.00%	95.00%	50.00%	98,00%	85.00%	
[linspensir] Initial insured pension	7	1045.00%	19	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	
[Iinspenswo] Initial insured surviv	8	1045.00%	20	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95.00%	
[gir] Probability of death of an ins	8	1048.00%	21	85.00%	95 00%	95 00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	85.00%	
[famact] Expected number of survi-	10	7045.00%	22	95.00%	85.00%	95 00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	
Ifampens] Expected number of su	.11	1045.00%	23	95.00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	85.00%	
included Takes the value of 1 or	12	1948,00%	24	95.00%	95 00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	
Inwol Probability of death of a sur	53	1045,00%	25	85.00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	85.00%	
ilaalth Expenditure	14	1045.00%	26	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00 W	95.00%	
Frederic Caperiologie	15	784E.00%	27	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	
Cash benefit expenditure	16	7045,00%	28	85.00%	85.00%	85.00%	95.00%	98.00%	R5.00%	B\$.00%	
Other expenditure	17	1045.00%	29	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	16.00%	95.00%	
Costs or tees for health services	18	1046.00%	30	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	
Health utilization frequencies and co	19	1048.09%	35	95,00%	95.00%	85.00%	65.00%	85.00%	95,00%	95.00%	
Goverment transferences and other	20	1045.00%	32	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	\$5.00%	95.00%	\$6,00%	95.00%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	21	104E.00%	33	98.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	
							and the second se				

International Labour Organization	ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platfor	H m in Social	Security / Tes	r Institution - Switz	zerland							*test
Models Scenario C	onfiguration									1 U	ser Name 🕞	Logout
Name	-	firact	Insurance	rate of activ	e contributors (s	.a.x.t)						
Scheme: Main		I N	o Sum(col)	• No Sum(row)	Oteck Out	240. CSV 🛃 To #	151					
-enter search criteria he	(II)-	200400	CALMER .		200000000							
 Inputs Demographic, econd 	mic and labour	50X: 1	lemate	A 1054	Group: Dusta	rd	•					
Coverage		Aribe				n		F	0	14		
Salaries/average and	i orowth rates	1			5225.00%	5225.00%	5225.00%	5225.00%	5225.00%	\$225.00%	\$225.00%	5225
 Contribution rates at 	nd awarane cont	2	Age vs Prz	jection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
+ Population entitled t	o health service	3	1048.00%	15	95,00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	98.00%	98.00%	95.00%	95
liracti Insurance r	ate of artive con	4	1045.00%	16	95,00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95.00%	95
linnes] Insured res	idual active cont	5	1045.00%	17	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	B5.00%	95
[linspensir] Initial	insured pension	fi	7045.00%	18	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95
Dinspensional Initia	l insurert sumiy	7	1048.00%	19	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	98.00%	95.00%	95,00%	95,00%	95
Toirl Probability of	death of an ins	8	1045.00%	20	95,00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95
[famact] Expected	number of supe	Ð	1046.00%	21	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	B5
Ifamoaoc] Expertee	ed number of ru	10	1045.00%	22	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95
lincluded Takes ti	to number of sum	11	1045,00%	23	95.00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	\$6.00%	95:00%	85.00%	05
[mun] Brohability	of death of a cur	12	1045.00%	24	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	96.00%	96.00%	96.00%	95.00%	95
in power rounding	or beaution a sur-	33	7046.00%	25	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	96.00%	96.00%	35.00%	85
 Freduction Experiment 	and a second	14	7045.00%	26	95,00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95.00%	95
Other expenditure	is the residence of the	18	1045.00%	21	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	98.00%	98.00%	95.00%	95
Costs or feet for her	Mr. consistent	17	2040.00%	20	95.00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	56.00%	-6.00%	85.00%	85
Health utilization fre	mencies and co	18	1045 (09)	30	05.004	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	35.00%	95.00%	99.
Comment transfers	open and other	19	2045 00%	31	95.00%	95 00%	95.00%	95,00%	95.00%	15.00%	15.00%	95
Passous Fund and in	faces and other	20	1048.00%	12	85,00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	90.00%	98,00%	85,0055	95
Historical informatio	n series	21	1045.00%	33	95.00%	85.00%	95.00%	95.00%	95.00%	96.00%	95,00%	95.
 Character information 	o per rea	22	1046-00%	M	95.01%	95 0/4	95 07%	95.00%.	95.00%	95/03%	95.00%	Q.C.

➔ Insured residual active contributors as a percentage of insured active contributors [irres] is a constant 10 per cent for all ages and sexes. Users should enter this percentage using the shortcut described above.

International Labour Organization Quantita	HEALTH tive Platform in So	cial Security / Test	Institution - Swit	zerland							*test
Models Scenario Configuratio	n								👤 Us	er Name 🕞	Logout
Name	lim	es] insured re	sidual active	e contributors as a	a % of insu	red active cont	ributors (s.a.)	c t)			
Scheme: Main		sol moneo re	and a control				inentere (eiĝis				
		No Sum(col)	No Sum(row)	O Check Out 🔹 Ex	p. CSV R. To	KLSK					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>				12 March 10							
 Inputs 	Sex	Male		Group: Custars	1	19 7					
 Eperographic, economic and lat 	our										
Coverage	A1:8	2 *	fx 10%								
 Contributors 		A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	3 1
Salaries/average and growth ra	tes 1	Area un Brala	elles these	550,00%	550.00%	550,00%	560.00%	550,00%	880.00%	550,00%	550.
Contribution rates and average	cont 2	Alle As Light	readil allo	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
Population entitled to health se	rvice	170.00%	15	10,00%	10.00%	10,00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
Firact Insurance rate of active	4	110.00%	16	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10/
[irres] tocured residual active	cont 5	170.00%	17	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
Tinspage I Initial Incured per	e e	110.00%	18	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
 [iinspensir] initial insured per [tinspensir] Initial insured per 	7	110.00%	19	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
Etinspenswoj Initial insured si	BANNON B	110.00%	20	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10/
[qir] Probability of death of a	n Ins	110.00%	21	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
[famact] Expected number of	survi 10	170.00%	22	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
[fampens] Expected number	of su 11	110.00%	23	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10:00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
[included] Takes the value of	1 or 12	110.00%	24	10,00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10/
[qwo] Probability of death of	a sur 13	110.00%	25	10,00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
Health Expenditure	14	170.00%	26	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	.10.08%	10.
Cash benefit expenditure	10	110.00%	и	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
 Other expenditure 	10	110.00%	28	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
Costs or fees for health services	17	110.00%	29	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
 Health utilization frequencies and 	10 10	110.00%	10	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,00%	10.00%	10.0075	10.00%	.00
Comment transforment and a	there 20	110.00%	19	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
Boston Find and interest and o	20	110.00%	13	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
 Reserve Fund and interest rate 	22	110.00%	14	10,00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10
 Historical information series 	22	110.0007		10,0014	10.000	10.00 14	- 0.0076	10.0014	10.000	10 00 %	10

[irres] Insured residual active contributors as a % of insured active contributors (s,g,x,t)

i.	No Sum(col) **	• No Si	um(row)	❷ Check Out 🔹 E	xp.CSV 🕅 To	XLSX					
Sex:	Female		*	Group: Custa	rd	*					
в	*	fx	10%								
1	A		в	c	D	E	F	G	H	1	J
1	Age up Proj	action	time	550.00%	550.00%	550.00%	550.00%	550.00%	550.00%	550.00%	550.
2	Age to Proj	ection	une	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
3	110.00%	15		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
4	110.00%	16		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,
5	110.00%	17		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,
6	110.00%	18		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
7	110.00%	19		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,
8	110.00%	20		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
9	110.00%	21		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,
10	110.00%	22		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
11	110.00%	23		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
12	110.00%	24		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
13	110.00%	25		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,
14	110.00%	26		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
15	110.00%	27		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
16	110.00%	28		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
17	110.00%	29		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10,
18	110.00%	30		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.0D%	10.00%	10.
19	110.00%	31		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
20	110.00%	32		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
21	110.00%	33		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.
22	44.0 0000			10.0000	40.000	40.000	10.0004	10.0004	10.004/	10 000	10

→ Initial insured pensioners [linspensir] and survivor pensioners [linspenwo] are both 0 for the purpose of this exercise. Users should check these out and in for both sexes to increase the completion rate.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	H m in Social Security	/ Test Institution - Sv	witzerland						
Models Scenario Configuration									
Name	[linspensir] [nitial insured p	ensioners of i	invalidity and retirement (s.g.x)					
Scheme: Main	and the second second second	e antaria di dedecaria	Contraction and						
	E No Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)	Check Out	🔒 Exp. CSV 📑 To XLSK					
senter search criteria fienes					Sev	Marke .		Group: Content	
<	Sex: Male		Group:	Custant *	- arcen	Mare		Group: Custers	
Demographic, economic and labour						4 1 1	14		
Coverage	A1:82	• fx 0			A1:82	*]x	0		
 Contributors 	A	в	с		1	A	8	C	
Salaries/averane and norwith rates	1			00	1	Age		.00	
Contribution rates and average cont	2	Age	Value		2	1.17		Value	
Bonulation patition to bealth service	3	.00 0		.00	3	00 0		.00	
Direct Territores vate of orthun sen	4	.00 1		.00	4	.00 1		.00	
[inact] Insurance rate of active cont	5	00 2		00	2	00.2		08.	
[intes] insured residual active conc	6	.00 3		.00		.00-3		00.	
[Inspensir] Initial insured pension	7	00 4		00	1	00.4		.00	
[Inspenswo] Initial insured surviv	8	.00 5		.00		00.5		.00	
[qir] Probability of death of an ins	9	00 E		.00	10	00 8		.00	
[famact] Expected number of survi	10	.00 7		.00	15	00.7		.00	
[fampens] Expected number of su	11	00 8		.00	17	00.0		00.	
[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12	.00 9		.00	13	00.10		00	
[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	00 10		00	14	00 11		00	
🔸 💼 Health Expenditure	14			.00	15	00.12		00	
Cash benefit expenditure	10	00 12	-		16	00.13		00	
 Other expenditure 	17	00.14			17	00.14		.00	
Costs or fees for health services	18	00.16		00	18	.00 15		.00	
Health utilization frequencies and co	19	02 16		00	19	00 18		.00	
Goverment transferences and other	20	00 17		00	20	.00 17		.00	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	21	00 18		00	21	00 18		.00	
Historical information series	22	00 18		00	22	.00 19		.00	
	23	00 20		00	23	00 20		00	

➔ Probabilities of death of insured pensioners [qir] are filled out in the same way as [q] above (section 6.2.1.2).

Lobur Contribution Secure 10	Carlo International	Favorites	Today	13	Date Modified	Size	Kind			~
Organization Quantizative Re Image: Scenario Configuration Image: Scenari Configur	Labour ILO/HEAL	T Setapp	 entrydist.c 	SV .	Today, 1:37 PM	15 1638	CSV Document	- 7		*test
Scenario Configuration Machine Total Total </td <td>Organization Quantitative Plat</td> <td>III Province</td> <td># mort_fema</td> <td>e.csv</td> <td>Today, 11:52 AM</td> <td>14.68</td> <td>CSV Document</td> <td></td> <td></td> <td></td>	Organization Quantitative Plat	III Province	# mort_fema	e.csv	Today, 11:52 AM	14.68	CSV Document			
Models Scenario Configuration A Applications A Applications A Applications A Applications		El reconts	a mort_male.	Cav.	Today, 11:50 AM	14 (0)	CSV Occument			\sim
Barriel Description Description <thdescription< th=""></thdescription<>	Models Scenario Configuration	Applications	B- Majkthroug	n minute, nel Partform 3 (1) deca	Today, 12:31 PM	7.2 446	Micros. Libocri	1 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
All Participanti Participan		B Documents	 Walkthroop 	Philipping, Jathorn, J. (2), 11), dock	100Mz 12:41 PM	(2,2,54)	(Mirus(Jssca)	Concession of the second se		
Chemics Watch Main Percent Stanch of third a here Percent Stanchor third a here Percent Stanch of thire	vame	III Desktop	Yesterday					er Name)		
Activity Search Citeral hero Industry Contributors Exciting Search Citeral hero Industry Contributors Exciting Contributors <	icheme: Main	() Description	B- Walkthroug	Pritting, 14 Pathern 3 (2) data	Textstillay, 3 23 Phil	15.8 M	Micros Luncal			
Inputs B. Advance reporter section reports solds 122202, 8.89 AM 214 M Masse_ i.decine Inputs B. Coverage Sold of the sections 122202, 8.89 AM 214 M Masse_ i.decine Inputs B. Coverage Sold of the sections 122202, 8.89 AM 214 M Masse_ i.decine Inputs B. Coverage Sold of the sections 12220, 8.89 AM 214 M 148 M Masse_ i.decine Inputs B. Sold relevance B. Masse_ i.decine 12220, 8.89 AM 214 M 148 M Masse_ i.decine Inputs B. Sold relevance B. Masse_ i.decine 12220, 8.89 AM 214 M 148 M		O Downloads	Previous 7 Davs					& Exp. CSV & To	XLSK	
■ Demographic, economic and labour, Coverage Cload Coverage ■ Contributors ■ Demographic, economic and labour, Coverage ■ Contributors ■ Contribu	senter search criteria here>	ILO/OIT	B. Arturnal to			22.82	Afterna Luiservi			
Percongraphic, economic and labour, Coveragin Controlutors Controlutors Percongraphic, economic and labour, Coveragin Percongraphic	inputs in the second se	iclouid	D- Gets para v							
E. Coverage Coverage Contributors Coverage Contributors Provide 30 Dg/ Contributors Solaries/key/wrape and growth rates Power Cost Coverage Provide 30 Dg/ Contribution rates and average canceller (race) Insuerse average canceller (race) This Insuerse average canc	Demographic, economic and labour	Ciclaud Drive	D Working In	LO Actualial Health Touldock	7/28/20, 2.88 PM	1.518	MICHIN, LOOCAS	10.		
Image: State of a sta	Coverage	C ANDRE DIVE	Denilour 20 Date							
Solaries/average and growth rates Image: Solaries/average and growth rates <tht< td=""><td> Contributors </td><td>Locations</td><td>menuas so days</td><td></td><td></td><td>12.00 1/2</td><td>- Minder / Minder</td><td>н</td><td>1</td><td>J</td></tht<>	 Contributors 	Locations	menuas so days			12.00 1/2	- Minder / Minder	н	1	J
Contribution rates and average contu- Insured rates and aver	Coloring Journage and growth rates	Natwork	an experiment	in Commune	THEFT	11000 000		00%	.00%	
Control duration entities to health service. If (race) Insurance rate of active con. If (race) Insuranc	Contribution rates and summers		P STHERE	4 Deals 1 16062000 MIC	2/16/20 3/2/2 244	11.7 Mill		2024	2025	2026
Probability of death of an ins Bite Probability of death of an ins 00%	Contribution rates and average cont	Talla	D ILO HEALT		2/21/20: 2/80 PM	21.7 Mil		.00%	.00%	
Indel Insurand ratio at drive con Velow 00% 00% [Inspensi] Instal insured pension 0.0%<	Population entitled to nearth service	Blue	5 Rabonahi /	wath Manual 13042020	27/20/20 1198/2994	25 102	Marun. (JSsex)	.00%	.00%	
Centors Control 00% <th< td=""><td>(ract) insurance rate or active con</td><td>Yellow</td><td>-</td><td></td><td></td><td>-</td><td></td><td>00%</td><td>.00%</td><td></td></th<>	(ract) insurance rate or active con	Yellow	-			-		00%	.00%	
(Inspensir) Initial insured pension) 6 00% <	[irres] Insured residual active cont	Ontions				Car	the librat	.00%	.00%	
Lingentwol Initial insured surviv 8 .00% <	[linspensir] Initial insured pension	- opening					and the second second	.00%	.00%	
[qr] Probability of death of an ins] 0 00%	[linspenswo] Initial insured surviv	8	/00% 5	.00%	.00% .00%		.00%	1% .00%	.00%	
If (amac) Expected number of surviv 10 .00%	[qir] Probability of death of an ins	9	.00% 6	.00%	.00% .00%		.00% .00	N .00%	.00%	
If ampend Expected number of sum. (pro) Uprobability of death of a sum. (pro) Probability of death of a sum. 11 4/35 # 00% </td <td>[famact] Expected number of survi</td> <td>10</td> <td>.00% 7</td> <td>.00%</td> <td>.00% .00%</td> <td></td> <td>.00% .00</td> <td>1% .00N</td> <td>.00%</td> <td></td>	[famact] Expected number of survi	10	.00% 7	.00%	.00% .00%		.00% .00	1% .00N	.00%	
Included] Takes the value of 1 or 12 .00%	[fampens] Expected number of su	11	.00% #	.00%	.00% .00%		.00% .00%	I% .00%	,00%	
Ignol Probability of death of a sur 13 .078 19 .009 <td>[included] Takes the value of 1 or</td> <td>12</td> <td>.00% 9</td> <td>.00%</td> <td>.00% .00%</td> <td></td> <td>.00</td> <td>1% .00%</td> <td>.00%</td> <td></td>	[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12	.00% 9	.00%	.00% .00%		.00	1% .00%	.00%	
Health Expenditure 14 0/0%	[gwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	.00% 10	.00%	D0% .00%	1 (j	.00% .00	1% .00 N	.00%	
B Cash benefit expenditure 15 00% 12 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% 00% </td <td>Health Expenditure</td> <td>14</td> <td>.20% 11</td> <td>.00%</td> <td>.00% .00%</td> <td></td> <td>.00% .00</td> <td>P\$.00%</td> <td>.00%</td> <td>-</td>	Health Expenditure	14	.20% 11	.00%	.00% .00%		.00% .00	P\$.00%	.00%	-
Costs or fees for health services 16 0.0% is 13 0.0% is 0.0%	 Each basefit expenditure 	15	(00% 12	.00%	00% .00%		.00% .00%	PS .00%	.00%	
Other Expensional T7 JUNE 14 JONS 00%	Contra consolitiva	16	.00% 13	.00%	.00% .00%		.00% .00	% .00%	.00%	7
Implement services 19 .0% 15 .00% <td>Casts as feet for health sender</td> <td>17</td> <td></td> <td>.00%</td> <td>00% .00%</td> <td></td> <td>.00%</td> <td>P\$ 00%</td> <td>.00%</td> <td></td>	Casts as feet for health sender	17		.00%	00% .00%		.00%	P\$ 00%	.00%	
Implement voltazion mequencies and co 19 ans 16 00%	COSts of fees for health services	18	.00% 15	.00%	.00% .00%		.00% .00%	/% .00%	.00%	- 3
Image: Covernment transferences and other 20 0.0% 17 0.0% 00% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 00% 0.0% 00% 0.0% </td <td> means ubization frequencies and co </td> <td>19</td> <td>.07% 16</td> <td>.00%</td> <td>00% .00%</td> <td></td> <td>.00%</td> <td>I% .00%</td> <td>.00%</td> <td>-</td>	 means ubization frequencies and co 	19	.07% 16	.00%	00% .00%		.00%	I% .00%	.00%	-
Reserve Fund and interest rate 21 07% 18 00%	 Goverment transferences and other 	20	00% 17	.00%	00% 00%		.00% .00	195 .00%	.00%	
22 00% 19 00% 00% 00% 00%	 Reserve Fund and interest rate 	21	.00% 18	.00%	.00% .00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	
Pier Historical information series	 Historical information series 	.22	00% 19	.00%	.00% .00N		.00% .00	1% .00%	.00%	

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	Η π in Social	Security / Test Institution - Swit	tzerland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration								1 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Vame	loir) F	Probability of death of a	in insured nensic	ner of invalid	ity or refireme	ent (s.x.t)				
cheme: Main	(telefte	roodbing of dedition a	in mouree periore	nor or intrana		and (about)				
anders .	E N	a Sum(col) *** No Sum(row)	Check Out 🔹 I	xp. CSV 🛃 Tu X	USX					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>			Contraction of the local division of the loc							
a Inputs	Sex:	Male								
Demographic, economic and labour										
Coverage	A1:82	 fx 9.80061 	44%							
Contributors		A B	c	D	E	E F	G	н	31	3
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Carrier and Carrier and Carrier	1097.94%	1093.75%	1089.61%	1085,51%	1081.44%	1077.42%	7073.43%	1069
Contribution rates and average cont	2	Age vs Projection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
Ponulation entitled to health service	3	107.81% 0	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	9.80%	9
First] Incurance rate of active con	4	93.30% 1	8.49%	8.49%	8,48%	8.48%	8.48%	8.48%	8.48%	8
Dreed Insurance rate of active cont	5	84.24% 2	7,06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.66%	7.66%	7.00%	7.66%	7
to respinsated residual active conc	6	77.64% 3	7.08%	7,08%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7
Europensir] Initial insured pension	7	72,44% 4	6.59%	6.59%	6.59%	6.89%	6.59%	6.69%	6.58%	6
[linspenswo] Initial insured surviv	8	68.75% 5	6.20%	8.20%	8.20%	6,20%	6.20%	6.20%	6,19%	8
[gir] Probability of death of an ins	9	64,50% 6	5.87%	S.87%	5.87%	5.87%	5.86%	5.88%	5.86%	5
[famact] Expected number of survi	10	61.33% 7	5.55%	5.59%	5.58%	5.58%	5,58%	6.67%	5.57%	5
[fampens] Expected number of su	11	58,57% 8	5.33%	5.32%	5.32%	5:32%	5,32%	5.32%	5.32%	
[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12	55.99% 9	5.10%	6.09%	5.09%	5.09%	5.09%	5.09%	5.09%	./8
[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	53.75% 10	4,89%	4.89%	4.88%	4.88%	4.08%	4.88%	4.88%	
 Health Expenditure 	17	57,67% 11	4.70%	4.70%	4.70%	4.09%	4.08%	4,09%	4.06%	
Cash benefit expenditure	10	49.09% 12	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4,52%	4,52%	4.02%	- 4
Other expenditure	17	47.0020 18	4.30%	4.20%	4.30 %	4.30%	4.30%	4.30%	4.3376	
Costs or fees for health services	18	44.00% 10	4,6176	4.07%	4.07%	4.21%	4.06%	4.00%	4.00%	-
Health utilization frequencies and co	19	47 225 10	3.93%	3.83%	3.93%	3.93%	3.03%	3,63%	3,67%	-
Goverment transferences and other	20	41.84% 17	3,81%	3.81%	3.81%	3.81%	3.80%	3.80%	3.80%	3
Beserve Fund and interest rate	21	40.53% 18	3.69%	3.09%	3.69%	3,69%	3.69%	3.68%	3.68%	3
Historical information sories	22	39,29% 19	3,58%	3.58%	3.58%	3.57%	3.57%	3.57%	3.57%	3
	23	38 129 20	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.46%	.3

12:50 International I as a frame Favority	Today		Date Modified	Size	Kind			
\$1101 Labour ILO/HEAL	etapp 4 entrydist.cm		Today, 1:37 PM	6 68	CSV Document			*test
Organization Quantitative Plat	mort_female	icev ()	Today, 11 52 AM	14 KB	DSV Document			LOUI
	ecents mort_male.c	sv	Today, 11:50 AM	14 KB	CSV Document			\sim
Models Scenario Configuration	pplications E- Webthrough	throug	Teday, 12:31 PM	7.2.8/0	Mitrini (19904)	1 05	er Name G	Logout
. Bo	locuments B- Wahrhraugh	throug. lidfored 1 (2) (3 down	Reday 12:41 Phil	2.2.588	(Alexine(Alexia)	1111		
Name	Vesterday					er Name)		
Scheme: Main	B. Verlethrough	through the Platform, 1475-Book	Ventermen 3129 PM	15-8 Alb	Mitmic Links	The second second		
0.0	Previous 7 Days					& Exp. CSV 27 To:	ILSK.	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	O / OIT	out Southing and many spore"		221.60	Advenue A strengt			
 Inputs 	🔤 jista para wa			10 8.8	Micros Limited			
Demographic, economic and labour	Sloued Deliver	D Antumial Health Tool stoce	7/28/20 2:50 /74	1.5 105	Micrus_Liberid			
Coverage	Previous 30 Days							
Contributors Locatio	nu li numero parte	College Mart Township Store		COLUMN.	Advent Advent	н	3	3.18
Salarles/average and growth rates	letwork B: ED HTAITH	Dom 1 01002020 MS		21.7 68	Mirrise Linnest	.00%	.00%	
Contribution rates and average cont	B ED HEALTH		2/16/20, 1/20 PM	31,7 MB	Micros Lidentia	2024	2025	2026
4 Ponulation entitled to bealth service	B LOHEALTH		272 020; 2:89 PM	31.7 MB	Micrist. (.1500)	.00%	.00%	
[iract] Insurance rate of active con	B Hattonate He	uhn Manua (19062000	7/20/20 1148 PM	20.65	Menu. (doca)	.00%	.00%	
Firmed Insured and the latter cont	ellow					.00%	.00%	
(irres) insured residual active cont	tione			Can	cel Open	.00%	.00%	3
Linspensiri Initial insured pension						.00%	,00%	
[Inspenswo] Initial Insured surviv	,00% 5	.00%	.00% .00%	.4	00% .009	6 .00%	.00%	£.
[qir] Probability of death of an ins 9	.00% 6	.00%	.00% .00%		0% .009	6 .00%	.00%	2
[famact] Expected number of survi 1	0 00% 7	.00%	.00% .00%		900, 900	6 .00%	,00%	
[fampens] Expected number of su	00% 8	.00%	.00% .00%		10% .009	4 .00%	.00%	÷
[included] Takes the value of 1 or	2 .00% 9	.00%	.00% .00%		10% .009	5 .00%	,00%	21
[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	00% 10	.00%	.00% .00%		00% .009	6 ,00%	.00%	-
Health Expenditure	.00% 11	.00%	.00%		0% .009	6 .00%	,00%	
 Ecash benefit expenditure 	.00% 12	.00%	.00%		10% .009	s .00%	.00%	
Other expenditure	0 ,00% 13	.00%	.00%		10% .009	6 ,00%	.00%	-
Costs or fees for health services	00% 14	.00%	.00%		10% .009	6 .00%	.00%	-
Health utilization frequencies and co	0 00% 15	.00%	.00%		0% .009	\$.00%	.00%	-
Comment transformers and other	0 000 17	.00%	00% 00%		10% 00%	00%	.00%	
a doverment dansierences and other	t 0000 18	.00%	00% 00%		009	0054	00%	1
Keserve Hund and Interest rate	2 ///2/ 19	00%	00% 00%	4	000	00%	00%	-
 Historical information series 	3 (00) 30	100 16	00.0		100		20074	100

Sex:	Female									
A1:82	• 1	x 8.900083	32%							
1	A	В	С	D	E	E	G	н	1	3
1	Age vs Project	ion time	963.76%	961.18%	958.61%	956.06%	953.53%	951.02%	948.52%	946.
2	Age variojee		2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
3	97.90% 0		8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8.90%	8,
4	85.63% 1		7.79%	7.79%	7.79%	7.79%	7.79%	7,78%	7,78%	7.
5	77.67% 2		7.07%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.06%	7.
6	71.76% 3		6.53%	6.53%	6.53%	6.53%	6.53%	6.52%	6.52%	6.
7	67.07% 4		6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.10%	6.
8	63.17% 5		5.75%	5,75%	5.75%	5.75%	5.74%	5.74%	5.74%	5.
9	59.84% 6		5.45%	5.45%	5.44%	5:44%	5.44%	5.44%	5.44%	5.
10	56.93% 7		5.18%	5.18%	5.18%	5.18%	5.18%	5,18%	5.17%	5,
11	54.35% 8		4.95%	4.95%	4.94%	4.94%	4.94%	4.94%	4.94%	4,
12	52.03% 9		4.74%	4.73%	4.73%	4.73%	4.73%	4.73%	4.73%	4.
13	49.92% 10		4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.54%	4.
14	47.99% 11		4.37%	4.37%	4.37%	4.37%	4.36%	4.36%	4.36%	4.
15	46.21% 12		4.21%	4,21%	4.20%	4.20%	4.20%	4.20%	4.20%	4.
16	44.55% 13		4.06%	4.05%	4.05%	4.05%	4.05%	4.05%	4.05%	4.
17	43.02% 14		3.92%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.91%	3.
18	41.57% 15		3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.78%	3.
19	40.21% 16		3.66%	3.66%	3.66%	3.86%	3.66%	3.66%	3.85%	3.
20	38.93% 17		3.54%	3,54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3,
21	37.71% 18		3.43%	3.43%	3,43%	3.43%	3.43%	3,43%	3,43%	з.
22	36.56% 19		3.33%	3.33%	3.33%	3.33%	3.32%	3.32%	3.32%	3.
23	ar day as			9.094	-9-99ar	9.994	9.000	9.006	9.998	2

The survivor pensioners matrix [qwo] is filled in the same as [qir]. However, ages 18 and 25 have a mortality [qwo] rate of 50 per cent at age 18 and 100 per cent at age 25 for both sexes.

→ Repeat the steps for [qir] for survivors [qwo]. However, for age 18, write 0.5 in the first column and copy it across to the last year of the projection. Similarly, for age 25, write 1 in the first year and copy it across to the last year of the projection. In the cells that follow (ages up to 100), users may input 1 or 0 as there is no real difference in terms of calculations.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m in Socia	al Security / Tes	t Institution - Switz	erland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration									1 U	ser Name 🛛 🕞	Logout
Name	I COWO	Drobabilit	v of death of	a suprivor's pop	eionere (e v t	1				,	
Scheme: Main	Iduc	ji robabilit	yordeamon	a survivor s per		·					
	1.1	to Sum(cal)	** No Sum(row)	🗵 Check Out 🔹 I	Exp. CSV 📑 To 🤉	1.SX					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>					1.1						
 Inputs 	Sex:	Female									
Demographic, economic and labour											
Coverage	A1:B2	2. A 1	Jx Age vs P	rojection time							
 Contributors 	1	A	B	C	D	E	F	G	н	112	J
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Age vs Pro	iection time	7763.09%	7763.09%	7763.09%	7763.09%	7763.09%	7763.09%	7763.09%	7763.
Contribution rates and average cont	2	- age to the	jeedon ane	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
Population entitled to health service	15	46.27%	12	4.21%	4.21%	4.21%	4.21%	4.21%	4,21%	4.21%	4.
Firact] Insurance rate of active con	10	44.62%	13	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.
Firres Insured residual active cont	18	43.07%	14	3.92%	3.92%	3.96%	3.92%	3.942%	3.92%	3.92%	3
Inspensir] Initial insured pension	19	47.03%	10	3.76%	3.1670	3.76%	3.00%	3.66%	3.66%	3.76%	3
[linspensivo] Initial insured surviv	20	38 9896	17	3.54%	3 54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3.54%	3
[pir] Probability of death of an ins	21	550.00%	18	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50
[famact] Expected number of supri	22	36.61%	19	3.33%	3.33%	3.33%	3 33%	3 33%	3.33%	3.33%	3
Managed Expected number of surviv	23	35.51%	20	3,23%	3.23%	3.23%	3.23%	3.23%	3,23%	3.23%	3
[rampens] expected number of su	24	34,46%	21	3.13%	3.13%	3,13%	3.13%	3.13%	3.13%	3.13%	3
[included] takes the value of 1 or	25	33.46%	22	3.04%	3.04%	3.04%	3.04%	3.04%	3.04%	3.04%	3.
[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	26	32.50%	23	2.95%	2.95%	2.95%	2.95%	2.95%	2.95%	2.95%	2
Health Expenditure	27	31.58%	24	2.87%	2.87%	2.87%	2.87%	2.87%	2.87%	2.87%	2.
Cash benefit expenditure	28	1100.00%	25	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.
Other expenditure	29	1100.00%	26	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.
Costs or fees for health services	30	1100.00%	27	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.
Health utilization frequencies and co	31	1100.00%	28	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100
Goverment transferences and other	32	1100.00%	29	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.
Reserve Fund and interest rate	33	1100.00%	30	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.
 Historical information series 	34	1100.00%	31	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.
	30	******	100	100.000	Ann name	200.004	100 0000	100.000	100.000	(000 000)	= 0.0

11	No Sum(col)	• No S	um(row)	🛞 Check Out 💼	Exp. CSV 🛃 To X	LSX					
Sex:	Male										
A1:82		fx	9.80061	144%							
	A		В	с	D	E	F	G	н	15	J
1	NAME OF TAXABLE PARTY.	Harris	ana an	272.12%	272.10%	272.07%	272.04%	272.02%	271.99%	271.97%	271
2	Age vs Pro	jection	time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
15	49.69%	12		4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4.52%	4
16	47.90%	13		4,36%	4,36%	4.36%	4.36%	4.36%	4,35%	4.35%	4
17	46.24%	14		4.21%	4.21%	4.21%	4.21%	4.20%	4.20%	4.20%	4
18	44.68%	15		4.07%	4.07%	4.07%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	4.06%	- 4
19	43.22%	16		3.93%	3.93%	3.93%	3.93%	3.93%	3.93%	3.93%	3.
20	41.84%	17		3.81%	3.81%	3.81%	3.81%	3.80%	3.80%	3.80%	3.
21	550.00%	18		50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50.00%	50
22	39.29%	19		3.58%	3.58%	3.58%	3.57%	3,57%	3.57%	3.57%	3.
23	38.12%	20		3.47%	3.47%	3.47%	3,47%	3.47%	3.47%	3.46%	3
24	36.99%	21		3.37%	3.37%	3.37%	3.37%	3.36%	3.36%	3,36%	3
25	35.92%	22		3.27%	3.27%	3.27%	3.27%	3,27%	3.27%	3.26%	3.
26	34,90%	23		3.18%	3.18%	3,18%	3.17%	3,17%	3,17%	3.17%	3
27	33.92%	24		3.09%	3.09%	3.09%	3.09%	3.08%	3.08%	3.08%	3.
28	1100.00%	25		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100
29	.00%	26		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
30	.00%	27		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	,00%	.00%	.00%	
31	.00%	28		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
32	.00%	29		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
33	.00%	30		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
34	.00%	31		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
35	.00%	32		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	

The expected number of dependants from an active contributor or a pensioner is input in the matrices [famact] and [fampens], respectively. Each matrix has a set of four options: male dependants from male contributors, female dependants from male contributors, and vice versa for female contributors.

For a given number in a matrix, the intersection of a row and column shows the expected number of people of the value of a column who are eligible for healthcare insurance (and thus can demand healthcare services) thanks to the contributions of someone whose age is the value in the rows.

Dependants are usually children of the contributors and pensioners, and in some cases, spouses.

This exercise will use a simple dependant family structure. Each contributor (including pensioners) has a 20 per cent probability of having a dependent child. The age of the dependent children is evenly distributed from ages 0 to 14, 50 per cent male, and 50 per cent female. For simplicity's sake, spouses are not covered in this example.

→ To input this information into the model, check out each of the eight matrices (four famact, four fampens) and write the value =0.1/14 in the cell of the first matrix. Copy the column across the following 14 columns. In the final column, copy the row downwards until the end. Finally, they should check in, select the whole matrix, press Ctrl+C and Check Out to copy this matrix and then Check In and Ctrl+V to paste this information into all the other matrices (alternatively, users may export csv files and import them into the remaining matrices.)

		toSava 🕥		E S							dependar												2
Home	Inser	t Draw	Page Li	yout F	ormulas	Data	Review	View 💡	Tell me											18	Share	Commer	nts
Peste	× Bov	Caleri B I	iliody) Weinitia	* 12 * 1 di	- A (A) - A -). Wrap Text	v untor.v	Gerana S. + %	2 1		Forvition	al Form	v Del d. Oel Styley	anner Anner	• Entre	Format		· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·	• J	
SUM	2 >	× × J	fx =.1/14																				
	А	в	с	D	E	F	G	н	- N	- E -]]	8	1	м	N		0	P	a	R	5	T	U	v
1 Cont	ributor Age	vs Age	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	U	- 4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
2			= 1/14	1	2	3	4	0	0	0	8	9		0	0	12	13	14	15	15	17	18	
4	0	1	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ō	D		0	0	0	ō	0	0	0	0	ő	
5	D	2	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	٥	0	D	0	0	
6	0	3	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
1	0	4	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
9	0	6	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
10	0	7	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
11	0	8	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
12	0	. 9	0	0	0	D	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
13	0	10	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
16	0	11	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
16	p	13	0	0	0	D	ő	ő	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	ŏ	Ó	0	0	0	ő	
17	0	14	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
1.0	0	15	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
19	0	16	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
20	0	17	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
22	0	19	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
23	0	20	0	0	0	0	.0	0	0.	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	.0	
24	0	21	0	0	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	0		0	D	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
25	D	22	0	0	0	D	0	0	D	0	0	0		0	D	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	
26	0	23	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
27	0	24	0	0	0	0	0	0	0.	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0.	0	.0	
29	0	25	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	D	0	0	0	0	D	0	0	
30	0	27	ő	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	ő	0		0	0	0	ő	0	0	0	0	0	
31	0	28	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
32	0	29	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	
33	0	30	0	۵	0	0	0	0	0	0	0	0		0	0	0	0	٥	0	0	0	0	
H F	depe	edant	+															8	8 00	e		- + 100	0%.

Edit

tome Insert Draw Peeter A Calibri I Peeter A B I 3 I X J Contributor Age vs Age 0 0 1 Contributor Age vs Age 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 5 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 1 0 0 1 0 1 0	v Page	Layout	Formulas	1 NO.41																
A Calibri I Beir A Contributor Age vs Age O O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 0 0 O 10 0 O 10 0 O 110 0 O 110 0 O 120 0	Radul			a Data	Review	View	🖓 Tell me											19 Shar	Co	mments
B 7 Contributor Age vs Age Contributor Age vs Age 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 20 0 30 0 40 0 50 0 6 0 80 0 110 0 80 0 110 0 120 0 110 0 110 0 120 0 110 0 110 0 110 0 100 0 1000 0 100 0 1000 0 100 0 1000 0 1000 0	month	× 12	~ A'	A' =	二圓		🐉 Wrap Te	est. v	General			11. v	1	- 1/2 -		R. 🛱	<u>Σ</u> *	47-1	0.	14
A B Contributor Age vs Age 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 5 0 0 6 0 0 8 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 0	<u>u</u> - 11	Ē *	0 - A -	14	= =	12 22	Marge 8	& Center >	\$ - %		1 -01	Conditional	Format	Cell	Insert D	elete Format	1 ×	Sort & F	nd & I	deau
A 0 Contributor Age vs Age 0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 5 0 0 6 0 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 10 0 0 110 0 120 0 13 0 0 13 0 0 13 0 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 2 0 0 10 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0 10 0 0 0 0 0	fx =0.1/1	4										, an intering	as tailed a	dines.				10000	010-1	
Contributor Age vs Age 0 0 0 0 10 0 30 0 40 0 50 0 70 0 80 0 90 0 110 0 110 0 112 0 132 0 132 0 132 0 132 0 132 0 142 0 15 0 5 0 5 0 5 0 5 0 5 0 5 0 5 0	с	D.	Ε	F	G	н	- F.	1.	8	1	м	N	0	Р	Q	. 8	5	Ŧ	U	v
0 0 0 0 10 0 2 0 0 30 0 40 0 50 0 70 0 80 0 90 0 90 0 100 0 110 0 1120 0 1120	0	0	0	0	0 0	0	0	0	0	U		0	0	0	0	0	0 0	9	0	0
0 0 0 0 0 1 0 0 2 0 0 4 0 0 5 0 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 9 0 0 110 0 110 0 120 0 130	0	1	2	3	4	5	б	7	8	9	1	0 1	1 1	2	13	14 1	5 16	1	7	18
0 10 0 20 0 30 0 40 0 50 0 60 0 70 0 80 0 90 0 100 0 110 0 110 0 1120 0 130 0 130	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007143	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	5 0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 2 0 0 3 0 0 5 0 0 6 0 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 9 0 0 10 0 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0 0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 3 0 0 4 0 0 5 0 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 9 0 0 10 0 0 11 0 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	D.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	85 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	\$5 0.007
0 4 0 0 5 0 0 6 0 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 9 0 0 11 0 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0 0 13 0	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	0.0071428	6 0.007142	#6 0.007
0 5 0 0 6 0 0 7 0 0 8 0 0 10 0 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 12 0 0 13 0 0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00/14286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.00/14	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714280	0.0071428	6 0.007142	36 0.007
0 7 0 0 8 0 0 9 0 0 100 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0 0 13 0	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.00714	0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	95 0.007
0 80 0 90 0 100 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0 0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714280	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071420	6 0.007142	DE 0.00714	196 0.0071428	6 0.00714280	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	NE 0.007
0 9 0 0 10 0 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0 0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071426	6 0.007143	86 0.00714	186 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	0.0071426	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 10 0 0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0	00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071425	6 0.007143	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 /0 007142	85 0.007
0 11 0 0 12 0 0 13 0	00714285	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	5 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007143	85 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714280	0.0071478	6 0.007142	85 0.007
0 12 0 0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714786	0.00714285	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071429	6 0.007142	85 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 13 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007143	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	85 0.007
0 14 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071429	6 0.007142	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	66 0.007
U 14 U	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.007142B	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 15 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 16 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	\$6 0.007
0 17 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	5 0.0071428	6 0.007142	\$5 0.007
0 18 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0,00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007143	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	\$6 0.007
0 19 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007143	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	0.0071428	6 0.007142	36 0.007
0 20 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714280	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	36 0.007
0 21 0	00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714786	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00/14288	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	25 0.007
0 22.0	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714786	0.00714285	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.00714	0.00714	196 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	0.0071428	6 0.0071420	NE 0.007
0 23 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714205	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714280	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071420	6 0.00714	285 0.00714	186 0.0071428	5 0.00714280	0.0071428	6 0.007142	NS 0.007
0 24 0	00714284	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714786	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714296	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071475	6 0.00714	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714786	0.0071435	6 0.007142	85 0.007
0 25 0	00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	285 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	85 0.007
0 27 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071426	6 0.00714	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.007
0 28 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	86 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714280	0.0071428	5 0.007142	85 0.007
0 29 0	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.007142	\$5 0.007
0 30 0	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.00714285	0.00714286	0.00714286	0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.0071428	6 0.007142	286 0.00714	286 0.0071428	6 0.00714288	0.0071428	6 0.007142	66 0.007
k dependent	+																			

International Labour Organization UUD/HEALT	' H rm in Social	Security / Ti	est Institution - Sw	itzerland													*test
Models Scenario Configuration														1 Us	er Name	e	Logout
Name	I Ifama	ctl Exped	ted number	of survivors	from d	leath o	factive	contr	ibutor (s	c.s.a.xa	(x)						
Scheme: Main		10.00									<u></u>						
	I No	Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)	Check Out	🕏 Ex	cp. CSV	R To XLSX										
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	Contrib	uter rest		25.013					72000								
Inputs	Contrib	utor sex.		Sex:	Male				Group:	Custard							
Demographic, economic and labour	Male																
Coverage	A1:82		fx 0.0071	42857													
 Contributors 	1	A	В	c		D		E		F		G		н	1		1
 Ealaries/average and growth rates 	1	Contribut	or Age vs Age		.72		.72		.72		72		2	.72		.72	
 Econtribution rates and average cont 	2		20100	0		1		2		3		4		5	6		7
 Population entitled to health service 	3		2 0		.01		_01		.01	=	11	Å	1	.01		.01	
[iract] Insurance rate of active con	4	3	72 1		.01		.01		.01	4	01		11)	.01		.01	
[irres] Insured residual active cont	5		2 2		.01		.01		.01	24	01	1	(a)	,01		.01	
[Inspensir] Initial insured pension	0		2 3		.01		_01		.01	-	01		1	.01		.01	
[Inspension] Initial insured surviv			(2) 6		.01		01		.01		11	1	1	01		.01	
Four Probability of death of an ins	0		2.0		.01		01		.01	- 4	11		n			.01	
[famast] Expected number of supi	10		20		.01		_01		.01	1	11			.01		.01	
famber of solver	11		2 8		.01		01		01	-	14	1	4	01		.01	
[rampens] Expected number of su	12	1	2.0		.01		01		01	-	11	- 2		01		01	
[Included] lakes the value of 1 or	13		72.10		01		01		01		01		1	.01		01	
[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	14		2 11		.01		01		.01		01		1	.01		.01	
 Health Expenditure 	15		2 12		.01		01		01		11		1	.01		01	
 Cash benefit expenditure 	16	1	2 13		.01		D1		.01	- 1	11	4	1	.01		.01	
 Other expenditure 	17		2 14		.01		_01		_01	1	01		n	.01		.01	
Costs or fees for health services	18	3	2 15		.01		.01		.01	1	01		1	.01		.01	
 Health utilization frequencies and co 	19	1	72 16		.01		.01		.01		11	A	1	.01		.01	
 Goverment transferences and other 	20	3	2 17		.01		.01		.01	1	01	10	1	.01		.01	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	21		2 18		.01		.01		.01	1	01	.4	n .	.01		.01	
Historical information series	22	1	2 19		.01		.01		.01	L	01	3	1	.01		.01	
	23		PD - 00		64		64		01		14			214		D.A.	

[famact] Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)

1 No Sur	m(col) *** No :	Sum(row)	Check Out	🖹 Exp. CSV	R To XLSX						
Contributo	or sex:		Sex: A	tale		Group	Custard				
Male	ж .										
a sector		0.0071	42857								
Male		в	С	D		E	F.	G	н	т.	J
Female		1000		.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	
-		Age	0	1		2	3	4	5	6	7
3	.72 0			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	/0.1	
4	.72 1			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
5	.72 2			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	10.1	
6	.72 3			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	01	
7	.72 4			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
8	72.5			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	10.	
9	72 6			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	01	
10	32.7			.01	.01	.01	01	.01	.01	.01	
H)	.72 8			_01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
12	.72 9			.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	.01	.01	
13	.72 10			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
14	.72 11			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	01	
15	32 12			_01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
16	.72 13			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
17	.72 14			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
18	.72 15			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
19	.72 16			_01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
20	72 17			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	01	
21	.72 18			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
22	.72 19			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
23	77 78			01	01	0.4	64	114	01	ne	

[famact] Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)

No Sum(col) Mo Sum(row)	O Check Out	🔒 Exp. CSV	To XLSX
-----------------------------	-------------	------------	---------

Contrib	utor sex:	Sex	Male	× Ŧ	Group	Custand				
Male A1:82	fx 0.007142	857	Male							
	A B	C	Female		E	F	G	н	a	J
1	Contributor Ape vs Ape	-	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	
2	sememeter rigs rerige	0		1	2	3	4	5	6	7
3	.72 0		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
4	.72 1		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
5	72 2		.01	.05	.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	
6	,72.3		.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	,01	.01	
7	72 4		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	±0,	.01	
8	.72 5		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
9	,72 6		.01	.03	.01	,01	.01	.01	.01	
0	72 7		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	
1			.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	
2	.72 9		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	301	.01	
3	.72 10		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	
4	.72 11		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
5	,72 12		.01	,01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
6	.72 13		.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	,01	.01	
7	72 14		.01	,01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
8	.72 15		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
9	.72 16		.01	.01	.01	0.1	.01	.01	.01	
0	.72 17		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
1	.72 18		.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
2	.72 19		.01	.01	.01	,01	.01	.01	.01	
19	22.50		01	01	101	0.0	01	04	01	

[famact] Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)

🚦 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 🞯 Check Out 😰 Exp. CSV 📑 To XLSX

Contrib	outor sex:		Sex: Female		Grou	P: Custard				
Male										
A1:92	1.00	fx 0.007142	857							
	A	в	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Contributo	r Annun Ann	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	
2	Gonetouro	i ville se ville	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
3	.73	2 0	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
4	.73	2.1	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
5	.71	2 2	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
6	.73	2 3	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
7	.73	4	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
8	.73	2 5	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
9	.73	2 6	.01	.01	10,	.01	.01	,01	.01	
10	.71	2.7	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
11	.73	8	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
12	.73	9	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
13	.73	2 10	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
14	.73	2 11	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
15	.73	12	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
16	.71	2 13	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
17	.73	2 14	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
18	.73	2 15	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
19	.73	16	.D1	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
20	.73	2 17	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
21	.73	18	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
22	.7	2 19	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
23	73	20	01	01	01	01	01	01	01	

17 International	Fevorities	Today	*	Date Modified	Size	Kind			~
Labour ILO/HEAL	Fill Setapp	dependent	/08V	Today, 5126 RM	124 KB	CSV Document	8		*test
Organization Quantitative Pla	The second	entrydist.c	sv	Today, 1/37 PM	6 KB	CSV Decument			test
	Recents	- mort_femal	e.csv	Today, 11:52 AM	14 KB	CSV Document			\sim
Models Scenario Configuration	Applications	- mort_male.	csv	Today, 11:50 AM	14 KB	CSV Document	1 Us	er Name 🕞	Logout
	Documents	Walkstymus	in Theory, Sal Pactorn,7 (3) July.	Today, 12:31 PM	7.2.54枯	Micros_Ldoex)			
lame	Deskton	 Walkthrough 	h mining_lattern(3 (3) (1) date	Today, #145 FM	加外在另 群	Micros-Lilacit)	User Name)		
cheme: Main	- IIII Desktop	Yesterday							
	O Downloads	C Walkithmut	in throug, al Platform 3 121 doca-	Teldentay 3.29 Ptd	111.27.570	Micros. Ldocki) Exp. CSV 🛃 To I	(LSX	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	ILO / OIT	Previous 7 Days							
inputs	iCloud	Arthoptal +	port-outline and increasion	7/22/20, 8/59 AM	2月)(計	Micros (doi:4)			
 Endergraphic, economic and labour 	Childloud Drive	🖉 lista pere s	walkthmug doox	7/27/20, 5/35 PM	1.0 KB	Merns, (dires)			
Overage	in the second second	 Working H 	ILQ Actuarial Health Tool docs	7/26/20, 2:56 PM	1.5 MD	Micros-(stoc)()			
Contributors	Tegs	Previous 30 Deve					н	1	3
Salaries/average and growth rates	Blue	E Devol Pa		TITLET STATAS	10107		.00	.00	
Contribution rates and average cont	Yellow	ILO HEALT					5	6	7
Benulation entitled to health consist	Grann	C ILO HEALT		7718/20, 1/20 PM	21.7 MB		.00	.00	
Population entitled to health service	- Green	ILO HEALT	H Drieft 1,38063020,NS1	7/21/20, 2 59 PM	21.7 MB	Micros (stora)	.00	00	
[rract] insurance rate of active con	@ Gray	-			_		.00	.00	
[irres] insured residual active cont	Ontions				Can	net Down	.00	.00	
[Inspensir] Initial insured pension	options				- Curr		.00	.00	
[linspenswo] Initial insured surviv	8	.00 5	.00	.0000.	0.)	,00 ,00,	00, 00	.00	
[qir] Probability of death of an ins	9	.00.6	.00	.00 .00	1. Sec. 1	.00 .00	00, 00	.00	
[famact] Expected number of survi	10	.00.7	.00	.00 .00	thi i	.00 .00	00. 0	.00	
[fampens] Expected number of su	11	.00 8	.00	.00 .00		.00 .00	00, 00	.00	
[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12	.00.9	.00	.00 .00).	,00, 00,	00. 00	.00	
[gwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	.00.10	.00	.00 .00	1	.00.	00, 00	.00	
Health Expenditure	14	.00 11	.00	.00 .00	0.16	.00 .00.	00, 00	.00	
Cash benefit evnenditure	15	.00.12	.00	.00 .00		1. 00.	00, 00	.00	1
Other exceediture	16	.00 13	.00	.0000.	1.	.00.	00. 0	.00	
Costs on Excentional P	17	.00.14	.00	.00, .00	1	2, 00.	00.00	.00	
Costs or rees for health services	18	.00 15	.00	.00 .00)	.00 .00.	00.00	.00	
 Health utilization frequencies and co 	19	.00 16	.00	.00 .00		.00.	00. 0	.00	
 Boverment transferences and other 	20	.00 17	.00	.00 ,00		.00 .00	0.00	00.	_
Reserve Fund and interest rate	21	.00 18	00.	.00 .00		.00 .00	00.00	.00	1
 Historical Information series 	22	.00 19	.00	.00 .00		.00 .00	00,00	00.	_
	7.5	11/1/20		.00		00 /		80.	

Ser.	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m in Social	Security / Te	est Institution - Swit	zenand														*tes	at
М	odels Scenario Configuration															1 U	ser Name		Logout	
Nar	ne	Ifama	ctl Exper	ted number o	fsurvivor	from a	leath o	factive	contr	ibutor i	ler e n	YC Y			-					
Sch	eme' Main	Terrie	oil Exher		1 301 11101	, nom e	Joanno	i douvo	come		(20,2,9	10,11								
-	Mon .	t. No	Sum(col)	···· No Sum(row)	Check Du		ip. CSV	Toxas	TX .											
	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	a second	and the second				_													
4	Inputs	Contrib	utor sex:		Sex:	Female				Group	p: Custa	nd		T						
	Demographic economic and labour	Female	e																	
	Coverage	A1:82	*	fx 0.00714	2857															
1	Contributors		A	8	C		D		E		F		6		н		- Y		J	10
	Salarles/average and prowth rates	1	2010/01/02	and the second second		.72		.72		.72		.72		72		.72		.72		10
1	Contribution rates and average cont	2	Contribut	or Age vs Age	0		1		2		3		- 4		5		6		7	
1	Ponulation entitled to health service	3	.7	72 0		.01		.01		.01		.01		10		.01		10.		8
	[iract] Incurance rate of artise con	4		72.1		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		
	Final Insurance rate of active cont.	5		72 2		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		10.		671
	Intestinisated residual active cont	6	7	72 3		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		
	[Iinspensir] Initial insured pension	7	1	72.4		.01		.01		.01		.01		01		.01		01		
	[Iinspenswo] Initial Insured surviv	8	.7	72 5		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.Bt		
	[qir] Probability of death of an ins	9	07	72.6		.01		10.		.01		.01		01		10.		.01		
	[famact] Expected number of survi	10	.7	72 7		.01		.01		.01		.01		01		01		01		
	[fampens] Expected number of su	11	17	72 8		.01		.01		.01		.01		01		.01		-84		
	[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12		72 9		.01				.01		.01		/01		.01		.01		
	[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	17	72 10	-	.01		101		.01		.01		.01		.01		-01		
	Health Expenditure	14	1	72 11		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		,01		
	Cash benefit expenditure	10	1	72 12		.01		101		-01		.01		01		-01		.01		
	Other expenditure	10		12 13		.01				.01		.01		.01		.01		.01		
	Costs or fees for health services	10		12 14	-	.01		UT Of		.01		.01		01		.01		01		
	Health utilization frequencies and co	19	1	C 10		01		101		01		10.5		03		01		-04		
	Comment transformers and other	20	1	73 47	1	01		10		01		01		.01		. 01		0.4		
1	Persona Sund and interact rate	21		72 18		01		01		01		01		01		01		01		
	Interior in the most interest rate	22	7	72 19		D1		.01		.01		.01		.01		01		.01		
	The restored and the second second second	23	1	70 20		01				.01		.01		01		.01		01		

[famact] Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)

I No	s Sum(col) *** No Sum(row)	⊖ Check Out 🔹 Ex	p. CSV 💦 To XL	sx					
Contrib	outor sex:	Sex: Male		Group	Custand				
Fema	le 👻								
A1:82	 fx 0.007 	142857							
Banny	A B	Ċ	D	E	F	G	н	1.	
1	A STATE OF STATE	.72	72	.72	72	.72	.72	.72	
2	Contributor Aga vs Aga	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
3	.72 0	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
4	.72 1	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
5	.72 2	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
6	.72 3	.01	.01	.01	.01	10.	.01	.01	
7	.72.4	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
8	.72 5	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
9	.72 6	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
10	.72 7	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
11	.72 8	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
12	,72 9	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
13	.72 10	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
14	.72:11	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
15	.72 12	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01		
16	.72 13	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
17	.72 14	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
18	.72 15	.01	.01	.01	/01	.01	.01	.01	
19	,72 16	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	01	
20	,72 17	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
21	.72 18	.01	.01	.01	:01	.01	.01	01	
22	.72 19	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
23	72 20	01	01	Dt	61	01	01	01	

Ser.	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H rm in Social	Security / Test Institution - S	witzerland							*test
Mo	odels Scenario Configuration								👤 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Nam	ie ie	Ifamp	ens] Expected numb	er of survivors fror	n death of a p	ensioners (s	r.s.a.xr.x)		and a second		
Sche	eme: Main	Touris					inergio inter				
		1 No	Sum(col) *** No Sum(row)	🛛 Check Out 🔹 E	xp. CSV 🛃 To Xi.	SX					
	senter search criteria here>	Pension	ler sex.	Com.		· · ·	-				
4	Inputs	a contract	int prov.	Sex: Male		GIDL	ip: Custand	<u></u>			
*	Demographic, economic and labour	Male									
	iii Coverage	A1:82	• Jx 0.007	14286							2.12 18
	Contributors	1	A B	C	D	E	5	G	н	1.	4
	Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Pensioner Age vs Age	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	
*	Contribution rates and average cont	-	Sarro	0	1	2	3			0	-
1	Population entitled to health service	4	.72 0		.01	,01	01	.01	.01	.01	
	[iract] Insurance rate of active con		.72.3		.01		.01	.01	.01	.01	-
	[irres] Insured residual active cont		72.2	01	.01	.01	.01				
	[linspensir] Initial insured pension	7	72.4	01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
	[Iinspenswo] Initial insured surviv		77.5		01	.01	01	.01			
	[qir] Probability of death of an ins	9	73.6		.01	.01					
	[famact] Expected number of survi	10	79.7	.01	.01	10.	01	01	.01	41	
	[fampens] Expected number of su	10	79.8	01	.01	.01	.01			101	
	[included] Takes the value of 1 or	12	72.9	61	.01	01	01	01	.01	05	
	[qwo] Probability of death of a sur	13	72 10	01	.01	01	01	01		01	
	Health Expenditure	14	72 11	01	01	.01	01	01	01	01	
	Cash benefit expenditure	15	72.12	01	.01	01	01	01	01	01	
	Other expenditure	16	77 13	01	01	01	01	01	.01	.01	
	Costs or fees for health services	17	72 14	.01	.01	01	01	01	.01	05	
	Health utilization frequencies and co	18	72 15	.01	.01	01	.01	01	01	.01	
	Government transferences and other	19	.72 18	.01	.01	.01	01	.01	.01	01	
	Persona Fund and interact rate	20	72 17	.01	.01	.01	01	.01	.01	01	
	Untering information series	21	.72 18	01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
	Fistorical mornadori series	22	70 40	04	01	01	01	01		01	

[fampens] Expected number of survivors from death of a pensioners $({\rm sr},{\rm s},{\rm g},{\rm xr},{\rm x})$

🕴 No Sum(col) 🗰 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX

Pension	er sex:		Sex: Fe	male			Group:	Custard		*					
Male															
A1:82		fx 0.00714	286												
	٨	в	C	D		E		F	G		н		1	J	
1	Paneinne	Annun Ann		72	.72		.72	.72		.72		.72	.72		
2		and a second a	0	1		2		3	. 4		5		6	7	
3	.73	2.0	0	.01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
4	-7	2)1		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
5	.7	2.2		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
8	.7.	2 3		.01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
7	.73	2.4		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
8	.7	2.5		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
9	.7	2 6		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
10	.7	2 7		.01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
11	7	2 8		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
12	.71	2.9		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
13	.7.	2 10		.01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
14	.7	2 11		01	.01		,01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
15	.7.	2 12		10	101		.01	.01		.01		10.	.01		
16	- 7	2 13		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
17	.7	2 14		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
18	.7	2 15		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
19		7 16		01	701		.01	.01		.01		01	.01		
20	.7	2 17		.01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
21	.73	2 18		01	.01		.01	.01		.01		.01	.01		
22	7	1 10		01	01		19.0	.01		0.1		0.1	04		

[fampens] Expected number of survivors from death of a pensioners (sr,s,g,xr,x)

🗄 No Sum(col) 🐘 No Sum(row) 🞯 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🔅 To XLSX

Pensi	oner sex:	Sex: Female		Group	Custard				
Fem	ale 🗸								
A1:82	 fx Pension 	er Age vs Age							
	A 8	C	D	E	F	G	н		(1 1))
1	Pensioner Age vs Age	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	
4			1	2	3		.9		1
4	.72.0	.07	.01	.01	.01	01	.01	.01	
	.72.1	.01	.01		.01	.01	.01	.01	
6	.72 %			.01		01	.01	.01	
7	77.4	.01	01	01		01	.01	.01	
8	72.5	.01	.01	01	.01	01	61	01	
9	72.6	01	01	01	01	.01	.01	.01	
10	72.7	D1	.01	.01	.01	01	01	01	
11	72.8	.01	01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
12	.72.9	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
13	.72 10	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
14	.72.11	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
15	.72 12	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
16	.72 13	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
17	.72 14	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
18	.72 15	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
19	.72 16	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
20	.72 17	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
21	.72 18	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
22	70.40	0.0	0.1	0.1	01	0.0	0.4	. 64	

			And and a second						
ension	er sex:	Sex: Malo		Group	Custard	141			
Female									
1:82		286							
1	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1.5	J
1	Bourlosor Annue Ann	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	.72	
2	Fellandriet Age va Age	0	1	2	3	4	5	6	7
ł.	.72 0	.01	.01	,01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
	72 1	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	10.	,01	
5	.72 2	.01	.01	.D1	01	.01	.01	.01	
	.72 3	01	.01	.01	.01	.01	01	,01	
6	.72.4	.01	.01	.D1	.01	.01	.01	.01	
8	.72 5	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	,01	
9	.72 6	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	10.	10.	
0	.72 7	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
1	.72 8	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	101	
2	.72 9	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	,01	
3	.72 10	_01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
4	.72 11	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
5	.72 12	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	10.	.01	
6	.72 13	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	,01	
7	.72 14	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
8	.72 15	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.,01	
9	72 16	.01	.01	.01	t0.	.01	.01	.01	
0	.72 17	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.0.8	
1	.72 18	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	.01	
12	1 2 2 3 1 2 3			0.0			0.4		

The final matrix in the section is [included]. This matrix shows whether a given population group is insured. To inform ILO/HEALTH that a population group is insured, users should enter a 1 next to them in this matrix.

Prior knowledge of which groups are included, and which inputs are used to calculate them can save users time and help avoid filling in matrices that will not affect the calculation at the end. Before deciding to fill the [included] matrix, users need to consider that:

- The first group mentioned is *all* active contributors, both those who have fulfilled the waiting period after their first contribution (and thus become insured) and those who have not. Inputting 1 here means that all contributors receive insurance regardless of whether they have fulfilled a waiting period. Another way to look at this is: If the scheme has no waiting periods, users should write 1 in the row for active contributors. If the scheme has waiting periods, they should leave 0 in the first row and input 1 in the second.
- The second group, insured active contributors, is a subset of the first, so entering 1 in both leads to duplication, for which reason it is advisable to write 1 in either active contributors OR insured active contributors. This number is determined by whether or not the scheme has a waiting period.
- The third group, residual insured contributors, is useful if the scheme has residual insurance periods for inactive contributors. If this is the case, enter 1.
- The next two groups, disability and retirement insured pensioners and Insured survivor pensioners correspond to pensioner coverage. If they do not have access to health insurance, input 0. If they do, enter 1.
- The last option is to extend coverage to family dependants. Again, input 1 if this is the case, otherwise, 0.

→ For this example, all rows **except the first** need to have 1, the first row stays at 0.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H rm in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland	
Models Scenario Configuration		
Name	[included] Takes the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on whether the value of 1 or 0 depending on the value of 1 or	nether the population k of group g is entitled or.
Scheme: Main *	Granework (concerning) (concerning)	
center search criteria heres	i No Sum(col) *** No Sum(row) @ Check Out 2, Exp. CSV	R To XLSX
venter search chiterie nerez	- Group: curted	
Inputs		
Demographic, economic and labour	tion fr. Regulation	
 Coverage 	Alisz - Ji Population	
	1	6 00
Salaries/average and growth rates	2 Population	Value
Contribution rates and average cont	3 .00 Active contributors	.00
 Population entitled to health service 	4 1.00 Insured active contributors	1.00
First Insurance rate or active con	5 1.00 Residual insured contributors	1.00
Intest insured residual active cont	6. 7.00 Disability and retirement insured pensioners	1.00
[Iinspensir] Initial insured pension	7 1.00 Insured survivors pensioners	1.00
[Inspenswo] Initial Insured surviv	8 1.00 Family dependants	1.00
[qir] Probability of death of an ins		
[famact] Expected number of survi		
[fampens] Expected number of su		
[included] Takes the value of 1 or		
[qwo] Probability of death of a sur		

6.2.4. Running the demographic projection

This is an excellent moment to run the demographic projection, for two reasons:

- 1. All demographic inputs have been completed, so users can practice the Run scenario routine; and
- 2. If all inputs have been correctly entered, the run will be successful, so users will know that the exercise has been performed correctly so far to continue with the next sections. If not, users can review the steps completed before continuing to add more potential sources of problems for running scenarios.

To run the Scenario, users should go to the Scenario menu, select the Scenario name and then Run. In the options, choose All schemes, and Demographic type of run.

The run takes place remotely and users will be informed by email whether it was successful. If successful, users can check some of the matrices in Demographic outputs. Most of them are intermediate results. The most interesting matrix is [Inssx], which shows the age and sex distribution of all populations with rights to access healthcare services.

Internati Labour Organiza	ation ILO/HEALTH	in Social Security / Test Institut	ion - Switzerland					*test
Models Scenario	Configuration						🌲 User Name 🕞	Logout
New @ Open	13 Copy 📋 Delete 🛛 🔍 Run	🛃 Export all scenario 🛛 🕲 (ompletion brief					
Code	Name	T Last Updated	Calculated	General Calculation Log				
Model: 2020.07.28 -	Name			Model:	Tec Model 01	*		
08081970	Name	28/07/2020		Code:	08081970	Name:	Name	
1	Test	26/02/2020	•	Description:	Practice scenario			
				Created by:	User Name		28/07/2020 15:00:08	
				Modified by:	Modified by		Modified date	
				Calculated:				
				201			Save Can	cel





Scenario Calculation | ILO/HEALTH [Costa Rica-TEC]



Hi, User Name

Scenario calculation process completed!

 Code:
 08081970

 Name:
 Name [Costa Rica/TEC]

 Calculation:
 Demographics

 Status:
 Success

Message: -N/A-.

6.3. Filling in the financial inputs

6.3.1. Filling in the contribution rate matrix and contribution months

To input the contribution rate, in the navigation tree, users should select Inputs > Contribution rates and Average contributions, then the matrix Contribution rate [crg] and check out. The matrix requires the expected contribution rate in place for every year of the projection for each of the population groups in the model.^{35 36}

- → For this exercise, the contribution rate is 10 per cent of the salaries for all years for the only population group included. Users should fill in the first cell of the matrix with 10 per cent and then drag or copy it into the remaining rows of the matrix.
- → In the same folder, select the [contmonths], months of contribution per year and change the value to 14 (the default value is 12).

International J ILO/HEALTH Organization Quantizative Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Senzerland Models Scenario Configuration			International LO/HEALTH Organization Quantizative Patform in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland Models Scenario Configuration			
teme: Man I two Suefood Conter is auch criteria hence Fronts Group: Casted Group: Casted Conter is auch criteria hence Fronts Group: Casted Conter is auch criteria hence Fronts Fronts			Scheme: Main Control Control Lenson Group: Custor Group: Custor Control Control Lenson Group: Custor Control			
Eoverage	A1:82 * 5x 10%		 Coverage A1.82 * fx 14 			
 Contributors 	A B	c	 Contributors 		A B	C
Salaries/average and growth rates Gostribution rates and average contrib	1 Projection time	100.00% Vatue	Salaries/average and growth rates Southing other and mercane contribution	1 2	Projection time	154.00 Value
(org) Contribution rate expressed as (contromitation. Population entitled to health services p Population entitled to health services p Population entitled to health services Coshs ories for health services Population expenditure Coshs ories for health services Health utilization frequencies and cove Government strandereces and cover Pessarve Fund and intervent rate Historical information series Health packages (from Configuration)	3 10,0%;228 4 10,0%;221 5 11,0%;221 7 10,0%;223 7 10,0%;223 8 10,0%;225 9 10,0%;225 9 10,0%;225 11 10,0%;228 12 10,0%;228	1000% 1000% 1000% 1000% 1000% 1000% 1000%	[org] Contribution rate expressed as [org] Contribution rate expressed as Population entitled to health services p Health Expenditure Other expenditure Other expenditure Other expenditure Other expenditure Government transferences and other re Reservers that and interest rate Historical information series Historical information series	3 6 7 9 10 11 12 13	(4.00) 2819 (4.00) 2920 (4.00) 2920 (4.00) 2922 (4.00) 2923 (4.00) 2924 (4.00) 2925 (4.00) 2926 (4.00) 2926 (4.00) 2928 (4.00) 2928	14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400 14.400

6.3.2. Filling in the matrices for modelling the average wage

The matrices in this section contain information on replacement rates, salaries and inflation rates.

The matrix on average replacement rate is found in: Inputs > Historical information series.

→ The average replacement rate, [rep], is assumed to be 35 per cent of the average salary for all pensions over the years.

³⁵ ILO/HEALTH takes into account the possibility of different contribution rates for each group since different sectors or types of status in employment pay different contribution rates in many countries.

³⁶ The entries in the matrix correspond to the full legal contribution rate as a percentage of the insurable salary (the salary simulated in ILO/HEALTH). The contribution rate among constituents is not included in the model as it does not usually affect scheme sustainability. The risk that some distributions of obligations will affect the liquidity of the scheme is not considered in most cases; nevertheless, if the risk is high, an alternative is to model effective rather than legal contributions.


In terms of salaries, ILO/HEALTH requests two sets of salaries per age for each sex. One [Isal] is the empirical average monthly salary by age observed over the base year. The other, [ITsal], is the theoretical salary curve, the expected value of the monthly salary by age. These matrices are found in: Inputs > Salaries/average and growth rates.

The empirical salary will be adjusted and applied to wage workers of the base year expected to continue to contribute in the future, while the adjusted theoretical salary applies to future contributors that are not contributing in the base year. Both series are expected to be related, e.g., the latter is calculated using the former.

→ The initial average monthly salary, [Isal], is 0.0. Check out and in to increase the completion rate.

The model needs the theoretical salary [ITsal] to be a number other than zero to apply to all future contributors. For the example, salary follows the formula below for female and for male, with *x* representing age. Users should try to complete this using the formula in the matrix [ITsal] before continuing.

The steps are as follows:

- → For males, check out the male matrix from [ITsal], select cell C3, write =30*LN(0.8*B3), and extend the formula to all rows. Check in.
- → For females, check out the female matrix from [ITsal], select cell C3, write =25*LN(B3), and extend the formula to all rows. Check in.
- → The average salary growth rate, [asg_in], is 1 per cent per year.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	1 n in Soci	al Security / Test It	stitution - I	witzerland	ILO/HEALTH Organization Quunticative Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland	
Models Stenario Configuration					Models Scenario Configuration	
More Control Configuration Name Control Configuration Scheme: Man	[]sal 5ex: A1:52 1 2 3 4 5 6 7 8 9 10 11 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 20 21	Monthly initia visitingiti Male A B		20 Salary (s.g.x) C Check Out C Contard C C Value C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	Works: Schwinz Configuration Sterrier: Main Main Sterrier: Main Sterrier: Sterrier: Main Sterrier: Sterrier: Sterrier: Sterrier: Sterrier: Sterrier:	(s.g.x) South(see
	22 23	.00 3 07 3	0	60 01	22 00/34 00 23 00/34 00 23 00/36 00	

[ITsal] Initial Theoretical average salary curve (s,g,) [ITsal] Initial Theoretical average salary curve (s,g,x) [ITsal] Initial Theoretical average salary curve

1 P	to Sum(col)	···· No	Sum(row)	Check Out B. Exp. CSV	H Save	Se Clean	Si Copy	i No Sum(col)	No Sum(row)		No Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)	Check Out Exp
Sex:	Male		٠	Group: Custard	Sex: Fer	nale		Group:	Custard	Sex:	Female	•	Group: Custare
A1:82		fx	74.547	19949364	а	•	fx =25*L	N(83)		A1:82	÷	fx 67.70	1255027555
	A		в	C		A	В	С			A	в	С
1		49495.5		5,661.79	1	1.00			.00	1		2000 N	4,919,13
2		Age		Value	2	Age		Value		2		Age	Value
3	74	55 15		74.55	3	00 1	1	=25*LN(B3)		3	67.3	70 15	67.70
4	76	48 16		76.48	4	.00 1	5		.00	4	69.3	31 16	69.31
5	78,	30 17		78.30	5	.00 1	1		.00	Б	70.8	33 17	70.83
6	80.	02 18		80.02	6	.00 1	3		.00	6	72.1	26 18	72.26
7	81.	64 19		81.64	7	.00 1	2		.00	7	73.6	57 19	73.61
8	83.	18 20		83.18	8	.00 2	3		.00	8	74.8	39 20	74.89
9	84.	64 21		84.64	9	.00 2	1		.00	9	76.	11 21	76.11
10	86.	04 22		86.04	10	.00 2	2		.00	10	77.3	28 22	77.28
11	87.	37 23		87.37	11	.00 2	3		.00	11	78.3	19 23	78.39
12	88.	65 24		88.65	12	.00 2	\$.00	12	79.4	15 24	79.45
13	89.	87 25		89.87	13	.00 2	5		.00	13	80.4	17 25	80.47
14	91.	05 26		91,05	14	.00 2	5 () () () () () () () () () (.00	14	81.4	15 26	81,45
15	92	18 27		92.18	15	.00 2	1		.00	15	82.4	10 27	82.40
16	93.	27 28		93.27	16	.00 2	3		.00	16	83.3	31 28	83.31
17	94.	32 29		94.32	17	.00 2	a (.00	17	84.1	18 29	84.18
18	95.	34 30		95.34	18	.00 3	0		.00	18	85.0	33 30	85.03
19	96.	33 31		96.33	19	.00 3	r).		.00	19	85.8	15 31	85.85
20	97.	28 32		97.28	20	.00 3	2		.00	20	86.0	14 32	86.64
21	98.	20 33		98.20	21	.00 3	3		.00	21	87.4	11 33	87.41
22	99.	10 34		99,10	22	.00 3	4		.00	22	88.1	16 34	88.16
23	.00	35 70		00.07	23	00.3			00	23	0.0.1	10.35	00.00

Models Scenario Configuration						
lame 🔳	[asg_i	n] Assum	ed sa	alary gr	owth rate (g,t)	
cheme: Main *						
senter search criteria here>	± N0	Sum(col)	No S	um(row)	Check Out	SV ER TO
	Group:	Custard				
Demographic economic and labour fo						
Coverage	A1:82		fx	196		
Contributors		A		в	C	
 Salaries/average and growth rates 	1	Basia			17.00%	
Isal Monthly initial average salary (2	Froler	tion an	14	Value	
ITsall Initial Theoretical average sal	3	1.005	£ 2019		1.00%	
asg in Assumed salary growth rate	4	1.005	6 2020		1.00%	
Contribution rates and average contrib	5	1.005	6 2021		1.00%	
Population entitled to health services n	6	1.005	6 2022		1.00%	
Health Expanditure	1	1.005	6 2023		1.00%	
Cash benefit expenditure	8	1.005	6 2024		1.00%	
Other expenditure	10	1.005	2025		1.00%	
Forte experiature	11	1.005	2020		1.00%	
Costs or rees for health services	12	1.005	2028		1.00%	
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	13	1.005	2029		1.00%	
 Goverment transferences and other re 	-11213		and the second		the second	
Reserve Fund and Interest rate						
 Historical information series 						
 Health packages (From Configuration) 						

144

The matrix on inflation is found in: Inputs > Demographic, economic and labour force.

➔ Inflation [inf] is assumed to be 0 per cent. This can be interpreted as the whole scenario being formulated in terms of real values. Check out and check in to increase the completion rate.



6.3.3. Filling in the matrix for modelling administrative expenses

The matrix for modelling administrative expenses is found in: Inputs > Other expenditure. This model will use 10 per cent of programme costs.

- ILO/HEALTH itive Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Switz Configuration [III] [adm] Percentage over benefit expense for calculation of administrative expense (t) Scheme: Main 🕴 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 良 To XLSX • fx 10% A1-82 Inputs A c improvement of the seconomic and labour for... 100.00% Coverage Projection time Va Contributors 10.00% 10.00% 2020 Esalaries/average and growth rates 10.00% 2021 10.00% 2022 10.00% 2023 E Contribution rates and average contrib... 5 Population entitled to health services p... Health Expenditure 7 10.00% 2024 10.00% Cash benefit expenditure 10.00% 2025 9 oenditure

 [adm] Percentage over benefit expen....
 10

 [OExp] Other Expenditure (external p....
 11

 10.00% 202 10.00% 2028 ture (external p... 12 10.00% 2029 10.0/ Costs or fees for health services
- → Fill [adm] in as 10 per cent.

6.3.4. Filling in the matrix for modelling cash benefit expenditures

All the matrices in this section can be found under Inputs > Cash benefit expenditure.

6.3.4.1. Sickness benefits

The section on sickness benefits requires users to enter the frequency of sickness allowances by age and sex for the covered population. As sickness benefits mainly help cover salaries for workers who

cannot work because of a health condition, the population covered is active contributors with access to healthcare services.

The frequency of the benefits corresponds to the number of months in a year a person of a given age and sex expects to claim allowances. This value goes in the matrix [freqsickallow]. For simplicity, these figures are 0.25 for all cells of the matrix for males and 0.35 for females.

➔ Input the above values into the male and female matrices, respectively, for the matrix [freqsickallow].

ST.	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H rm in Socia	al Security / T	est Institution - Swi	tzerland							*test
M	odels Scenario Configuration									1 1	lser Name 🛛 🕞	Logout
Nam	ie i	Ifred	eickallowi	Annual froqu	anny of access	o eicknose o	lowances (s	1 × f)				
iche	me: Main	I N	lo Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)	Check Out	Exp. CSV	XLSX	j.^,ı)				
	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>											
+ +	Population entitled to health service	Sex:	Male		Group: Cust	ard						
- 4	Cash benefit expenditure	A1:82	*	fx 0.25								
	[minsickallow] Minimum value of	1 de	A	В	C	D	Ę	F	G	н	to	ા
	[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	1	Age vs P	rojection time	13.75	13.75	13.75	13.75	13.75	13.75	13.75	13
	[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickn	2			2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
	[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	3	23	50.15	.25	.25	.25	_25	.25	.25	.25	
	📕 [minmatallow] Minimum value of	4	2.0	50 16	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	25	.25	
	maxmatallow] Maximum value of	2	23	20 17	25	.25	.25	-25	.25	.25	.25	
	[brmatallow] Benefit rate for mate	7	2.	20 18	.23	.20	.20	-20	.23	.20	-20	
	[freqmatallow] Annual frequency	8	4.4	20 19	25	20	-20	-20	- 20	20	20	
	Ifunbeni Funeral benefit flump su	9	21	50.24	25	25	-25	25	25	20	25	
	[fbn] Funeral benefit participation	10	21	50 22	.25	25	25	25	-25	25	25	
	[freqadfixedb] Annual frequency (11	21	10 23	25	26	26	26	25	26	25	
	Valueadfixedb] Value of an additi	12	23	50 24	25	.25	25	25	.25	25	25	
	Fining death Minimum value of an	13	2.5	50 25	25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	25	
	minadsalbj winindin value or an	14	2.1	50 26	25	.25	.25	25	.25	.25	.25	
	[maxadsaib] Maximum value of an	15	23	50 27	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	
	[d] Proportion of salary paid for an	16	2.5	50 28	.25	,25	.25	25	.25	.25	.25	
	[freqadsalb] Annual frequency of a	17	2.1	50 29	.25	.25	.25	25	.25	.25	.25	
٠	Other expenditure	18	2.	50 30	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	
٠	Costs or fees for health services	19	2.	50 31	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	
٠	Health utilization frequencies and co	20	2.5	50 32	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	
	Goverment transferences and other	21	23	50 33	-25	.25	.25	25	.25	.25	.25	
	Reserve Fund and interest rate	22	2.	50 34	25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	.25	
		22		20.05	01	1.0	ne.	0.0	- Ch P	19.00	OF.	

I N	la Sum(col)		No Sum(row)	Check Out	🗟 Exp. CSV	R To XL	500					
iex;	Female			Group:	Custard							
1:82		•	fx 0.35									
d	A		В	С	D		E	F	G	н	T.	J
1	Ace 10	Project	tion time	19.3	25 1	9.25	19.25	19.25	19.25	19.25	19.25	15
2	inge ve	Projec	Don mile	2020	2021		2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3		3.50 1	5	1	15	.35	.35	:35	.35	.35	.35	
4		3.50 1	6		35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
5		3.50 1	7	1	15	.35	.35	35	.35	.35	.35	
6		3.50 1	8		35	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
7		3.50 1	9		15	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
8		3.50 2	0	. 2	35	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
9		3.50 2	1	.1	15	_35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
0		3.50 2	2		35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
1		3.50 2	3	- 4	15	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
2		3.50 2	4		35	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
3		3.50 2	5	1.2	15	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
4		3.50 2	6		15	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
5		3.50 2	7	3	15	_35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
6		3.50 2	в	2	15	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
7		3.50 2	9		15	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
8		3.50 3	0		15	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
9		3.50 3	1	1.1	15	_35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
20		3.50 3	2		15	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
11		3.50 3	3		15	.35	,35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
22		3.50 3	4	4	15	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	.35	
23		3.50 3	5	7	35	35	35	35	.35	35	35	

As mentioned, the benefits are intended to replace at least part of the income lost due to sickness. The proportion of lost income to be replaced is usually established by law. This should be input in

the matrix [brsickallow]. The proportion is the same for all ages and sexes, although it can change per year. For the exercise, the proportion is 50 per cent for all years.

→ Input 50 per cent for both sexes for the matrix [brsickallow].

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	┨ n in Social	Security / Test In	stitution - Sw	rizerland
Models Scenario Configuration				
Name	[brsic	kallow] Ben	efit rate fo	or sickness allowances (t)
Scheme: Main center search criteria here>	i No	Sum(col)	No Sum(row)	🐵 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLS
Population entitled to health services Health Expenditure Cash benefit expenditure	A1:82	A Projection	fx 50% B	C 500.00% Value
Immissickallowj Minimum value of b Imaxsickallowj Maximum value of Ibrsickallowj Benefit rate for sickne Ifreqsickallowj Annual frequency o	3 4 5 6	50.00% 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 2	020 021 022 023	50.00% 50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
 [minmatallow] Minimum value of b [maxmatallow] Maximum value of [brmatallow] Benefit rate for mater 	7 8 9	50.00% 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 2	024 025 026	50.00% 50.00% 50.00%
 [freqmatallow] Annual frequency o [funben] Funeral benefit [lump su [fbp] Funeral benefit participation [freqadfixedb] Annual frequency (a [suburativedb] Value of an addition 	10 11 12	50.00% 2 50.00% 2 50.00% 2	027 028 029	50.00% 50.00% 50.00%

The law may limit the value of the benefits to a minimum and/or maximum to guarantee a level of basic survival income and to limit the transfer of resources from the collective pool to people with higher income (thus ensuring that allowances are for basic needs). The minimum and maximum values are input into the matrices [minsickallow] and [maxsickallow], respectively. If they are kept at zero, the formula will disregard them.

➔ For this exercise, they will be kept at 0. Check out and check in to reflect their completion level in the Completion brief.

ILO/HEALT Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m in Sociał	Security / Te	st Institution - Sw	itzerland	
Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[mins	ickallow]	Minimum va	lue of benefit for sid	kness allowances in absolute terms (t
Scheme: Main					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	- NS	Sam(col)	wo sum(row)	S check dut	LCSV 22 TO ALSA
Population entitled to health services	A1:82		fx 0		
Health Expenditure		A	В	C	
🔸 💼 Cash benefit expenditure	1	Proie	ction time	.00	
fminsickallow] Minimum value of b	2	rioja	cerent corre	Value	
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	3	.(2020	.00	
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickne	4		0 2021	.00	
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	D	.0	2022	.00	
Imiomatallow! Minimum value of b	0		0 2023	.00	
maxmatallowi Maximum value of			0 2024	.00	
[hrmstallow] Reparit rate for mater	0	-	2025	.00	
[freematallow] Appual freewance a	10	1	10 2027	00	
[inequalition] Annual heads inequency o	11	1	0 2028	.00	
[fop] Funeral benefit participation	12	.0	0 2029	00.	

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform Models Scenario Configuration	<mark>၂</mark> n in Social S	iecurity / Test	Institution - Switz	erland	
Name	[maxs	ickallow] M	Aaximum val	ue of benefit	for sickness allowances in absolute terms (t
Scheme: Main					· · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · · ·
center search criteria here>	E No	Sum(col) **	* No Sum(row)	Check Dut	🖹 Exp. CSV 🛛 🕅 To XLSX
Population entitled to health services	A1:B2		<i>fx</i> 0		
Health Expenditure		A	в	с	
Cash benefit expenditure	1	Projecti	on time		20
[minsickallow] Minimum value of b	2			Value	
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	3	.00	2020		10
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickne	4	.00	2021	4	00
Ifreqsickallow] Annual frequency o	0	.00	2022	X	10
ininmatallow Minimum value of b	7	.00	2023		
[maxmatallow] Maximum value of	R	.00	2029		10
Fibrmatallow Renefit rate for mater	9	00	2025		10
[freqmatallow] Annual frequency o	10	00	2027		10
Ifunbani Funani hanafit fluma cu	11	.00	2028		00
[fbp] Funeral benefit participation	12		2029	4	00

6.3.4.2. *Maternity benefits*

The maternity benefits section requires users to input the frequency of maternity benefits by age and sex for the covered population. As maternity benefits are mainly salary replacements for workers who cannot work because of pregnancy or infant care. The population covered is the group of female active contributors with access to healthcare services.

The frequency of the benefits corresponds to the number of months in a year a person of a given age expects to receive benefits. This value is entered into the matrix [freqmatallow].

Urganization Quantitative Platfor	−1 m In Social	Security / Test Institution - Swi	perland							*tes
odels Scenario Configuration								💄 Us	er Name 🖸	Logou
ne 📕	Ifrean	natallow] Annual freque	ancy of access to	maternity all	owances (g.x	ut)				
eme: Main					_					
senter search criteria beres	i No	Sum(col) No Sum(row)	🙁 Check Out 🔹 E	xp. CSV 🛛 🕅 To X	LSX					
Population entitled to health service Health Expenditure	Group:	Custard								
ash benefit expenditure	A1:82	▼ fx 0.025								
[minsickallow] Minimum value of		A B	C	D	E	F	a	н	<u>a</u>	1
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	1	Age vs Projection time	1.38	1.38	1.38	1.38	1.38	1.38	1.38	
[brsickallow] 8enefit rate for sickn	2		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	202
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	3	.25 15	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of	4	.25 16	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[maxmatallow] Maximum value of	0	.25 17	.03	.03	.83	.03	.83	.03	.03	
[brmatallow] Benefit rate for mate	0	.25 18	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[fregmatallow] Annual frequency		.25 19	.03	63	.03	.03	,03	.03	.03	
[funben] Funeral benefit flump su	9	25 24	.03	03	.03	03	03	03	03	
[fbp] Funeral benefit participation	10	25 22	03	03	.03	03	03	03	03	
[freqadfixedb] Annual frequency (11	25 21	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[valueadfixedb] Value of an additi	12	25 24	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[minadealb] Minimum value of an	13	.25 25	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
minadsalb) Maximum value of an	14	.25 26	.03	.03	.03	.03	,03	.03	.03	
[maxadsab] waximum value of an	15	.25 27	.03	.03	.83	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[0] Proportion of salary paid for an	16	.25 28	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
[freqadsaib] Annual frequency of a	-17	.25 29	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
Other expenditure	18	.25 30	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
Costs or fees for health services	19	.25 31	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
Health utilization frequencies and co	20	.25 32	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	.03	
	21	36 30	02	02	02	02	0.0	02	.03	
Goverment transferences and other		100 34	.03	(60)	40	100	10-5	14.0	and the second sec	

→ For this exercise, users should enter 0.025 in all cells of the [freqmatallow] matrix.

As mentioned, maternity benefits are intended to replace at least part of the income lost due to maternity. The proportion of income lost to be replaced is usually established by law and input in the matrix [brmatallow]. The proportion is the same for all ages and sexes, although it can change per year. For this exercise, the proportion is 70 per cent for all years.

→ Input 70 per cent for the matrix [brmatallow].

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALT Quantitative Platfo	Ή rm in Social :	Security / Tes	st Institut	ion - Swil	izerland	
Models Scenario Configuration						
ame	I (brma	tallow] Be	enefit r	ate for	maternity allowances (t)	
heme: Main						
center search criteria here>	‡ No	Sum(col)	···· No Su	m(row)	Check Out R+ Exp. CSV	a Toxilsx
 ветоугарти, есополні али воочт п 	A1:82	*	fx	70%		
Coverage	8	A	-	8	C	
 Contributors 	1	100	-		700.00%	
 Esalaries/average and growth rates 	2	Projec	tion time		Value	
 Contribution rates and average contr 	3	70.009	\$ 2020		70.00%	
 Population entitled to health services 	4	70.009	6 2021		70.00%	
 Health Expenditure 	5	70.009	\$ 2022		70.00%	
 Cash benefit expenditure 	6	70.005	\$ 2023		70.00%	
minsickallow Minimum value of b	7	70.009	6 2024		70.00%	
[manufactualion] Maximum value of	8	70.009	\$ 2025		70.00%	
Imaxsickaliowj waximum value or	9	70.009	6 2026		70.00%	
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickne	10	70.009	\$ 2027		70.00%	
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	11	70.009	2028		70.00%	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of b	12	70.009	\$ 2029		70.00%	
Imaximatallow Maximum value of						

The law may limit the value of the benefits to a minimum and/or maximum to guarantee a level of basic survival income and to limit the transfer of resources from the collective pool to people with higher income (thus ensuring that allowances are for basic needs). The minimum and maximum values are input into the matrices [minsickallow] and [maxsickallow], respectively. If they are kept at zero, the formula will disregard them.

➔ For this exercise, they will be kept at 0. Check out and check in to reflect their completion level in the Completion brief.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	 n in Social S	ecurity / Test Institu	tion - Switzerland		
Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[minm	atallow] Minimi	um value of b	enefit for mate	mity allowances in absolute terms (t)
Scheme: Main enter search criteria here> 	I No	Sum(col) ···· No Su	um(row) 🛛 🙁 Che	rck Out 📄 🗟 Exp. CS	V 🕅 To XLSK
 Demographic, economic anu iabour i 	A1:82	▼ fx	0		
 Coverage 		A	В	C	
Contributors	1	Projection time		.00	
Salaries/average and growth rates	2			Value	
Contribution rates and average contr	3	.00 2020		.00	
Population entitled to health services	4	.00 2021		.00	
🕨 💼 Health Expenditure	5	.00 2022		00	
🔺 💼 Cash benefit expenditure	6	.00 2023		.00	
[minsickallow] Minimum value of b	7	00 2024		.00	
maxsickallow Maximum value of	8	.00 2025		.00	
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickne	9	.00 2026		.00	
[freesickallow] Acqual frequency o	10	.00 2027		.00	
[requestion] Annual requercy o	11	.00 2028		.00	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of b	12	00 2029		00	

International Labour Organization Understand	in Social Security	/ Test Institution - Swit	rerland ·	
Models Scenario Configuration				
Name	[maxmatall	ow] Maximum va	ue of benefit for maternity all	owances in absolute terms (t
Scheme: Main	E No Sumico	···· No Sum(row)	O Check Out	XLSX
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>				
 Bernographic, economic and labour i 	A1:82	▼ fx 0		
Coverage	A	В	C	
Contributors	1	trainstion time	.00	
Salaries/average and growth rates	2	rojection time	Value	
Contribution rates and average contr	3	00 2020	.00	
Population entitled to health services	4	.00 2021	.00	
🕨 💼 Health Expenditure	5	.00 2022	00.	
 Eash benefit expenditure 	6	.00 2023	00.	
[minsickallow] Minimum value of b	7	00 2024	.00	
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	8	.00 2025	00	
brsickallow Benefit rate for sickne	9	00 2026	00.	
[freesickallow] Annual frequency o	10	.00 2027	.00	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of b	11	00 2028	.00	
[maxmatallow] Maximum value of	12	00 2029	.00	

6.3.4.3. Funeral benefit

The funeral benefits are different from other cash benefits. First, because instead of a salary replacement, this benefit is a fixed amount for everyone entitled to it, paid as a lump sum for all funerals, regardless of the age and sex of the deceased. It is fixed in the matrix [funben]. This exercise will use 100 for all years.

→ Fill [funben] in with 100 for all years and check in to reflect the completion rate in the Completion brief.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l 1 in Socia	l Security / Te	st Instit	ution - Swit	zerland	
Models Scenario Configuration						
Name	Hunh	opl Europ	al hor	ofit fluo	an aural (a a t)	
Scheme: Main		o Sum(col)	No S	um(row)	⊙ Check Out	SV 🛃 To XLSX
eenter search criteria here> imputs imputs imputs	Group	Custard		•		
🕨 🚞 Coverage	A1:82		fx	100		
 Econtributors 		A		в	C	
Salaries/average and growth rates Contribution rates and average cont	1 2	Projec	tion tim	e .	1,000.00 Value	
Population entitled to health service	3	100.00	2020		100.00	
Health Expanditure	4	100.00	2021		100.00	
Cash benefit evnenditure	5	100.00	2022		100.00	
Cash denent expenditure	6	100.00	2023		100.00	
[minsickailow] Minimum value or	7	100.00	2024		100.00	
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	8	100.00	2025		100.00	
Orsickallow] Benefit rate for sickn	9	100.00	2026		100.00	
[Treqsickallow] Annual frequency o	10	100.00	2027		100.00	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of [maxmatallow] Maximum value of [brmatallow] Benefit rate for mate	12	100.00	2028		100.00	
[funben] Funeral benefit (lump su						

Additionally, the funeral benefit does not require a frequency for its calculation; rather, it uses the mortality rates provided in the demographic inputs.

Besides the mortality rates, the calculation requires indicating which groups of people estimated in the demographic section have access to funeral benefits. That is done in the matrix [fbp], which is similar to the matrix [included] and is read in the same way; however, instead of healthcare services it refers to funeral lump sums.

→ In this calculation, users should write 1 in the first row, 0 in the second and third, 1 in the fourth and fifth and 0 in the sixth. One exercise for users is to interpret the meaning of this arrangement. For example, if an inactive contributor with access to healthcare services dies, does his or her family receive a funeral benefit? What about in the case that the spouse of an active contributor dies?



6.3.4.4. Additional benefits

ILO/HEALTH allows users to model another ad hoc cash benefit in addition to the ones discussed above. The benefit consists of the sum of two parts: one consisting of a lump sum whose value is input into the matrix [valueadfixedb] and whose frequency per age and sex is input in [freqadfixedb]. The other part is proportional to the salary of the insured active contributors.

The replacement rate (equivalent to the 'br' in the first two benefits) is input into the matrix [d] while the frequency per age and sex is input into the matrix [freqadsalb]. The minimum and maximum function is the same as in the case of the maternity and sickness (it only applies to the proportional part).

→ This exercise assumes that there are no additional benefits and all the matrices including [minadsalb] and [maxadsalb] are filled in with zeros. Users can check out and check in all the ad hoc benefit matrices above to show progress in the Completion brief.

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	in Social !	Security / Te	est Institution - 5	witzerland											*tes	5
Models Scenario Configuration												1	Jser Name		Logout	
Name	Ifrega	dfixedb1	Annual frequ	encv (averad	e by a	ctive contri	butor) o	fclaim	ns of an ad	ditional fixe	ed-am	D				
Scheme: Main	L															
	i No	Sum(col)	*** No Sum[row]	Check Out	💼 Exp.	CSV R To	XLSX									
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>																
 Health Expenditure 	Sex: M	ale	(. *)	Group:	Custard		.*									
 Cash benefit expenditure 																
[minsickallow] Minimum value of	A1:82	1.0	fx 0													
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	1	A	B	C		D	E		F	G		н	1		3	T
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickn	1				00	.00		.00	,00		.00	.00		,00		
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	2	Age vs P	rojection time	2020		2021	2022		2023	2024		2025	2026		2027	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of	3	6	0 0		00	.00		.00	.00	1	.00	.00		.00		
[maxmatallow] Maximum value of	4	.0	1 00		.00	.00		.00	-00		.00	.00		.00		44
[brmatallow] Benefit rate for mate	5	.1	X0 2		.00	.00		.00	.00	1	.00	.00		.00		
[freqmatallow] Annual frequency		3	0.3		.00	.00		.00	.00		,00	.00		.00		
[funben] Funeral benefit [lump su		.0	X0 -4		00	.00		,00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
[fbp] Funeral benefit participation		1	NO 5		.00	00.		.00	.00		00	.00		.00		
[freqadfixedb] Annual frequency (10		0.0		00	.00		.00			00	.00		.00		
[valueadfixedb] Value of an additi	11	1	NO M		00	00		.00	.00		00	.00		00		
[minadsalb] Minimum value of an	12		0.0		.00	.00		.00	.00		00	.00		:00		
[maxadsalb] Maximum value of an	13		10		00	.00		.00	.00	k .	.00	.00		.00		
[d] Proportion of salary paid for an	14		0 11	11.	.00	.00		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
[fregadsalb] Annual frequency of a	15		0 12		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
Other expenditure	16		0 13		.00	.00		.00	-00		.00	.00		.00		
Costs or fees for health services.	17	.6	0 14		00	.00		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
Health utilization frequencies and co	18	.0	0 15		00	.00		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
Goverment transferences and other	19	.0	0 16		.00	.03		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
Reserve Fund and interest rate	20	,f	0 17		.00	00,		.00	.00		.00	.00		.00		
Historical information series	21		18	11	.00	.00		.00	.00		00	.00		.00		
 Instantion mation series Instantion reaction of the series 	22		19		00	.00		.00	.00		.00	.00		00		

International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	H n in Social S	iecurity / Tes	t Institution - Sw	vitzerland		
Models Scenario Configuration						
Name	Ivalue	adfixedb1	Value of an	additional fit	ed-amount c	ash benefit (o
Scheme: Main	I No:	Sum(col)	• No Sum(row)	⊗ Check Out	🔹 Exp. CSV	to XLSX
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-					
Inearth Expenditure	Group:	Custard				
[minsickallow] Minimum value of [maxsickallow] Maximum value of [brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickn	A1:82	* A	fx 0 B	c		
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	2	Project	ion time	Value	.00	
[minmatallow] Minimum value of [maxmatallow] Maximum value of	3 4	00. 00.	2020 2021		.00	
[brmatallow] Benefit rate for mate	5	.00	2022		.00	
[freqmatallow] Annual frequency	7	.00	2023		.00	
[funben] Funeral benefit [lump su	8	.00	2025		.00	
[fbp] Funeral benefit participation	9	.00	2026		.00	
[rreqadixedo] Annual frequency (10	.00	2027		.00	
[minadsalb] Minimum value of an	11 12	.00	2028 2029		.00	

Labour Organization	HEALTH	iecurity / Tes	t Institution - Swi	itzerland	
Models Scenario Configurat	tion				
Name	III (mina	dsalb1 Mir	nimum value	of an additional cas	sh benefit based on salarv (t)
Scheme: Main	* E No	Sum(col)	••• No Sum(row)	🐵 Check Out 🔹 Exp.	CSV 👔 To XLSX
enter search criteria here	A1:B2		<i>fx</i> 0		
🔸 📠 Cash benefit expenditure		A	В	C	
[minsickallow] Minimum va [maxsickallow] Maximum va	lue of b 1 alue of 2	Project	tion time	.00 Value	
[brsickallow] Benefit rate fo	r sickne 3	.00	2020	.00	
[freqsickallow] Annual frequ	uency o 4	.00	2021	.00	
[minmatallow] Minimum va	lue of b 5	.00	2022	.00	
[maxmatallow] Maximum v	alue of 6	.00	2023	.00	
[hrmatallow] Benefit rate fo	r mater	.00	2024	.00	
[fragmatallow] Appual frag	8	.00	2025	.00	
[funber] Superal benefit (u	imp cil	.00	2026	.00	
[funden] Funeral basefs easted	imp su 10	:00	2027	.00	
[rbp] Funeral benefit partici	pation 11	.00	2028	.00	
[rrequorixedb] Annual frequencies [valueadfixedb] Value of an	additio	_00	2020	.00	

lodels Scenario Configuration					02480	
me 🛛 🔳	[maxa	adsalb] M	Maximum	value o	of an add	itional cash benefit based on s
neme: Main 🔻		Dura (mil)	- and the Point		a church and	A rear and B rear
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	10. NO	Sum(coi)	offer No Sump	ow) o	5 LINECK OUL	B EXPLOSE DE TO ALSA
	A1:82		fx 0			
Salaries/average and growth rates		A	8		С	
Contribution rates and average contr	1		1.41.42			.00
Population entitled to health services	2	Proj	ection time	-	Value	
Health Expenditure	3		.00 2020			.00
Cash benefit expenditure	4		00 2021			.00
[minsickallow] Minimum value of b	5		.00 2022			00
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	6		00 2023			.00
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickne	7		.00 2024			.00
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	8		.00 2025	_		00.
[minmatallow] Minimum value of b	9		00 2026			00
maxmatallow] Maximum value of	10		.00 2027			00
Fibrmataliow Benefit rate for mater	11		.00 2028			.00
Ifreematalieud Annual freemanou o	12		.00 2029			.00
[fundoral European benefit flume au						
Incompany Function description of a statistic state						
[top] Funeral benefit participation						
[treqadfixedb] Annual frequency (a						
[valueadfixedb] Value of an additio						
[minadsaib] Minimum value of an						
[maxadsalb] Maximum value of an						

Models Scenario Configuration					
lame	[d] Pr	oportion of s	alary paid	or an additional cash bene	fit based on salary
cheme: Main *	-				
contor rearch exteria harm	: NC	Sum(col)	to Sum(row)	Check out & Exp. CSV R	TO XLSX
Server Search Oneria Heres	44.02	- 1	0.04		
 Salaries/average and growth rates 	AL.DZ		P	c	
 Contribution rates and average contr 	1		0	G age	
 Population entitled to health services 	2	Projection	time	Value	
 Health Expenditure 	3	0.0% 20	20	00%	
 Eash benefit expenditure 	4	00% 20	21	00%	
[minsickallow] Minimum value of b	5	.00% 20	22	.00%	
[maxsickallow] Maximum value of	6	.00% 20	23	.00%	
[brsickallow] Benefit rate for sickne	7	.00% 20	24	.00%	
[freqsickallow] Annual frequency o	8	.00% 20	25	.00%	
Iminmatallow! Minimum value of b	9	,00% 20	26	.00%	
[maxmatallow] Maximum value of	10	.00% 20	27	.00%	
[hrmatallow] Benefit rate for mater	11	.00% 20	28	.00%	
[frequency] Annual frequency o	12	.00% 20	29	.00%	
[fundation] Fundation requertly out					
[fonder] Funeral benefit participation					
[foop] runeral benenc participation					
[rreqaditizedb] Annual frequency (a					
[valueadrixedb] value of an additio					
[minadsalb] Minimum value of an					
[maxadsalb] Maximum value of an					
[d] Proportion of salary paid for an	10 I				

Ð	International Labour Organization	ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	i in Soci	al Security /	Test b	nstitution - S	witzerland							
Models	Scenario Cor	figuration												
Name		15	Ifree	adsalb] A	nnu	al freque	ncy of acces	s to a	n addit	tional c	ash bene	fit based or	n salai	rv (s.a.x.t)
icheme:	Main		-		140.55	0.087.0		-		-				2 1-120-112
Lanta	r search criteria here		1.1	No Sum(col)		No Sum(row)	Check Out	8 , 5	xp. CSV	🕈 То Х	LSX			
• =s	alaries/average and g	rowth rates	Sex:	Male			Group:	Custa	rd		*			
+ =0	ontribution rates and	average cont												
• = P	opulation entitled to i	health service	A1:B2			ar u								6
* #E	ealth Expenditure		11	- A -				00	D	00		.F.	00	G (7
* 🖹 🕻	ash benefit expenditu	ire	2	Age vs	Projec	tion time	2020	.00	2021	.00	2022	2023	,00.	2024
	[minsickallow] Minin	num value of	3		00 1	5	11	00		.00	1	00	.00	.DX
	[maxsickallow] Maxi	mum value of	4		.00 1	6		.00		.00		00	.00	.0
	[brsickallow] Benefit	rate for sickn	5		00 1	t.		.00		.00	1	00	.00	K.
1	[freqsickallow] Annu	al frequency o	6		.00 1	5		.00		.00	1	00	.00	.0
	[minmatallow] Minin	num value of	7		00 1	3		00		.00	1	00	.00.	.0
1	[maxmatallow] Maxi	mum value of	8		.00 2	9		.00		.00	1	00	.00	.00
	Ibrmatallow] Benefit	rate for mate	9		00 2	1		00		.00		00	.00	.00
	Ifreematallow! Annu	al frequency	10		00 2	2		.00		.00		00	.00	.00
	[funbon] Eunaral ber	nefit Dumo ru	11		00 2	3		00		00		00	00	
	(funder) Funeral ber	nent (iump su	12		00 2	4		.00		.00		00	.00	.00
	[rop] Funeral benefit	participation	13		00 2	5		00		00		00	.00	.00
	[treqadtixedb] Annu	al frequency (14		.00 2	5		.00		.00	1	00	.00	.00
	[valueadfixedb] Valu	e of an additi	15		00 2	7		00		00	1	00	.00	.00
	[minadsalb] Minimu	m value of an	16		.00 2	8		.00		.00	1	00	.00	.00
	[maxadsalb] Maximi	im value of an	17		00 2	9		.00		.00		00	.00	.00
	[d] Proportion of sal	ary paid for an	18		00 3	3		00		.00		00	-00	.00
	Ifregadsalb] Annual	frequency of a	19		00 3	10.		.00		.00		30:	.00	0.D

6.3.5. Filling in healthcare packages

Most of the matrices in this section are found in Inputs > Health Expenditure.

6.3.5.1. Modelling budget allocations

All the packages modelled as budget allocations require an initial value that corresponds to the amount of expenditure on the package in the base year for the calculation, [IEXP]. The amount can theoretically be zero, except in the case of health packages whose method of payment is (MP1) Budgetary Allocation Initial Expenditure and Assumed Expenditure Growth as in the case of Podo in the example.³⁷

→ For the example, users should input 1 000 000 for all three health packages listed in the matrix [IEXP]. The three packages listed are those whose payment methods are (MP1) Budgetary Allocation Initial Expenditure and Assumed Expenditure Growth, (MP2) Budgetary Allocation Expenditure as a percentage of GDP and (MP3) Budgetary Allocation Expenditure as a percentage of GEX, which are all types of budget allocation.





Moving towards the matrix [aegba], in the default selection of matrix, all options, including Check Out, are disabled. This occurs because the default selection of Package is in Capital, a health package that does not need the matrix [aegba] to be calculated. Users can change the package in the dropdown menu. Users will find Podo is the only package in which the options are not disabled.³⁸

→ When users choose Podo as the package, they should enter 1 per cent for the entire period and then check in.

³⁷ If the initial value of the expenditure in the package is zero, there is no growth rate that will make the expenditure in the future deviate from zero, so the package cannot have any expenditures.

³⁸ If users do not include any package paid by the method (MP1) Budgetary Allocation Initial Expenditure and Assumed Expenditure Growth, the matrix will appear, but it will be unavailable for editing. That may occur with any of the matrices in this section.

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALT Quantitative Platfor	H m in Social Sec	urity / Test Inst	titution - Swi	tzerland			
Models Scenario Configuration							
Name	[aegba]	Assumed a	annual gr	owth rate of e	expenditure	through budgeta	ary allocation (g,j,t)
Scheme: Main	I No Sun	1(col) No	sum(row)	Check Out	🛍 Exp. C5V	To XLSX	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-	_	_	200			
4 💼 Inputs	Group: C	istard		Package:	Capital		
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 		- 6	Designed	in the s			
Coverage	A1:B2	Jx	Project	on time			
Contributors		A	В	С			
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Projection t	ime	.00	95		
 Contribution rates and average contrib 	2			Value			
Population entitled to health services p	3	.00% 201	9	.00	70		
🖌 💼 Health Expenditure	4	.00% 202	0	.00	%		
[IEXP] Initial annual expenditure thr	Б	.00% 202	1	.00	16		
[aeoba] Assumed annual growth rat	1	.00% 202	2	.00	%		
Inerfri Proportion on annual expend		.00% 202	3	.00	76		
[aenGDP] Proportion of GDP represe	8	,00% 202	4	.00	70		
[sepGDF] Proportion of GEV represe	10	00% 202	5	.00	20		
a laepocky rencentage of dck represe	11	00% 202	7	.00	70		
 Lasn benefit expenditure 	12	00% 202	8	.00	36		
Other expenditure	13	0/19/ 202	0.	.00	44		
Costs or fees for health services	2.53	10075 202	-				

and the second	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	in Socia	Security / 1	est Instit	ution - Sw	itzerland				
Mo	dels Scenario Configuration									
Nam	e 📰	[aegl	oa] Assur	ned an	nual gr	owth rate of e	xpenditur	e throu	gh b	oudgetary allocation (g.i.t)
Sche	me: Main	E N	o Sum(col)	••• No S	um(row)	⊖ Check Out	🔹 Exp. CSV	🕅 То Х	LSX	0 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1
	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-				2010/10/0	2010 20	-		
× 1	Inputs	Group	Custard			Package:	Capita	×	*	_
-	Demographic, economic and labour fo	A1:B2		fx	Project	tion time	Capital			
	Contributors		Α		В	C	Tactile			
*	Salaries/average and growth rates	1 2	Proj	ection tim	e	.00 Value	Podo			
	Population entitled to health services p	3	.0	2019		.00	Umbilical			
	Health Expenditure	4	.0	0% 2020		.00	Teleseteur			
	[IEXP] Initial annual expenditure thr	5	.0	2021		00.	intrastruc	ture		
	[aegba] Assumed annual growth rat	7	.00	2022		.00	BT			
	[perfr] Proportion on annual expend	8	.00	0% 2024		.00	%			- · ·
	[aepGDP] Proportion of GDP represe	9	.0	7% 2025		.00	%			
	[aepGEX] Percentage of GEX represe	10	.0	0% 2026		.00	%			
	Cash benefit expenditure	11	.0	2027		.00	96			
	e Other expenditure	12	.0	2028		.00	%			
	Costs or fees for health services	13	.00	7% 2029		.00	%			
	Health utilization frequencies and cove									

International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH	l 1 în Social Se	curity / Test	Institution - Swi	tzerland			
Models Scenario Configuration							
Name	[aegba]	Assume	d annual gr	owth rate of	expenditur	e through budg	etary allocation (g,j,t
Scheme: Main	E . No 50	m(col)	No Sum(row)	(O) Check Out	P. Frm CSV	to XI SX	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>				Concernance of the second			
🖌 💼 Inputs	Group: c	ustard	*	Package	Podo		
E Demographic, economic and labour fo E Coverage	A1:82		fx 0%				
Contributors	1	A	В	C			
Gontribution rates and average contribution	1 2	Projecti	on time	.0 Value	096		
Population entitled to health services p.	3	.00%	2019	.0	0%		
Health Expenditure	4	.00%	2020	.0	0%		
IEXP] Initial annual expenditure thr	5	.00%	2021	.0	0%		
acobal Assumed annual growth rat	6	.00%	2022	.0	0%		
[perfr] Proportion on annual expend		.00%	2023	0,	0%		
LaepGDP1 Proportion of GDP represe	9	.00%	2024	0	0%		
[aepGEX] Percentage of GEX represe	10	00%	2026	.0	0%		
Cash benefit expenditure	11	.00%	2027	.0	0%		
Other expenditure	12	.00%	2028	.0	0%		
Costs or fees for health services	13	.00%	2029	.0	0%		

Models Scenario Configuration					P4 44	
Schamar	[aegb	a] Assume	ed annual gr	owth rate of e	expenditure th	rough budgetary allocation (g
wain	E No	Sum(col)	• No Sum(row)	Check Out	🔹 Exp. CSV 🛛 🛃	To XLSX
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>						
inputs	Group:	Custard		Package:	Podo	
Demographic, economic and labour fo						
Coverage	A1:82		fx Project	ion time		
Contributors	1.1	A	в	C		
 Ealaries/average and growth rates 	1	Project	ion time	11.00	56	
 Contribution rates and average contrib 	2	1.500.000		Value		
Population entitled to health services p	3	1.00%	2019	1.00	%	
🔺 💼 Health Expenditure	4	1.00%	2020	1.00	%	
[IEXP] Initial annual expenditure thr	5	1.00%	2021	1.00	16	
[aegba] Assumed annual growth rat	6	1.00%	2022	1.00	%	
[perfr] Proportion on annual expend	7	1.00%	2023	1.00	76	
[aenGDP] Proportion of GDP represe	8	1.00%	2024	1.00	%	
[aenGEX] Percentage of GEX represe	9	1.00%	2025	1.00	96	
Cash benefit expenditure	10	1.00%	2026	1.00	96	
Cost concernent experiorate	11	1.00%	2027	1.00	26	
Contra as from fan handele and dans	12	1.00%	2028	1.00	%	
costs of rees for fleditil services	13	1.00%	2029	1.00	20	

6.3.5.1.2. Modelling budget allocations as a proportion of GDP

In the same folder, the matrix [aepGDP] shows a table with all the packages. This matrix requires users to input the packages' expected value as percentage of GDP. In this example, users have one package that uses (MP2) Budgetary Allocation Expenditure as a percentage of GDP as the method of payment: BT.

→ Users should check out, fill in the values with 1 per cent only for BT (or similar packages in their own schemes) and check in. Later, users can confirm that the values input in other columns have no impact on the final results.

International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	in Soc	al Security / Tes	Institution - Swi	zerland					
Models Scenario Configuration									1
Name	faer	GDP1 Prop	ortion of GDI	^o representing e	xpenditure th	rouah budae	tarv allocatio	n (a.t.i)	
Scheme: Main *		No Sum(col)	• No Sum(row)	💿 Check Out 🔒	Exp. CSV 🛃 To)	(LSX			
Inputs Demographic, economic and labour fo	Grou	p: Custard	• fx 1%						
 Contributors 		A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н
Salaries/average and growth rates Source and everage contribution rates and everage contribution	1 2	Projection tim	e vs Packages	.00% Capital	.00% Tactile	.00% Podo	.00% Umbilical	.00%	10.00% BT
Population nates and average control Population entitled to health services p	3 4	7.00% 7.00%	2020 2021	.00%	.00%	.00% .00%	.00%	.00%	1.00%
[IEXP] Initial annual expenditure thr [aegba] Assumed annual growth rat	5 6 7	1.00% 1.00% 1.00%	2022 2023 2024	.00% .00% .00%	.00% .00% .00%	.00% .00% .00%	.00% .00% .00%	.00% .00% .00%	1.00% 1.00% 1.00%
[perfr] Proportion on annual expend [aepGDP] Proportion of GDP represe	8 9	1.00%	2025 2026	.00%	.00%	.00% .00%	.00%	.00%	1.00% 1.00%
 [aepGEX] Percentage of GEX represe Cash benefit expenditure 	10 11	1.00% 1.00%	2027 2028	.00%	.00% .00%	.00% .00%	.00% .00%	.60%	1:00%
Other expenditure	12	1.00%	2029	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	1.00%

In Inputs > Demographic, economic and labour force, the calculation of GDP and Government expenditure uses the initial value of GDP, [IGDP], for the year prior to the start of the projection. A growth rate is also input for the GDP over the projection period, [ggdp]. The proportion of GDP representing expenditure through budgetary allocation, [aepgdp], is also input, if applicable.

➔ Initial GDP [IGDP] is 100 000 000 currency units, and GDP growth [ggdp] is projected at 1 per cent annually. Enter these values in the respective matrices.



6.3.5.1.3. Modelling budget allocations as a proportion of government expenditure

In Inputs > Health Expenditure again, the matrix [aepGEX] shows a table with all the packages. This matrix requires users to input the packages' expected value as a percentage of GEX. In this example, users have one package that uses (MP3) Budgetary Allocation Expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure as the payment method of: Infrastructure.

→ Users should check out [aepGEX], enter 5 per cent only for Infrastructure (or similar packages) and check in. Users can then confirm that values input in other columns have no impact on the final results.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l 1 In Soci	al Security / Test Ir	istitution - Switze	rland					
Models Scenario Configuration									1
Name	[aer	GEX] Percen	tage of GEX	representing	expenditure th	nrough budge	etary allocati	on (g,t,j)	
Scheme: Main									
center saarch criteria heres	1	No Sum(col)	No Sum(row)	9 Check Out	Exp. CSV 🛃 To 3	(LSX			
1 Inputs	Grou	p: Custard							
Demographic economic and labour fo									
Coverage	G3:G1	2 🔹 🖌	fx 5%						
Contributors		A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Projection time	Baakaaaa	.0096	,00%	.00%	.00%	50.00%	.00%
Contribution rates and average contrib.	2	Projection time v	/s Packages	Capital	Tactile	Podo	Umbilical	Infrastructure	BT
Population entitled to health services n	3	5.00% 21	120	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
Health Evpanditure	-4	5.00% 20	121	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
IEVOI Initial approval our and it was the	5	5.00% 2	22	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	,00%
ElicAPI initiai arintuai experioriture trir	6	5.00% 20	023	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
[aegba] Assumed annual growth rat	7	5.00% 20	324	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
[perfr] Proportion on annual expend	8	5.00% 2	325	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
[aepGDP] Proportion of GDP represe	9	5.00% 21	126	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
[aepGEX] Percentage of GEX represe	10	5.00% 20	227	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
Cash benefit expenditure	11	5.00% 2	128	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%
Other expenditure	12	5.00% 21	29	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	5.00%	.00%

Government Expenditure [ggex] is 20 per cent of GDP over the whole period. It is found in: Inputs > Demographic, economic and labour force.

→ Fill in [ggex] with 20 per cent for all years.

Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[ggex]	Input G	overnment E	xpenditure (t)
Scheme: Main	1 No	Sum(col)	···· No Sumfrow!	O Check Out	R. Fan CSV
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>					Ballenstoold Dathered
Inputs	A1:82		fx 0.2		
1 Personantic economic and labour for		A	в	c	
[NATPOP] National Population (s,t)	1 2	Proje	ction time	Value	2.20
[Partr] Participation rate (s,t)	3		20 2019		.20
[unemrate] Unemployment rate (s,t)	4		20 2020		.20
[ggap] Input Gross Domestic Produc	5	i.	20 2021		20
ggex] Input Government Expenditur	6	6	20 2022		.20
[IGDP] Initial Gross Domestic Produc	7	4	20 2023		.20
[inf] Inflation rate expressed as a pro	8		20 2024		20
Coverage	9	9	20 2025		20
Contributors	10	ě	20 2026		.20
Salaries/average and growth rates	11	-	20 2027		20
Contribution rates and average contrib	12	2	20 2028		.20
Population entitled to bealth services p	13	1	2029		20

6.3.6. Modelling capitation expenditure

The matrix on per capita payment for capitation, [expcap], is found in Inputs > Costs or fees for health services.

In the matrix [expcap], the packages paid by capitation are the only ones for which the Check Out option is available. Users need to identify the packages paid by (MP4) Capitation in the matrix and then input the yearly capitation cost paid per person of each group covered by capitation by age and sex.

→ The example assumes that the costs are 20 for every individual covered regardless of age and sex. Users should check out, fill in the [expcap] matrix with 20 and check in for both sexes in the Umbilical package – the only one available.

International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH	in See	ial Security / Te	st Insti	tution - S	Switzerland												*test
Models Scenario Configuration														1	User Name	•	Logout
Name	[ex	cap] Per ca	apita	payme	ent for capitat	ion (s	g.j.x.t)										
Scheme: Main 🔫	-		1000	2500		distant.		-	-								
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	4	No Sum(col)	No 1	Sum(row)	Check Out		xp. CSV	To .	XL5X								
Inputs	Sex	Male			Group:	Custa	nd			Pack	age: Capital						
Demographic, economic and labour fo																	
Ecoverage	C3		f_X	0													
 Contributors 		A		в	C		D		E		E	G		н	1		4
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Age vs Pr	niectio	ntime		.00		.00		.00	00		.00	.0	0	.00	_
 Contribution rates and average contrib 	2	1.			2020		2021		2022		2023	2024		2025	2026		2027
Population entitled to health services p	3	.0	2.0			.00		.00		.00	.00		.00	.04	0	00	
Health Expenditure	4	.0	2.1			.00		.00		.00	.00		.00	,03	0	.00	_
Gash benefit expenditure		.0	2.2			.00		.00		.00	.00		.00	.00	0	.00	
Other excenditure	6	.0	2.3			00		:00		.00	00		:00	.00	0	00	
Contra or foor foo health services	1	.0	2.4			00		.00		.00	00		.00	.00	0	00	
Costs of rees for reach services		.0	2 5		_	.00		:00		.00	.00		:00;	.00	01	00	_
[expcap] Per capita payment for capita		.0	2.6			00		.00		.00	.00		.00	.00	0	00	
[costint] unit cost per intervention [10	.0	2.7			.00		(00		.00	.00		(00	.00	0	-00	
[copayfix] Fix amount of co-payment	11		2 8			.00		.00		.00	.00		.00	.00	0	00	
[copayrate] Co-payment as a percen	49					00		100		.00	00		100	.04	0	00	
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	14	.0	2.10			00		00		.00			00			00	
Government transferences and other re	15		0.49			00		00		.00			100	.04	0	00	
 Reserve Fund and interest rate 	16		2.48			00		00		00	.00		00		0	00	
 Historical information series 	17		0.14			00		00		00	00		00	0	0	00	
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	18	0	0 45			00		00		00	00		00	0	0	00	
Cutputs / Projections	19	0	2 10			00		.00		.00	.00		00	.0	0	00	
	20	.0	2 17			00		.00		.00	00		.00	.0	0	00	
	21	0	5 18			00		00		:00	.00		00	0	0	.00	
	22	.0	2:59			.00		.00		.00	.00		.00	.0	0	00	
	22					-		-			00		00	14		100	

Sex:	Male			Group:	Custard		• Pad	cage: Umbilical				
A1:82		fx	20				_					
1	A		8	C	D		E	F	G	н	1	4
2	Age vs Pro	ojectio	n time	2020	2021	020.00	2022	2023	2020.00	2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020
3	200.0	0.0		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
4	200.00	0.1		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
5	200.01	2 2		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
6	200.01	0 3		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
7	200.0	0 4		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
8	200.00	0.5		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
9	200.00	0.6		20.0	0	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
10	200.00	0 7		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
11	200.01	8 0		20.0	00	29.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
12	200.00	0.9		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
13	200.04	0 10		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
14	200.0	0 11		20.0	0	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
15	200.00	0 12		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
16	200.0	0 13		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
17	200.00	2 14		20.0	0	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
18	200.00	0 15		20.0	0	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
19	200.00	0 16		20.0	0	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	29.00	20.00	20
20	200.00	0 17		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
21	200.01	0 18		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
22	200.08	0 19		20.0	00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
23	200.0	2 20		20.0	0	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20

[expcap] Per capita payment for capitation (s,g,j,x,t)

10	lo Sum(col) 😬 No Sun	n(row)	🖲 Check Out 🔹 1	Exp. CSV 🛃 To	XLSX					
Sex:	Female		Group: Custa	ard	• Paci	tage: Umbilical				
A1:82	▼ f _N	20								
1	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1			2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020.00	2,020
2	Age vs Projection to	nie	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	200.00 0		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
4	200.00 1		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
5	200.00 2		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
6	200.00 3		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
7	200.00 4		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
8	200.00 5		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
9	200.00 6		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
10	200.00 7		20.00	28.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
11	200.00 8		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
12	200.00 9		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
13	200.00 10		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
14	200.00 11		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
15	200.00 12		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
16	200.00 13		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20,00	20.00	20.00	20
17	200.00 14		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
18	200,00 15		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
19	200.00 16		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
20	200.00 17		20.00	20,00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
21	200.00 18		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
22	200.00 19		20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20
23	200.00 20		25.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20.00	20

The matrices on capitation coverage, [capcov], and event coverage, [eventcov], are found in Inputs > Health utilization frequencies and coverage.

This matrix contains the percentage of the population whose corresponding healthcare interventions are paid by capitation. In this example, the default value of 100 per cent is used for all packages as there are no healthcare interventions offered by (MP4) Capitation, by (MP5) Health intervention in the general case, or by (MP6) Health intervention hospitalization simultaneously. If some individuals' consultations are paid by Capitation and others by Health intervention, users will have to use [capcov] and [eventcov] to complement both rates to show the expected distributions between payment methods.

→ This exercise skips these matrices, so users only need to check out and check in these matrices for both sexes for all packages to increase the completion rate.

International Labour Organization Quantizative Ration	H m in Social	l Security / Test	Institution - Switze	rrland							*test
Models Stenario Configuration									1.0	ser Name 🖸	Logout
Name	Icano	cv1 Capitati	on coverage	(saixt)							
Scheme: Main	Inches			(eighten)							
	I No	o Sum(col)	No Sumprovel	🛇 Check Cut 🛛 🛍	Exp. CSV 🎘 Tr	XLSX					
«enter search criteria here»											
Inputs	Sex: 1	Vale		Group: Cust	and	* Pad	kage: Capital				
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 											
 Eoverage 	A1:82		fx 100%								
 Contributors 	1	4	8	C	D	F	F	G	н	1	
 Balaries/average and growth rates 	1	Aan yn Prose	schion time	15100.00%	10103.00%	13100.00%	10100.0056	10100.00%	10100.0098	10703-00%	101020
 Contribution rates and average contrib 	2	right is a right	and the	2020	2021	2822	2023	2024	2025	2026	2627
 Population entitled to health services p., 	3	1000.00%	0	160.03%	100.00%	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	106.0
Benealth Expenditure	4	1550.00%	1.	100.0056	100.00%	100.00%	100.03%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	106.0
 Cash benefit expenditure 	5	1506.00%	2	100.0256	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Other executions	6	1000.00%	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Citier experiordite	7	1000.00%	4	100.05%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	1.00.00%	101.0
Losis or rees for nearth services	8	1000.00%	5	100.03%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	106.0
 meann unization trequences and cove 		1000.00%	6	100.01%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100,0
[regint] Expected number of interve	10	1000.00%	1	100.0056	100.00%	100.00%	10000%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
[dimen] Parameter for additional di	- 11	1000.00%	0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.0
[hospdays] Average days per hospit	12	1054100%		100.0955	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.10%	100.03%	100.00%	100.0
[eventcov] Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)		1000.00%	19	100.03%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
[capcov] Capitation coverage (s,g,j,x,t)		100610/18	11	100.00%	100.00%	TOLEUN	10000%	100.00%	100.03%	100.00%	100.0
 Goverment transferences and other re 	16	1000.000	11	100.0556	100.00%	100.00%	100.005	100.000	100.002	100.000	100.0
Reserve Fund and Interest rate	17	1050.00%		100.0016	100.00%	100005	100.005	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Historical information series	18	1000.00%	16	160.02%	100.00%	100 00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19	1000.00%	18	100.02%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100 00%	100.005	100.00%	101.0
Outputs / Projections	29	1000.00%	17	100.02%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100 10%	100.00%	130.00%	100.0
	21	1505.02%	18	100.03%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	106.0
	22	1000.00%	19	100.0056	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100:00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
	25	1000 0216	23	100 00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.005	100 00%	100.03%	100.00%	100.0

[cap	cov] Capitatio	n coverag	e (s,g,j,x,t)							
E	No Sum(col) ···· N	o Sum(row)	⊙ Check Out	Exp. CSV 🚦 To	XLSX					
Sex:	Male		Group: Cust	ard	· Pad	age: Tactile	٠			
A1:82	▼ f.	x 100%								
	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1 2	Age vs Project	ion time	10100.00% 2020	10100.00% 2021	10100.00% 2022	10100.00% 2023	10100.00% 2024	10100.00% 2025	10100.00%	10100.0
3	1000.00% 0		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00% 1		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00% 2		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00% 3		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00% 4		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00% 5		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00% 6		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00% 7		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00% 8		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.0095 9		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00% 10		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00% 11		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00% 12		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00% 13		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00% 14		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00% 15		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00% 16		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00% 17		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00% 18		100.00%	100.00%	100:00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00% 19		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
23	1000.0001.00		100.00%	100.00%	100.005/	400.00%	100.00%	100.009	100.00%	100.0

[capcov] Capitation coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

🕴 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 💂 To XLSX

Sex: Male

Group: Custard

Package: Podo

A1:82		fx 100%								
	A	в	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1 2	Age vs Proje	ection time	10100.00%	10100.00% 2021	10100.00% 2022	10100.00% 2023	10100.00% 2024	10100.00% 2025	10100.00% 2026	10100.0 2027
3	1000.00%	0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	108.0
4	1000.00%	1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00%	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00%	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00%	4	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00%	5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00%	6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00%	7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00%	8	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00%	9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00%	10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00%	11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00%	12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00%	13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00%	14	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00%	15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00%	16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00%	17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00%	18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00%	19	100.00%	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
23	1000.00%	20	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[capcov] Capitation coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

🕴 No Sum(col) 🛛 🚥 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 👔 To XLSX

Sex: Male

Group: Custard

Package: Umbilical

	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	E	S J -
1	Annual Production Pro-	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.0
2	Age vs Projection time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1000.0096 0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00% 1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00% 2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00% 3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00% 4	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00% 5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00% 6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00% 7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00% 8	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00% 9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00% 10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00% 11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00% 12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	7000.00% 13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00% 14	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00% 15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00% 16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00% 17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00% 18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00% 19	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
23	1000 0095 28	100.00%	100.00%	100.0055	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[capcov] Capitation coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

1 No Sum(col) *** No Sum(row) 💿 Check Dut 🔹 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX

Sex: Male Group: Custard Package: BT

	A E	C	D	E	F	G	н	4	J
1		10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.0
2	Age vs Projection tin	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1000.00% 0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00% 1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00% 2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00% 3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00% 4	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00% 5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00% 6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00% 7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00% B	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00% 9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	7000.00% 10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00% 11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00% 12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00% 13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00% 14	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00% 15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00% 16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00% 17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00% 18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00% 19	100 00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	in Soci	al Security / Test Ins	titution - Switz	erland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration									L U	iser Name 🖸	Logout
Name	leve	ntcovil Event or	overage (s	aixt)							
Scheme: Main *		lo Sum(col) *** No	Sum(row)	Check Out	Exp. CSV 🛃 To	XLSX					
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-		_			_					
Inputs Demographic, economic and labour fo	Sex:	Male	•	Group: Cust	ard	* Pad	kage: BT				
Contributors		A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1 I	1 1
Salaries/average and growth rates	1 2	Age vs Projecti	on time	10100.00% 2020	10100.00% 2021	10100.00% 2022	10100.00% 2023	10100.00% 2024	10100.00% 2025	10100.00% 2026	10100.0 2027
Population entitled to health services p	3	1000.00% 0		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Health Expanditure	4	1000.00% 1		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Frank basefit suspenditure	5	1000.00% 2		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Cash benefit expenditure	6	1000.00% 3		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Other expenditure	7	1000.00% 4		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Costs or fees for health services	8	1000.00% 5		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	9	1000.00% 6		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
[freqint] Expected number of interve	10	1000.00% 7		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
[dimen] Parameter for additional di	11	1000.00% 8		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
[hospdays] Average days per hospit	12	1000.00% 9		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
eventcov Event coverage (s.g.i.x.t)	13	1000.00% 10		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
[capcov] Capitation coverage (s.o.i.x.t)	14	1000.00% 11		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Government transferences and other re	15	1000.00% 12		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Became Fund and laterast rate	16	1000.00% 13		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Reserve runo ano interest rate	17	1000.00% 14		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
 Historical information series 	18	1000.00% 15		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	19	1000.00% 16		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
Outputs / Projections	20	1000.00% 17		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
	21	1000.00% 18		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
	22	1000 0095 10		100 0095	500.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[eventcov] Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

🕴 No Sum(col) 🛛 🏎 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Dut 🔹 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX

Sex:	Male	Group: Cust	ard	▼ Pacl	kage: Capital				
A1:82	▼ fx 100%								
-	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	- F	J
1	Annue Projection time	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.0
2	Age is Frederical mile	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1000.00% 0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00% 1	100.00%	100.00%	180.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00% 2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00% 3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00% 4	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00% \$	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00% 6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00% 7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00% a	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00% 9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00% 10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.0095 11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00% 12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00% 13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00% 14	100.00%	100.00%	160.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00% 15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00% 16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00% 17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00% 18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00% 19	100.00%	100.00%	100 00%	100.00%	100 30%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[eventcov] Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

👔 No Sum(col) 👘 No Sum(row) 🞯 Check Out 🕏 Exp. CSV ಶ To XLSX

Sex: Male Group: Custard Package: Tactile A1:82 fr 100%

	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	A second management	in all in a	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.0
2	Age vs Projectio	n time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1000.00% 0		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00% 1		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00% 2		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00% 3		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00% 4		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00% 5		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00% 6		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00% 7		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00% B		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00% 9		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00% 10		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00% 11		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00% 12		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00% 13		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00% 14		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.06%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00% 15		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00% 16		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00% 17		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00% 18		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00% 19		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[eventcov] Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

I No Sum(col) *** No Sum(row) 🛞 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX

Sex: Male
Group: Custard
Package: Podo

	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Annue Pro	laction time	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.0
2	Age vs Pro	ecoon unus	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1000.00%	0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00%	1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.D
5	1000.00%	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00%	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00%	4	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00%	5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00%	6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00%	7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00%	8	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00%	9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00%	10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00%	11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00%	12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00%	13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00%	14	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00%	15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00%	16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100,0
20	1000.00%	17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00%	18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100:00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00%	19	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[eventcov] Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

🚦 No Sum(col) 🛛 🏎 No Sum(row) 🕲 Check Out 🕼 Exp. CSV 🛛 🗞 To XLSX

Sex: Male

Group: Custard

Package: Umbilical

A1:82		Jx 100%			~					
1	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н		J
1	Ann un Droin	ction time	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.00%	10100.0
2	Age vs Proje	ction une	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1000.00%	5	100.00%	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00%		100,00%	100.00%	100.D0%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00%	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00%	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00%	6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00%	5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00%	5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00%	1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00% 8	8	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00%		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00%	10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00%	11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00%	12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100:00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00%	13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100,00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00%	14	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00%	15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00%	16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00%	17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00%	18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00%	19	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[eventcov] Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)

11	No Sum(col)	••• No Sum(row)	🙁 Check Out 🔹	Exp. CSV 🛃	To XLSX					
Sex:	Male		Group: Cust	ard	• Paci	kage: Infrastruct	ure 💌			
A1:B2		fx 100%								
	A	в	C	D	E	F	G	н	- T	J
1 2	Age vs Pr	ojection time	10100.00% 2020	10100.00% 2021	10100.00% 2022	10100.00% 2023	10100.00% 2024	10100.00% 2025	10100.00% 2026	10100.0 2027
3	1000.009	. 0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.009	6.1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00%	2	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00%	6.3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.003	4	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00%	5 5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.003	6 6	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00%	6 7	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00%	8	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.005	6.9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.009	5 10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100:00%	100.0
14	1000.003	6 11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00%	6 12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.003	6 13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.003	6 14	100.00%	100:00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00%	5 15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.005	6 16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00%	6 17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00%	5 18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.005	6 19	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

[ever	ntcov] Event	coverage	(s,g,j,x,t)							
I.N	o Sum(col) 🚥	No Sum(row)	🐵 Check Out 🔹	Exp. CSV 📑 T	o XLSX					
Sex:	Male		Group: Cust	ard	• Paci	kage: BT				
A1:82		fx 100%								
	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1 2	Age vs Proje	ction time	10100.00% 2020	10100.00% 2021	10100.00% 2022	10100.00% 2023	10100.00% 2024	10100.00% 2025	10100.00% 2026	10100.0 2027
3	1000.00%	0	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
4	1000.00%		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
5	1000.00%	1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
6	1000.00%	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
7	1000.00%		100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
8	1000.00%	5	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
9	1000.00%	3	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
10	1000.00%	r	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
11	1000.00%	1	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
12	1000.00%)	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
13	1000.00%	10	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
14	1000.00%	11	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
15	1000.00%	12	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
16	1000.00%	13	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
17	1000.00%	14	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
18	1000.00%	15	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
19	1000.00%	16	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
20	1000.00%	17	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
21	1000.00%	18	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0
22	1000.00%	9	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.00%	100.0

6.3.7. Modelling payment per intervention

The matrices for expected number of interventions per year, [freqint], and unit cost per intervention, [costint], can be found in Inputs > Health utilization frequencies and coverage.

In the matrix [freqint], the packages paid by (MP5) Health intervention in the general case or by (MP6) Health intervention hospitalization are the only ones that offer the Check Out option. Users should determine packages are paid by these and fill in the matrix with the expected number of interventions a person of a given age and sex will receive in a year.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l 1 in Socia	l Security /	Test Institution -	Switzerland								*test
Models Scenario Configuration										L Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Name	[freq	int] Expe	cted numbe	r of interventi	ons per	year (s.g.j.i,	x,t)					
scheme: Main	-											
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 9	um(col) **	" No Sum(row)	O Check Out	🔒 Exp. CS	W Z To XLSX						
Temute	Sex:	Male	*	Group	Custard		• Pac	kage: Capital				
Endographic, economic and labour fo Ecoverage Contributors	Interv	ention: Ear	rs					,				
Salaries/average and growth rates	A1:82		fx 2									
 Contribution rates and average contrib 		A	в	C		D	E	F	G	н	1	J
Bernard Population entitled to health services p Bernard Population entitled to health services p	1 2	Age vs I	Projection time	2020	02.00	202.00 2021	202.00 2022	202.00 2023	202.00 2024	202.00 2025	202.00 2026	20 2027
🕨 🚞 Cash benefit expenditure	3	20	07 0		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Other expenditure	4	20	00 1		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
 Costs or fees for health services 	5	20	.00 2		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Health utilization frequencies and cove	6	20	00 3		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
[fregint] Expected number of interve	7	20	.00 4		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Idimen Parameter for additional di	8	20	.00 5		2.00	2.00	2.00	2:00	2.00	2,00	2.00	
hospdays Average days per hospit	9	20	00 6		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Immentcoul Event coverage (s.g. i x.t)	10	20	.00 7		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	
Fancovi Capitation coverage (5,9),547	11	20	8 00		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	Z.00	
Capitation coverage (s,g,g,r,r)	12	20	.00 9		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Government transferences and other re	13	20	.00 10		2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	14	20	.00 11		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
 Historical information series 	15	20	00 12		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Health packages (From Configuration)		20	00 13	_	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
Cutputs / Projections	10	20	00.14		2.00	2.00	2,00	2,00	2:00	2:00	2.00	
	10	20	00 15		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	_
	20	20	00.10		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2//0	2.00	2.00	
		20	00 11		6.00	2.90	2.00	2,00.	230	2.00	2.00	

Sex: Male	Ears X •	Group: Custa	rd	 Pack 	age: Capital				
	Ears								
A1:82	Eyes			100				.020	
A	Head	C	D	E		G	н	1	J
1 Ag	10000	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	20077
2	Nose	2020	ZUZ I	2022	2423	2024	2025	2020	EUEI
	Teath	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	
	reeut	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
6	20.00 2	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
7	20.00 4	2.00	2.03	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
8	20.00 5	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
9	20.00.6	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
10	20.00 7	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
H	20.00 8	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
12	20.00 9	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
13	20.00 10	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
14	20.00 11	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	
15	20.00 12	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
16	20.00 13	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
7	20.00 14	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
18	20.00 15	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
19	20.00 16	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
80	20.00 17	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
21	00 00 AH	2.00	7.00	5.00	2.05	0.00	2.00	2.00	

[freqint] Expected number of interventions per year (s,g,j,i,x,t)

🗄 Sum(col) 🛛 *** No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🕏 To XLSX

Sex: Male
Group: Custard
Package: Capital
Intervention: Eyes

A1:B2 • fx 2

	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1		202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	20
2	Age vs Projection time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	20.00 0	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
4	20.00 1	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
5	20.00 2	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
6	20.00 3	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
7	20.00 4	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2,00	
8	20.00 5	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
9	20.00 6	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	
10	20.00 7	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
11	20.00 8	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.90	2.00	2.00	2.00	
12	20.00 0	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
13	20.00 10	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
14	20.00 11	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
15	20.00 12	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
16	20.00 13	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
17	20.00 14	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
18	20.00 15	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
19	20.00 16	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
20	20.00 17	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
21	20.00 18	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	

[freqint] Expected number of interventions per year (s,g,j,i,x,t)

I s	um(col) ···· No Sum(r	row) 💿	Check Out 🔹 Exp.	CSV 🖹 To XLSD						
Sex:	Male		Group: Custa	rd	• Pack	age: Capital				
Interv	ention: Head		2							
A1:B2	▼ fx	1								
	A	в	c	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1 2	Age vs Projection	time	101.00	101.00 2021	107.00 2022	101.00 2023	101.00 2024	101.00 2025	101.00 2026	10 2027
3	10.00 0		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
4	10.00 1		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
5	10.00 2		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
6	10.00 3		1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
7	10.00 4		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
8	10.00 5		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
9	10.00 6		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
10	10.00 7		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
11	10.00 8		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
12	10.00 9		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
13	10.00 10		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
14	10.00 11		1,00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
15	10.00 12		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
16	10.00 13		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
17	10.00 14		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	5.00	1.00	1.00	
18	10.00 15		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
19	10.00 16		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
20	10.00 17		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
21	10.00 18		1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	

[freqint] Expected number of interventions per year (s,g,j,i,x,t)

🚦 Sum(cal) 🛛 Na Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV To XLSX

Sex: Male

Group: Custand

Package: Capital

Intervention: Head

	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Ann ve Projection time	101.00	101.00	101.00	101.00	101.00	101.00	101.00	10
2	rige var rojection min	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	10.00 0	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
4	10.00 1	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
5	10.00 2	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
6	10.00 3	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
7	10.00 4	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
8	10.00 5	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
9	10.00 6	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
10	10.00 7	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
11	10.00 8	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
12	10.00 9	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
13	10.00 10	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
14	10.00 11	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
15	10.00 12	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
16	10.00 13	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
17	10.00 14	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	
18	10.00 15	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
19	10.00 16	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
20	10.00 17	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	
21	10.00 18	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	

[freqint] Expected number of interventions per year (s,g,j,i,x,t)

🚦 Sum(col) 🛛 *** No Sum(row) 🞯 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🗜 To XLSX

Sex: Main	Group: Custard	Package: Capital	
intervention: Teeth			

A1:82 • fx 32

1	A	В	c	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1 2	Age vs Projecti	on time	3,232.00	3,232.00	3,232.00	3,232.00	3,232.00	3,232.00	3,232.00	3,23
3	220,00,0		\$2.00	22.00	\$2.00	20.00	22.00	22.00	22.00	a de la compañía de
,	320.00 0		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	
	320.00 1		32.00	32,00	32,00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
0	320.00 2		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
6	320.00 3		32.00	32.00	32,00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	.3
7	320.00 4		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
8	320.00 5		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32,00	32.00	3
9	320.00 6		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
10	320.00 7		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
11	320.00 B		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
12	320.00 9		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
13	320.00 10		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
14	320.00 11		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
15	320.00 12		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
16	320.00 13		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
17	320.00 14		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
18	320.00 15		32.00	32,00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
19	320.00 16		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
20	320.00 17		32.00	32.00	32,00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3
21	320.00 18		32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	32.00	3

[freqint] Expected number of interventions per year (s,g,j,i,x,t) 🗄 Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 🞯 Check Out 🌸 Exp. CSV 📑 To XLSX

Sex: Male

Group: Custard

Package: Tactile

Intervention: Fingers

A1:B2 ¥ fx 10

d.	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Annua Projection tim	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,01
2	wile as Frolecourt in	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	100.00 0	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
4	100.00 1	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
5	100.00 2	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
6	100.00 3	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
7	100.00 4	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
8	100.00 \$	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
9	100.00 5	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
10	100.00 7	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
11	100.00 8	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
12	100.00 9	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
13	100.00 10	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
14	100.00 11	10.00	10.90	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
15	100.00 12	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
16	100.00 13	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
17	100.00 14	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
18	100.00 15	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
19	100.00 16	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
20	100.00 17	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
21	100.00 18	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	4

Sex:	Male •	Group: Custa	rd	• Packa	ige: Tactile				
nterv	vention: Fingers X	•							
	Fingers								
1:82	Hands								
4	AL	C 1.010.00	1.010.00	E 1.010.00	F 1.010.00	G 1.010.00	H 1.010.00	1.010.00	3.
	Age vs Projection time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
	100.00 0	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 1	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 2	10.00	10.00	10,00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 3	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 %	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 5	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
,	100.00 7	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
Ê.	100.00 8	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
2	100.00 0	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
3	100.00 10	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
6	100.00 11	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
ŝ.,	100.00 12	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
5	100.00 13	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 14	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
	100.00 15	10.00	10,00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
Ê.	100.00 16	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
)	100.00 17	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	
eq	int] Expected number of i	nterventions pe	r year (s,g,j,i	.x,t)					
	tint) Expected number of i	Check Out R. Exp. Group: Custar	r year (s,g,j,i, csv 👔 To XLSX	x,t) • Packa	ige; Tactile				
ireq ex: terv	int] Expected number of i sum(ca) ••• Na Sum(row) •• • Male • vention: Fingers: ••• fx 10	Check Out & Exp. Group: Custar	r year (s,g,j,i csv 🛛 🕅 To XLSX	x,t)	ige; Tactile	(x)			
ireq i i i ex: iterv	int] Expected number of i sum(ca) ••• Na Sum(row) •• • Male • evention: Fingers: ••• fx 10 A B	Check Out Group: Custar	r year (s,g,j,i csv R Toxics d	x,t) Packz	ige: Tactile F	¢	н	1	J
req ex: terv	int] Expected number of i sam(cs)	Cresk Out R. Exp. Group: Custan	r year (s,g,j,i csv R To XLSX d d D T,070.00 2021	E 1.010.00 2022	rge: Tactile F 1,010.00 2023	G 1,010.00 2024	H 1.010.00 2025	I 1,010.00 2025	J 1,0 2027
req be ex: terv	Init] Expected number of i sum(cot) [™] No Sum(cot) [©] Male ^I Male ^I <i>fx</i> 10 A B Age vs Projection time 100.00 0	Check Out Check Out Croup: Custal Control C C C T,010.00 2020 10.00	r year (s,g,j,i, csv ToxLsx d D 1,010.00 2021 10.00	E 1.010.00 2022	ege: Tactile F 1,010.00 2023	G 1,010.00 2024	H 1.010.00 2025 10.00	I 1,010.00 2026 10.00	J 1/0 2027
req Interv ::B2	int] Expected number of i sum(co) ••• No Sum(row) Male • vention: Fingers • fx • fx • fx • fx • 10 • 100.00	Check Out R: Exp. Group: Custar C C, 5,010.00 2020 10,00 10,00	r year (s,g,j,i csv 🛛 To XLSX d D T,010.00 2021 10.00 10.00	E 1.010.00 2022 10.00	PE: Tactile F 7,010.00 2023 10.00 10.00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00	H 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00	1 1.010.00 2025 10.00 10.00	J 1,0 2027
req ex: terv	int] Expected number of i iam(col)	Check Out	r year (s,g,j,i, csv	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.00	F F,010,000 2023 10,00 10,00 10,00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1.010.00 2025 10.00 10.00	I 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 7,0 2027
req ex: terv	int] Expected number of i sunt(ot)	Creek Out Creek Out Creek Out Creek Out Croup: Custat C C T,010.00 2020 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	r year (s,g,j,i csv & ToxLsv d f,010.00 2021 10.00 10.00 10.00	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	Pge: Tactile F T,010.00 2023 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	G T,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1.010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00	1 1,010.00 2035 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 1,(2027
ireq ex: i:B2	fint] Expected number of i sum(cot) ••• No Sum(row) • Male • • vention: Fingers • • fx 10 • fx 10 • fx 10 • 100.00 • 100.00 1 • 100.00 1 • 100.00 1 •	Check Out Check Out Croup: Custar Comp: Custar C C C T,010.00 10.	r year (s,g,j,i CSV R To XLSX d D 1,010,00 2021 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	E f.010.00 2022 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	F 7,010,00 2023 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	I 1,010.00 2028 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 7,0 2027
ireq ex: terv	int] Expected number of i iam(ca)	Create Out Create Out Group: Custan C C T,010.00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	r year (s,g,j,i CSV ₹ To XLSX d T,070,000 2021 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	E 1,010,00 2022 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	F 7,010,000 2023 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000	G 1,010.00 2024 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	H 1,010,00 2025 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	I 1,010.00 2026 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	J 1,(2027
ireq 1.5 2x: 1:82	int] Expected number of i sum(cot)	Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Creater C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	r year (s,g,j,i csv traxis d D r,010.00 2021 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	F 1,010.00 2023 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	1 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 7,(2027
i s ex: 1:82	int] Expected number of is isun(co)	Creck Out P: Exp. Group: Custar Creck Out P: Custar C C T,010.00 2020 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	r year (s,g,j,i csv R To XLSX d D T.050.00 2021 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	E 1.010.00 2022 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	F F 7.010.00 2023 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	G 1,012.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1.010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	1 1,010,00 2025 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	J 1.(. 2027
ireq ex: hterv	int] Expected number of i iam(ca)	Create Out Create Out Group: Curtai C C T,010.00 1	D 1,050,000 2021 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000 10,000	E 1,010,00 2022 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	F F,010.00 2023 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 210,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	I 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 1.1 2027
req ex: 1:B2	int] Expected number of i sum(col)	Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Creace C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C C	r year (s,g,j,j csv traxis d D r,010.00 2021 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.0	PGP: Tactile F 1,010.00 2023 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	1 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 1.0 2027
i s ex: hterv	int] Expected number of i iam(co) •••• No Sum(row) ● Male •••• Fingers •••• fx 10 •••• fx 10 ••	Create Out	r year (s,g,j,i csv R To XLSX d D T,010,00 2021 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	E 1,010,00 2022 10,00 2022 10,00	F F, 1,010,00 2023 10.00 1	G f,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	I f,010.00 2028 10.00 10.0	J 1,0 7202
i s ex: 1:B2	int] Expected number of i iun(col)	Create Out	D 1,070,000 2021 10,0000 10,0000 10,000 10,0000 10,00000000	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	F F, 010.00 2023 10.00 10.	G r,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	I 7,019.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 1,(2027
freq ex: 1:82 1:82 1:82 1:82 1:82 1:82 1:82 1:8	int] Expected number of i sum(col)	Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Qut Creack Creace Cre	r year (s,g,j,j CSV R To XLSX To XLSX	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.0	PC: Tactile F 1,010.00 2023 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00 10,00	I 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 1.0 2027
freq ex: hterv 1:82	int] Expected number of i ium(col)	Create Out Create Out Create Out Croup: Custan C C C C C C C C C C C C C	D 1,010,000 2021 10,000 10,00000000	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.0	F 7,010,00 2023 10,00 10,0	G f,010.00 2024 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	H 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	I f,010.00 2028 10.00 10.0	J 1.0 2027
freq ex: nterv 11-B2 1 2 3 3 4 5 5 6 7 7 8	int] Expected number of i iun(col)	Creack Out Creack Out Creack Out Creack Out Creack Out Creack Cr	D r, year (s, g, j, j to xLsx d D r, 010.00 1	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10	Pge: Tactile F T,010.00 2023 10.00 10.0	G T,010.00 2024 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 10,000 10,000 10,0000 10,000 10,000 10,0000 10,0000 10,0000 10,00000000	1 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00 10.00	J 1,C 7505
freq ex: nterv 1.62 1 1 1 2 3 3 4 5 5 7 7 8 9	int] Expected number of is isim(co)	Creak Qut	r year (s,g,j,j CSV R To XLSV D 1,010,00 2021 10.00	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10.0	PGPC: Tactile F 7,010.00 2023 10.00 10.	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00 10	H 1,010,00 2025 10,000 10,0000 10,0000 10,0000 10,00000000	I 1,010.00 2025 10.00 10.0	J .1. 7205
freq ex: nterv 1:B2 1 2 3 4 5 5 5 5 7 7 3 3 4 5 5 6 7 7 8 9 9 0 0	int] Expected number of i iun(ci)	Create Out Create Out Group: Curtai C C T,010.00 2020 10,00 10	D 1,050,000 2021 0,000 10,0000 10,0000 10,0000 10,0000 10,0000 10,00000000	E 1,010.00 2022 10.00 10	P F F,010.00 2023 10.00 1	G 1,010.00 2024 10.00	H 1,010,00 2025 10,000 10,000 10,0000 10,0000 10,00000000	I 7,019.00 2025 10.00	J 1.0. 2027

→ In this exercise, each person, regardless of age and sex, will receive the following interventions: one Nose, one Head, two Eyes, two Ears, two Hands, 10 Fingers and 32 Teeth. (Remember the tricks for copying one completed matrix and pasting it into another or using export and import csv to facilitate the process.) Fill in the information for both sexes for the packages Capital and Tactile.

Similarly, in Inputs > Costs or fees for health services, the matrix [costint] provides the cost of each intervention (medical contact) or treatment day for an intervention that is paid by (MP6) Health intervention hospitalization. Costs change by age but remain the same for both sexes.

→ For the example, Nose costs 1, Head 10, Eyes 2, Ears 3, Hands 1 per day, Fingers 0.5 per day, and Teeth 4. Input these values in the respective matrices and check in.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	in Social	Security / Test Instituti	on - Switzerland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration								💄 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Name	[costin	nt] Unit cost per i	ntervention (g.j.i.x.))						
Scheme: Main	-									
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 No	Sum(col) *** No Sum	(row) ③ Check Out	🕏 Exp. CSV 🕅 To XLS	×					
inputs	Group:	Custard	 Package: 	Capital 😽	 Inter 	vention: Ears	1			
Bemographic, economic and labour fo Bemographic economic and labour fo	A1:82	▼ fx 3		Capital						
Contributors		A 1	a c	Tactile		F	G	н	1	1
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Ade vs Projection tir	303.0	Pode	303.00	303.00	303.00	303.00	303.00	30
Contribution rates and average contrib	2	rige te i tojecioù u	2020	1000	2	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
Population entitled to health services p	3	30,00 0	3.(Umbilical	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
Health Expenditure	4	30.00 1	3.0		3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
Cash benefit expenditure	5	30.00 2	3.(Infrastructure	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.90	3.00	
Other expenditure	6	30.00 3	- 3.0	BT	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
Costs or foos for boolth convisor	7	30.00 4	3.(3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
- Costs of fees for realth services	8	30.00 5	.3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
[expcap] Per capita payment for capi	9	30.00 6	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
[costint] Unit cost per intervention (10	30.00 7	. 3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
[copayfix] Fix amount of co-payment	17	30,00 8	3.0	0 3.00	0.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
[copayrate] Co-payment as a percen	12	30.00 9	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	10	30.00 10	- 3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
Goverment transferences and other re	15	30.00 11	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
 Reserve Fund and interest rate 	16	30.00 12	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
 Historical information series 	17	30.00 14	31	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
 Health packages (From Configuration) 	18	30.00 15	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
Outputs / Projections	19	30.00 16	30	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
	20	30.00 17	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
	21	30.00 18	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
	22	30.00 19	3.0	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	
	23	30.00 20	31	0 3.00	3.00	3.00	3.00	3.80	3.00	

[costint] Unit cost per intervention (g,j,i,x,t)

🗄 No Sum(col) 🛛 🚥 No Sum(row) 🐵 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🔹 To XLSX Package: Capital Intervention: Ears Group: Custard * ٠ ✓ fx 3
 A B A1:82 F 303.00 2023 3.00 3.00 3.00 G 303.00 2024 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 H 303.00 2025 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 I 303.00 2026 3.00 303.00 2022 C 303.89 2021 D J 1 2 3 4 5 6 6 7 7 8 9 10 11 12 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 21 19 20 21 22 23 303.00 2020 30 2027 Age vs Projection time 20.00 0 30.00 1 20.00 2 30.00 3 30.00 3 30.00 4 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 2021 3.00 3.60 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 30.00 5 30.00 6 30.00 7 30.00 8 30.00 9 30.00 10 30.00 11 30.00 11 30.00 12 30.00 14 30.00 15 30.00 15 30.00 15 30.00 18 30.00 18 30.00 18 3.00 3,00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00 3.00

[costint] Unit cost per intervention (g,j,i,x,t)

🚦 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🛍 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX

Group: Custard

Package: Capital

Intervention: Eyes

1	A	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	E	្ស
1	Ann an Bastration	100	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	202.00	20
2	Age vs Projection	unie	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	20.00 0		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
4	20.00 1		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
5	20.00 2		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
6	20.00 3		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
7	20.00 4		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
8	20.00 5		2.00	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
9	20.00 6		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	
10	20.00 7		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
11	20.00 8		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
12	20.00 9		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
13	20.00 10		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
14	20.00 11		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
15	20.00 12		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
16	20.00 13		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
17	20.00 14		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
18	20.00 15		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
19	20.00 16		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
20	20.00 17		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
21	20.00 18		2,00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	2.00	2.00	
22	20.00 19		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	
23	20.00 20		2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	

[costint] Unit cost per intervention (g,j,i,x,t)

🗄 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 💿 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🏌 To XLSX

Group: Custard

Package: Capital

Intervention: Head

A1:82		fx 10								
1	A	в	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1		non and a second	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,010.00	1,01
2	Age vs Pro	lection time	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	100.00	0	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
4	100.00	1	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
5	100.00	2	10.00	10.00	10:00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
6	100.00	3	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
7	100.00	4	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
8	100.00	5	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
9	100.00	6	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
10	100.00	7	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
11	100.00	8	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
12	100.00	9	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
13	100.00	10	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
14	100.00	11	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	t.
15	100.00	12	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
16	100.00	13	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
17	100.00	14	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
18	100.00	15	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
19	100.00	16	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
20	100.00	17	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
21	100.00	18	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
22	100.00	19	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1
23	100.00	20	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	10.00	1

[costint] Unit cost per intervention (g,j,i,x,t)

🕴 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 🞯 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV ੋ To XLSX Intervention: Nose Group: Custard Package: Capital ٠ ▼ fx 1 A B A1:B2 H 101.00 2025 1.00 C 101.00 D E F G 1 3 1 2 3 4 101.00 2026 101.00 2021 101.00 101.00 2024 101.00 10 Age vs Projection time 2020 2022 2023 2027 1.00 1.00 1.00 1,00 1.00 1.00 10.00 0 10.00 1 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 5 10.00 1 5 10.00 2 6 10.00 3 7 10.00 4 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 10.00 5 10.00 6 10.00 7 10.00 8 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 9 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 10 11 12 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 10.00 9 10.00 10 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 12 13 14 15 16 17 18 19 20 1.00 10.00 11 10.00 12 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 10.00 13 10.00 14 10.00 15 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 10.00 16 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 10.00 **17** 10.00 **18** 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 20 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 21 22 1.00 1.00 1.00 10.00 19 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 1.00 23

[costint] Unit cost per intervention (g,j	(i, i, x, t)
---	--------------

: No Sum(col) *** No Sum(row) 🛞 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX

Group	Custard		Package: Car	sital	• Inter	vention: Teeth	2	6		
A1:82		fx 4								
1	A	в	C	D	E	F	G	н	E	J
1	Age vs Projection time 40.00 0 40.00 1	404.00	404.00	404.00	404.00	404.00	404.00	404.00	40	
2	Age vs Projection time 40.00 0 40.00 1 40.00 2		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	40.00 0 40.00 1 40.00 2 40.00 3		4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
4	40.00	1	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
5	40.00	2	4.00	4.00	4.00	4,00	4,00	4.00	4.00	
6	40.00	3	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
7	40.00	4	4.00	4,00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
8	40.00	5	4.00	4.00	4.00	4,00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
9	40.00	6	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
10	40.00	7	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
11	40.00	8	4.00	4.00	-4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
12	40.00	9	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
13	40.00	10	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
14	40.00	11	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
15	40.00	12	4.00	4.00	4.00	4,00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
16	40.00	13	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
17	40.00	14	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
18	40.00	15	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
19	40.00	16	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
20	40.00	17	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4,00	4.00	4.00	
21	40.00	18	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
22	40.00	19	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	4.00	
00	111000								1010101	

[costint] Unit cost per intervention (g,j,i,x,t)

I N	io Sum(col)	-** N	io Sum(row)	Check Out	🔹 Exp. CSV	🛃 To XL	sx					
Group	Custard		٠	Package	a Tactile		• Inter	vention: Fingers				
A1:BZ		• J.	x 0.5									
	A		8	С	D		E	F	G	н	1	J
1		Desired	in a since	50	1.60	50.50	60.50	50.50	50.50	50.50	50.50	
2	MB6 AP	Project	aon ume	2020	202	1	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	1	5.00 0			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
4	1	5.00 1			,50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
5	1	1.00 2			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
6		5.00 3		1	,50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
7	1	5.00 4			.50	.50	.50	.50	.60	.50	.50	
8	4	5.00 5			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
9	1	5.00 6			.50	.50	.50	.50	.60	.50	.50	
10	1	5.00 7			,50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
11	1	5.00 B			.60	.60	.60	.50	.60	.50	.50	
12	1	5.00 9		1	.50	,50	.50	.50	.60	.50	.50	
13		5.00 10			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
14	ŧ	5.00 11			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
15	1	5.00 12			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
16	1	5.00 13			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
17		5.00 14			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
18	\$	5,00 15			.50	,60	,50	,50	:50	.50	.50	
19	1	5.00 16			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
20	1	5.00 17			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
21	1	5.00 18			.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	.50	
22	t	5.00 19			.60	.60	.50	.50	.60	.50	.50	
23	1	5.00 20			50	50	50	50	50	50	50	

6.3.7.1. Modelling hospitalization payment

For packages paid by (MP6) By health intervention hospitalization, the matrix [hospdays] contains the number of days of expected treatment for a contact of a given intervention. This matrix is found in: Inputs > Health utilization frequencies and coverage.

→ In the example, for the Tactile package, Hand requires five days on average for both sexes, regardless of age. Finger requires 1.5 days. Users should enter these values into the matrix for both sexes.

: sum	8408) //··	- IND SI	Tuof.com)	Crieck Out	Es exp. cav	E2 10 ALS							
Sex: Mi	ale			Group	Custard		*	Package:	Capital	K 7			
Interven	tion: Ha	nds							Capital				
								1	Tactile				
A1:B2		fs	r 0						Podo				
	A		В	С		D	E		Umbilical		н	E	1
1	Anna ann a	Indent	on time		.00	.00		.00	Ombinear		.00	.00	
2	Age vs Projection .00 0 .00 1	on mine	2020		2021	2022	- 3	Infrastructure		2025	2026	2027	
3				.00	.00		.00			.00	.00		
4		00 1			.00	.00		,00	BT		.00	.00	
5		00 2			.00	.00		00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
6		00 3			.00	00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
7		00 4			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
8		00 5			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
9		00 6			.00	00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
10		00 7			00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
11		8 00			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
12		00 9			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
13		00 10			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
14		00 11			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
15		00 12			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.0D	.00	
16		00 13			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
17		00 14			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.0D	.00	
18		00 15		1.1.1	.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
19		00 16			.00	.00		.00	00	.00	.00	.00	
20		00 17			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
21		00 18			.00	.00		.00	00.	.00	.00	.00	
22		00 19			.00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	

[hospdays] Average days per hospital stay (s,g,j,i,x,t)

I Su	m(col)		No Sum	(row)	Chee	k Out 🖌 🖌	Exp. CSV	🛃 To XL	5X						
Sex: N	tale			1.41		Group:	Custard			Packa	ige: Tactile				
Interve	ntion:	Finge	ws.												
C103			fx	1.5											
1.1	A			в		C		D	E		F	G	н	31	3
1	6.00	<u>.</u>				151	.50	151.50	1	51.50	151.50	151.50	151.50	151.50	15
2	Age	vs Pre	ojection	1 time		2020	1	2021	2022		2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
83		15.00	08 7			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
84		15.00	7 81		_	1	.50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
85		15.00	82			1	.50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
86		15,00	0 83			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
87		15.00	0 84			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
88		15.00	7 85			11	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
89		15.00	0 86			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
90		15.00	87			1	.50	1.50		1.50	1,50	1,50	1.50	1.50	
91		15,01	88			1	50	1,50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
92		15.00	89			÷1	.50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
93		15.00	08.0			1	.50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
94		15.00	91			1	.50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
95		15.00	92			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
96		15.00	93			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
97		15.00	94			.1	50	1.50		1.60	1.60	1.50	1.50	1.50	
98		15.00	95			1	.50	1,50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
99		15.00	96 0			1	50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
100		15.00	97			1	.50	1.50		1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
101		15.00	98			1	.50	1.60		1.50	1.60	1.50	1.50	1.50	

: Sum(coi)	···· No Sum(row)	Check Out 🔒	Exp. CSV 🛛 🛃 To XLSI	3					
Sex: Male		Group: C	ustand	• Pack	age: Tactile				
Intervention:	Fingers ×	•							
	Fingers								
A1:B2	Hands								
A		c	D	E	F	G	H	а	J.
1 Aor	vs Projection time	151.5	0 151.50	151.50	151.50	151.50	151.50	151.50	TÉ
2		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
83	15.00 80	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
84	15.00 81	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1,50	1.50	1,50	
85	15.00 82	1.5	0 1.50	1,50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
86	15.00 83	. 1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.60	1.50	
87	15.00 84	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.60	1.50	1.50	
88	15.00 85	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
89	15.00 86	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
90	15.00 87	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1,50	
91	15.00 88	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1,50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
92	15.00 89	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
93	15.00 90	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.60	1.50	1.50	
94	15.00 91	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1,50	
95	15.00 92	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
96	15.00 93	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
97	15.00 94	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1,50	1.50	1.50	
98	15.00 95	1.6	0 1.50	1.60	1.50	1.60	1.50	1.50	
99	15.00 96	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
100	15.00 97	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	
101	15.00 98	1.5	0 1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	1.50	

[hospdays] Average days per hospital stay (s,g,j,i,x,t)

** No Sum(row) 🐵 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🔹 To XLSX Sex: Male Ψ. Group: Custard Package: Tactile ۲ Intervention: Hands . C103 🔹 fx 5 в с D E F G н 1 J 505.00 505.00 505.00 505.00 505.00 505.00 505.00 Age vs Projection time 2020 2021 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2022 50.00 0 50.00 1 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 3 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5 50.00 2 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 ε 50.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5 00 5.00 5.00 50.00 4 5.00 5.00 5.00 50.00 5 5,00 5.00 5:00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 50.00 6 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 9 10 50.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5,00 5.00 5.00 5.00 11 50.00 8 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 50.00 9 50.00 10 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 12 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 13 14 5.00 5.00 5.00 50.00 11 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 15 50.00 12 5.00 5:00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 16 17 50.00 13 50.00 14 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 50.00 15 50.00 16 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 18 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 19 5.00 5.00 5.00 20 50.00 17 50.00 18 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00 5.00

6.3.8. Modelling co-payments

21

Co-payment refers to sums requested from insured members of the scheme each time they receive a given healthcare intervention or when insured member are reimbursed. It is a mechanism of financing and sometimes a policy to regulate the demand for services. The use and effects of copayments are beyond the scope of this manual.

In some cases, co-payments are not part of the insurer's revenue. In these cases, users of the model should simply ignore co-payments as part of the revenues, or simply disregard the proportion of copayments as part of the costs and expenses.

ILO/HEALTH offers two complementary co-payment methods: a fixed amount for the same lump sum each time a patient receives a given intervention, [copayfix], or a co-payment rate where users must cover a given percentage of the total costs of interventions received as part of the package, [copayrate]. These are found in: Inputs > Costs of fees for health services.

The exercise uses a fixed co-payment of 1 for each Head intervention for everyone over age 15, and a 10 per cent co-payment for every intervention in the Tactile package for everyone.

→ Users should select the matrix [copayfix], locate the Capital package, choose the Head intervention, check out, fill in all the rows after age 15 with 1 for male and female, and check in. Then select [copayrate], the Tactile package, enter 10 per cent once checked out, then check in and repeat for female.

Afre	International Labour ILO/HEALTH Organization Quantitative Platform	in Social Secur	ity / Test Institution - Switzerla	nd										*test	
N	Aodels Scenario Configuration										- 1	User Name	•	Logout	ĺ
Na Sch	me 🔳	[copayfix]	Fix amount of co-payr	ment per	interv	ention (s,g	.j,i,x,t)								
	kenter search criteria herex	1 30/1000	er cie		- Express	te toxes	<u> </u>								
	Inputs Demographic, economic and labour fo Goverage Contributors Salafes/average and growth rates	Sex: Male	Ears × +	Group:	Custard			Pack	age: Capital						
	Contribution rates and average contrib	A1:82	Eyes			2			-						
1	Population entitled to health services p	1 A0	Head	C	00	D .00	E	.00	F .00	G .00	н .00	1	.00	-	
	Bealth Expenditure Bealth benefit expenditure	3	Nose	2020	00	2021	2022	.00	2023	2024	2025	2026	.00	2027	
	 Other expenditure 	4	Teeth	1977 - 1984 - 19	00	.00		.00	.00	0.00	90,		.00		
12	 Costs or fees for health services 	5		,	00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00		.00		
	[expcap] Per capita payment for capi	6	.00 3		00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00		.00		
	[costint] Unit cost per intervention (,	.90 4		00	.00		00	.00	.00	.00		.00		
	[copayfix] Fix amount of co-payment	9	.90.5		00	00.		00	-00.	00,00	00.		:00:		
	[copayrate] Co-payment as a percen	10			00	.00		00	.00				.00		
	 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	11	.00 X		00	00		00	00				00		
	Goverment transferences and other re	12	00.9		00	00		.00	.00	-00	.00		00		
1	Reserve Fund and interest rate	13	00 10		00	.00		00	.00	.00			00		
	Historical information series	14	.00.11		00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00		.00		
	Health packages (From Configuration)	15	00 12		00	.00		00	.00	.00	00		.00		
	Outputs / Projections	16	.00.13		00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00		00		
		17	.00 14		00	.00		.00	.00	.00			.00		
		18	.00 15		00	.00		.00	.00	.00	.00		00		
		19	.00 16		00	.00		.00	.00	.50	.00		.00		
		90											and a		

[copayfix] Fix amount of co-payment per intervention (s,g,j,i,x,t)

🚦 Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 🕲 Check Out 🔹 Exp. CSV 🖹 To XLSK

Sex: 1	vlale intion: Head	*	Group: Custa	rđ	• Pack	age: Capital	*			
A1:82		fx 0								
	A	в	. C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Ace on Here	inction time.	85.00	85.00	85.00	85.00	85.00	85.00	85.00	8
Z	rege to the	And construction	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
9	.00	6	00	00	00	.00	00	00	00	
10	00	7	00	08	00	00	00	00	00	
11	.00	8	.00	.00	.00	00	.00	.00	00	
12	.00	9	.00	.00	00	.00	.00	00	.00	
13	.00	10	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
14	.00	11	.00	.00	/00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
15	.00	12	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	.05	.00	
16	.00	13	.00	00	.00	.00	.00	00	00	
17	.00	14	.00	.00	.00	00	.00	00	00	
18	.00	15	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
19	10.00	18	1.00	1.09	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
20	10.00	17	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
21	10.00	18	1.00	1.00	1.00	t.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
22	10.00	19	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
23	10.00	20	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1:00	
24	10.00	21	1.00	1.00	1.00	1,00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
25	10.00	22	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
26	10.00	23	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	
27	10.00	24	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	1.00	

International Labour Organization Quentitative Platform	in Soci	al Security / Te	est Instit	ution -	Switzerland									*test
Models Scenario Configuration												L Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Name	fcon	avratel Co	-pavn	nent	as a percentad	e of the	cost of in	terver	tion (s.a.i x	t)				
Scheme: Main	Teeb		Page						mon (orgijin	1.7				
	E s	Sum(col)	No Sum	(row)	Check Out	Exp. CSV	To XLS	×						
senter search criteria here>	-						-0							
🗰 Inputs	Sex:	Male			Group:	Custard			Package:	Capital	X Y			
 Demographic, economic and labour fo 										Capital	1			
🕨 💼 Coverage	A1:82		fx	0%							_			
 Contributors 	_	A		в	c		D	E		Tactile		н	- K	Ł
Salaries/average and growth rates	1	Age va Pr	rojection	n time		10%	.00%		.00%	Podo		.00%	.00%	
 Contribution rates and average contrib 	2	100	and and		2620	2276	2021	202	2			2025	2026	2027
 Population entitled to health services p 	3	.00	% 0			0%	.00%		.00%	Umbilical		.00%	.00%	+
🕨 🚎 Health Expenditure	2	.00	36 T			0%	00%		00%	Infrastructur	· P	.00%	.00%	
🕩 💼 Cash benefit expenditure	6		m #			IN SC	00%		00%	in a strategy	-	00%	0.040	
 Other expenditure 	7	.00	1.4		1	0%	00%		00%	BT		00%	00%	
Costs or fees for health services	8	.00	% 5			0%	00%		00%	.00%	00%	.00%	00%	
expcap] Per capita payment for capi	9	.00	% 6		1	0%	.00%		00%	.00%	00%	.00%	.00%	
[costint] Unit cost per intervention (10	.00	% 7		1	0%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	00%	
[copavfix] Fix amount of co-payment	11	.00	95 8		1	10%	00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	-
[copayrate] Co-payment as a percen	12	.00	% 9			10.%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
 Health utilization frequencies and cove 	13	.00	% 10		4	1016	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Goverment transferences and other re	14	.00	% 11		4	10%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Reserve Fund and interest rate	15	00	96 12		1	10%6	.00%		00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	-
Historical information series	16	.00	% 13		4	0%	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
Health packages (From Configuration)	1/	.00	96 14			10%6	.00%		00%	.00%	00%	.00%	00%	
Outputs / Braiastians	10	.00	315		-	KI %	.00%		.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	
monthine) Linfernnig	20	-00	70 16			KU YAK	00%		00%	000%	00%	.00%	-00%	
	21	.00	70 1/ K 18			0.06	00%		00%	00%	00%	.00%	00%	
	22	00	06 10			0.56	00%		00%	00%	00%	00%	00%	

[copayrate] Co-payment as a percentage of the cost of intervention (s,g,j,x,t)

ex: N	Aale		Group: Custa	ird	* Pack	age: Tactile	*			
1:B2	* f	x 10%								
1	A	В	С	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
	Age vs Project	tion time	1010.00%	1010.00%	1010.00%	1010.00%	1010.00%	1010.00%	1010.00%	10
			2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
	100.00% 0		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	3
	100.00% 1		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 2		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 3		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 4		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 5		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 6		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 7		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 8		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 9		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 10		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 11		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 12		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 13		10.00%	10,00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 14		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 15		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 16		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 17		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 18		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	
	100.00% 19		10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	10.00%	

6.3.9. Modelling performance adjustment

The proportion of annual expenditures representing incentives or disincentives to healthcare providers linked to performance by group and package over the projection period is included in the matrix [perfr]. The positive or negative adjustment is input per package in the matrix. It is found in: Inputs > Health Expenditure.

→ This exercise keeps [perfr] as zero, meaning that there are no additional performance costs or savings because of performance incentives/disincentives. Check out and check in in the matrix to advance the Completion brief.

Models Scenario Configuration								1
Name	[pe	fr] Proportion on annual e	xpenditure rep	resenting the	performance	cost (g,t,j)		
Scheme: Main •	1	Sum(col) 🛛 🚥 No Sum(row) 🛛 🞯	Check Out 🛛 🔒 Exp	. CSV 🛛 🕏 To XLSP	1			
Inputs Demographic, economic and labour fo		P: Custard						
Contributors		A B	С	D	E	F	G	н
Gentribution rates	1 2	Projection time vs Packages	.00% Capital	.00% Tactile	.00% Podo	.00% Umbilical	.00%	.003 BT
 Population entitled to health services p 	3	.00% 2020	00%	.00%	00%	.00%	00%	.001
 Health Expenditure [EXP] Initial annual expenditure thr [aeoba] Assumed annual growth rat 	5	00% 2022 00% 2023	.00% .00%	.00%	.00% 00%	.00% 00%	.00% .00%	009
[perfr] Proportion on annual expend	8	.00% 2025	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00% .00%	.00%	.00%
[aepGEX] Percentage of GEX represe	10 11	.00% 2027	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00% 00%	.00%	.007
	12	00% 2029	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.00%	.009

6.3.10. Modelling other items

Government Transfers, [GT], interest revenues, [i_rate], other revenues, [ORev], other expenditures, [OExp], and the initial fund reserve, [IRES], can also be input as required by the model.

Government Transfers, [GT], and other revenues, [ORev], are found in Inputs > Government transfers and other revenue.

Interest rate of the reserve fund, [i_rate], and Initial pension fund reserve, [IRES], are found in Inputs > Reserve fund and interest rate.

Other expenditures, [OExp], are found in Inputs > Other expenditure.

For the exercise, given that it represents a new scheme without past experience, the initial reserve [IRES] is zero. For the sake of simplicity, government transfers, interest and other revenues and expenditures are also assumed to be zero.

→ Check out and check in for [GT], [ORev], [i_rate], and [OExp], then check the Completion brief.

				International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform in Social Security / Text Institution - Switserland							
		Models Scenario Configuration									
overnment Transference (col) ···· No Sum(row) ··· O Ch	es (g,t) heck Out 🔹 Exp. CSV	Name E	[ORe	v] Other Revenue	(t) © Check Out & Exp. CSV						
Custard 🔻		Enputs Demonraphic economic and labour for	A1:82	 ▼ fx 0 A B 	. c						
 ✓ fx 0 A B 	c	Coverage Contributors Salaries/awarane and growth rates	1 2 3	Projection time	.00 Value .00						
Projection time Value Value Projection rates and an value Projection rates and an value value Projection rates and an value value	Contribution rates and average contrib Population entitled to health services p	4 5 6	00 2021 00 2022 00 2023	00							
		Health Expenditure Gash benefit expenditure Gosh benefit expenditure	7 8 9	.00 2024 .00 2025 .00 2026	00. 00. 00.						
		Costs of fees for health services Costs of fees for health services Goverment transferences and other re [G1] Goverment Transferences (g,t)	11 12	.00 2027 00 2028 .00 2029	.00 .00 .00						
	(cn)) *** No Sum(row) © C Custard * /s * /s 0 A B Projection time 	(col)	(col) *** No Sum(row) © Check Out is. top. C9Y Custard * * fs 0 * fs 0 * Control total and abour for * fs 0 * Control total and abour for * fs 0 * Control total and abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total and abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total and total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for * Control total abour for *	Coll Image: Scheme: Main Scheme: Main Image: Scheme: A image:	Koli Main Schemit: Main Schemit: Schemit: Main Custard fx fx						

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH	in Social S	Security / Test Institution -	Switzerland	ILO/HEALTH Organization Quantizative Platform in Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland						
Models Scenario Configuration				Models Scenario Configuration						
Name E	[i_rate	e] Interes Rate of th	e Reserve Fund (t)	Name 🔳	[IRES	6] Initial Reserve Fund	(t)			
center search criteria here>	E Sur	m(col) ••• No Sum(row)	Oreck Out B. Exp. CSV R To XLSX	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	i 5u	im(cal) *** No Sum(row) 1	& Exp. CSV 🛃 To XLSX			
 Inputs 	A1:BZ	•)r 0	11	/ inputs	A1:82					
 Demographic, economic and labour for 	1	А В		Demographic, economic and labour for	1	A B	с			
Coverage Contributors	2	Projection time	Value	Coverage	1	Projection time	00 Value			
Salaries/average and growth rates	3	.00 2019	00.	Contributors	3	00.2018	00			
Contribution rates and average contrib	4	6	.00 2020	.00	Salaries/average and growth rates					
 Population entitled to health services p 	-	.00 2021	.00	Contribution rates and average contrib						
Health Expenditure	7	.00 2022	.00	Population entitled to health services p						
Cash benefit expenditure	8	00 2024	00	🕨 🎰 Health Expenditure						
Other expenditure	9	00 2025	00	Cash benefit expenditure						
Costs or fees for health services	10	.00 2026	.00	 Other expenditure 						
Health utilization fraguancies and count	11	.00 2027	00	Costs or fees for health services						
Government transferences and other re	12	.00 2028	.00	Health utilization frequencies and cove						
A Baranas Cund and interact rate	13	.00 2029	.00	 Goverment transferences and other re 						
IREST Initial Reserve Fund (1)				Reserve Fund and interest rate						
[i_rate] Interes Rate of the Reserve F				[IRES] Initial Reserve Fund (t)	1					

Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[OExp] Other Exp	enditure (e	xternal pro	pjection of absolute monetary values) (t
Scheme: Main	-1-50	miral It No.5		Check Dut	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	- 30	intention and a		CHECK OUT	BY EAR COV 20 TO ALCA
e Inputs	A1:82	• 1	x 0		
 Demographic, economic and labour for 		A	8	C	
Coverage	1	1 Projection time			.00
Contributors	2	Projection	r rejeation anne		
Salariar/awarana and arouth rater	3	.00 20	20		.00
alianes/average and growth rates	4	.00 20	21		.00
 Contribution rates and average contrib 	5	.00 20	22		.00
 Population entitled to health services p 	6	.00 20	23		.00
 Health Expenditure 	7	.00 20	24		.00
🔸 💼 Cash benefit expenditure	8	.00.20	25		.00
🔺 🖀 Other expenditure	9	.00 20	20		.00
[adm] Percentage over benefit expen	10	.00 20	27		.00
OExpl Other Expenditure (external p.,	11	.00 20	28		.00
 Costs or fees for health services 	12	.00 20	29		.00

100	and the state of the				1.5-7.5					
HGT	Revenue fro	m government transfers (t)			0	- 10	0		ne Le Lo	
HBS_ContExp	Balance she	et on contributions and expe	nditure: revenue less expe	nditure	0	- 62	0			
HTBS_RevExp	Total balance	e sheet: total revenue minus	total expenditure (t)		0		0			
HRES	Reserve Fun	d (t)			0	- 9	0			
GT GT	Government	Transferences (g.t)			0		0			
ORev	Other Reven	ue (t)			0	- W	0			
OExp	Other Expen	diture (external projection o	0	1.0	0					
Leate	Interes Rate		D	190	0					
overal freqint	Expected nu	mber of interventions per ye	ar (s,g,j,i,x,t)		0	- 10	B.33	8.33		
aegba	Assumed an	nual growth rate of expendit	ure through budgetary all	ocation (0	144	16.6	N	1 () () () () () () () () () (
salaries expcap	Per capita pa	ayment for capitation (s,g,j,k	.t)		0		16.6	/		
Contrib freqadfixedb	Annual frequ	ency (average by active con	tributor) of claims of an ad	ditional	0	- 10	50			
opulat lact	Initial cohort	t of active contributors (s.g.x	0	- 44	100		FIM. DO			
lealth I q	Death proba	bilities (s.g.x.t)	0		100					
Lash be ret	Disability an	d retirement probabilities (s,	g.x,t)		0	- 0	100		2.00	
Other a er	Exit probabil	lities (s,g,x,t)			0		100		2.00	
losts ur ne	Age distribut	tion of new entrants (s,g,x,t)			0	10	100		2.00	
sealth NATPOP	National Pop	oulation (s,t)			0		100		2.00	
Ifreg Partr	Participation	n rate (s,t)			0	- W.	100		2.90	
unemrate	Unemploym	ent rate (s,t)			0		100		2:00	
Ibpie									2.00	
Internet									2.00	
Icano									2.00	
								Gos	2,00	
									230.	
	. 14	20.00111	2100	DE0	2.00	2.00	2.06	2.00	2:00	
faile and the second second	15	20.00 12	2.00	2.50	2,00	2,05.	3.00	2.00	2.05	
rearch packages (Horn Conngulati	18	20.00 13	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2:00	
cputs / Projections	17	20.50 14	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.10	2.00	2.00	2.00	
	18	22.00 15	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00	
		100 50 40							12	

Code	Name			π	Checkout Qly	Checkout by Me	T Co	mpleteness 1	τ.	ie te t	
fregint	Expected nu	mber of interventions per ye	ar (s,q,j,i,x,t)		0	0	8.3	3	Show its	me with val	
aegba	Assumed an	nual growth rate of expendit	ure through budgetary a	illocation (0	.0	16.	67	Is greater than		
expcap	Per capita p	whent for capitation (s,g,j,x,	0		0	40	16.	67			
freqadfixedb	Annual frequ	ency (average by active cont	ributor) of claims of an a	dditional	0	- 60	50	525			
lact	Initial cohor	of active contributors (s.g.x)			0		10	3	0.00		
q	Death proba	bilities (s.g.x,t)			0	10	10	0	CLEAR		
ret	Disability an	d retirement probabilities (s,	axt)		0	-0	10	0			
er	Exit probabi	ities (s.q.x.t)			0	-	10	0			
ne	Age distribu	tion of new entrants (s.g.x.t)			0	10	10	3			
NATPOP	National Pop	oulation (s,t)			0		10	0			
Partr	Participation	rate (s,t)			0	- 10	10	3		194.00	
unemrate	Unemploym	ent rate (s.t)			0	-10	10	0			
rep	Average Rec	lacement Rate (g,t)			0	.0	10	0		2:002	
cov	Coverage ra	te as a proportion of the emp	loyed labor force (s.g.t)		0	-10	10	3	2.00		
iract	Insurance ra	te of active contributors (s.g.	x.t)		0	- 62	10	0		2.00	
irres	Insured resi	fual active contributors as a	6 of insured active contr	ibutors (s	0	0	10	0		3.00	
linspensir	Initial insure	d pensioners of invalidity and	i retirement (s.a.x)		0	10	10	3		2.00	
linspenswo	Initial insure	d survivor's pensioners (wide	ws/ers and orphans) (s.	(x.0)	0	-	10	0		2.00	
		an a			12					-2.0n	
										2.00	
										1 cont	
									Close	2.00	
									لتتت	2.01	
Warman And Street Street	14	20/02/11	2001	2.00	2.00	2001	2.00	2.00		2.00	
information series	15	20.00 12	2.00	2.00	2.00	240	200	2.00		2011	
ackages (From Configuration)	16:	20.00 13	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00		2.00	
ojections	17.	20.00 14		7.00	2.00	200	2.00	2.00		200	
	18	30.00 15	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00			2,00	
	10	30.00 46	2.00	2.00	2.00	200	200				

Code 🔻	Name			¥.	Checkout Qty	Checkout by Me	Completene	s 1 7	10 C L	ogo	
freqadfixedb	Annual frequ	ency (average by active con	tributor) of claims of an additi	onal	0		50	Show i	tems with val	uet	
aegba	Assumed an	nual growth rate of expendit	ure through budgetary alloca	tion (0	(0)	16.67				
expcap	Per capita pa	syment for capitation (s.g.j.x.	t)		0	10	16.67	Is less	Is less than		
fregint	Expected nu	mber of interventions per ye	ar (s,g,j,i,x,t)		0		8.33	100.0	5		
perfr	Proportion o	n annual expenditure repres	senting the performance cost	(g.t.j)	0	-	0	0.05223			
costint	Unit cost per	intervention (gluxt)			0	10	D	CLE	AR F	U.T	
dimen	Parameter fo	or additional dimension of an	halysis (s.g.j,i,x,t)		0	6	.0			-	
hospdays	Average day	s per hospital stay (s,g,j,i,x,t)			0		0				
copayfix	copayfix Fix amount of co-payment per intervention (s,g,j,i,x,t)						0				
copayrate	Co-payment	as a percentage of the cost of	of intervention (s,g,j,x,t)	0	0	D					
HTP	Total population, by sex (s,t)				0	(4)	0		194.00		
HWEP	Working age	population (s,t)			0	- 0	0				
HLF	Labour force	e (employed population), by s	sex (s,t)		0		0		2.00		
HAC	Active contri	butors, by sex (s,t)			0	-0	o		2,00		
HINS	Insured pop	ulation (s,t)			0	-0	0		2.00		
HMS	Minimum sa	lary (t)			0	-0	D		2.00		
HCS	Average con	tribotury salary (s,t)			0		0		2.08		
HBEN_EXP_HEALTH	Expenditure	on health benefits (s,t)			0		D		2.09		
0				_					2.90		
									2:00		
									2.02		
								Close	2.00		
									2.00		
Linformation series	14	20.00 11	2.00	2.00	2.04	2.00	2.00	200	2.00		
ackaner (From Configuration)	15	20.00 12	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00		
activities tracin configuration)	10	20.00 13	2.00	2:00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2,00		
10jections 17 2000 14 2.00				2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00		
18 20.00.15			2,00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00	2.00		
	19	20.02 18	2.00	200	2.00	2.00	2.00	200	2.00		

6.4. Running the financial projection

This is a good time to run the financial projection and, with it, the entire projection. To run the scenario, users should go to the Scenario menu, select the desired scenario and then Run. In the options, choose All schemes, and in Type of run, users can opt to run only Financial (given that the Demographic was already completed in a previous step) or to run All. The running will take place remotely and users will be informed by email whether it was successful. If successful, they will see all demographic and financial output matrices completed and a complete set of reports.

Once the Scenario is run, users can explore the newly completed output, and matrices are available for further exploration.

	Internation Labour Organizatio	al ILO/HEALTH on Quantitative Platform	in Social Security / Test Institu	dion - Switzerla	nd					*test
Models	Scepario	Configuration							💄 User Name 🕞	Logout
E New	@ Open 13	Copy 🗊 Delete 🔘 Run	🕹 Export all scenario 🛛 🕲	Completion brief						
Code		Y Name	Last Updated		id 💡	General Calculat	cin Log			
Model	: 2020.07.28 - Na	me				Model:	Tec Nodel 01			
0908	1970	Name	31/07/2020	Run/Calcul	ate scenario		× 08081070	Nama	Name	
Model	: 2019.10.14 - Te:	st					00081370	- Nubrow,	(realite)	
1		Test	26/02/2020	Scheme:	All		Practice scenario			
				Type:	Financials	× *				
					Demographics					
					Financials		User Name		28/07/2020 15:00:08	
					Reports	1	Cancel User Name		31/07/2020 08:25:01	
				8						
						_				
									Save Car	oes -



Scenario Calculation | ILO/HEALTH [Costa Rica-TEC]



Hi, User Name

Scenario calculation process completed!

Code: 08081970 Name: Name [Costa Rica/TEC] Calculation: Financials Status: Success

Message: -N/A-.


6.5. Exploring the basic output matrices

This section describes the information available in the main output matrices and potential uses for that information. The section moves from general to more specific matrices, and from those used in most actuarial exercises to those that are usually accessed only for detailed calculations. It is advisable to begin by examining the simpler matrices (those that are a single column with a time dimension) that can be plotted as a line or bar chart. Users can then move to matrices with age (in rows) and time (in columns) that can be plotted as areas or line charts to perform comparisons by years.

6.5.1. Financial report matrices

Users are advised to first look at the Revenue and Expenditure Table [RPT_TRE]. This table identifies the main financial projections of the scheme crucial to scheme sustainability. It is found in: Outputs/Projections > Tables/Aggregated Financial Results > RPT_TRE.

The table contains three sections: Income, Expenditure and Results.

In the Income section, the first column is Salary mass, showing the level of potential insurable earnings. The second column shows Contributions (calculated over the Salary mass), followed by Government transfers, Interest income, Co-payment and Other income. The final column of the section is the Total income (the sum of all income items). The Expenditure section shows a subsection, Benefits, that demonstrates the Value of health and cash benefits and their subtotal. Besides benefits, the section has Administration expenditure, Other expenditure, and finally a Total of all expenditure (sum of the total of Benefit expenditure, Administrative and Other expenditures).

International Labour Organization Quantizative Platform	in Social S	ecurity / Test Institu	ition - Switzerland					
Models Scenario Configuration							👤 User Na	ime C+ Lo
me la	IRPT	TRE] Table Re	evenue and Expend	ture				
ieme: Main 🔻								
-center search criteria hereo-	E No 3	ium(col) III No S	am(row) di Graph 🛛	Exp. CSV R TO XLSJ				
Outputs / Projections	AT	▼ fx	ILO					
Context	100	A	В	с	D	E	F	G
Contributors (Insurad Members	1 ILO							Created by:
Health Interventions	2 ILO 3 Tabl	Actuarial Health Too e of Revenue and E	si 1.1 xpenditure					Creation date:
Insured Population and Coverage / S	5					Reve	nues	
Revenues / Summaries	6 7	Year	Salary mass	Contributions	Government transference	Interest revenue	Copayment	Others
Health Expenditure	8	Total						
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	9	2020	7,263,056.09	0.00	0.00	0.00	25,353.78	0.00
Administrative Expenses	10	2021	12,440,979.10	998,077.05	0.00	0.00	43,577.05	0.00
Demographic Indicators	11	2022	16,909,218.61	1,494,843.29	0.00	0.00	59,185.12	0.00
Enancial Indicators	12	2023	21,089,638.19	1,945,116.12	0.00	0.00	73,721.75	0.00
Tables / Assessed Despetal Results	13	2024	25,165,972.82	2,378,908.52	0.00	0.00	87,837.16	0.00
Internet and Table Main Demonstra	14	2025	29,238,206.46	2,810,283.46	0.00	0.00	101,871.38	0.00
[NPT_NUM1] raue Main Demograp	15	2026	33,370,461.03	3,247,394.08	0.00	0.00	116,032.70	0.00
[INFI_IKE] Table Kevenue and Expe	16	2027	36,382,904,90	3,636,569.86	0.00	0.00	126,182.27	0.00
[RPT_TFR] Table Financial Results	17	2028	39,326,204,29	3,965,867.87	0.00	0.00	135,989.96	0.00

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l 1 in Social	Security / Test Institut	ion - Switzerland					*tes
Models Scenario Configuration							💄 User	Name 🕞 Logout
Name	IRPT	TREI Table Re	venue and Expendit	ture				
Scheme: Main *	i n	o Sum(col) No Su	m(row) di Graph 🔹	Exp. CSV 📄 To XLSX				
Outputs / Projections	A1	• fx	ILO					
Context	1	H.		3	к	L	M	N
Contributors / Insured Members	1 Us	er Name						
Health Interventions	2 07	/31/2020 01:22:59						
Salany Averanes / Salany Mass	3							
Insured Population and Coverane / S	4				-200	2011.1		
Revenues / Summaries	5			and the second se	Expense	stures		
Empenditure / Commission	0	Total	11	Benefits	Marked.	Admin	Other	Total
Expenditure / summaries	4		reath	Gaah	TOTAL			
 Mealth Expenditure 	-		1 847 005 00	41 774 43	4 880 787 03	495 075 70	0.00	6 7.45 600 77
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	50	1 041 654 10	6 185 156 04	32 313 25	6 217 470 20	621 747.03	0.00	6 836 217 22
Administrative Expenses	11	1.554.028.42	7.336.107.42	49.845.62	7 385 953 04	738.595.30	0.00	8 124 548 34
Demographic Indicators	12	2 018 837 87	8 411 062 01	85 917 85	8 476 979 66	847 807 97	0.00	9 324 677 63
 Financial Indicators 	13	2.466.745.69	9.455.442.86	81.694.45	9,538,137,31	953,813,73	0.00	10.491.951.04
Tables / Agregated Financial Results	14	2,912,154,84	10,496,520.47	97,664.86	10.594,185.33	1.059.418.53	0.00	11,653,603,87
[RPT_MDAT] Table Main Demograp	15	3,363,426.78	11,546,164.46	114,086.41	11,660,250.87	1,166,025.09	0.00	12,826,275.96
[RPT_TRE] Table Revenue and Expe	16	3,762,752.13	12,308,557.42	129,237.76	12,437,795.18	1,243,779.52	0.00	13,681,574.69
[RPT_TFR] Table Financial Results	17	4,101,857.83	13,046,793.64	142,834.06	13,189,627.70	1,318,962.77	0.00	14,508,590.47

Net results are found in the Table Financial Results [RPT_TFR] in the same section of the navigation tree. The first column, Result, corresponds to the difference between Income and Expenditure. Next is the PAYG rate that shows the ratio between Expenditure and Salary mass, then Reserve, which shows the expected value of the fund's reserve. The last column, Reserve coefficient, shows the times the reserve covers annual expenditures.

Models Scenario Configuration							
ame	RPT	TFR] Tab	le Financial	Results			
cheme: Main		Sum(col)	** No Sum(row)	📽 Exp. CSV 🚦	To XLSX		
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>							
a Outputs / Projections	A1		fx ILO				
Context	I and	. A	1	8	С	D	E
Contributors / Insured Members	1 ILC		1			Created by:	User Name
Health Interventions	2 ILC	Actuarial Hea	ith Tool 1.1			Creation date:	07/31/2020 01:22:59
Salam Averages / Salam Mass	3 Tat	le of financial	results				
Iorurad Ropulation and Councils	4						
Devenues / Summaries	5	22	200	100 0	2002 3	1 100 10	1000
Revenues / summaries	6	Year	Fin	ancial results	PAYG rate	Beginning of year reserve	Reserve coeffici
Expenditure / Summaries	-				1000		
Health Expenditure	° –	2020	3	1,320,334.94	73.60	-5,320,334.94	-1.00
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	10	2021		1,797,563.13	54.97	-11,117,898.06	-1.63
Administrative Expenses	10	2022	-	1,570,519.93	46.05	-17,000,417.99	-2.16
Demographic Indicators	12	2023	1	305,839.76	44.23	-24,994,257.75	-2.00
Financial Indicators	13	2024	3	741 440 07	-1.03	-41 760 012 12	-3,15
Tables / Agregated Financial Results	14	2020	-	462 845 58	39.00		-3.50
[RPT_MDAT] Table Main Demograp	15	2020		918 822 57	37.60	-81 142 583 88	-4.47
[RPT TRE] Table Revenue and Expe	16	2027		0 406 732 64	36.89	-71 549 316 52	4.93
		2020		alcoals article			-4.93

6.5.2. Demographic report matrices

The Main Demographic Aggregates Table [RPT_MDAT] lists the sizes of key demographic aggregates. It is found in: Outputs/Projections > Tables/Aggregated Financial Results > RPT_MDAT. The columns have two main sections: First, the contributor-related section with information on the total population, labour force and the total active contributors. Second, the insured-related section with information on the number of insured from groups such as: Current active, Residual, Pensioners and Family dependants, followed by the Total insured. Finally, the report has two columns of indicators: Coverage of contributors with respect to the labour force and Coverage of insured over the total population.

Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	i 1 in Social :	Security / Test Institu	tion - Switzerland					*te
odels Scenario Configuration							1 User I	Varme 🕞 Logo
ne III	IRPT	MDATI Table N	lain Demographi	c Aggregates				
eme: Main	1.14	Service No Se	minow) B. Jap CW	R To XLXX				
«enter search criteria here»		descent products	monoral Reducedand	Contraction of the local distance of the				
Outputs / Projections	AT	₹ fx	ILO					
Context	1	A	В	c	D	E	F	G
Contributors / Insured Members	1 ILC)						
Haalth Interventions	5 ILC	Actuarial Health Too	1.1					
	3 Ma	in Demographic Aggr	egates Table					
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	4							
Insured Population and Coverage / S	5							Insured
Revenues / Summaries	6	Year	Total pop	Employed Labor Force	Active contributors	Active	Residual	Panalonera
Expenditure / Summaries	7							
Health Expenditure	8	Total						
Expenditure in Cash Benefits		2020	100,000.00	52,650.00	6,081.89	0.00	577.78	0.00
Administrative Expenses	10	2021	102,000.00	56,176.50	10,285.99	0.00	977.17	269.03
Emographic Indicators	11	2022	104,240.00	59,823.09	13,820.81	0.00	1,312.98	610.69
Financial Indicators	12	2023	106,120.80	63,592.89	17,057.01	0.00	1,620.42	1,021.85
Tables / Agregated Financial Results	13	2024	108,243.22	67,488.65	29,153.36	0.00	1,914.57	1,496.93
[RPT MDATI Table Main Demograp	14	2025	110,408.08	71,516.63	23,193.58	0.00	2,203.39	2,031.88
IRPT TRFI Table Revenue and Expe	10	2026	112,516.24	75,678.11	26,229.05	0.00	2,491.76	2,624.05
[DDT TED] Table Connectal Deputy	17	2021	114,060.00	77,191.07	20,207.79	0.00	2,000,44	3,271,66
Current Devenue) Current Devenue	18	2626	*10 500 36	90 340 22	22.003.03	0.00	2 040 02	4 015 30
E Te dia 15 dia 14	19	2023	112,000.20	un proces.	24,020.25	0.00	2,040.24	- MARTINE
[expenditure] expenditure (t)	20	Female						
[REST] Reserve Fund Balance (t)	21	2020	59,000,00	19,400.00	2.240.70	0.00	212.87	0.00
[RPT_TRE_P_TFR_8] Financial Result	22	2021	51,000,00	22,261.50	4.076.08	0.00	387.23	134.52
RPT_TRE_Q_TFR_C[PAYG Rate (t)	-9.9	2622	52,020,00	25 229 75	5 828 06	0.00	653.67	256.79

4.1	- fr	11.0					
	E	F	G	н	31	- 1	ĸ
1						Created by:	User Name
2						Creation date:	07/31/2020 01:22:5
3							
4							
5			Insured			1	Coverage
6 7	Active	Residual	Pensioners	Dependants	Total	Act/LF	ins / TP
8							
9	0.00	577.78	0.00	9,170.19	9,747.97	11.55	9.75
10	0.00	977.17	269.03	15,509.06	16,755.27	18.31	16.43
11	0.00	1,312.95	610.69	20,838.82	22,762.49	23.10	21.88
12	0.00	1,620.42	1,021.85	25,718.32	28,360.59	26.82	26.72
13	0.00	1,914.57	1,496.93	30,386.96	33,798.45	29.86	31.22
14	0.00	2,203.39	2,031.88	34,970.95	39,206.22	32.43	35.51
15	0.00	2,491.76	2,624.05	39,547,78	44,663.58	34.66	39.66
16	0.00	2,685.44	3,271.88	42,621.71	48,579.02	36.62	42.29
17	0.00	2,870.64	3,931.36	45,561.20	52,363.21	38.38	44.69
18	0.00	3,048.92	4,615.29	48,390.75	56,054.97	39.96	46.90
19							
20							
21	0.00	212.87	0.00	4,585.09	4,797.96	11.55	9.60
22	0.00	387.23	134.52	7,754.53	8,276.28	18.31	16.23
23	0.00	553.67	256.79	10,419,41	11.229.87	23.10	21.59

6.5.3. Financial indicators

Indicators correspond to a data series employed to highlight certain aspects of a projection. They are the results of comparisons between projection results and are therefore replicable. ILO/HEALTH automatically calculates these as they are frequently requested in actuarial valuations. Expenditure ratios

These indicators are comparisons of certain expenditure items or total expenditures with other aggregates. They assess the magnitude of these expenditures with respect to the economy in the case of [EXPHEALTH_GDPper] Expenditure on health benefits as a percentage of GDP, and [T_EXP_GDPper] Total expenditure as a percentage of GDP. They may also assess the relative efficiency of expenditures as in the case of [admin] Administrative expenditures as a percentage of the total expenditures.

Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	EXPH	HEALTH_	GDPper] Exp	enditure on health benefits	as % of GDF
Scheme: Main	1 No	Sum(col)	• No Sum(row)	🖹 Exp. CSV 📑 To XLSX	
	A1:82		fx 4.799999	929267424	
Outputs / Projections		A	B	C	
Context	1 2	Project	ion time	97.48 Value	
Contributors / Insured members	3	4.80	2020	4.80	
Health Interventions	4	6.08	2021	6.06	
 Salary Averages / Salary Mass 	5	7.12	2022	7.12	
 Insured Population and Coverage / S 	6	8.08	2023	8,08	
 Revenues / Summaries 	7	9.00	2024	9.00	
Expenditure / Summaries	8	9.89	2025	9,89	
🕨 💼 Health Expenditure	9	10.77	2026	10.77	
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	10	11.37	2027	11.37	
Administrative Expenses	11	17.93	2028	11.93	
Demographic Indicators	12	12.48	2029	12.46	
 Financial Indicators [A_IN_SALgrs] Annual growth rate [A_IN_SALgr] Annual growth rate o [admin] Administrative expenditur 					

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	H n in Social Security / Test Institution - Switz	erland
Models Scenario Configuration		
Name	[T_EXP_GDPper] Total expe	nditure (including administrative expenditure) as % of GDP (t)
Scheme: Main		
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	; No sum(cor) ···· No sum(row)	B EXPLOSE 26 TO XLSX
 Financial Indicators [A_IN_SALgrs] Annual growth rate [A,IN_SALgrs] Annual growth rate o [admin] Administrative expenditure [EXPHEALTH_GDPper] Expenditure [EXPCASH_GDPper] Expenditure on total [EXP_GDPper] Tatal expenditure 	A B 1 2 Projection time 3 5 7,89 2022 6 6 8,62 2023 7 0 96 2024 7 0 96 2025 7 0 96 2025 1 0 97 4 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1 1	C 107.53 Value 5.29 6.70 7.89 8.96 0.08
[I_CAT_GUPPer] Total expenditure [A_TEXPgr] Annual growth rate of t [RES_RT] Reserve ratio (t) [Expx] Average expenditure per pe [EXP_PACK]_Ggper] Share of total h [HE_EXP_GDPper] Health expendit	7 9.98 2024 8 10.98 2025 9 11.96 2026 10 12.63 2027 11 13.27 2028 12 13.87 2029	3 98 10 98 11 96 12 63 13 27 13 87

6.5.4. Demographic indicators

In addition to financial indicators, ILO/HEALTH provides a set of demographic indicators. These are found in: Outputs/Projections > Indicators > Demographic Indicators and are of two types:

6.5.4.1. Coverage rates

Ratios between demographic aggregates help users analyse how the schemes affect their target population. There are two kinds of coverage: Active coverage, which compares the active contributors over time with the labour force [AC_LFcr] for the total or [AC_LFcrs] by sex; and beneficiary coverage, which compares the number of insured to the national population [IP_NPcr] and [IP_NPcrs]. The higher the coverage, the more progress in making the scheme universal. They are found in: Outputs > Demographic Indicators.

Models Scenario Configuration				
lame 🛛	AC_L	Fcr] Labo	ur force	coverage rate (t)
cheme: Main			. No former	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	- NO.	samilean	No sump	B Exp. Cav
Innutz	A1:B2		fx 11	.05798295986663
Outputs / Pepiertions	1	A	В	C
Context	1 2	Projection time		279.85 Value
 Contributors / Insured Members 	3	11.06	2020	11.06
 Health Interventions 	4	17.54	2021	17.54
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	5	22.14	2022	22.14
 Insured Population and Coverage / S 	6	25.72	2023	25.72
 Revenues / Summaries 	7	28.64	2024	28.64
Expenditure / Summaries	8	31.12	2025	31,12
 Health Expenditure 	9	33.27	2026	33.27
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	10	35.16	2027	35.16
Administrative Expenses	11	36.84	2028	36.84
	12	38.36	2029	38.36

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALT Quantitative Platfor	H m in Social S	iecurity / Test Ins	titution - Sw	itzerland
Models Scenario Configuration				
Name	AC L	Fcrs] Labour	r force co	overage rate (s,t)
Scheme: Main		and and the second	- Frienderstall	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 140 3	sum(cor)	o sum(row)	B EXD. CAV
Inputs	Sex: M.	ale		
Outputs / Projections Context	A1:B2	• f,	10.974	830363058642
Contributors / Insured Members		A	в	C
Health Interventions Salary Averages / Salary Mass	1 2	Projection	time	277.12 Value
Insured Population and Coverage / S	3	10.97 203	10	10.97
Revenues / Summaries	4	17.39 202	21	17,39
Expenditure / Summaries	5	21.95 203	2	21.95
Health Expenditure	6	25.48 201	23	25,48
Expanditure in Carb Banafite	· ·	28.37 203	24	28,37
Administration Expanses	8	30.81 203	25	30.81
Demographic Indicator	10	32.92 203	26	32.92
	11	34.79 202	10	34.79
[AC_LFCF] Labour force coverage r	12	37.97 203	29	37.97

Models Scenario Configuration			
lame	IAC L	Fors] Labour force	coverage rate (s.t)
cheme: Main			
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 140	sum(coi) No sum(ro	A DA DA DA
inputs	Sex: Fr	emale	
Outputs / Projections			
Context	A1:B2	▼ fx 11.3	203500004280611
Contributors / Insured Members		A B	C
Health Interventions	1	Breingtlen time	282.94
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	2	r rejection time	Value
Insured Population and Coverage / S.	3	11.20 2020	11.20
Revenues / Summaries	4	17.76 2021	17.76
Evnenditure / Summaries	5	22.41 2022	22.41
Experiature / Summaries	6	26.02 2023	26.02
Health Expenditure	7	28.96 2024	28.96
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	8	31.46 2025	31.46
Administrative Expenses	9	33.62 2026	33.62
 Demographic Indicators 	10	35.52 2027	35.52
[AC_LFcrs] Labour force coverage r	11	37.23 2028	37.23
and the second			

Models Scenario Configuration						
Name		Pcr] Co	verage	e rate of	total popula	ation (t)
Scheme: Main	1. 100	tim(rol)	*** No	Sumfrond	A Eve CSV	P. TAXIS
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	10,000	idinited .		Sampony	D. Colt. Co.	
	A1:82	0	fx	0.0974	796723088524	6
Outputs / Projections		A		В	C	
Context	1	Beal				3.15
Contributors / Insured Members	2	FIQ	eccon a	nie	Value	
Health Interventions	3		10 202	0		.10
Salam Ausrages / Salam Macr	4		16 202	1		.16
Janai y Averages / Janai y Mass	5		22 202	2		.22
Bruesues / Cummarias	6		27 202	3		.27
Evolution / Summaries	-		31 202	4		.31
Experiorare / Summaries	0		30 202			.30
Health Expenditure	10		42 202	7		40
Administrative Function	11		45 202	B	1	.45
Auministrative expenses	12		47 202	9		.47
Demographic Indicators	- M					
AC_LECTSJ LADOUT force coverage r						
[AC_LFcr] Labour force coverage ra						
[IP_NPcrs] Coverage rate of total p						
[IP_NPcr] Coverage rate of total po						

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	<mark>၂</mark> m in Social S	ecurity / Te	st Institution - Sv	vitzerland
Models Scenario Configuration				
Name	IP NF	Cov	erage rate	of total population (s,t)
Scheme: Main				
<enter bere="" criteria="" search=""></enter>	: ND 5	um(col)	No Sum(row)	B EXD. CSV RC 10 XLSA
Inputs	Sex: Ma	ale		
Outputs / Projections Context	A1:B2	*	fx 0.0990	00013840375614
Contributors / Insured Members		А	В	C
Health Interventions Salary Averages / Salary Mass	1 2	Projec	tion time	3.22 Value
Insured Population and Coverage / S	3	. 10	2020	.10
Revenues / Summaries	4	.11	7 2021	.17
Expenditure / Summaries	5	.23	2 2022	
Health Expenditure	6	(2)	2023	.27
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	' a	.3	2 2024	.32
Administrative Expenses	9		2025	,30
Demographic Indicators	10	4	2027	43
IAC (Ecrs] Labour force coverage r	11	.40	2028	.46
[AC_LFcr] Labour force coverage r	12	.41	2029	.49
[IP_NPcrs] Coverage rate of total p				



6.5.4.2. Average age

These indicators ([ACaas] [Acaa], [TIaas], [TIaa], [NCaaas], [NCaa]) show the average age of contributors or beneficiaries by sex over the years. They are found in: Outputs/Projections > Demographic Indicators. This is useful to assess the characteristics of typical insured or contributors and their changes over time (e.g., ageing of the contributors, etc).

International Labour Organization Quartitistive Platform	in Social Security / Test Institution - Switz	rerland	International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH	in Social Security / Te	st Institution - Swit	zerland
Models Scenario Configuration			Models Scenario Configuration			
Name	[ACaa] Average age of active	e contributors (t)	Name	[ACaas] Avera	be age of activ	ve contributors (s.t)
Scheme: Main enter search criteria here>	I No Sum(col) *** No Sum(row)	🔹 Exp. CSV 📑 To XLSX	Scheme: Main	i No Sum(col)	••• No Sum(row)	🖹 Exp. CSV 🕅 To XLSX
Outputs / Projections Context Outputs / Insured Members	A1:82 fx 23.5666 A B 1 Projection time	6559003425 C 247.30	Outputs / Projections Gottext Gottext	Sex: Male	• fx 23.66666	6559003425
Health Interventions Salary Averages / Salary Mass Insured Population and Coverage / S Revenues / Summaries Expenditure / Summaries Expenditure / Summaries Health Expenditure Expenditure in Cash Benefits Administrative Expenses [AC_LFCrs] Labour force coverage r [AC_LFCrs] Labour force coverage r [P_NPCrs] Coverage rate of total p [P_NPCrs] Coverage rate of total p [AC_Ass] Average age of active cont	2 4407 2029 4 2407 2029 5 2440 2021 5 2440 2025 7 2440 2025 9 25440 2025 9 25440 2025 9 25440 2025 9 2544 2028 10 2547 2027 11 2527 2028 12 25.34 2029	Value 23.67 24.07 24.38 24.43 24.43 24.43 25.04 25.04 25.04 25.04 25.77 25.54	Contributors / Insured Members Health Interventions Salary Averages / Salary Mass Insured Porges / Salary Mass Expenditure / Summaries Expenditure / Summaries Health Expenditure Expenditure in Cash Benefits Administrative Expenses Demographic Indicators [Ac_LErs] Labour force coverage r [Ac_LErs] Cabour force coverage r [P, NPers] Coverage rate of total p [IP, NPers] Coverage rate of total p	A 1 2 Projec 3 228.8 4 4 24.0 5 24.4 6 24.6 7 24.8 8 25.0 9 25.1 10 25.2 11 25.3 12 25.3 12 25.3 12 25.5	B tion time 7 2020 9 2021 3 2022 8 2023 9 2025 5 2026 4 2027 1 2028 7 2029	C 247.85 Value 24.86 24.40 24.45 24.45 25.03 25.03 25.03 25.51 25.24 25.31 25.37



6.5.5. Contributors and insured members

The main aggregate groups for contributors are accessible in varying levels of detail for users interested in understanding group dynamics.

6.5.5.1. Yearly aggregates by sex and group

This is the simplest level of detail possible: a time series by sex that shows the total number of individuals of a group without age details. This level of detail is available for Total number of Active contributors of a group [Tact] in the folder Outputs/Projections > Contributors/Insured members, Total insured from active [RPT_MDAT_E] and Total Insured Pensioners [RPT_MDAT_G] in a group by sex³⁹ in the folder Outputs/Projections > Insured Population and Coverage / Summaries.

International Labour Organization ULD/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	H m in Social	Security / Test	Institution - Switz	zerland
Models Scenario Configuration				
Name	[Tact]	Total activ	e contributo	rs in the period (t)
Scheme: Main 👻				
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	3 N	sum(col)	No Sum(row)	B EXD. CSV BC 10 XLS
	A1:82		fx 0	
Outputs / Projections		A	В	С
Context	1			207,400.65
Context Control uters / Insured Members	2	Projecti	ion time	Value
Tastal astic assistant is	3	.00	2019	.00
[factsg] focal active contributors (s	4	6,081.89	2020	6,081.89
[Tact] Total active contributors in t	5	10,285.99	2021	10,285.99
[act] Active contributors (s,g,x,t)	6	13,820.81	2022	13,820.81
[deadactsx] Number of deaths of a	7	17,057.01	2023	17,057.01
[5q] Probability of death in the int	8	20,153.36	2024	20,153.36
[Survact] Surviving active contribut	9	23, 193.58	2025	23,193.58
[p] Probability of surviving as an ac	10	26,229.05	2026	26,229.05
[nentx] Active contributors that we	11	28,267.75	2027	28,267.75
[SoS] Brobability of supplying as a	12	30,217.29	2028	30,217.29
[nent] Active contributors that wer	13	32,093.92	2029	32,093.92

³⁹ For the total, users can easily refer to the Main Aggregate Demographic Table.

Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[RPT_	MDAT_E	Insured Ac	tive (s,t)	
Scheme: Main	1 No	Sum(coi)	• No Sum(row)	Exp. CSV	To XLSX
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>					Providence of
Inputs	Sex: M	lale	*		
Outputs / Projections					
Context	A1:82		fx 0		
 Contributors / Insured Members 		A	В	C	
Health Interventions	1	Project	ion time		.00
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	2	+ roles	ion unite	Value	
 Insured Population and Coverage / Su 	3	.00	2020		.00
RPT MDAT CI Employed Labour for	4	.00	2021		.00
[RPT_MDAT_D] Active contributors (s.t)	5	.00	2022		.00
[PPT MDAT E] Insured Active (s t)	6	.00	2023		.00
[PPT_MDAT_C] Insured Pacidual (r t)	1	.00	2024		.00
[RPT_MDAT_C] Insured Ressionerr (8	.00	2025		.00
[RPT_MDAT_G] Insured Pensioners (9	.00	2026		.00
[RPI_MDAI_H] Insured Dependants	10	.00	2027	-	.00
RPT_MDAT_I] Insured Total (s,t)	10	.00	2028		.00
[DDT MDAT I] Courses as Ast/LE (as)	12	.00	2029		.00

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	l n in Social S	Security / Test	Institution - Sw	Itzerland	
Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[RPT	MDAT E	Insured Ac	tive (s,t)	
Scheme: Main	1 No	Sum(col)	* No Sum(row)	🔒 Exp. CSV	🛃 To XLSX
Inputs Outputs / Projections Context	Sex: Fe	male	• fx 0		
Contributors / Insured Members	Pettor	A	В	С	
Health Interventions	1 2	Project	on time	Value	.00
Sataly Averages / Sataly mass Insured Population and Coverage / Su [[RPT_MDAT_C] Employed Labour for [[RPT_MDAT_D] Active contributors (s,t)	3 4 5	00. 00. 00.	2020 2021 2022 2023		00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.00.
[RPT_MDAT_E] Insured Active {s.t} [RPT_MDAT_F] Insured Residual (s.t) [RPT_MDAT_F] Insured Pensioners ([RPT_MDAT_H] Insured Dependants [RPT_MDAT_J] Insured Total (s.t)	7 8 9 10 11	00. 00. 00. 00. 00.	2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2028		00. 00. 00. 00. 00.
[RPT_MDAT_] Coverage Act/LF (s,t) [RPT_MDATTOTAL] Coverage Act/L	12	.00	2029		.00

International Labour Organization LUO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	l i în Social S	iecurity / Tes	tInstitu	ution - Swi	itzerland
Models Scenario Configuration					
Name.	[RPT	MDAT G] Insi	ured Pe	ensioners (s,t)
Scheme: Main	E No.	Sum(col)	** No Si	um(row)	💼 Exp. CSV 🔹 To XLS
Inputs Outputs / Projections	Sex: M	ale		*	
Context	A1:B2	*	fx	0	
Contributors / Insured Members	2	A		в	C
Health Interventions	1 2	Project	ion tim	ië.	13,759.70 Value
Insured Population and Coverage / Su	3	.00	2020		.00
[PPT MDAT C] Employed Labour for	4	134.52	2021		134.52
[RPT_MDAT_D] Active contributors (s.t)	5	353,90	2022		353.90
[RET_MDAT_D] Active contributors (s,c)	6	639.14	2023		639.14
[RP1_MDAT_E] Insured Active (s,t)	7	980,84	2024		980.84
[RP1_MDA1_F] Insured Residual (s,t)	8	1,373.77	2025		1,373.77
RPT_MDAT_GJ Insured Pensioners (9	1,814.85	2026		1,814.85
[RPT_MDAT_H] Insured Dependants	10	2,302.29	2027		2,302.29
[RPT_MDAT_I] Insured Total (s,t)	10	z,813.53	2028		2,813.53
[RPT_MDAT_]] Coverage Act/LF (s,t) [RPT_MDAT_]_TOTAL] Coverage Act/L	14	3,340.88	2029		3,346.88



6.5.5.2. Year and age crosstabs

These tables show the years in the columns and the age in the rows. This level of detail enables users to view demographic transitions (the "diagonal" ageing of cohorts). These tables are available for the following groups: Active contributors [act], Active insured, Residual insured, Pensioner insured and Family insured ([Insact], [ResIns], [Inspensir], [Inspenswo] and [FamIns]). Other groups shown with this detail are residual groups of contingencies for example: Active contributors that survived death, disability and other exits [Survact], and deaths from the Insured groups, [Tdeath].

Models Scenario Configuration										💄 Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
ame	act	Active con	tributor	s (s,g,x,t)								
heme: Main												
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>		No Sum[col]	*** No Sum	(row) 😰 Exp. CSV	R 103	also.						
inputs	Sex:	Male		 Group: 	Custar	d	1					
Outputs / Projections												
 Context 	At:B	*	fx 0									
 Contributors / Insured Members 	- and	A		B C		D	E	F.	G	н	Bressen	1
[Tactsg] Total active contributors (1	Age vs Pr	ojection tir	ne	.00	3,847.19	6,209.91	7,992.75	0,464,88	10,747.83	11,905.95	12
[Tact] Total active contributors in t	2			2019	1010	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	202
[act] Active contributors (s,g,x,t)	3	- 33.3	5 15		00,	2.82	2.65	2.77	2.97	3.17	3.38	
[deadactsx] Number of deaths of		392.8	7 16		.00	31.35	31.32	32.63	34:85	37.29	39.76	
[5g] Probability of death in the int	2	1,376.3	3 17		00,	96.85	111,99	118.39	123.88	132.48	141.34	
Survact] Surviving active contribu	7	2,969.6	1 18		.00	182.67	236.69	255.22	270.81	289.08	308.60	
[n] Probability of surviving as an a		6,000,4	1 70		.00	200.00	373.04	422.23	402.08	482.89	010.23	
Inentyl Active contributors that w		0,073.3	5 20		.00	333.04	436.14	200.02	030.41	840.61	120.10	
5n5) Probability of subvion as a	10	0.492.5	6 99		00	386.02	814 76	780.53	870.00	065.39	1 038 07	- 64
[opp1] Active contributors that was	11	9.976.7	3 23		.00	375.30	813.88	785.88	915.74	1.018.37	1 104 22	
Treasult Resultation patitled to healt	12	9.918.3	9.24		.00	346.88	579.98	757.37	897.55	1.011.24	1.106.65	
Insxi Population entitled to realc	13	9,403,5	2.25		.00	307.24	523.72	695.87	837.12	954.83	1.054.86	7.8
[Insact] Active contributors entitie	14	8,559,1	7 26		.00	262.26	454,79	613.75	748.48	863.70	963.17	
[deadinsactsx] Number of deaths	15	7,516.5	2 27		.00	218.64	381.57	522.30	645.00	752.57	847.02	
[ResIns] Residual insured (s,g,x,t)	16	6,392.7	3 28		.00	173.70	310.38	430,49	538.02	634.30	720.37	
[deadResInssx] Projected of death	17	5,280.90	0 29		.00	135.49	245.41	344.63	435.59	518.76	594.40	
[Inspensir] Insured pensioners of i	18	4,246.8	5 30		.00	102.98	188.96	268.53	343.12	412.67	477.00	
[deadpenirsx] Number of deaths o	19	3, 330, 7	4 31		.00	76.37	141.88	203.97	263.41	310.88	372.98	
[Inspenswo] Insured survivor's pe	20	2,551.0	5 32		.00	55,30	104.00	151.21	197.33	241.94	284.59	
[5] [5qwo] Probability of death of a s	21	1,910.1	4:33		.00	39.12	74,46	109.49	144.38	178.74	212.11	
FamIns] Family dependants (s.g.x.t)	22	1,399.3	3 34		.00	27.04	52.10	77,48	103.24	129.06	154.55	
	.23	+ 0022 50	10 11 11		19.75	242-223	1441-0114	arm-ates.	1917 1918	01.13	110.15	

[act] Active contributors (s,g,x,t)

🚦 No Sum(col) 🛛 🚥 No Sum(row) 🔹 Exp. CSV 📘 To XLSX

Sex: Fernale

Group: Custant

A1:82	*	fx	0								
	A		в	c	D	E	F	G	н	1.	J
1	Anna Lan Plan		No.	.00	2,240.70	4,076.08	5,828.05	7,592.13	9,405.53	11,287.63	13,25
2	Adde Ale hurd	slocuon	ume	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
3	31.42	15		.00	1.64	1,87	2.24	2.66	3.11	3.59	
4	367.82	16		.00	18.29	21.95	26.21	31.13	36.42	42.01	4
5	1,294.03	17		.00	56.50	76.71	91.89	109.19	127.96	147.87	16
6	2,789.60	18		.00	106.56	159.58	197,19	234.65	275.49	318.98	36
7	4,595.92	10		.00	155,66	249.42	320.27	385.44	453,35	525.98	60
8	6,378.08	20		.00	194.28	326.73	433.87	531.42	628.68	730.83	83
9	7,849.35	21		.00	217.66	379.65	518.32	646.48	772.12	900.96	1,03
10	8,837.71	22		.00	225.18	404.21	564.68	716.22	864.74	1,015.06	1,17
11	9,264.03	23		.00	218.93	402.32	573.06	737.89	900.64	1,064.78	1,23
12	9,179,71	24		.00	202.35	379.31	549.40	717,06	884.40	1,053.49	1,22
13	8,672.85	25		.00	179.22	341.82	502,44	663.86	826.89	992.51	1,16
14	7,865.53	26		.00	152.98	296.29	441.34	589.71	741.41	896.60	1,05
15	8,887.72	27		06.	126.37	248.19	374.21	505.26	840.88	780.75	92
16	5,830,74	28		.00	101.32	201.59	307.41	419.17	536.21	657.95	78
17	4,798.25	29		0,00	79.03	159:17	245.33	337.69	435.54	538.23	84
18	3,843.80	30		.00.	60.07	122.40	190.61	264.76	344.23	428.39	51
19	3,002.76	31		.00	44.55	91.79	144.38	202.34	265.18	332.34	40
20	2,290.63	32		.00	32.26	67.20	106.75	150.93	199.37	251.64	30
21	1,708.10	33		.00	22.82	48.06	77.09	109.97	146.42	188.15	22
22	1,246.03	34		.00	15.77	33.59	54.41	78.31	105.12	134.63	16
23	ARG 71	35		00	10.86	22.95	37.54	54.52	73.80	45 24	

International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH

Na Sci rganization Quantitative Platform In Social Security / Test Institution - Switzerland

*test

lodels Scenario Configuration										L Us	er Name 🕒	Logout
me	Insa	act] Active co	ontributors e	entitled to re	ceive	health servic	es (s,g,x,t)					
ieme: Main												
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>		to sum(cot)	No Sum(row)	Exp. CSY	gg 10.	XLSX						
inputs	Sex:	Male		Group:	Custa	rd	*					
Outputs / Projections												
Context	A1:82		fx 0									
Contributors / Insured Members		A	в	C		D	E	F	G	н	1	J
Tactsol Total active contributors (1		11 11		.00	3,649,73	5,899.41	7,593.17	8,991.64	10,210.44	11,310.65	12,32
Tart Total active contributors in t	2	Age vs Proj	ection time	2019		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
[act] Active contributors (s a x t)	3	31.69	15		.00	2.68	2.51	2.04	2.82	3.01	3.21	
Ideadacted Number of deaths of	4	373,17	16		00	29.78	29.75	31.00	33,11	35.42	37.77	14
[deddacisk] Number of death is the int	5	1,307.51	17		.00	92.01	106.39	110.57	117.67	125.86	134.27	14
Cod Probability of death in the int	6	2,821.13	18		00	173.54	224.85	242.46	257.08	274.63	293.07	31
[Survact] Surviving active contribu	7	4,655.44	19		00	253.50	354.90	401.12	430.24	458.75	489.47	52
[p] Probability of surviving as an a	8	6,473.23	20		.00	316.39	468.10	551.02	603.70	646,64	689.46	73
[nentx] Active contributors that w	9	7,984.93	21		00	354.48	546.54	665.22	745.37	807.06	862.49	91
[_5p5] Probability of surviving as a	10	9,008.43	22		.00	366.73	584.02	730.67	835.90	917.11	986.17	1,05
[nent] Active contributors that wer	11	9,477.89	23		00	396.54	582.99	746.40	869.95	967,45	1,049.01	1,12
[Inssx] Population entitled to healt	12	9,422.47	24	1	.00	329.54	550.98	719.50	852.67	960.67	1,051.32	1,13
[Insact] Active contributors entitle	13	8,933.34	25		.00	291.65	497.54	661.05	795.26	907.09	1,002.12	1,05
[deadInsactsx] Number of deaths	14	6,131,21	26		00	249.14	432.05	583.06	711.05	820.51	915.01	99
Restoct Residual insured (s.o.v.t)	15	7,140.69	27		00	205.80	362.50	496.18	812.81	714.94	804.67	88
[deadBacIncev] Brojected of death	16	6,073.09	28		.00	165.01	294.87	408.97	511.12	602.59	684.35	75
To some shill be some shill be some shill	17	5,076,85	29		00	128.71	233.14	327.39	413.82	492.82	564.68	62
 [Inspensir] Insured pensioners or I 	18	4,034.54	30		.00	97.83	179.51	255.10	325.98	392.04	453.15	50
[deadpenirsx] Number of deaths o	19	3,164.21	31		00	72.55	134,79	193.77	250.24	303.89	354.33	40
[Inspenswo] Insured survivor's pe	20	2,423,50	32		00	52.53	98.80	143.65	187,46	229,85	270.38	30

[Insact] Active contributors entitled to receive health services (s,g,x,t)

👔 No Sum(col) 🚥 No Sum(row) 🔹 Exp. CSV 🕴 To XLSX

Sex: Female Group: Custard

	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J.
1	Anno con Mandanistian Alexan	.00	2,128.67	3,872.28	5,536.66	7,212.52	8,935.26	10,723.25	12,58
2	Age vs Projection time	2019	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
3	29.85 15	.00	1.58	1.78	2.13	2.53	2.96	3.41	
4	349.43 16	.00	17.37	29.85	24.90	29.57	34.60	39.91	4
5	1,229.33 17	.00	53.67	72.88	87.29	103.73	121.57	140.47	16
6	2,650.12 18	.00	101.23	151.60	187.33	222.92	261.71	303.03	34
7	4,366.13 19	.00	147.88	236.95	304.25	366.17	430.68	499.68	.67
8	6,059,18 20	.00	184.55	310.39	412.17	504.85	597.25	694.28	79
9	7,456.88 21	.00	206.78	360.66	492.41	614.18	733.51	855.91	98
10	8,390 13 22	.00	213.92	384.00	536.45	680.41	821.50	964,31	1,11
11	8,800.83 23	.00	207.99	382.20	544.41	700.99	855.61	1,011.52	1,17
12	8,720.73 24	.00	192.23	360.35	521.93	681.21	840.18	1,000.82	1,16
13	8,239.25 25	.00	170.26	324,73	477.32	630.67	785.55	942.88	1,10
14	7,472.26 28	.00	145.33	281.48	419.27	560.23	704.34	851.77	1,00
15	6,537.63 27	.00	120.05	235.79	355.50	480.00	608.84	741.71	87
16	5,539.21 28	.00	96.26	191.51	292.04	398.21	509.40	625.05	74
17	4,558.34 29	00	75.08	151.21	233.07	320.80	413.76	511.32	61
18	3,651.67 30	.00	57.07	116,28	181.08	251.52	327.02	406.97	49
19	2,852.62 31	.00	42.32	87.20	137.18	192.23	251.92	315.73	38
20	2,176.10 32	.00	30.64	63.84	101.41	143.38	189.40	239.06	29
21	1,622.69 33	.00	21.68	45.66	73.24	104.47	139.10	176.84	21
22	1,183.73 34	.00	14,99	31.91	51.69	74 39	99.86	127.90	15
23	845 22 35	00	10.12	21.80	35.65	51.60	20.11	90.48	11

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m in Socia	I Security / Test I	Institution - Switz	erland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration									💄 Us	er Name 🛛 🕞	Logout
Name	[Res	Ins] Residua	l insured (s.	a.x.t)							
Scheme: Main											
Constitution and a section of a finance of	E N	io Sum(col) +++	No Sum(row)	😢 Exp. CSV 🛃 To	KLSX						
Senter search criteria neres	Sev	saula.		Group: Com							
nputs .	Sca.	Molesc		droup. custa	id)						
 Outputs / Projections 	1.00000		# 111 a ta canada								
🕨 💼 Context	A1:82		Jx 0.267737	11330356925							
Contributors / Insured Members	1	A	В	C	D	E	F	0	н	1	1
[Tactsg] Total active contributors (1	Age vs Proje	ction time	364.91	589.94	789.31	899.16	1.027.04	1,131.07	1,232,85	1,32
[Tact] Total active contributors in t	2			2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
[act] Active contributors (s,g,x,t)	3	3.17-1	15	.27	.25	.26	.28	.30	.32	.34	
[deadactsx] Number of deaths of		37.32	16	2.98	2.98	3.10	3.31	3.54	3.78	4,01	
[5q] Probability of death in the int	-	130.75 1	17	0.20	10.64	11,06	11.27	12,59	13.43	14.27	1
[Survact] Surviving active contribu	7	202.11	18	17,35	22.49	24.25	25.71	27.46	29.31	31,16	
[p] Probability of surviving as an a		400.04	19	20.00	46.84	40.11	43.02	45.67	48.90	02.07	0
Inentx] Active contributors that w.	9	200 40	20	31.04	40.01	35.10	74.64	80.74	60.95	01.77	
I 5n51 Prohability of surviving as a	10	90/1 84	22	36.67	58.40	73.07	83.69	91.71	99.62	105.08	11
Inent] Active contributors that was	11	947.79	23	35.65	58.30	74.64	87.00	96.75	104.90	112.22	11
Description and the healt	12	942.25 1	24	32.95	55.10	71.95	85.27	96.07	105.13	113.10	12
Insski Population entities untitle	13	893.33	25	29.19	49.75	66.11	79.53	90.71	100.21	108.52	11
Ideadlagate Active contributors endbe	14	813.12	26	24.91	43.21	58.31	71.11	82.05	91.50	99.80	10
[deadinsactsx] Number of deaths	15	714.07 \$	27	20.68	36.25	49.62	61.28	71.49	80.47	88.41	9
[ResIns] Residual insured (s,g,x,t)	16	607.31	28	16.50	29.49	40.90	51.11	60.26	68.44	75.76	8
[deadResInssx] Projected of death	17	501.69.1	29	12.87	23.31	32.74	41.38	49.28	58.47	62.99	6
[Inspensir] Insured pensioners of i	18	403.45 3	30	9.78	17.95	25.51	32.60	39,20	45.31	50.93	5
[deadpenirsx] Number of deaths o	19	316.42	31	7.25	13.48	19.38	25.02	30.39	35,43	40.14	4
[Inspenswo] Insured survivor's pe	20	242.35	32	5.25	9.66	14.36	18.75	22.98	27.04	30.87	3
[5qwo] Probability of death of a s	21	181.46	33	3.72	7.07	10.40	13.72	16.98	20.15	23.10	2
[FamIns] Family dependants (s,g,x,t)	22	132.94 3	34	2.57	4.95	7.36	9.81	12.26	14,68	17.04	1
	23	96.34 7	15	1.74	3.38	6.09	8.86	8.66	10.46	12.2%	

Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	1 n in Social	Security / Test Ins	titution - Swi	tzerland										*test
Models Scenario Configuration												1 U	ser Name 🖸	Logout
Vame III	[Insp	ensir) Insured	pensione	ers of invalio	lity and	retirement	t (s.q.x.t)	1						
icheme: Main														
	I No	Sum(cal) *** N	o Sum(row)	🔒 Exp. CSV	To XL	5X								
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	- Second	1997 B												
inputs (Sex: 1	Aaie		Group:	Custard									
Outputs / Projections														
 Context 	A1:B2	* fa	0											
 Contributors / Insured Members 		A	8	c		D	E		F	G	н		E	3
Tactsg) Total active contributors (1	And the Barts of	10038207		.00.	.00		1.00	7.00	30	00	.00	.00	
Tacti Total active contributors in t	2	with an exclusion	on time	2019		2020	2021		2022	2023	202	14	2025	2026
[act] Active contributors (s.o.x.t)	3	.00 15			:00	.00		00	-00		00	.00	00.	
Ideadactsx1 Number of deaths of	4	.90 16			.00	.00		.00	,00		00	.00	.00	
5 sel Brobability of death in the int	5	.00 17			.00	.00		.00	00		00	.00	.00	
Experience of the section section.	8	.00 18			.00	.00		.00	.00		00	.00	.00	
Survacti Surviving active contribu	7	.00 19			.00	.00		.00	.00	10	00	.00	00.	
[p] Probability of surviving as an a	8	.00 20			.00	.00		.00	.00	1	00	.00	.00	
[nentx] Active contributors that w	9	.00 21			.00	.00		.00	.00	()	00	.00	.00	
[5p5] Probability of surviving as a	10	.00 22			.00	.00		.00	.00	1	00	,00,	.00	
[nent] Active contributors that wer	11	.00 23			.00	.00		.00	.00	4	00	.00	00	
[Inssx] Population entitled to healt	12	.00 24			.00	.00		.00	.00	1	00	.00	.00	
[Insact] Active contributors entitle	13	.00 25			.00	.00		.00	.00	j.	00	.00	.00	
deadInsactsx] Number of deaths	14	00 26			.00	.00		.00	,00,		00	.00	.00	
ResIns Residual insured (s.g.x.t)	15	.00 27			.00	.00		.00	.00		00	,00	.00	
deadResInssyl Projected of death	16	.00 28			.00	.00		.00	.00	0	00	.00	.00	
Inspendirl Insured pensioners of i	17	.00 29			.00	.00		00	/00		00	.00	.00	
Ideadeanized Number of deaths a	10	.00 30			.00	:00:		.00	.00		00	,00	.00	
Electrope in ski riumber of deads o	20	.00 31			.00	.00		00.	.00	1	00	.00	00.	_
Inspenswoj insured survivor's pe	20	.00 32			.00	00.		.00	,00		00	00,	.00	
 Esqwoj Probability of death of a s 	22	00 33			00	00		00	.00		00	00	00	
[FamIns] Family dependents (s,g,x,t)	23	.00 34				.00		.00				100	.00	

	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m in Soc	ial Securit	//Test Inst	itution - S	witzerland									*test
Mo	dels Scenario Configuration												1 U	ser Name 🖸	Logout
Nam		Ins	penswo] Insure	d surviv	or's pension	ers (s	.g.x.t)							
Schei	me: Main														
	center search criteria heres	-	No Sumicol	No No	Sum(row)	B. Exp. CSV	Bt To	XLSX							
	[Inssx] Population entitled to healt Insact] Active contributors entitle	Sex:	Male		*	Group:	Custa	ard		*					
	[deadInsactsx] Number of deaths	A1:B2		* fx	0										
	[ResIns] Residual insured (s.g.x.t)		A		8	C		D		E	F	G	н	1	J
	[deadResInssx] Projected of death	1	A.m.	. Projectie	an filmer		.00		:00	134.52	353.90	639.14	980,84	1,373.77	7,81
	[Inspensir] Insured pensioners of i	2	ingto.	a crodesas	de antina	2019		2020		2021	2022	2923	2024	2025	2026
	deadpenirsx Number of deaths o	3		36.79 0			.00		00	1.33	2.22	2.95	3.61	4.24	
	Inspension Insured suprivor's pe	4		64.33 1			.00		.00	1.33	3.42	4.96	6.27	7.60	
	Sown) Probability of death of a s	5		85.10 2			00		00	1.33	3.44	6.08	8.15	9.98	1
	[Engline] Englis dependents (s. a. s. t)	6		00.48 3			.00		.00	1.33	3.45	6.13	9.23	11.76	1
	[ranging ranging dependence (s,g,x,c)	7		111.60 4			00		.00	1.33	3,46	6.16	9.31	12.82	1
	[deadFaminssx] Number of death	8		119.36 5			.00		.00	1.33	3.47	6.18	9.37	12.93	1
	[deadpenwosx] Survivor's pension	9		24.48 6			.00		-00	1.33	3.47	6.20	9,41	13.02	1
	[Ideath] Total number of deaths (s	10		27.62 7			.00		.00	1.33	3.47	6.22	9,45	12.10	
	Health Interventions	11		29.33 1			.00		.00	1.33	3.48	6.23	9.45	13,16	1
	Salary Averages / Salary Mass	12		30.20 1			.00		.00.	1.33	3.48	6.25	9.51	13.22	1
	Insured Population and Coverage / S	13		30.95 10			.00		,00	1.33	3,49	6.26	9.54	13.27	1
	Revenues / Summaries	15		11 52 11			.00		.00	1.33	3.49	6.27	9.50	13.31	1
	Expenditure / Summaries	10		02.23 14			.00			1.00	3,40	0.40	0.00	10,00	
	Health Expenditure	17		32.78 13			.00		00	1.33	3.43	6.28	9.60	13.39	1
	Expenditure in Cash Benefits	18		23 77 46			00		00	1.33	2.49	6.30	0.04	13.43	1
	Administrative Expenses	19		14.21 18			00		00	1.33	3.60	6.31	0.04	13.46	
	Demographic Indicators	20		34 63 17			00		00	1.33	3.50	631	9.67	13.52	4
	Cin apprint Indicators	21		35.02 18			00		00	1 33	3.50	6.12	9.60	13.64	
	Rinancial Indicators	21		35.02 18			.00		.00	1.33	3.50	6.32	9.69	13.54	1

International Labour Organization Unguantizative Platfor	H m in Social	Security / Test Ins	Station - Swit	zerland								*test
Models Scenario Configuration										1 Us	er Name 🕞	Logout
Name	[Fam	Insl Family de	pendants	(saxt)								
Scheme: Main		Suppleall	Sumbrand	Chemical I	B: To XI							
kenter search criteria here-	-	Contraction in the second	Contraction of the	- Copy Con	and the same							
[Inssx] Population entitled to healt	Sex: /	Vale		Group:	Custard							
[Insact] Active contributors entitle	A1:82	* fs	0									
Destrol Perident interest in aut		A	в	с		D	E	F	G	н	1	JB
[Resins] Residual Insured (s.g.x,t)	1	March March Pa	and the second		.00	4.585.09	7,754.53	10.419.41	12,859,16	15,193,48	17,485,48	19.77 :
Ideadkesinssx] Projected of death	2	Age vs Projecti	on time	2019		2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
Inspensir) Insured pensioners of i	3	1,548.10 0			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	160.43	173.12	19
[deadpenirsx] Number of deaths o	4	1,548.10 1		-	.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
[Inspenswo] Insured survivor's pe	5	1,548.10.2			.00	45,40	76.78	103.16	\$27.32	150,43	173.12	19
[_5qwo] Probability of death of a s	6	1,548.10 3			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150,43	173.12	19
FamIns] Family dependants (s.g.x.t)	7	1,548.10.4			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	\$27.32	150.43	173.12	19
[deadFamInssx] Number of death	8	1,548.10 5			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150,43	173.12	19
[deadpenwosx] Survivor's pension	9	1,548.10 6			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
[Tdeath] Total number of deaths (s.,	10	1,548.10 7			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
Health Interventions	11	1,548.10 B			00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150,43	173.12	19
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	12	1,548.10 9		1	00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	160.43	173.12	19
Insured Reputation and Coverson / E	13	1,548.10 10			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150,43	173.12	19
Busined Population and Coverage / S	14	1,548,10 11			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
 Revenues / Summaries 	15	1,548.10 12			.00	45.40	76.78	103.15	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
Expenditure / Summaries	16	1,548.10 13			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
Health Expenditure	17	1,848.10 14			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	160,43	173.12	91.
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	18	1,548.10 15			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
Administrative Expenses	19	1,548.10 18			.00	45.40	76,78	103.16	127.32	150,43	173.12	19
 Bemographic Indicators 	20	1,548.10 17			.00	45.40	76.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19
The second of Facebook	21	1,548.10 18			.00	45.40	75.78	103.16	127.32	150.43	173.12	19

ILO/HEALT	H m in Soci	al Security / Te	st Institutio	n - Switzerlan	d								*test
Models Scenario Configuration											L Us	er Name 🖸	Logout
Name	ISur	vactl Survi	vina acti	ve contrib	autors from	m the	orevious	period (s.o.v.t	(
Scheme: Main	[ou.	raog our r	nig ava	re contra	41010 1101	an unite p	and monto and	hauna (alâtute	,				
	1.1	No Sum(col)	••• No Sum(raw) 🔹 E	Kp. CSV	To XLSX							
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>				_									
Inputs	Sex:	Male		0 1	Group: O	ustard		1.00					
Outputs / Projections													
 Context 	A1:82		fx 0										
 Econtributors / Insured Members 	1000	A	8		C		D	E	F.	G	н	E.	
[[Tactsg] Total active contributors (1		SPORTOWR	2 P	.01	0	2,604.19	4,217.79	5,422.66	6,422.94	7,294.86	8,082.03	8,81
Tact] Total active contributors in t	2	2010 40 11	olaenen mu	S	2020	1	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
[act] Active contributors (s.g.x.t)	3	.0	0 15		,01	0	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	.00	
ldeadactsxl Number of deaths of	4	21.8	2 16		.00	D	1.89	1.78	1.88	1.99	2.13	2.27	
I 50 Probability of death in the int	5	230.1	5 17		.00	0	21.08	21:06	21.94	23.44	25.08	26.74	2
[Supart] Supdving active contribu	6	807.7	3 18		.00	0	85.21	75,41	78.37	83.41	89.21	95.17	10
In Probability of surphing as an a	1	7,742.4	2 19		.00	0	123.15	150.57	172.07	182.44	194390	207.99	22
Incentral Active contributors that w	°.	2,872.4	8 20		.00	0	180,11	252.20	285.00	305.69	325.95	347.78	36
L EnET Brohability of cupying as a	10	1,969.2	8 21		.00	0	225.04	332.95	391,94	429.41	459.90	490.42	52
Esperal Action controls that uses	11	4,914.0	4 93 1 93		.01	0	202.10	368.15	473.67	530.74	5/4/0/	014.10	00
I nentj Active contributors that wer	12	6.873.1	0 23			0	254.38	416.20	812.60	820.87	603.70	748.44	00
[Inssx] Population entitled to near	13	5 767.4	1 25		0	a	235 32	193 45	513.80	808.91	666.04	750.78	80
Insact Active contributors entitie	14	5.455.4	3 26		.01	0	208.61	- 355.60	472.50	568.41	648.35	716.28	77
IdeadInsactsx] Number of deaths	15	4.952.7	1 27		.01	0	178.22	309.06	417.09	505.66	555.95	654.57	75
[ResIns] Residual insured (s,g,x,t)	16	4,337.0	8 28		.01	0	147.34	259.52	355.23	435.73	511,85	576.10	63
[deadResInssx] Projected of death	17	3.677.4	6 29		.01	0	118.23	211.26	293.02	385.21	431.76	400.35	54
[Inspensir] Insured pensioners of i	18	3,028.1	3 30		.01	0	92.29	167.16	234.75	296.72	353.38	404.60	45
[deadpenirsx] Number of deaths o	19	2,426.9	7 31		.01	0	70.20	128.00	183.65	233.90	261.31	325.17	38
[Inspenswo] Insured survivor's pe	20	7,896.6	5 32		.01	0	52.09	98.78	139-14	179.69	218.21	254.44	26
[_Sqwo] Probability of death of a s	21	1,447.2	r 33		.01	D	37.74	70.99	103.22	134,70	165.16	194.27	22

Models Scenario Configuration					
ame E	Tdea	ath] Total n	umber of dea	aths (s,g,t)	
cheme: Main	E N	o Sumicoli	• No Sum[row]	B. Exp. CSV 8 To XL5X	
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>					
[Tact] Total active contributors in t	Sex	Male		Group: Custard	
[act] Active contributors (s,g,x,t)					
[deadactsx] Number of deaths of	A1:82		fx 76.0804	6511225561	
[Sq] Probability of death in the int	1	A	В	C	
[Survact] Surviving active contribu	1	Project	ion time	4,992.49	
[p] Probability of surviving as an a	2			Valuo	
[nentx] Active contributors that w	3	76.08	2020	76.08	
[5p5] Probability of surviving as a		202.11	2021	202:11	
[nent] Active contributors that wer	6	382 37	2023	382.37	
[Inssx] Population entitled to healt	7	483.94	2024	463.94	
[Insact] Active contributors entitle	8	545.17	2025	645.17	
[deadInsactsx] Number of deaths	9	627.72	2026	627.72	
[ResIns] Residual insured (s,g,x,t)	10	712.57	2027	712.57	
[deadResInssx] Projected of death	11	798.82	2028	798.82	
[Inspensir] Insured pensioners of i	12	886.35	2029	886.35	
[deadpenirsx] Number of deaths o					
[Inspenswo] Insured survivor's pe					
[_5qwo] Probability of death of a s					
[FamIns] Family dependants (s,g,x,t)					
[deadFamInssx] Number of death					
[deadpenwosx] Survivor's pension					
Tdeath] Total number of deaths (s					

6.5.6. Salary matrices

Similarly, the salary matrices relate income to age for active contributors. There are three salary matrices: [Tsal] contains the Theoretical salary and [sal] contains Projected salary. Both are shown by age and sex for each group over a given year, with years shown in columns and age in rows. Additionally, there is the average Salary of the group [salt]. They are found in: Outputs/Projections > Salary Averages / Salary Mass.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Plat	.TH form in Soc	ial Security / Tesi	Institution - Switz	erland							*test
Models Scenario Configuration									💄 Us	er Name 🕞	Logout
Name	TIS ITS	I Theorical	averade sala	rv (saxt)							
Scheme: Main		No Sum(col)	No Sum(row)	* Exp. CSV	XLSX						
<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-										
Inputs Outputs / Projections	Sex:	Male		Group: _{Custa}	rd						
🕨 🚞 Context	A1:82		fx 75.29267	14885764							
Contributors / Insured Members	1.1	٨	В	C	D	E	F	G	н	<u>k</u>	J
🔸 💼 Health Interventions	1	Age vs Pro	ection time	5,718.41	5,775.59	5,833.35	5,897.68	5,950.60	6,010.11	6,078.21	6,13
🔺 💼 Salary Averages / Salary Mass	2			2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
[asg] Assumed salary growth (g,t)	3	787.73	15	75.29	76.05	76.81	77.57	78.35	79,13	79.82	ő
[salt] Average salary of period (t)	4	808.19	16	77.25	78.02	78.80	79.59	80.38	81.19	82.00	8
Isall Average salary (s.g.x.t)	5	827.41	17	79.09	79.88	80,67	81,48	82.30	83,12	83.95	8
ITsall Theorical averane salary (s.o.y.	t) 0	845.52	18	80.82	81.63	82.44	83.27	84.10	84.94	85.79	8
[cr] Average contribution rate of the	2 (862.69	19	652.446	63.28	84,11	64.95	85,80	86.86	87.53	8
[IN SALaw] Average insurable salar		878.92	20	84.01	84.85	85.70	86.56	87.42	88.29	89.18	9
The CAL and American Insurable salary	10	894.39	21	80.49	86.34	87.21	80.68	86.66	89.85	90.75	9
[Inv_ancav] Average insurable salary		2037.74	22	00.97	07,73	00.04	09.03	90,45	11.33	92.24	
[RPT_TRE_B] Salary Mass (t)	12	823.23	23	60.24	69.13	90.02	90.92	91,83	92.75	93.07	9
[RPT_MDAT_B] Salary Mass (t)	13	930.72	29	09.33	01.68	91.33	02.62	04.45	06.40	90.04	-
 Insured Population and Coverage / Su. 	14	962.10	26	91.96	92.88	93.81	94.75	95.69	98.85	97.82	
Revenues / Summaries	15	974.05	27	93.10	94.03	94.97	95.92	96.88	97.85	98.83	
Expenditure / Summaries	16	985.59	28	94 20	95.15	96.10	97.08	98.03	89.01	100.00	10
🕨 🚞 Health Expenditure	17	996.71	29	95.27	96.22	97.18	98.15	99.14	100.13	101.13	10
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	18	1,007.45	30	96.30	97.26	98.23	99.21	100.20	101.21	102.22	10
🔸 💼 Administrative Expenses	19	1,017.85	31	97.29	98.26	99.24	100.24	101.24	102.25	103.27	10
Demographic Indicators	20	1,027.92	32	98.25	99.23	100.23	101.23	102.24	103.26	104.29	10
Financial Indicators	21	1,037.67	33	99.18	100.17	101.18	102.19	103,21	104.24	105.28	10
Tables / Agregated Financial Results	22	1,047.14	34	100.09	101.09	102.10	103.12	104.15	105.19	106.24	10
the second sugarding the second success the second se	23	1.056.33	36	103.97	101.98	103.00	304.03	105.07	106.12	107.18	10

ALC: N	International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	 n in Socia	il Security / Tes	st Institut	on - Sw	itzerland								*test
M	lodels Scenario Configuration											1 Us	er Name G	Logout
Nar	me	[sal]	Average sa	alary (s	axt)								1
Sch	erne: Main				-31-11									
		E.N	io Sum(col)	··· No Sun	(row)	Exp. CSV	🛃 To X	LSX .						
	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	-				1								
*	🗰 Inputs	Sex:	Male			Group:	Custare	t.						
	Outputs / Projections			In the local										
3	Context	A1:82		ſx	D									
	Contributors / Insured Members		A		в	¢		D	E	F	G	н		1
	Health Interventions	1	Age vs Pro	ection ti	me	10000	.00	5,718.41	5,775.59	5,833.35	5,891.68	5,950.60	6,010.11	6,07
-	Salary Averages / Salary Mass	2	100000	EALTH .	1415	2019	201	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026
	[asg] Assumed salary growth (g,t)	3	787.73	15		_	.00	75.29	76.05	76.81	77.57	78.35	79.13	7
	[salt] Average salary of period (t)	1	808.19	9 16			.00	77.25	78.02	78.80	79.69	80.35	81.19	8
	[sal] Average salary (s,g,x,t)	-	827,41	17			.00	79.09	79.88	80.67	81,48	82.30	83.12	
	Tsail Theorical average salary (s.g.x.t)	0	845.52	16			,00,	80.82	81,63	82.44	83.27	84.10	84.96	
	[cr] Average contribution rate of the	8	802.00	19			00.	82.40	63.48	84 11	84.10	85.80	00.05	0
	[IN SALays] Averane insurable salary	9	804 20	20			.00	86.40	96.04	87.75	80.00	81.92	80.28	
	IN SALavi Average insurable salary	10	000.14	29			00	95.00	87.77	SR EA	90.53	80.43	01.33	
	[POT TRE PI Calace Macro (t)	11	923.21	23			.00	88.24	89.13	90.02	80.82	81.83	92.75	9
	[ODT_MDAT_D] Salary Mass (c)	12	936.72	24			.00	89.53	90.43	91.33	92.25	83.17	94.10	.0
112	RP1_MDA1_B] Salary Mass (c)	13	949,66	25			.00	90.77	91.68	92,60	93.52	94.48	95.40	9
	insured Population and Coverage / Su	14	962.10	26			.00	91.96	92.88	93.81	94.75	95.69	96.65	9
	Revenues / Summanes	15	974.06	27			.00	93.10	94.03	94.97	95.92	96,88	97.85	.0
1	Expenditure / Summaries	16	985,59	28			.00	94.20	95.15	96.10	97.06	98.03	99.01	10
	Health Expenditure	17	996.71	28			.00	95.27	96.22	97.18	98.15	99.14	100.13	10
	Expenditure in Cash Benefits	18	1,007,46	30			.00	96.30	97.28	98.23	99.21	100.20	101.21	10
	Administrative Expenses	19	1,017.85	5 31			.00	97.29	96.26	99.24	100.24	101.24	102.25	10
•	💴 💼 Demographic Indicators	20	1,027.92	2 32			.00	98.25	99.23	100.23	101.23	102.24	103.28	10
	Financial Indicators	21	1,037.67	33			.00	99.18	100.17	101.18	102.19	103.21	104.24	10
	Tables / Agregated Financial Results	22	1,047.14	1 34			.00	100.09	101.09	102.10	103.12	104.15	105.19	10
		23	1.056.25	2.35			0.0	100.97	101 98	103-00	104.03	105.07	106.12	18

International Labour organization Quantitative Platform	l 1 in Social !	Security / Test Insti	tution - Swi	zerland	
Models Scenario Configuration					
Name	[salt]	Average salar	y of peri	od (t)	
Scheme: Main	I No	Sum(col) *** No	Sum(row)	🗟. Exp. CSV	🛃 To XLSP
	A1:82	• fx	85.300	73173454238	
Outputs / Projections		A	в	C	
Context	1 2	Projection ti	me	8 Value	26.38
Contributors / Insured members	3	85.30 2020			85.30
Health Interventions	4	86.39 2021	1		86.39
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	5	87.39 2023	2	11 63	07.3 9
[asg] Assumed salary growth (g,t)	6	88.32 2023	3	1	38.32
[sait] Average salary of period (t)	7	89.19 2024	4		89 19
[sal] Average salary (s,g,x,t)	8	90.04 2025	5	I. Xe	90.04
[Tsal] Theorical average salary (s,g,x,t)	9	90.88 2020	6	84	88.06
[cr] Average contribution rate of the	10 91,93 2027		7		31.93
IIN SALavs] Average insurable salary	11 93	92.95 2020	92.95 2028		42.96
[IN_SALav] Average insurable salary (t)	12	93.97 2029	5	1	13.97

6.5.7. Expenditures

6.5.7.1. Healthcare expenditures

Users can assess the total expenditure per package in the matrix [EXP] in Outputs/Projections > Health Expenditure. More details on the number of interventions for healthcare services paid for each intervention are found in the matrix [UTIL]. Age details are available in [UTILx]. Both are found in the section Outputs/Projections > Health Interventions.

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platfor	H m in Soci	al Security / Test Institution - S	witzerland						*tes
Models Scenario Configuration								👤 U	iser Name 🕒 Logout
Name	EXF] Annual expenditure	through budgetar	y allocation (g,t,j)				
Scheme: Main •		io Sum(col)] *** No Sum(row)) 🔹 Exp. CSV 🕅 🕅 1	o XLSX					
 inputs 	Group	Custard							
Outputs / Projections Ontext	A1:B2	▼ <i>fx</i> 1452-	447,1174019016						
 Econtributors / Insured Members 		A B	С	D	E	F	G	н	
Health Interventions Salary Averages / Salary Mass	1 2	Projection time vs Packages	52,491,474.09 Capital	6, 165, 106.02 Tactile	10,566,834.67 Podo	7,045,835.45 Umbilical	10,566,834.67 Infrastructure	10,565,834.67 BT	
Insured Population and Coverage / S	3	4,847,995.89 2020	1,452,447.12	170,589.43	1,010,000.00	194,959,34	1,010,000.00	1,010,000.00	
Revenues / Summaries	4	6,185,156.95 2021	2,496,534.51	293,217,14	1,020,100.00	335,105.30	1,020,100.00	1,020,100.00	
Evendes / Summarias	5	7,336,107.42 2022	3,391,611.04	398,343.58	1,030,381.00	455,249.80	1,030,301.00	1,030,301.00	
Linght Frage Stress	6	8,411,062.01 2023	4,225,727.86	496,310.32	1,040,604.01	567,211.79	1,040,604.01	1,040,804.01	
 Health Expenditure 	7	9,456,442.85 2024	5,035,970.48	591,473.04	1,051,010.05	675,969.19	1,051.010.05	1,051,010.05	
EXP] Annual expenditure through	8	10,495,520.47 2025	5,841,726.77	686,108.85	1,061,520.15	784,124.40	1,061.520.15	1,061,520.15	
EXPsx] Expenditure through capit	9	11,548,164,46 2026	6,654,874.00	781,612.72	1,072,135.35	893,271.68	1,072,135.35	1,072,135.35	
[copay] Total co-payment either a	10	12,308,557.42 2027	7,238,274.03	850,132.86	1,082,856,71	971,580.41	1,082,856.71	1,082,856.71	
[paymentMethodPackage] Payme	11	13,046,793,64 2028	7,802,117.82	916,356,10	1,093,685.27	1.047,264.11	1,093.685.27	1,093,685.27	
[BEg] Total financial expenses of b	12	13,768,118.44 2029	8,352,190.66	980,961.89	1,104,622.13	1,121,099.42	1,104,622.13	1,104,822.13	

International Labour Organization Quantizative Platform	l n in So	cial Security / Test Ir	nstitution - Switzer	tand				
Models Scenario Configuration								
Name	្រ	TIL] Total numb	er of health i	nterventions (s	s,g,j,t,i)			
Scheme: Main enter search criteria here> 		No Sum(col) +++ 1	No Sum(row)	5 Exp. CSV 💽 To	XLSX			
inputs inputs inputs inputs	Sex	Male		Group: Custa	rđ	• Pack	age: Capital	
Context	A1:6	12 🔹)	fx 4950.0069.	20187807				
 Econtributors / Insured Members 		A	B	C	E	F.	G	10
🔹 🚞 Health Interventions	1	Projection time vs	Interventions	180,373.58	360,747,15	360,747.15	180,373.58	5,771,954.43
[UTIL] Total number of health interv	2	e opecatione anne va		Head	Eyes	Ears	Nose	Teeth
UTILx] Total number of health inter	3	197,637.10 20	020	4,950.01	9,900.01	9,900.01	4,950.01	158,400.22
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	4	338,534,70 20	021	8,478.99	16,957.98	16,957.98	8,478.99	271,327.66
Insured Population and Coverage / Su	5	460,451.09 20	022	11,632.62	23,065.24	23,065.24	11,532.62	369,043.85
Devenues / Evenenation	6	574,827.78 20	023	14,397.46	28,794.92	28,794.92	14,397.46	460,718.69
 Revenues / summaries 	7	686,529.98 2	024	17,195.36	34,390.72	34,390.72	17,195.36	550,251.49
 Expenditure / Summaries 	8	798,112.45 2	025	19,990.31	39,980.61	39,980.61	19,990.31	639,689.83
Health Expenditure	9	911,143.64 21	926	22,821.59	45,643.18	45,643,18	22,821.59	730,290.85
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	10	995,789.88 20	027	24,941.88	49,883.76	49,883.76	24,941.88	798,140.19
Administrative Expenses	11	1,078,528.61 20	028	27,014,43	54,028,86	54,028.86	27,014.43	864,461.84
Demographic Indicators	12	1,159,826.53 20	029	29,050.93	58,101.86	58,101.86	29,050.93	929,629.82

[UTIL] Total number of health interventions (s,g,j,t,i)

10	No Sum(col)	* No 5	um(row)	🗈 Exp. CSV	To)	(LSX				
Sex:	Male			Group:	Custar	d	٠	Package:	Tactile	
A1:B2	•	fx	0							
	A		в	D		н				
1	6.11.11.11.11.11.11.1			1,803,73	5.76	360,747.15				
2	Projection time	vs inti	rventions	Fingers		Hands				
3	59,400.08	2020		49,50	0.07	9,900.01				
4	101,747.87	2021		84,76	9.89	16,957.98				
5	138,391.44	2022		115,32	5.20	23,065.24				
6	172,769.51	2023		143,97	4.59	28,794.92				
7	206,344.31	2024		171,95	3.59	34,390.72				
8	239,883.69	2025		199,90	3.07	39,980.61				
9	273,859.07	2026		228,21	5,89	45,643.18				
10	299,302.57	2027		249,41	8.81	49,883.76				
11	324,173.19	2028		270,14	1.32	54,028.86				
12	348,611.18	2029		290,50	9.32	58,101.86				

International Labour Organization Lito/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	in So	cial Security / Test Instit	ution - Switze	rland				
Models Scenario Configuration								
Name	เบา	[IL] Total number	of health i	interventions (s	.g.j.t.i)			
Scheme: Main -enter search criteria here>	-	No Sum(col) No S	um(row)	8 Exp. CSV Dt To:	xL5X			
 Inputs 	Sex:	Male		Group: Custar	rđ	• Pack	age: Capital	
 Outputs / Projections 								
Context	A1:B	2 🔻 fx	4950.0069	20187807				
 Contributors / Insured Members 	1	A	8	C	E	F	G	1.
🔸 🚊 Health Interventions	1	Projection time vs Inte	rventions	180,373.58	360,747.15	360,747.15	180,373.58	5,771,954.43
[UTIL] Total number of health interv	2			Head	Eyes	Ears	Nose	Teeth
UTILX Total number of health inter	3	197,637.10 2020		4,950.01	9,900.01	9,900.01	4,950.01	158,400.22
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	4	338,534.70 2021		8,478.99	16,957.98	16,957.98	8,478.99	271,327.66
Insured Reputation and Coverage / Su	5	460,451.09 2022		11,532.62	23,065.24	23.065.24	11,632.62	369,043.85
Brunner / Francisco	6	574,827.78 2023		14,397.46	28,794.92	28,794.92	14,397.46	460,718.69
Revenues / Summaries	7	686,529.98 2024		17,195.36	34,390.72	34,390.72	17,195.36	550,251.49
Expenditure / Summaries	8	798,112.45 2025		19,990.31	39,980.61	39,980.61	19,990.31	639,689.83
Health Expenditure	9	911,143.64 2026		22,821.59	45,643.18	45,643,18	22,821.59	730,290.85
Expenditure in Cash Benefits	10	995,789.88 2027		24,941.88	49,883.76	49,883.76	24,941.88	798,140.19
Administrative Expenses	11	1.078,528.61 2028		27,014.43	54,028.86	54,028.86	27,014.43	864,461,84
 Demographic Indicators 	12	1,159,826.53 2029		29,050.93	58,101.86	58,101.86	29,050.93	929,629.82

[UTILx] Total number of health interventions by age (s,g,j,i,x,t)

E N	a Sum(col) No Sum(row)	Group: Custa	xLSX	• Pack	age: Tactile				
Interve	ntion: Fingers								
A1:82	• fx 453.5	96968421941654							
	A B	C	D	E	F	G	н	1	J
1	Ane va Projection time	49,500.07	84,789.89	115,326.20	143,974.59	171,953.59	199,903.07	228,215.89	249,41
2	rige var rojeouori ente	2020	2021	2022	2023	2024	2025	2026	2027
3	15,848.84 0	453.97	781.09	1,053.84	1,302.70	1,540.43	1,773.63	2,006.33	2,18
4	16,124.26 1	453.97	781.09	1,065,85	1,322.74	1,567.05	1,806.21	2,044.57	2,20
5	16,331.95 2	453.97	781.09	1,066.02	1,334.03	1,585.78	1,831.05	2,074.95	2.24
6	16,485.73 3	453.97	781.09	1,066,13	1,334.47	1,596.61	1,848.86	2,098.51	2.27
7	16,596.98 4	463.97	781,09	1,066,21	1,334.78	1,597.38	1,859.41	2,115.66	2,29
8	16,674,60 5	453.97	781.09	1,066.28	1,335.02	1,597.96	1,860.58	2,126.07	2,31
9	16,725.91 6	463.97	781,09	1,066.33	1,335.21	1,598.43	1,861,48	2,127.66	2,32
10	16,757.22 7	453.97	781.09	1,066.37	1,335.37	1,598.81	1,882.23	2,128.94	2.32
11	16,774.29 8	453,97	781.09	1,066.41	1,336.51	1,599.15	1,862.87	2,130.02	2,32
12	16,782,94 9	453.97	781.09	1,066,45	1,335.64	1,599.44	1,863.42	2,130.96	2,32
13	76,790,46 10	453.97	781.09	1,066.48	1,335.75	1,599.70	1,863.92	2,131.79	2,32
14	16,797.20 11	453.97	781.09	1,066.50	1,335.85	1,599.94	1,864.37	2,132.54	2,33
15	76,803.28 12	453.97	781.09	1,066.53	1,335.95	1,600.15	1,884.77	2,133.22	2.33
16	16,808.82 13	453.97	781,09	1,066.55	1,336.03	1,600.35	1,865.15	2,133.84	2,33
17	16,813.93 14	453.97	781.09	1.066.57	1,335,11	1,600.54	1,865.49	2,134.41	2,33
18	16,850.36 15	456.65	783.61	1,069.23	1,339.00	1,603.72	1,869.03	2,138.36	2,33
19	17,196.26 16	483.75	810.85	1,097.61	1,369.36	1,636.29	1,903.89	2,175.56	2,37
20	78.134.74 17	545.98	887.49	1,177.20	1,453,99	1.726.87	2.000.66	2,278.57	2.48

6.5.7.2. Cash benefit expenditure

The matrices [FEXPsickallow], [FEXPmatallow], [FEXPfun], [FEXPadfixedb], [FEXPadsaldb] show the total annual expenditure by sex for sickness benefits, maternity benefits, funeral benefits, fixed ad hoc benefits, and ad hoc benefits calculated as a proportion of the salary. [BEN_EXP_CASHs] shows the total cash benefits and [BEN_EXP_CASH] shows total for both sexes. All these matrices are found in: Outputs/Projections > Expenditure on Cash Benefits.

International Labour Organization ILO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	H m in Social Security / Test Institution - 5	witzerland
Models Scenario Configuration		
Name	[FEXPsickallow] Financial	expense of sickness allowances (s,
Scheme: Main	i No Sum(col) *** No Sum(raw)	🗱 Exp. CSV 👔 To XLSK
Inputs Outputs / Projections	Sex: Male	Group: Custand
Context Contributors / Insured Members Health Interventions	A B 1 Projection time	C
Adding Yorkingges / Jointy Mass Annoved Population and Coverage / S Revenues / Summaries Expenditure / Summaries Health Expenditure Expenditure (Cash Benefits	3 00 2020 4 00 2021 5 00 2022 6 00 2023 7 00 2023 7 00 2024	.00 .00 .00 .00 .00
Value Characteristics Value of benefit for s Valmatallow] Value of maternity a [FEXPsickallow] Financial expense [FEXPmatallow] Financial expense	0 00 2025 9 00 2026 10 00 2027 11 00 2028 12 .00 2029	.00 00 00 .00 .00

Models Scenario Configuration					
lame 📰	[FEX	Pmatallow]	Financial e	xpense on matern	ity (
<pre>cheme: Main </pre> <enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>	1 N	o Sum(cal) 🛛 +	** No Sum(row)	🖹 Exp. CSV 📑 To X	LSX
Inputs Outputs / Projections Context Contributors / Insured Members	A1:82	A	fx 0 B	c	
Health Interventions Salary Averages / Salary Mass Insured Population and Coverage / S Revenues / Summaries Expenditure / Summaries Health Expenditure Expenditure in Cash Benefits [valsickallow] Value of benefit for s		Project	ion time	.00 Value	
		00. 00.	2020 2021	00.	
		.00 .00	2023	.00	
		.00 .00	2025 2026	.00	
 [valmatallow] Value of maternity a [FEXPsickallow] Financial expense 	10 11	00. 00.	2027 2028	00	
FEXPmatallow] Financial expense	12	.00	2029	.00	

International Labour Organization Quantitative Platform	- n in Soci	al Security / Tes	t Institution - Swit	zerland		
Models Scenario Configuration						
Name	(FE)	(Pfun) Fina	ncial expens	e on funeral t	oenefit (s.q.t	8
Scheme: Main		No Sum(col)	** No Sum(row)	🚯 Exp. CSV 🛛	To XLSX	•
Context Subtrolling Index Context Context		Male	*	Group: (Custard	
		A Project	JX 7608.04 B tion time	C 499,249.0 Value	20	
		7,808,06 20,211,36 29,736,32 39,236,74 46,394,03 54,517,11 62,771,55 71,256,94 79,802,20 88,634,63	2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 2025 2026 2027 2027 2028 2029	7,608,0 20,211,3 29,796,3 38,236,7 46,394,0 54,517,1 62,771,5 71,256,9 79,262,2 88,634,6	15 18 18 18 15 15 17 17 17 18 18 19 19 19 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10 10	
[FEXPfun] Financial expense on fu						

Models Scenario Configuration						
Name	[FEXP	adfixedb] Financial e	xpense of a	n additional	fixed-amount cash benefi
Scheme: Main	E. No	Sum(call	···· No Sumfravi	R. Exp. CSV	E To XLSX	
«enter search criteria here»						
a Inputs	Sex: M	ale	*	Group	Custard	
Outputs / Projections						
Context	A1:B2		fx 0			
 Econtributors / Insured Members 		A	в	C		
interventions	1	Projec	rtion time		.00	
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	2	e i spor		Value		
Insured Population and Coverage / S	3	0	0 2020		.00	
Revenues / Summaries	4	.0	0 2021		.00	
Expenditure / Summaries	5	0	0 2022		.00	
Health Expenditure		.0	0 2023		.00	
Expenditure in Cash Benefits			0 2024		,00	
valsickallow Value of benefit for s			0 2025		00	
[valmatallow] Value of maternity a	10		0 2027		00	
[FEYPrickallow] Financial expense	11		0 2028		.00	
[EEVBmatallow] Einancial expense	12	0	0 2029	1	.00	
proviniousional Pinancial expense						

International Labour Organization ULO/HEAL Quantitative Plat	TH form in Social !	Security / Test	Institution - Swit	teriand		
Models Scenario Configuration						
Name	II IFEXP	adsalb] Fi	nancial expe	ense of an a	additional ca	sh benefit based on salary (s.g.t
Scheme: Main	-		11			
-enter starch criteria here-	1 No	Sum(col) **	No Sum(row)	S. Trp. CSV	R TO XLSK	
inputs	Sex: M	ule .		Group:	Custard	
 Outputs / Projections 	-					
Context	A1:82	1.81	fx 0			
Contributors / Insured Members		A	B	C		
 Health Interventions 	1	Projectio	in time		.00	
Salary Averages / Salary Mass	2	S. 194.775		Value		
 insured Population and Coverage / S 	3	-00	2020		.00	
 Revenues / Summaries 		.00	2021		00	
 Expenditure / Summaries 	8	-00	2022		00	
 Health Expenditure 	7	.00	2024		00	
🔹 🚞 Expenditure in Cash Benefits	8	.00	2025		.00	
[valsickallow] Value of benefit for s	9	.00	2028		.00	
[valmatallow] Value of maternity a	10	.07	2027		00	
[FEXPsickallow] Financial expense	11	.00	2028		.00	
FEXPmatallow] Financial expense	12	.00	2029		.00	
FEXPfun] Financial expense on fu						
FEXPadfixedb] Financial expense						
[valueadsalb] Value of an addition						
[FEXPadsalb] Financial expense of	1					

	configuration				
Nan	ne 🔳	[BEN	EXP CA	SH] Total exp	enditure of cash bene
Sche	eme: Main +	_	_		
		i No	Sum(col)	*** No Sum(row)	🚯 Exp. CSV 🕅 To XLSX
	<enter criteria="" here="" search=""></enter>				a faller a sense a s
	inputs	A1:82		Jx 11721.1	31709100164
	in Outputs / Projections		A.	в	C
*	Context	2	Projac	tion time	881,665.57
	Contributors / Insured Members	3	74 704 4	1 2020	44 724 42
*	Health Interventions	4	32.313.2	5 2021	32,313,25
٠	🔹 🚋 Salary Averages / Salary Mass		49,845.62 2022		49,845.62
	Insured Population and Coverage / S	6	65,917.6	5 2023	65,917.65
	Revenues / Summaries	7	81,694.4	5 2024	81,694.45
	Expenditure / Summaries	8	97,664.8	6 2025	97,664.86
*	🚔 Health Expenditure	9	114,086,4	1 2026	114,086.41
	Expenditure in Cash Benefits	10	129,237.7	6 2027	129,237.76
	[valsickallow] Value of benefit for si		142,834,0	6 2028	142,834.05
	[valmatallow] Value of maternity al	12	156,350.3	7 2029	156,350.37
	[FEXPsickallow] Financial expense				
	[FEXPmatallow] Financial expense				
	[FEXPfun] Financial expense on fun				
	FEXPadfixedb] Financial expense o				
	[valueadsalb] Value of an additiona				
	[FEXPadsalb] Financial expense of				
	[BEN_EXP_CASHgs] Total expenditu				
	BEN EXP CASHs Total expenditur				

International Labour Organization ULO/HEALTH Quantitative Platform	 1 In Social	Security / Test In	stitution - 5	Nitzerland
Models Scenario Configuration				
Name	IBEN	EXP CASH	Is] Total	expenditure of cash benefits (s
Scheme: Main	I No	Sum(col) ···· N	ia Sum(raw)	😢 Exp. CSV 📑 To XLSX
Inputs Outputs / Projections Context	Sex: N	Aale	× 7608.0	046511225561
Contributors / Insured Members	30.14	A	B	C
Health Interventions		Projection	time	499,249.00 Value
Defairly Averages / Salary Mass	3	7,608.05 20	20	7,608.05
Revenuer / Summarian	4	20,211.36 20	21	20.211.36
Evenediture / Cummission	5	29,738.32 20	22	29,736.32
 Experior (or e) Summaries 	6	6 38,236.74 2023 7 46,394.05 2024		38,236.74
Health Expenditure	7			40,394.05
 Expenditure in Cash Benefits 	8	54,517.17 20	25	54,517.17
[valsickallow] Value of benefit for s	9	62,771.55 20	26	62,771.55
[valmatallow] Value of maternity a	10	71,256.94 20	27	71,256.94
[FEXPsickallow] Financial expense	11	79,882.20 20	28	79,882.20
[FEXPmatallow] Financial expense	12	88,634.63 20	29	88,634.63
[FEXPfun] Financial expense on fu				
[FEXPadfixedb] Financial expense				
[valueadsalb] Value of an addition				
FEXPadsalb] Financial expense of				
[BEN_EXP_CASHgs] Total expendit				
[BEN EXP CASHs] Total expenditur				

6.6. ILO/HEALTH platform cheat sheet

Function Name	Purpose	Method
Check Out	Enables users to make changes to a given matrix (worksheet)	Check Out
Check In	Saves changes to the worksheet, enables other users to make changes to the matrix	Check In
Undo Check Out	Signs out of a matrix without saving any changes	Undo Check Out. Available until users press Save.
Save	Saves all changes made to a checked-out matrix	Save
Hide/Show Sums	Hides or shows a row or column that displays the sum of values in that row/column	Hide/Show accordingly (purely aesthetic; does not remove the row/column)
Copy using menu	Copies values of a given row or column to a set number of rows or columns that follow, or to the end of the respective row/column	Use the menu to copy a row or column. Select "Number of copies" to specify how many times to duplicate the value. Check the "Copy to the end" box to copy to the end.
Copy using Ctrl+C	Allows users to copy information from a cell/row/column to another of the same size	Ctrl+C (Cmd+C on Mac)
Paste	Allows users to copy information from a cell/row/column to another of the same size	Ctrl+V (Cmd+V on Mac)
Clean	Erases all information written in a matrix	Clean
Export as CSV/XLS	Exports matrix as a csv/xls file	Exp. CSV/XLS
Import as CSV	Imports a csv file into a given matrix	Imp. CSV and select the file to upload from the file browser. Imported file dimensions must match the matrix dimensions, and imported files must be in csv.
"+" sign on right bottom corner of a cell	Allows users to copy information from a given cell to the next row/column (one at a time).	Hover over the cell until the + sign appears at the bottom right corner. Hold and drag down to the right to copy information. This function can be used for a numeric value or a formula.

The table below lists a summary of the commands available to users in ILO/HEALTH.

7. Consistency review

This section is for:

 Practitioners/Users of ILO/HEALTH, especially those consulting results, conducting consistency reviews and writing reports

In this section, users will learn:

- How to carry out a consistency review of demographic projections
- How to carry out a consistency review of financial projections

As mentioned in section 2.5.1, reviewing the consistency of the model results is a critical stage of actuarial work. If this stage of the process is not carried out rigorously, the success of an actuarial valuation may be at risk. For example, the presentation of results that may appear inconsistent at first glance, without proper justification, may call into question the quality of the work and its validity for making policy decisions, particularly in complex national political scenarios.

This chapter offers details on the basic elements that should be considered as part of any consistency review process.

ILO/HEALTH has an extensive set of indicators and variable outputs to assist and facilitate the consistency review. Users are advised to use ILO/HEALTH tools for graphing indicators to better analyse trends according to different dimensions: sex, age, type of healthcare benefit, salaries, benefit amounts and relative structures, among others.

7.1. Review of demographic results

- 7.1.1. Projection of active and inactive contributors (members) according to labour force size
 - a) Verify that the number of contributors by sex and the total are consistent with the projections of the labour force by year and sex. It is advisable to use the country's official population projections. Also check for consistency with historical trends.

7.1.2. Projection of scheme beneficiaries

- a) **By sex, population group and total.** This is expected to show a smooth upward trend; otherwise, the analysis should explain the deviations from the recent trend.
- b) Relative distribution of beneficiaries and contributors by sex, population group and total. It is expected that the relative structure of populations will change gradually and smoothly, tending towards stabilization in the long term. If any major changes are observed, they should be analysed and explained.

- 7.1.3. Check changes in the following indicators, which should be consistent with the assumptions by population group, sex and projection year
 - a) Labour force coverage rate, total and by sex (active contributors as a proportion of the labour force).
 - b) Coverage rate of the total insured population, total and by sex. Total covered population (insured assets + family dependents + other groups) as a proportion of the total population.
 - c) Average age of active contributors, by sex.
 - d) Average age of protected population (contributory and non-contributory), by sex.
 - e) Average age of new contributors, by sex.
 - f) Age distribution (percentages) of the total insured population (contributors and family dependants), by age group, sex and year of projection.

7.2. Review of financial results

- 7.2.1. PAYG premium rate (ratio of expenditure as a percentage of insurable wages)
 - a) The PAYG premium rate by sex, type of benefit and total is expected to show a smooth trend; otherwise, the analysis should explain the reasons for the trend, especially abrupt deviations from medium- and long-term trends.
 - b) Verify that the PAYG premium rate follows a smooth trend in the direction expected in accordance with observed trends, recent reforms and assumptions.

7.2.2. GDP growth, wages and average expenditure per capita and per healthcare package or healthcare intervention

There must be consistency over time between the assumptions on GDP growth, the rate of wage increase (which is theoretically linked to long-term labour productivity trends), the rate of adjustment of healthcare costs or fees and the inflation rate. The following relationships must always be respected:

 $(real growth rate)_t = \frac{1+(nominal growth rate)_t}{1+inflation_t} - 1$ or, where applicable, $(nominal growth rate)_t = (1 + (real growth rate)_t)(1 + inflation_t) - 1$

7.2.3. Salaries and healthcare expenditures

Check trends of the following indicators, which should be consistent with the assumptions by sex and year of projection:

- a) Average insurable salary (or labour income), total and by sex.
- b) Annual growth rate of the average insurable salary, total and by sex.
- c) Administrative expenditure at time t as a proportion of expenditure on healthcare benefits.
- d) Total expenditure on healthcare and cash benefits.
- e) Expenditure on healthcare and cash benefits as a percentage of GDP.
- f) Total expenditure (including administrative expenditures) as a percentage of GDP.
- g) Annual growth rate of total expenditures (including administrative expenditures), by scheme.
- h) Reserve ratio, where applicable.
- i) Total healthcare expenditure by population group (sum up of all healthcare expenditure categories).
- j) Percentage of total healthcare expenditures for each healthcare package by population group (sum of all healthcare expenditure categories).
- k) Expenditure as a percentage of GDP:
 - (i) Healthcare expenditure as a percentage of GDP;
 - (ii) Sickness benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP;
 - (iii) Maternity benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP;
 - (iv) Funeral benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP;
 - (v) Additional fixed-amount benefits expenditure as a percentage of GDP; and
 - (vi) Additional salary-based benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP.
- I) Expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure:
 - (i) Healthcare expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure;
 - (ii) Sickness benefit expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure;
 - (iii) Maternity benefit expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure;
 - (iv) Funeral benefit expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure; and
 - (v) Additional fixed-amount benefits expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure.

Annex I: List of Variables for ILO/HEALTH

Category	Reference	Description
Inputs		
Demographic, e	conomic and labour force	
1	NATPOP	National population (s,t)
2	Partr	Participation rate (s,t)
3	unemrate	Unemployment rate (s,t)
4	ggdp	Input Gross Domestic Product rate (t)
5	ggex	Input Government expenditure (t)
6	IGDP	Initial Gross Domestic Product (t)
7	inf	Inflation rate expressed as a proportion (t)
Coverage	L	
8	COV	Coverage rate as a proportion of the employed labour force (s,g,t)
Contributors	1	
9	lact	Initial cohort of active contributors (s,g,x)
10	q	Death probabilities (s,g,x,t)
11	ret	Disability and retirement probabilities (s,g,x,t)
12	er	Exit probabilities (s,g,x,t)
13	ne	Age distribution of new entrants (s,g,x,t)
Salaries - average	ge and growth rates	
14	Isal	Monthly initial average salary (s,g,x)
15	ITsal	Initial theoretical average salary curve (s,g,x)
16	asg_in	Assumed salary growth rate (g,t)
Contribution rat	es and average contributio	n months
17	crg	Contribution rate expressed as a proportion (g,t)
18	contmonths	Months of contribution per year (g,t)
Population entit	led to healthcare services	Projection
19	iract	Insurance rate of active contributors (s,g,x,t)
20	irres	Insured residual active contributors as a percentage of insured active contributors (s,g,x,t)
21	linspensir	Initial insured pensioners of disability and retirement (s,g,x)
22	linspenswo	Initial insured survivors pensioners (widow(er)s and orphans) (s,g,x)
23	qir	Probability of death of an insured pensioner of disability or retirement (s,x,t)
24	famact	Expected number of survivors from death of active contributor (sc,s,g,xc,x)
25	fampens	Expected number of survivors from death of a pensioner (sr,s,g,xr,x)
26	included	Value of 1 or 0 depending on whether population k of group g is entitled to healthcare service
		(g,k)
27	qwo	Probability of death of a survivor pensioner (s,x,t)
Healthcare expe	nditure	
28	IEXP	Initial annual expenditure through budgetary allocation (g,j)
29	aegba	Assumed annual growth rate of expenditure through budgetary allocation (g,j,t)
30	perfr	Proportion of annual expenditure representing the performance cost (g,t,j)
31	aepGDP	Proportion of GDP representing expenditure through budgetary allocation (g,t,j)
32	aepGEX	Percentage of GEX representing expenditure through budgetary allocation (g,t,j)
Cash benefit exp	penditure	
33	minsickallow	Minimum value of benefit for sickness allowances in absolute terms (t)
34	maxsickallow	Maximum value of benefit for sickness allowances in absolute terms (t)
35	brsickallow	Benefit rate for sickness allowances (t)
36	freqsickallow	Annual frequency of access to sickness benefits (s,g,x,t)
37	minmatallow	Minimum value of benefit for maternity allowances in absolute terms (t)

38	maxmatallow	Maximum value of benefit for maternity allowances in absolute terms (t)
39	brmatallow	Benefit rate for maternity benefits (t)
40	freqmatallow	Annual frequency of access to maternity benefits (g,x,t)
41	funben	Funeral benefit
42	fbp	Funeral benefit participation of population (g,k)
43	freqadfixedb	Annual frequency (average by active contributor) of claims of an additional fixed-amount cash
		benefit (s,g,x,t)
44	valueadfixedb	Value of an additional fixed-amount cash benefit (g,t)
45	minadsalb	Minimum value of an additional cash benefit based on salary (t)
46	maxadsalb	Maximum value of an additional cash benefit based on salary (t)
47	d	Proportion of salary paid for an additional cash benefit based on salary (t)
48	freqadsalb	Annual frequency of access to an additional cash benefit based on salary (s,g,x,t)
Other expenditu	res	
49	adm	Percentage over benefit expense for calculation of administrative expenditure (t)
50	OExp	Other expenditures (external projection of absolute monetary values) (t).
Costs or fees for	r healthcare services	
51	expcap	Per capita payment for capitation (s,g,j,x,t)
52	costint	Unit cost per intervention (g,j,i,x,t)
53	copayfix	Fix amount of co-payment per intervention (s,g,j,i,x,t)
54	copayrate	Co-payment as a percentage of the cost of the intervention (s,g,j,x,t)
Healthcare servi	ce use frequencies and eo	verage
55	freqint	Expected number of interventions per year (s,g,j,i,x,t)
56	dimen	Parameter for additional dimension of analysis (s,g,j,i,x,t)
57	hospdays	Average days per hospital stay (s,g,j,i,x,t)
58	eventcov	Event coverage (s,g,j,x,t)
59	capcov	Capitation coverage (s,g,j,x,t)
Government trai	sfers and other revenue	
••••••		
60	GT	Government transfers (g,t)
60 61	GT ORev	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an	GT ORev d interest rate	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62	GT ORev d interest rate IRES	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 66	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 66 67 68	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 67 68 69	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 68 69 70	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HMS HCS	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 66 67 68 69 70 71	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 66 67 68 69 70 71 71	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 71 72 73	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 71 72 73 74	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 70 71 71 72 73 73 74 75	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 68 69 70 71 71 72 73 73 74 75 76	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 71 72 73 73 74 75 76 77	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT HIntRev	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t) Interest revenue (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 71 72 73 73 74 75 76 76 77	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT HIntRev HGT	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t) Interest revenue (t) Revenue from government transfers (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 71 72 73 73 74 75 76 76 77 78 79	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT HIntRev HGT HBS_ContExp	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t) Contribution revenue (t) Interest revenue (t) Revenue from government transfers (t) Balance sheet on contributions and expenditure: revenue less expenditure on contributions (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 80	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate nation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT HIntRev HGT HBS_ContExp HTBS_RevExp	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t) Interest revenue (t) Revenue from government transfers (t) Balance sheet on contributions and expenditure: revenue less expenditure on contributions (t) Total balance sheet: total revenue minus total expenditure (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT HIntRev HGT HBS_ContExp HTBS_RevExp HRES	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t) Interest revenue (t) Interest revenue (t) Balance sheet on contributions and expenditure: revenue less expenditure on contributions (t) Total balance sheet: total revenue minus total expenditure (t) Reserve fund (t)
60 61 Reserve fund an 62 63 Historical inform 64 65 66 67 68 69 70 71 72 73 74 75 76 77 78 79 80 81 82 82	GT ORev d interest rate IRES i_rate hation series HTP HWEP HLF HAC HINS HMS HCS HBEN_EXP_HEALTH HBEN_EXP_CASH HCASHBav HAdCost Htrev HCONT HIntRev HGT HBS_ContExp HTBS_RevExp HRES rep	Government transfers (g,t) Other revenue (t) Initial reserve fund (t) Interest rate of the reserve fund (t) Total population, by sex (s,t) Working-age population (s,t) Labour force (employed population), by sex (s,t) Active contributors, by sex (s,t) Insured population (s,t) Minimum salary (t) Average contributory salary (s,t) Expenditure on health benefits (s,t) Expenditure on cash benefits (s,t) Average cash benefit (s,t) Administrative expenses (t) Total revenue (t) Interest revenue (t) Revenue from government transfers (t) Balance sheet on contributions and expenditure: revenue less expenditure on contributions (t) Total balance sheet: total revenue minus total expenditure (t) Reserve fund (t) Average replacement rate (g,t)

83	ia	Initial ages for population group and healthcare packages (g,j)
84	fa	Maximum ages for population group and healthcare packages (g,j)
85	pn	Number of packages associated with a population group (g)
86	din	Number of healthcare interventions per package (g,j)
Outputs / project	tions	
Context		
87	GDP	Assumption of Gross Domestic Product (t)
88	GEX	Assumption of government expenditure (t)
89	LF	Labour force (s,t)
Contributors / in	sured members	
90	Tactsg	Total active contributors (s,g,t)
91	Tact	Total active contributors in the period (t)
92	act	Active contributors (s,g,x,t)
93	deadactsx	Number of deaths of active contributors (s,g,x,t)
94	_5q	Probability of death in the interval from t5 to t (s,g,x,t)
95	Survact	Surviving active contributors from the previous period (s,g,x,t)
96	р	Probability of surviving as an active contributor in the interval t to t+1 (s,g,x,t)
97	nentx	Active contributors that were not active contributors in the previous period (s,g,x,t)
98	_5p5	Probability of surviving as an active contributor in the interval t5 to t and x5 to x (s,g,x,t)
99	nent	Active contributors that were not active contributors in the previous period (s,g,t)
100	Inssx	Population entitled to healthcare services (s,g,x,t)
101	Insact	Active contributors entitled to receive healthcare services (s,g,x,t)
102	deadInsactsx	Number of deaths of insured active contributors (s,g,x,t)
103	ResIns	Residual insured (s,g,x,t)
104	deadResInssx	Projected death of residual insured (s,g,x,t)
105	Inspensir	Insured pensioners of disability and retirement (s,g,x,t)
106	deadpenirsx	Number of deaths of insured pensioners of disability and retirement (s,g,x,t)
107	Inspenswo	Insured survivor pensioners (s,g,x,t)
108	_5qwo	Probability of death of a survivor pensioners in the interval from t5 to t (s,g,x,t)
109	FamIns	Family dependants (s,g,x,t)
110	deadFamInssx	Number of deaths of family dependants (s,g,x,t)
111	deadpenwosx	Survivor pensioners (widows/ers and orphans) (s,g,x,t)
112	Tdeath	Total number of deaths (s,g,t)
Healthcare interv	ventions	
113	UTIL	Total number of health interventions (s,g,j,t,i)
114	UTILx	Total number of health interventions by age (s,g,j,i,x,t)
Salary averages	/ salary mass	
115	asg	Assumed salary growth (g,t)
116	salt	Average salary of period (t)
117	sal	Average salary (s,g,x,t)
118	Tsal	Theorical average salary (s,g,x,t)
119	Cr	Average contribution rate of the active contributing population (t)
120	IN_SALavs	Average insurable salary (s,t)
121	IN_SALav	Average insurable salary (t)
122	RPT_TRE_B	Salary mass (t)
123	RPT_MDAT_B	Salary mass (t)
Insured populati	on and coverage / summar	
124	RPT_MDAT_C	Employed labour force (s,t)
125	RPT_MDAT_D	Active contributors (s,t)
126	RPT_MDAT_E	Insured active (s,t)
127	RPT_MDAT_F	Insured residual (s,t)
128	RPT_MDAT_G	Insured pensioners (s,t)

100		language dependents (a.t.)
129	RPI_MDAI_H	
130	RPI_MDAI_I	
131	RPI_MDAI_J	Coverage act/LF (s,t)
132	RPI_MDAT_J_TOTAL	Coverage act/LF (t)
Revenues / sum	maries	
133	CONTG	I otal amount from contributions by population group (g,t)
134		I otal amount from contributions by year (t)
135	RPI_IRE_C	Revenue contributions (t)
136	RPI_IRE_D	
137	RPI_IRE_E	
138	RPI_IRE_F	Co-payment (t)
139	RPI_IRE_G	Revenues, other (t)
140	RPI_IRE_H	Revenue, total (t)
Expenditure / S	summaries	
141	RPI_IRE_I	Expenditures benefits, healthcare (t)
142	RPI_IRE_J	Expenditures benefits, cash (t)
143	RPI_IRE_K	Expenditures benefits, total (t)
144	RPI_IRE_L	Admin (t)
145	RPI_IRE_M	Other (t)
146	RPI_IRE_N	l otal expenditures (t)
Healthcare expe	nditure	
147	EXP	Annual expenditure through budgetary allocation (g,t,j)
148	EXPsx	Expenditure through capitation (s,g,j,x,t)
149	copay	I otal co-payment either a fix amount (s,g,j,x,t)
150	paymentMethodPackage	Payment method, packages (j,pm)
151	BEg	I otal financial expenses of benefits (cash and healthcare benefits) (g,t)
152	BE	Total financial expenses of benefits (cash and healthcare benefits) (t)
153	TEXP	I otal financial expenses of benefits considering administrative expenses (t)
154	PERFg	Expenses, payments linked to provider performance (g,t)
155	PERF	Expenses, total performance payments (t)
156	BEN_EXP_HEALTH	l otal expenditure on healthcare benefits (t)
157	BEN_EXP_HEALIHgt	I otal healthcare expenditure by population group (g,t)
Expenditure in c	ash benefits	
158	valsickallow	Value of benefit for sickness allowances (s,g,x,t)
159	valmatallow	Value of maternity benefits (g,x,t)
160	FEXPsickallow	Financial expenditure on sickness benefits (s,g,t)
161	FEXPmatallow	Financial expenditure on maternity benefits (g,t)
162	FEXPtun	Financial expenditure on funeral benefits (s,g,t)
163	FEXPadfixedb	Financial expenditure on an additional fixed-amount cash benefit (s,g,t)
164	valueadsalb	Value of an additional cash benefit based on salary (s,g,x,t)
165	FEXPadsalb	Financial expenditure on an additional cash benefit based on salary (s,g,t)
166	BEN_EXP_CASHgs	l otal expenditure on cash benefits (s,g,t)
167	BEN_EXP_CASHs	Total expenditure on cash benefits (s,t)
168	BEN_EXP_CASH	l otal expenditure on cash benefits (t)
Administrative e	expenditure	
169	AdCostg	Administrative expenditure (g,t)
170	AdCost	Administrative expenditure (t)
Demographic in	dicators	
171	AC_LFcrs	Labour force coverage rate (s,t)
172	AC_LFcr	Labour force coverage rate (t)
173	IP_NPcrs	Coverage rate of total population (s,t)
174	IP_NPcr	Coverage rate of total population (t)

175	ACaas	Average age of active contributors (s,t)
176	ACaa	Average age of active contributors (t)
177	Tlaas	Average age of total insured (s,t)
178	Tlaa	Average age of total insured (t)
179	NCaas	Average age of new contributors (s,t)
180	NCaa	Average age of new contributors (t)
181	IP04	Age distribution (percentages) of the total insured population 04 (s,t)
182	IP514	Age distribution (percentages) of the total insured population 514 (s,t)
183	IP1549	Age distribution (percentages) of the total insured population 1549 (s,t)
184	IP5064	Age distribution (percentages) of the total insured population 5064 (s,t)
185	IP65plus	Age distribution (percentages) of the total insured population 65+ (s,t)
186	RPT_MDAT_K	Coverage ins/TP (s,t)
187	RPT_MDAT_K_TOTAL	Coverage ins/TP (t)
Financial indica	tors	
188	A_IN_SALgrs	Annual growth rate of the average insurable wage (s,t)
189	A_IN_SALgr	Annual growth rate of the average insurable wage (t)
190	admin	Administrative expenditure as a proportion of expenditure on health benefits (t)
191	EXPHEALTH_GDPper	Expenditure on health benefits as a percentage of GDP (t)
192	EXPCASH_GDPper	Expenditure on cash benefits as a percentage of GDP (t)
193	EXP_GDPper	Expenditure on total as a percentage of GDP (t)
194	T_EXP_GDPper	Total expenditure (including administrative expenditure) as a percentage of GDP (t)
195	A_TEXPgr	Annual growth rate of total expenditure (including administrative expenditure) (t)
196	RES_RT	Reserve ratio (t)
197	Ехрх	Average expenditure per person (s,g,j,i,x,t)
198	EXP_PACKj_Ggper	Share of total healthcare expenditure of each health package (g,j,t)
199	HE_EXP_GDPper	Healthcare expenditure as a percentage of GDP (t)
200	SICKA_EXP_GDPper	Sickness benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP (t)
201	MATA_EXP_GDPper	Maternity benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP (t)
202	FUNB_EXP_GDPper	Funeral benefit expenditure as percentage of GDP (t)
203	AFB_EXP_GDPper	Additional fixed amount benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP (t)
204	ASALB_EXP_GDPper	Additional salary-based benefit expenditure as a percentage of GDP (t)
205	HE_EXP_GEXper	Healthcare expenditure as a percentage of government expenditure (t)
206	SICKA_EXP_GEXper	Sickness benefit expenditure as a percentage of GEX (t)
207	MATA_EXP_GEXper	Maternity benefit expenditure as a percentage of GEX (t)
208	FUNB_EXP_GEXper	Funeral benefit expenditure as a percentage of GEX (t)
209	AFB_EXP_GEXper	Additional fixed amount benefit expenditure as a percentage of GEX (t)
Tables / Aggreg	ated financial results	
210	RPT_MDAT	Table main demographic aggregates
211	RPT_TRE	Table revenue and expenditure
212	RPT_TFR	Table financial results
213	CurrentRevenue	Current revenue (t)
214	Expenditure	Expenditure (t)
215	REST	Reserve fund balance (t)
216	RPT_TRE_P_TFR_B	Financial results (t)
217	RPT_TRE_Q_TFR_C	PAYG rate (t)
218	RPT_TRE_R_TFR_D	Beginning of year reserve (t)
219	RPT_TRE_S_TFR_E	Reserve coefficient (t)

Annex 2: Data request for conducting an actuarial valuation for a healthcare scheme

Along with the list of variables in Annex I, this Annex provides the data and information required to conduct an actuarial valuation in a country. All items can be tailored to the specific country context.

The data request is organized in the following sections:

- 1. Laws, regulations and amendments
- 2. Financial statements
- 3. General data
- 4. Scheme-specific data

1. Laws, regulations and amendments

1.1 For the purposes of the actuarial valuation, the ILO will require the most recent version of the related law and amendments to that Law, as well as corresponding statutes, decrees and regulations.

Moreover, the ILO will require:

- 1.2 A copy of every draft law, if any, that is currently under review.
- 1.3 A summary of social security provisions.
- 1.4 A copy of any previous actuarial valuations performed.
- 1.5 Any other documentation that details the scheme or previous valuations, or that may otherwise be considered relevant.

2. Financial statements

- 2.1 Annual reports and (audited) financial statements for each of the past 10 years.
- 2.2 If the benefit expenditure and contribution income are disaggregated in the (audited) financial statements according to type of expenditure/income, the ILO would require additional details on the following expenditure/income items:
 - <u>Expenditure</u>
 - Expenditure on healthcare services by healthcare package: Promotive services, preventive services, curative services, diagnostic and rehabilitative services, ambulance service and other services as prescribed. If the [Health Institution Name] uses a different classification

of the interventions included in the benefit package, users should provide the information using that alternate classification.

- Administrative expenditure by government level (federal, province/region/state and local) and by main function (enrolment, collection of contributions, claims processing, others).
- Other expenditure categories (if any).

<u>Revenues from contributions and other Income</u>

- o Contributions from mandatory members separate from employers and from employees;
- o Contributions from voluntarily enrolled members;
- Government transfers/subsidies (breakdown of transfers for specific groups, if applicable);
- Revenue from financial investments;
- Transfers from other national organizations and international governments, entities or individuals; and
- Other income (if any).

3. General data

3.1 General demographic data

Demographic data	Details
- National population data	- Population by age and sex. Historical series for the past 20 years and official projections for the next 20 years.
 Historical information on total fertility rates (20 years) 	- Total fertility rates and fertility rates by age
- Historical information on migration rates (20 years)	- Net migration rates by age and sex
 Historical information on mortality rates and life expectancy (20 years) 	 Mortality rates by age and sex (infant mortality rates, under-5 mortality rates and mortality rates for the other age groups) Life expectancy by sex

3.2 Labour force and general economic data

Labour force and general economic data	Details
- Historical and projected information on labour force	 Labour force and employed population by status in employment (employees, employers and self-employed workers, by age and sex- past 10 years and projected for the next 20 years)

- Labour force participation rates	- Labour force participation rates by age and sex (past 10 years and projected for the next 20 years)
 Historical information for self- employed workers 	- Population of self-employed workers by age and sex
 Historical information on wages or income 	 Average wage or average income by sex Wage growth rate (real and nominal) Wage share of GDP
 Historical information on inflation rates (10 years) 	- Inflation rates: (CPI and GDP deflator rates by year)
- Historical information on GDP (10 years)	 Nominal GDP by year Real GPD by year Real GDP growth rate by year
 Historical information on market interest rate (10 years) 	- Interest rate by year (lending rate or bank rate that usually meets the short- and medium-term financing needs of the private sector)

3.3 Healthcare infrastructure and human resources data

Healthcare infrastructure and human resources	Details
- Healthcare infrastructure	 A detailed list of infrastructure available for the healthcare system and specific for the scheme, including third-party providers (if necessary). A list of healthcare infrastructure by level of care (primary, secondary, tertiary) and type (public / private) in the country.
- Healthcare providers	 The total number of healthcare providers by status in employment. The total number of healthcare and non-healthcare staff of the facilities of the social health insurance system or scheme and that are specific to the scheme.

4. Scheme-specific data

4.1. Covered population (active contributors and insured)

Covered population	Details
- Coverage rates of the labour force (10 years)	- Active contributors as a percentage of the labour force, by population group and sex
 Information on active contributors (10 years)* 	- Number of active contributors, by population group, sex and age
 Information on insured active contributors (10 years)* 	- Number of insured active contributors, by population group and sex

- Information on family dependants of active contributors (10 years)*

*Note: For non-contributory / fully-subsidized schemes, the listed information for all registered members is required (disaggregated by the principal insured and family dependants if this distinction exists in the scheme).

4.2. Expenditure and revenue

Expenditure (historical)	Details
- Expenditure on healthcare benefits	- Expenditure on healthcare benefits by population group by healthcare package, payment method and sex (10 years)
 Expenditure on cash benefits fore maternity and sickness 	- Expenditure on cash benefits for maternity and sickness by population group and sex (10 years)
- Administrative expenses	- Administrative expenses (10 years)
- Expenditure on other cash benefits	- Expenditure on other cash benefits by population group and sex (10 years)
- Average cash benefits	 Average cash benefit by category (maternity, sickness and others) by population group and sex (10 years)

Revenue (historical)	Details
- Contributory salary/income*	 Average contributory salary or income by sex (10 years) If the scheme applies a standard lump sum amount for contributions (i.e., not based on salary or income), users should provide the amount
- Total revenue	- Total revenue by population group (10 years)
- Revenue from social contributions	 Contribution revenue from employers (10 years) Contribution revenue from wage workers (10 years) Contribution revenue from other groups (10 years) such as self-employed workers, voluntary registered members, etc.
- Revenue from investments (10 years)	 Nominal rate of return on investments of the reserve fund of the social security scheme by type of financial instrument Real rate of return on investments of the reserve fund of the social security scheme, by type of instrument Revenue from investment of the reserve fund by type of financial instrument
- Government transfers/taxes	- Revenue from government transfers (10 years)

- Balance sheet on contributions	- Balance sheet on contributions and expenditures: revenue less expenditures on contributions (10 years)
- Balance sheet total	- Total balance sheet: total revenue minus total expenditure (10 years)
- Reserve fund (if any)	- Reserve fund (10 years)

*Note: This information is needed even for schemes that receive government subsidies for individual income-based contributions.

4.3. Data on members and claims

The following data on members and claims are required to carry out the actuarial valuation:

Employers (if applicable):

- Unique ID number
- Sector (according to internal classification public, private, etc.)

Contributions:

- Month
- Year
- ID of contributor
- ID of employer
- Salary / income amount
- Contribution amount
- Government transfer amount (if applicable)

Contributors:

- ID of contributor
- Sex
- Birthdate

Insured / dependants:

- ID of insured / dependant (if applicable)
- Relationship with main contributor (if available)

- ID of main contributor
- Birthdate
- Sex
- Type of scheme affiliation (for example contributory, subsidized, non-contributory)

Claims:

- Claim number
- Claim amount
- Type of claim / intervention identifier
- ID of the insured person (beneficiary)
- Type of provider / provider ID, if applicable
- Date of claim
- Intervention date
- Number of days of hospitalization (if applicable)
- Co-payment (if applicable)

References

ILO Social Security Conventions and Recommendations

- R069 Medical Care Recommendation, 1944 (No. 69)
- <u>C102</u> Social Security (Minimum Standards) Convention, 1952 (No. 102)
- <u>C130</u> Medical Care and Sickness Benefits Convention, 1969 (No. 130)
- C183 Maternity Protection Convention, 2000, (No. 183)
- R191 Maternity Protection Recommendation, 2000 (No. 191)
- R202 Social Protection Floors Recommendation, 2012 (No. 202)

Fact Sheet No. 31, The Right to Health – Office of the UN High Commissioner for Human Rights

Publications

Cichon, M., Newbrander, W., Yamabana, H., Normand, C., Weber, A., Dror, D. and Preker, A., 1999. *Modelling in Health Care Finance: A Compendium of Quantitative Techniques for Health Care Financing*. ILO.

Cichon, M., Scholz, W., Van de Meerendonk, A., Hagemejer, K., Bertranou, F. and Plamondon, P., 2004. *Financing Social Protection*. Quantitative Methods in Social Protection Series. ILO.

IAA (International Actuarial Association). 2002. *IAA International Standards of Actuarial Practice* (*ISAP*) 1 – *Actuarial Practice for Social Security Programs*. Adopted by Council of the International Actuarial Association (IAA), October 21, 2002 - Effective January 1, 2003

ILO (International Labour Organization). 2020. *Towards Universal Health Coverage: Social Health Protection Principles.*

ILO (International Labour Organization). 2020. Sickness benefits: An introduction.

ISSA (International Social Security Association); ILO (International Labour Organization). 2016. *Guidelines on Actuarial Work for Social Security*.

Normand, C.,, Weber, A. and World Health Organization. 1994. *Social Health Insurance: a Guidebook for Planning*. No. WHO/SHS/NHP/94.3. Unpublished. World Health Organization.

Plamondon, P., Drouin, A., Binet, G., Cichon, M., McGillivray, W., Bédard, M. and Pérez-Montas, H., 2002. *Actuarial Practice in Social Security*. ILO.